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March 27, 1985
Dear Resident:

Through the efforts of the many townspeople who have volunteered
their time we present to you a detailed history of our Village. This
committee of dedicated individuals has worked on this special limited
edition journal for quite some time. Much of the material in this book
came from residents of our Village. However, we have heard from some
former residents who have graciously supplied us with some outstanding
memorabilia of Ridgefield Park.

The celebration of our Tercentennial during 1985 is a coammunity
effort. Such a joint effort is not unconmon in ocur Village. Citizens
Jjoining together to accomplish a goal is commonplace in Ridgefield Park,
This is why we have a unique community, a community of people who care.

To the long-time residents of our Village this book is a
reflection of their years in Ridgefield Park. To those new residents,
you are given a rare opportunity to learn about our Village and
understand why lifelong residents claim with pride that they were born
and raised in this fine community. It 1s the responsibility of all
residents to keep up the fine traditions Ridgefield Park has had for
the past 300 years.

Sincerely,

7 ot

Fred J. Criscuolo
Mayor
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If you close your eyes and imagine a
virgin forest surrounded on three sides by
crystal clear waters, you will have an idea
of the land which the Indians called
“Hacki Sak” or “good ground " It is said
that this name arose from the fact that In-
dians traveling up the Hackensack River
saw nothing but swamps and unusable
marsh land until they reached Ridgefield
Park Here was the first “good ground”
north of the Meadowlands

The Lenni Lenapes who settled here
were called the “Hackisak” tribe, after the
land they inhabited Their leader at the
time Europeans first arrived was a man
named Oratam

After Henry Hudson discovered the

river bearing his name in 1609, the Dutch
began to settle the southern tip of
Manhattan Island. One of these early
Dutch settlers was Hendrick Brinkerhoff,
who came with his family to the “New
World” in 1635 at the age of eight

In 1664 the Dutch lost control of their
New World colony to the English. King
Charles Il of England gave his brother
James, Duke of York, all the land be-
tween the Connecticut and Delaware
Rivers. James sold the portion west of the
Hudson to John, Lord Berkeley and Sir
George Carteret Carteret named the
land New Jersey and appointed his
cousin, Philip Carteret, Governor.

On June 24, 1669, Governor Carteret

confirmed a land claim of Sarah Roelofs
Kiersted to the territory lying between the
Hackensack River and Overpeck Creek.
Legend has it that Mrs_ Kiersted acted as
interpreter for Chief Oratam in his deal-
ings with the Dutch. [n the final months of
his life, Oratam gave her more than
2,000 acres of prime Bergen County
land to thank her for her work. It is
estimated that this grant encompassed all
of present Ridgefield Park, Bogota, and
Teaneck as far north as Fort Lee Road.
Mrs. Kiersted, the wife of a surgeon in
the employ of the Dutch West 1|
Company, lived in New York and
settled on her New Jersey land.
1685 she assigned most of her



Epke Jacobsen Banta who divided it up
into smaller parcels fit for individual set-
tlement.

On June 17, 1685, Hendrick Brinker-
hoff bought land on the Hackensack
River from Epke Bantz The land pur-
chased by Brinkerhoff extended from the
Hackensack River on the west to the
Overpeck Creek on the east. The exact
northern and southern boundaries are
unknown, but judging from later settle-
ment and land sales, we think the Brin-
kerhoff land extended from today's
Hobart Street up to an area near Preston
Street. By this purchase 300 years ago,
Brinkerhoff became the first non-Indian to
live in Ridgefield Park and the settlement

| R .

of the Village began.

When Brinkerhoff settled here, Bergen
County was just three years old and en-
compassed all the land between the
Hackensack and Hudson Rivers The first
road in the area was the Queen Anne
Road, probably built before Brinkerhoff
died in 1710

It is interesting to speculate on what
Hendrick Brinkerhoff might have found
when he settled here 300 years ago. He
built his home along the Hackensack
River Bank in an area that today is im-
mediately to the west of the Elks Club
There was a small cove at that location on
the river, which Brinkerhoff must have
found attractive. This area provided the

first suitable land for farming as one sailed
north from Newark Bay We find a virgin
forest, evidence of transient Indian set-
tlements, fruits and berries in abundance
wild game and fish. Is it any wonder that
Brinkerhoff chose this site If we could
transport ourselves back 300 years, think
of what we would find as we sailed up the
river in a canoe—silence —only the
sounds of nature — there was no nois
no factories, no brdges. no railr
just nature, in an essentially und :
state. Natural springs emptuing inta the




Homestead of Hendrick Jorisch Brinkerhoff at Old Hackensack, now Ridgefield

Park

clear waters of the river and creek. fertile
ground, clear air

Brinkerhoff built his home, raised his
family and maintained his deep religious
convictions. The Brinkerhoff family held

a reunion here in Ridgefield Park 100
years ago and in 1887 the family pub
lished a history whi “h contains ‘5'||-: |r'.ft_)r
mation about the early Brinkerhoffs
The first two names on the church
records of the Dutch Church at Hac
kensack (Ed. Note — Taday referred to
as the "Church on the Green" —op-

posite the Court House) were Hen-
drick Jorise and Claussie Corneleise,

which really meant Hendrick, son of
George Brinkerhoff, and Claussie,
daughter of Cornelius Boomgeart, his
wife. . " continuing, “in the first
published records of Justices, com-
mencing in 1715, the name of Cor-
nelius Brinkerhoff, son of Hendrick,
appears. So, also, in 1717, the name
of Jacobus Brinkerhoff, another son of
Hendrick, appears as Justice of the
Peace The name Cornelius appears
as late as 1731, and Jacobus in 1748,
In 1761, the name of Hartman Brin-
kerhoff, son of Cornelius, appears as a
Justice In 1765, the names Hendrick
and George Brinkerhoff appear as

Freeholders."

The best source of information about
our first settler, Hendrick Jorisen Brinker-
hoff, is found in the Brinkerhoff family
history, published in 1887. Here, in its
entirety, is the story of Hendrick Brinker-
hoff, as told at that time:

The old Homestead farm of our
ancestor, Hendrick Jorisen Brinker-
hoff, at what is now known as Ridge-
field Park, in the County of Bergen,
and State of New Jersey, was pur-
chased by him by deed dated June 17,
1685, from Epke Jacobsen Banta, the
first of the Banta family who came to
this country. It was part of a large neck
or tract of land for which one Mrs
Sarah Kirstead, of New York, had a
patent given by an old Indian Sachem
in recompense for interpreting the In-
dian language into Dutch as there was
occasion, and which was conveyed by
Mrs Kirstead to Banta

It is known that the boundaries of
the homestead tract were the Hacken-
sack River on the west, and the Over-
peck Creek on the east, but is not
known what were its northern and
southern boundaries, or what was its
area When it finally passed out of the
hands of the family in 1861, it con-
tained only ninety-three acres, but
after the death of Hendrick Jorisen
Brinkerhoff there was prabably a parti-
tion of the original tract between his
sons Derick and Jacobus, and giving
them each an equal share, the whole
area would have been about two hun-
dred acres

The selection of the tract was a most
natural and judicious one Here was
the first high land on the Hackensack
River on either side, sailing up the
stream. The luxuriance of vegetable
growth that has always charactenzed
this locality must have well attested the
superior fertility of the soil; and the
general formation of the land was, very
plainly, unusually well adapted for
building or cultivation. These advan-
tages, with its location on two navi-
gable streams and its nearness to the
seaboard, was quite sufficient to justify
the choice

Local tradition says what when Hen-
drick first came to prepare for settle-
ment on his new purchase, he came,
accompanied by his two sons, in
canoes, by way of the Hackensack
River. After landing he went a little
distance from the shore and began to
cut down some trees, intending to put
up a block house and then retum to
New York for his family and goods.
But while engaged in felling trees a
fatal arrow shot by an Indian pierced
and killed his son by his side. The old
man took up his son on his back, and
with his other son fled to his boat and
hastened back to New York The loss
of his son was so discouraging that he
concluded to return to Holland His



friends, however, prevailed on him to
remain, and, accompanied by a guard
of friends and soldiers, he returned, ef-
fected a compromise with the natjves,
and was afterwards unmolested

The killing of one of the sans is well
attested in other ways, but the scene is
generally laid in Staten Island, It is, how.
ever, somewhat difficult to understand
how the local tradition could be so
wrong In so important a matter of fam-
ily history, with so little lapse of time for
forgetfulness, and with men so peculiar.
ly constituted as these early Dutchmen
were, to remember all about such facts,
and to recount it minutely and conscien-
tiously.

Undoubtedly Hendrick must have
been the first white settler in that im-
mediate locality, thereafter known as
Old Hackensack, and Paulisons were
his earliest and pearest neighbors.

The first public road laid out through
this tract, now known as the Old
Hackensack Road, was originally
known as the Queen Anne Road, in-
dicating that it was laid out sometime
between the years 1702 and 1714,
when that sovereign reigned

The first house built by Hendrick
was, of course, the rude block or log
house of all early settlers in such
regions. What other house was next
built, its shape, size, or appearance, or
through what architectural changes it
passed, or when, we do not know, but
the Homestead, its location and sur-
roundings, when occupied by the last
Brinkerhoff owner, although the
buildings and improvements have
been clean gone for years, are well
remembered by many now living, who
lived or visited there

There is a tradition that these were at
one time two separate houses, one on
the site where the homestead last
stood, and one, an older one (perhaps
the original block house} in front to the
south on a gentle slope to the nver,
one occupied by the father and the
other by the son

The main part of the old homestead
as it last existed, and as shown by the
accompanying illustration, was
erected in 1802 It stood facing south
at the head of a gentle slope, the shore
to the south receding quite abruptly
about seventy-five feet, so that while
the river banks about twenty-five feet
distant westerly from the house were
nearly perpendicular and about ten or
twelve feet in height, southerly the
ground sloped easily to the water's
edge The main part of the house was
about twenty-eight by thirty-two feet, a
story and a hall high, with a hip rool,
and a stoop with rail and baluster The
first story was of common brown
stone, the gable being finished with
wooden siding On the west was an old
fashioned extension of ane story with
aftic, a ceiling of naked beams, an old
fashioned fire-place, and a shed in

front extending over a rude pavernent

This extenslon was probably the
original homestead The southern
slope in front was utilized as a garden,
and enclosed with a fence, and a fence
also enclosed the whole yard about the
house and smaller buildings, except an
the westerly river front. A little to the
east was a slight depression, through
which 1an a streamlet, emptying into
the river. Right by this brook and about
one hundred feet from the house, was
an excellent spring with a small house
over it. The barn stoad farther back on
higher ground

Such was the character of the
Homestead buildings, when in 1861,
Jacob A Brinkerhoff, the great-great-
grandson of Hendrick Jorisen Brinker-
hoff sold and surrendered the farm to
strangers who knew not Hendrick

Alter this, their history is a brief one
In the year 1870, the New Jersey
Midland (now the New York Sus-
quehanna and Western) Railway
Company located its route partly on
the site of the old homestead and part-
ly to the east of it, and soon after began
running its rains. The proximity of the
track necessitated the removal of one
corner of the house and, very natural-
ly, led the next year to setting its root
on fire by a spark from a passing
engine, and then all was gone (the
barn and other buildings had gone
before), all except the old spring
whose destruction was delayed until
the building of the New York, West
Shore and Buffale Railroad in 1882,

on the east side of the Midland road
and then that too wa
and disappeared And now,. where for
nearly two hundred years our worth
old Dutch ancestors lived their ex
emplary lives in happy rural retirement
the thunder of more than hall a hundred
daily trains wakes the echoes of the hills
and mocks the drowsy memories of the
pasi

The little we know about the su
cessive awners of the Old Homestead
is as fallows

What we know about Hendrick is
well tald by General Brinkerhoff in his
re-union address. It is probably,
however, that Hendrick had a larger
family than he has generally been
credited with [t now seems that he had
at least ten children, although they
may not all have fived with him at Old
Hackensack

Hendrick died about 1710, as near
as is known After his death by a deed
the date of which is lost, Cornelus. his
eldest son and heir at law, and his
widow Classie, conveyed all the Old
Hackensack property to his other twe
sons, Dermrick and Jacobus. The two
sons probably divided the premises be-
tween them by parol partition, Jacobus
taking the old homestead portion and
Derrick the northerly portion

vallowed up

Jacobus Brinkerhoff, the son of
Hendrick, seems to have inherited a
good share of his father's enterprise
and religious spirit The date or place
of his birth i1s not known, but it is quite
probable, as he was one of the youngest

Original Brinkerhoff homestead behind Elks Club
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ol the children, that he was born at the
old homstead On April 17, 1708, he
married Angenitie Banta, daughter of

Hendrick Banta, from whese father he
had bought the old homestead tract,
and on January 2, 1709, he and his wile
joined the church at Hackensack. From
the church recards we learn that when
the Rev. Reinhart Erricksen came over
from Holland and became the pastor of
the church at Hackensack, Schraalen
burgh and Passalc, the note given at
Amsterdam for the fare of the passage
(twenty pounds and extra charges) was
paid by Jacobus Brinkerhoff and Martin
Powles (Paulison), as if by a previous
agreement Captain Payton's receipt
for the payment s still preserved
among the papers of the church

That Jacobus was a man of thrift and
enterprise | is indicated by his various
mvestments in 1eal estate, not only in
his own neighborhood, but at points
quite remote for those days For in-
stance, we find that by a deed dated
July 23, 1735, he and his brother,
Cornelius, bought of Jacob Arents, a
“physitian” of Newark, for fifty pounds
and “divers good causes,” a tract of
two hundred acres at Pompton, New
Jersey, apparently a tract containing
an iron mine We also find that he pur-
chased a tract at Closter, which he
devised to his son George. Among his
other purchases, was a tract of sixty-
three acres at Quacksack, a place on
the opposite side of the Hackensack
River This tract he purchased jontly
with Jacob Banta, July 13, 1744

He was several times elected to the
oftice ol chosen freeholder in the
County of Bergen, and the presump-
tion is fair that he took an active and in-
fluential part in public afairs

He had five children a Hendrick
who died in infancy Hendrick,
George, the ancestor of the Penn-
sylvania and Ohio Brinkerhoffs,
Jacob, and Maria, who married Jacob
Housman

He died in 1769 or 1770, and left a
will devising the old homestead farm to
his son Jacob

The manner in which he begins his

will, in conformity with the pious for-
mality of those days and in striking
contrast with the business brevity of
more maodern times, is as lollows

‘1, Jacobus Brinkerhofl, of the

County of Beu_qvh. Precinct ol
Hackensack, Yeoman, being some
times weak of body, but now .:-f sound
and perfect mind and memory, thanks
be given to God therefor, calling to

mind the mortality of my body, and
knowing that it 1s appointed 1o all men
to die, do make this my last will and
testament That Is to day principally
and first of all, | give and recommend
my soul into the hands of Gad that first
gave it, and for my body | recommend

it to the earth, to be buried in a
Christian-like and decent manner and
at the discretion of my executors, but
at the general resurrection 1 hope to
receive the same by the mighty Power
of God and through the merits of our
Savior Jesus Christ, and as touching
such worldly estate whereof it has
pleased God to bless me in this life,
elc

The clause by which he gives the
Old Homestead to his son Jacob is as
follows:

“It is my will, and | do bequeath to
my son Jacob Brinkerhoff the planta-

" tion where | now dwell on, called Old

Hackensack, on the east side of the
Hackensack River, with all the ap-
purtenances belonging "

The witnesses to the will were Dirck
Brinkerhoff and Rynier V. Giesin

The date of the will is January 17,
1769

Jacob Brinkerhoff, son of Jacobus,
was born at the Old Homestead No-
vemnber 19, 1721 There is little to be
told of him from what the writer has
been able to learn He married Antje
Voorhese, but the date 1s not known
On February 28, 1745, he joined the
church at Hackensack, and on No-
vember 23, 1749, his wife followed his
example He died in his prime in the
year 1771, very shortly after his father
He had seven children Agnetie, who
mamied Daniel Hanng, of Schraalen-
burgh; Lucas, who, during the War of
Independence was taken prisoner by
the British and was confined in the
famous Sugar House prison at New
York, Annatie |a notice ol whom is
elsewhere given), who mamied John
Christie, afterwards a fellow-prisoner
of the British with his brother-in-law
Lucas, Jacobus, Hendrick, who
became insane and died a bachelor,
and Albert, who got the OId
Homestead, and George

From the tenor of his will he was
probably suftering from serious iliness
when it was written [t is much the
manner of his father's, and begins as
follows

"1, Jacob Brinkerhoff, of Old
Hackensack, in the County of Bergen,
and Province of East New Jersey,
Yeoaman —being much disordered
and In affliction of bady, but of sound
and disposing mund and memary, da
make, constitute, and ordain this my
last will and testament, in manner and
form following If it shall please God to
remove me hence by my present in-
disposition, | recommend my soul to
God who gave it formerly, relying on
Him for the pardon of all my sins,
through Jesus Christ, His only son,
and my body to be decently interred at
the discretion of my executors

He gives sixty pounds to his wife in
lieu of dower, and devises his real

estate as follows:

"I give all my real estate bequeathed
to me by the last will of my father
Jacobus Brinkerhoff deceased, and
also a plece of meadow which | pur-
chased myself, to my five sons, Lucas,
James, Hendrick, Albert, George,
their heirs and assigns forever, to be
equally divided, or to have the value
thereof as the majority of my executors
shall see fit, or the majority of my sur-
viving executors shall deem proper "

He was evidently determined to
have his estate well administered, as
he appointed no less than six ex-
ecutors Antje, his wife, his brother,
George, his nephews Nicholas and
George, his brother-in-law Hendrick
Van Voorhise, and his cousin Albert
Banta The witnesses were John
Vanderhoof, Dav. Archibold and
John Powlse

Albert Brinkerhoff, one of the five
sons to whom Jacob devised his real
estate, in the final settlement thereof by
the executors, got the Old Homestead
farm at Old Hackensack He was barn
at the Old Homestead, March 21,
1763 In 1796 he married Keziah
Voorhis Like his ancestors he early
connected himself with the church at
Hackensack, and took an active and
earnest part in its affarrs In the split
which took place in the church on the
coetus and conferentie question, he
was always, as were his father and
grandfather, on the coetus side When
the secession took place, which re-
sulted in the organization known as the
True Reformed Dutch Church, he was
among its leaders n the new bady he
was one of the first elders of the chur-
ches at Hackensack and Schraal-
enburgh, and was a member with the
Rev Dr Froeligh of the first classes
which convened m extra-session at
Danube, New York, July 15 1823
That he and his ancestors were fairly
liberal church members is shown by
their recorded contributions to the
rebuilding of the church at Hackensack
in 1790 In the War of Independence
he and his brothers were ardent
patriots, and the Old Homestead must
have been the scene of many an in-
teresting event in those troublous
times And the good old Dutch vrouws
as well stood nobly by the cause if they
did not even surpass the men in
TouTage and spin

He died at the Old Homestead,
December 8, 1844, leaving three
children. Anna, who married David
Christie, Albert and Jacob, to whom
he devised the Old Homestead, de-
scribing it in his will as “My Old
Hackensack Farm ”

Jacob A. Brinkerhoff, son of Albert,
was the last owner of the Old Home-
stead in the Brinkerhoff line. He was
born there August 6, 1802, and con-
tinued to reside there until April 1,



Paulison-Christie House

1861, when he sold the whole tract
containing eighty-three acres to John
A Parsons, of Hackensack, for the
sum of $17 534.00, and removed
with his family to Hackensack where
he spent the remainder of his days

He was a person of tall and manly
build, of a strang and intelligent mind
{a 'smart Dutchman' as his pastor the
Rev. C T Demarest once charac-
terized him), and of a most rigid and
uncampromising disposition in all mat-
ters of principle, holding mast firmly to
the creed of his fathers in both religion
and politics That 1s to say he was a
Calvinist of the straightest sect, and a
Democrat of the Jacksonian type He
was well qualified by intelligence and
character to fill high official position,
but was too severe and unconciliatory
or too unambitious to attain such
hanors. He never followed any other
business than that of a farmer. He mar-
ned Elizabeth Van Saun, and had by
her five children Catherine, who mar-
ned William Williams, Albert, Isaac,
Keziah, who married Willlam Wester-
velt, and Hester Ann, who married
Garret Oldis.

From this sketch it will be seen that
the Old Homestead continued uninter-
ruptedly in the possession and owner-
ship of Hendrick Joris Brinkerhoff and
his lineal descendents from June 17,
1685, to April 1, 1861, a period of
nearlyl one hundred and seventy-six
years.

By 1775, Hendrick Brinkerhoff's
great-grandson Albert was living on the
Brinkerhoff land. The area had become
part of the newly-created Hackensack
Township in 1693. Other families had
settled in the area. There were the Ban-
tas, the Bogerts and the Paulisons,

Around this time, John Paulison built a
house on his property, adjacent to the
Brinkerhoff land This house, which still
stands at 8 Homestead Place, is also
referred to as the Christie house, after the
family which bought it in 1844 and has
kept it until 1984, when the house was
sold to the Herman Family

One of the problems in researching the
early history of Ridgefield Park has been
the lack of verifiable data. In those days,
records were often informal and some-
times just not kept In March of 1984,
Reginald McMahon, of the Bergen Coun.
ty Historical Society, prepared a detailed
report on the origin of Christie house. We
are indebted to Mr. McMahon for the in-
formation which we reprint here in its
entirety:

History of the
PAULISON-CHRISTIE HOUSE
Ridgefield Park, N J
by Reginald McMahon

Recent architectual assessments of
this historic house have revealed the
structure to be of a later date than
previous speculation has often at
tributed to it ' Architecture, however,
can only offer clues to its age in a broad
range of years and, in this case, the lat-
ter part of the eighteenth century
somefime between 1775 and 1800
Subsequently, the farmhouse has seen
additions, subtractions, renovations
and remodeling

John Paulison was owner of the
land at the time the house was built,
probably circa 1775 The property in
Ridgefield Park was then part of the
Township of Hackensack and often
referred to as "Old Hackensack", a

name not to be confused with the pres-

ent City of Hackensack on the west
bank of the river

According to the tax ratables of
1778, John was assessed for 150 im
proved acres of land within the town
ship which probably consisted of
several Individual tracts and not
necessarily contiguous to the home
stead lot He also was assessed for four

horses, four head of cattle as well as
ownership of one slave * This was dur-
ing the Revolutionary War and It is said
that British soldiers raided the farm
and stole his horses ’

John Paulison was baptized as
“Jan" on December 7, 1746 at the
Reformed Dutch Church of Hacken-
sack, situated on the present site of to-
day's Church on the Green near the
Bergen County Courthouse He was
the youngest son of Paulus Martense
(Paulisan), a resident of the township,
and Rachel Jacobse Demarest John's
grandfather was Martin Pouwelse
(Paulison) who may have been the first
of the family to seftle in the area,
perhaps in the late 1600's The great-
grandfather, known as Paulus
Pieterse, was born in Holland and
emigrated to New Netherland. .now
New York, when it was still under
Dutch rule *

There is no document on record that
states when and from whom the Paul-
isons purchased their property in
Ridgefield Park but it may have been
from earlier settlers such as the
Brinkerhoffs, Bantas or Bogerts
However, such a transfer of real estate
was made before the house concerned
in this study was built

John Paulison, like his father and
grandfather, was active in the Church
on the Green and was an Elder of the
Consistory. * In 1791 he contributed to
the building of the new church struc-
ture which still stands today, his name
was inscribed on a sandstone block at
the front of the building as one the
subscribers ®

By 1797 John was taxed for 90
acres of improved land and 40 acres
that were unimproved Unimproved
usually meant acreage that was not
built upon or cultivated and often was
meadow or woodland By this ime he
owned two slaves, six horses and
twelve head of cattle * John and wife
Gertrude “"Geertje" Terhune and three
known children, Paul, Richard, and
Catherine * By 1802 Paul, the eldest
was sharing the tax burden with his
father *

John Paulison died in May of
at the age of eighty years Wite (

followed him to the grave a vear
and both were buried in the cen
of the old Church on the Green

An inventory of John's personal
estate, made shortly, after his death

amounted to $3578.641/4; with much




of it invested in bonds and notes. He

also held shares in the Bergen Tum
pike, the toll road that ran through the
southern tip of Ridgefield Park It 15 of
interest to note that he owned a

weaver's loom and quilting frame
among other possessions, including
his Negro slave named Caesar who
was valued at $75 00"

Paulison's will was probated May
29 1826 in which he left an equal
share of his personal estate to his three
children '* He devised "all my Old
Hackensack lands” to sons Paul and
Richard which were already "held by
them according to the division
made by themselves theretofore
Paul stayed on the house tract while
brother Richard made his home fur-
ther north which also included a 27
acre lot purchased by the father from
Necausie Brinkerhoff The northern
branch of the family, on and near
Brinkerhoff holdings, has often over
shadowed the original Paulison
homestead further south and has led
to latter day confusion about their in
dividual histories

At any rate, a provision in father
John's will forbade the sons to sell their
inheritance and ordered that the prop-
erties should be passed along to their
own children

Paul Paulison, inheritor of the
homestead, was born in 1770 and he
and wife Mary became parents of
many children He is said to have been
a graduate of Princeton College'!
{University) in 1794 when he was
about the age of twenty-four For a
time, he may have lived across the
Hackensack River in the Township of
New Barbadoes

Paul did not survive his father for
many vears and died January 6, 1832
at the age of sixty-two He was buried
near his father at the Church on the
Green '* In his last will and testament
he directed "that all my real estate be
equally divided among my four sons”
but that the “division shall be made
twelve years after my death” '* The lat-
ter stipulation was made because heirs
were not yet of age

All the children shared in his per-
sonal estate which amounted to
$943.75. An inventory included the
usual farming utenslls, livestock and
crops in storage but it is of interest that
he also owned “chain and compass”,
the equipment of the surveyor ' If he
practiced this profession, he never
surveyed his own property, or at least
a survey that has survived

According to one of his sons, soon
after the father's death the family
moved to New York '" Although they
would later return, they chose not 1o
keep the old homestead It is passible
that for a time the premises was either
rented or remained vacant

In 1844 and twelve vears after his

death, the Bergen County Orphans
Court appointed Commissioriers "to
rmake partition of the land and real
estate of Paul Paulison, deceased". As
the heirs did not wish to retain the
homestead, the commissioners sold it
on November 6, 1844 Several parcels
of land were involved Including the
471, acre "Homestead Farm of the
sald Paul Paulison” "

The farm, which included the
house, was not surveyed but the deed
recited that it was bounded on the
north by Albert Brinkerhoff who was a
descendant of one of Ridgefield Park's
earliest families. To the south were
several families who were in posses-
sion of the early Bogert lands which
later became known as the Brewster
property  The west boundary was the
Hackensack River To the east the line
was "a small creek in the meadows"
which appears to have been a tributary
of Overpeck Creek A separate parcel
worth noting was the “gravel pit”
situated near the southern tip of
Ridgefield Park There were also lots of
meadowland bordering the Overpeck
as well as woodland situated on the
Palisades “mountain’’ and in
Moonachie

David Christie was the man who
purchased the former Paulison estate
He was a Bergen County resident who
“removed to New York City where he
made a fortune as a stone cutter’’ In
about 1835 “he retired from business”
and settled north of the Village of
Ridgefield Park in the present Borough
of Ridgefield then known as English
Neighborhood In 1814 he married
Anna Brinkerhoff, the daughter of
Albert Brinkerhoff who had been the
immediate neighbor to the north of the
Paulison lands'* Christie, therefore,
was obviously knowledgeable about
the property and its proposed sale

A month after Chnstie purchased
the land, his father-in-law died and
although he devised no real estate to
daughter Anna, he did bequeath her
the sum of $1500 and a share of the
household furniture. In addition, he
left to his grandson and namesake,
Albert B Christie, the sum of $30 "to
be expended in the purchase of a bible
and a watch" **

Dawid Christie did not make the pur-
chase of the Paulison property for
himself but for son Albert B Christie
Father David died in 1848 leaving no
will and it was not until 1858 that
Albert gained legal title to the premises
he occupied Interestingly enough, his
deed of that date stll described the
place as "the late Homestead Farm of
Paul Paulison” !

Albert Brinkerhoff Christie was born
in 1816 and married to Lydia Ann
Christie, a distant relative. They had
seven children: four sons—David A,
James H., Jacob B. and Comelius;

also three daughters— Anna, Rachel
and Sarah **

According to the 1850 Federal Cen-
sus for the Township of Hackensack,
Christie was a farmer by occupation
with real estate valued at $6000. The
household employed a 19 year old
Irish girl, Eliza Mullen, as a servant and
two male laborers Joseph Samson, a
45 year old black and John Thoms
Neuly, 22, born in England **

An 1861 map labels the house as
“A B. Christie" ** The nearest
neighbor to the north was “J. (John)
Parsons" who had purchased the
Brinkerhoff lands the same year the
map was made ** To the south was “J.
Brewster'' who had acquired the
former Bogert property ** John
Brewster and his wife Harriet were
born in England®’ and they and their
family would long be associated with
this area of Ridgefield Park

In 1871 the Christie farm came
under the jurisdiction of the newly
organized Township of Ridgefield
which had been formed from old
Hackensack Township ** A map of the
new township, published in 1876 (see
attached copy), depicts the “"A B
Christie” house and a small brook
which once passed near the south
facade of the dwelling The former
Brinkerhoff lands to the north were
now laid out in a grid of streets labeled
“Ridgefield Park”, the name that in
later years would be adopted for the
enfire present village Development of
the area was likely due to the creation
of the railroad which ran between the
Hackensack River and the Christie
house In 1876 it was known as the
New Jersey and Midland Railroad **

The 1880 census notes Albert, wife
Lydia who was “keeping house", and
six of their children JamesH , twenty-
six, and Jacob B , twenty-three, were
listed as farmers The youngest chil-
dren were “at school”. Grouped as a
separate household, perhaps in the
former frame wing, were the family of
the oldest son, David A Christie—
wife Sarah and their two small
children David was a “builder” by
accupation *

In 1885 Brinkerhoff descendants
held a family reunion on their former
property which now was owned by
Peter Mehrhof where a large tent was
erected Nearby was the “antique
dwelling house and outhouses of
Albert B Christie” which he “sur-
rendered” for the 'accommodation
and entertainment of the numerocus
guests” For instance his large bam, 26
x 48 feet in size, was “transformed into
a convenient dining salon” Albert,
whose mother had been a Brinkerhoff,
generously loaned the premises since
he was a descendant of that family as

well



Today, nearly one hundred years
since the reunion, there has been an
occasional misunderstanding that the
Paulison-Christie House was a Brin
kerhoff dwelling since it had become

part of the festivities It should be
emphasized that a report of the re-
union, published as a book in 1887,
clearly states that the Paulisons were
the Brinkerhoff's “earliest and nearest
neighbors" **

Albert B Christie died December
16, 1887 at the age of seventy-one
According to his obituary, he "went
out to his barn Saturday night, and was
attacked with a dizziness in the head"
He was taken “into the house and died
a few hours afterward of apolexy”
(stroke) *

An inventory of his personal estate
amounted to $4153 12 Various items
were listed in different parts of the
house including the “extension’, a
frame wing that once was attached on
the north side of the house and which
included a bedroom, a second floor
and a cellar Out-buildings were also
noted main barn, west barn, carriage
house, granary, shed and wood-
shed *

A map drawn a few years later in
1890, depicts the layout of the
“residence” with the north extension
as well as a small frame addition to the
northeast corner of the stone house.
Two unidentified outbuildings, now
gone, are shown immediately north of
the home.** However, the front porch
and dormer on the facade are re-
minders of later renovations.

The aforementioned 1890 map
labels “Homestead Place” as running
along the east side of the house Near-
by was “North” and "South” Streets,

whose names were changed later to
Christie and Brinkerhoff Streets

In his last will and testament, Albert
B. Christie devised all personal and
real estate to wife Lydia Ann and his
brother Cornelius Christie, who were
also appointed as executors of the
estate They were empowered to sell
rent and invest monies derived from
his holdings® which for many years
was known as the "Albert B Christie
Estate "

Wife Lydia Ann “died at her home"
March 30, 1896, at the age of seventy-
one She appointed her four sons—
David, James, Jacob and Cornelius —
as executors of her will with "full power
to manage and control, and to sell” the
estate 7

By 1938. one son, James H. Chris-
tie, became sole legal owner of the
premises’ although he no longer
resided here Apparently the home, or
part of it, was sometimes rented to
tenants

James was married to Martha Lydia
Robbinson, "a member of the house-
hold of Judge Albert H Bogert, whose
farm adjoined the Christie farm on
the southeast " Martha predeceased
her husband who died on May 8,
1940, at the age of eighty-seven His
obituary noted him as “Ridgefield
Park's oldest living native-born son
and last surviving child of Albert B
Christie and Lydia Ann Christie
James had “by inheritance and pur-
chase acquired a large tract ex-
tending from the Hackensack River to
Overpeck Creek " This was worked as
a farm until later years when he
developed portions of the property
into home sites **

James' and Martha's son, Albert

Brinkerhofl Christ |
premises whicl

widow

I

Gene Frances Christie

passed away February, 1985 The «

Paulison-Christie House wa
inta the National Register of
Places on January 10, 1983
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In the American Revolution, little ac-
tivity Is recorded in the area now encom-
passed by our Village. During the evac-
uation of Ft. Lee in November, 1776, the
Colonial Troops marched west on Ft.
Lee Road to what we could call today
Grand Avenue (Leonia), north to Pal-
isade Avenue {Englewood), west on
Palisade Avenue to Forest Avenue, con-
tinuing to the area near the present
Teaneck Fire Headquarters. Washing-
ton's men then traveled north on
Teaneck Road, turning west again in the
area of the present Armory and continu-
ing west on New Bridge Road, crossing at
the new bridge in New Milford into Hack-
ensack. When the last American crossed
the bridge, the bridge was burned to
delay the British, under General Corn-
wallis, who were pursuing the Ameri-
cans. We do know that Washington
ordered all boats removed from the east
banks of the Hackensack River, so we
can assume that scouting parties came
through our area to carry out that order
We also know that when the main body
of men turned north on Grand Avenue, a
scouting party went south and crossed
the Hackensack River south of the
Overpeck Creek, preparing an alternate
means of escape should it be required.
During the War, various accounts men-
tion that British Troops from time to time
would raid farms in the area seeking cat-
tle and food stuffs.

The residents of Bergen County during
the American Revolution were pre-
dominantly Tories, no doubt due to the
close proximity of New York City, which
remained firmly under Bntish control for
the entire war. Indeed, the last British
Troops were finally evacuated from the
City in 1783 Previously, mention has
been made that Hendrick Brinckerhoff's
grandson, Lucas, was taken prisoner by
the British and held in the infamous
Sugarloaf Prison in New York, along with
John Christie whose family would pur-
chase the Paulison House in 1844.
Adrian Leiby, in his book, “The Revolu-
tionary War in the Hackensack Valley,"
reports that among others, Derick Brinck-
erhoff and John Paulison swore alle-
giance to George lll and sold cattle to the
British. Leiby also notes that on July 11,
1777, the New Jersey Committee of
Public Safety drew up a list of 48 men
against whom patriots had filed com-
plaints for aiding the British cause.
Among those named was John Paulison
of Old Hackensack, who was judged guil-
ty and held under guard at Morristown.
Paulison was later part of a group of
Tories who were exchanged for Ameri-
can prisoners held by the British. Exactly
when Paulison returned to his home and
what his family did in his absence is not
known, but we do know that the Paulison

family was back in the homestead in the
late 1780's.

From the end of the Revolution
through the Civil War to the 1870's, little
changed in our community. Our Village
was part of Hackensack Township and
the population remained less than 100,
consisting entirely of tarmers, their
families and employees, including
Blacks, who were classified in the Census
as slaves. We know that the Brinckerhoffs
and probably some of our other residents
invested in the building of the Bergen
Turnpike, a private road chartered by the
Legislature in 1803. Toll booths were
erected at the bridges over the Overpeck
Creek and the Hackensack River, and
the road was well traveled between
Jersey City and Paterson. The Bergen
Turnpike remained a private road for
over 100 years, but by the twentieth cen-
tury the roadway was in a serious state of
disrepair. In 1903, the Public Service
Company took over the Bergen Turn-
pike primarily to build a trolley line, which
was the only trolley line in the town In
November, 1915, the County Freehold-
ers took over the Turnpike from Public
Service and maintained it through today
as a County road. The Bergen Turnpike
was one of the early roads in our com-
munity, the first known road being
Queen Anne Road. Over the years, the
Queen Anne Road or parts of it have
been referred to as Old Hackensack
Road, Westfield Avenue, and Main
Street, What today we call Hackensack
Avenue was also called Old Hackensack
Road Teaneck Road also dates from the
eighteenth century, while Ridgefield
Avenue dates from the 1850's as a con-
necting road from the Bergen Turnpike
to Old Hackensack Road Indeed, when
Ridgefield Avenue was later paved in
1884, it was the first paved road in the
community and was the area of the first
commercial development. Where Ridge-
field Avenue joined Old Hackensack
Road, there was a small street known as
Winant Avenue Winant Avenue is still
Winant Avenue, but most people today
know it as Route 46

At the Volk Funeral Home in Teaneck
opposite Holy Name Hospital, there is a
large map of Bergen and Passaic Coun-
ties, which dates from 1861. This map
provides the names of the families who
lived in this area at that time. At the south
side of the intersection of the Bergen
Turnpike and Teaneck Road, we note
“"Washington Hall.," a hotel/restaurant
owned by M. Carling. This, of course, is
the site of what later would become
known as Wahrmann's and still later
Eucker's Steak House, which burned
down in July, 1965. No doubt Washing-
ton Hall was a stop for travellers using the
Bergen Turnpike.

In 1927, George L. Albig prepared a
volume to mark the opening of the rail-
road station at the foot of Mount Vernon
Street. From his volume we obtained the
following information about eur commu-
nity in the nineteenth century, (Keep in
mind that the following was written in
1927);

GETTING ITS NAME

Up to now, Ridgefleld Park was
farm and woodland with a few landed
estates Sunday excursionists who
were using the Northern Railroad of
New dJersey, upon alighting from the
train at Ridgefield would be solicited by
omnibus and hack owners for drives to
“The Park," so named because of its
woods and rolling greens to the water's
edge, Hackensack River

City folks also began coming to
Ridgefield Park to spend the summer
In 1870, the Ridgefield Park Hotel, a
structure 200 feet long was built by
Abraham Bronson of Hackensack at a
cost of $70,000 00 on a plot of ground
that today is bounded by Main, Mt
Vernon, and Park Streets, and ex-
tended west to the Hackensack River
The hostelry faced Mt Vernon Street,
was midway between Main Street and
Lincoln Avenue, and open in the sum-
mer time only The plot between Lin-
coln and Paulison Avenues was thickly
wooded and used by gquests as a park
The hotel was destroyed by fire in
1883,

FROM FARMS TO LOTS

Edward K Alburtis, who had been
buying land in Ridgefield Park during
the sixties, formed in 1867 with his
brother Clement, the Ridgefield Land
and Building Company, and in 1870
began advertising Ridgefield Park as a
suburban development, only one hour
from the City Hall in New York,
although at that time Ridgefield Park
had no railroad, it being necessary to
use the Northern Railroad of New
Jersey to Ridgefield, and to take
transportation from that station to the
Park The map showed a railroad con-
nection, the New Jersey Midland,
coming from Ridgefield to Ridgefield
Park, but that road was never built
The New Jersey Midland Railroad did,
however, come through Ridgefield
Park in 1872, but it came from Jersev
City much the same way as does today
thé New York Susquehanna and Wes-
tern, better known as the Ene

The Ridgefield Land and Building
Company planned to make its devel-
opment a residential park with restnic
tions. Its holdings comprised prachcal
Iy the entire center section of Ridge
field Park. The southern boundary was
a line 100 feet south of Sixth (Hobart
Street, and extended from the Hack
ensack River to the meadows Its
northern boundary on the east side of
the Hackensack Road (Main Street)
extended about 250 feet beyond First
(Preston) Street, touching the line of
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lowing that directly east ta the mea
dows On the west side of Hackensack
Road and then westerly to Hackensack

and Paullson Avenues, or as Il was
called, River Avenue River Avertie
was the western boundary ending at
Fourth or Mt Vernon Street which

was the northern line of E R Alburtis
estate, the land that later was acquired
by R A Rabertson, only to pass into

the possession of Peter Mehrhof in |

1885

When Paul Paulison died in 1832,
he willed that twelve years alter his
death his property should be divided
among his four sons, John P, Chas
M, Henry F | and Richard This was
done by three commissioners for the
township who sold his property at
public auction so as to make an equal
division of the estate It was at this sale
that David Christie of English Neigh
bourhood, bought for his son, Albert
Brinckerhoff Christie, a tract which in
cluded the stone house known today
as the Old Christie Homestead

In 1853, nine years after Albert B
Christie established himsell in Ridge-
field Park, John Brewster bought a
farm n Ridgefield Park which was
bounded on the north by Brinckerhoff
Street, on the south by Winant Ave-
nue, on the east by Euchd Avenue,
and on the west by the Hackensack
River This farm was afterward divided
among his three sons, HN, CR |
and T M. Brewster, who had come
from Fairview, New Jersey, to
Ridgefield Park with their father
Thomas M Brewster, the father of
Marton T Brewster, later purchased
the Lindley Farm directly to the sauth
of him

THE FARMS AND LANDS
OF 1850 TO 1870

Taking the farm and other land
holdings existent shortly before and
after the Brewster purchase, Ridgefield
Park was divided among the following
Lindley, Winant, Brewster, Christig,
Zabriskie, Bogert, Jacob S Brincker-
hoff, Jacob A Brinckerhoff, Paul R
Paulison, John R Paulison, Wester-
velt and Curnming (later Haselton)

The Jacob S Brinckerhoff tract lying
directly to the south of that owned by
Jacob A Brinckerhoff, bounded on
the west by the Hackensack River, on
the east by the Hackenszack Reoad

(Main Street}, on the south by a line of
100 feet southof Habart Street, and on
the north by what today s Mt Vernon

Street, was bought in 1852 fo;
3?2.450 (1] h_\' John Alburtus, a Mln
ister of the Gospel, of New York City

The Lindley Farm was bounded by
what today is Winant Avenue, Ridge
field Avenue, Overpeck Creek, and
the Hackensack River

The Winant Farm was within the
area bounded by Bergen Pike, to a line
close to Chestnut Street, Winant
Avenue, east to Laurel Street, and

Ridgefield Avenue, on the West

The Bogert F rm was bounded on
the north by Brinckerhoff Street, on
the south by Chestnut Street, and on
the west by Laurel Sireet, extending
east to the meadows

The Brewster Farm was bounded on
the west by the Hackensack River, on
the east Euclid Avenue, on the south
Winant Avenue, and on the north by a
line 100 feet south of Brinckerhoff
Street

The Chrstie Farm took in the ter-
ritory from the Hackensack River be-
tween a line 100 feet south of Brinck-
erholf Street and Hobart Street on the
north, extending east beyond Teaneck
Raad to the meadows

The Jacob A Brinckerhoff tract lay
west of the Hackensack Road between
Mt Vernon and Park Streets, and ex-
tended to the Hackensack River

North of the Christie Farmi, and east
of Hackensack Road, was the Zabris-
kie Farm, extending to Park Street,
which was the southern boundary line
of Paul R Paulison's farm. Paul R
Paulison's land touched the Hacken-
sack River on the west and the
meadows on the east, with Hacken-
sack Avenue and Union Place as its
northern line

The other Christie plot, known as
the sand lot, lay south of Chestnut
Street, extending from Bergen Pike
and Chestnut Street east to the
meadows.

To the north of Hackensack
Avenue, extending to Bogota (North
Avenue) and fram Queen Anne Road
(Main Street) west to the Hackensack
River was the West View Farm of John
R Paulison, while Richard Paulison
owned from Queen Anne Road (Main
Street) to the meadows with Gordan
Street as the southern line and Arthur
Street as the northern boundary

East of Queen Anne Road (Main
Street) from Union Place to Highland
Place and directly east to the meadows
was the Westervelt Farm, while the
Cumming plot which in 1863 was ac-
quired by James G Haselton was
bounded on the south by Westervelr's
lands (Highland Place), on the north
by Gordon Street, on the west by
Queen Anne Road (Main Street) and
on the east by Teaneck Road.

In 1859 Edward K Alburtis of New
York City purchased for $5,000.00
that same tract of land which John
Alburtis, the Minister of the Gospel,
had bought of Jacob S Brinckerhoff
seven years before Retaining this tract
for his own use he set out to straighten
the northern line of his land by buying
in 1859 a small piece of land from
Jacob A Brinckerhoff who owned the
land to the north of him, and then and
there, unconsciously or otherwise,
made a straight road of what today is
known as Mt Vernon Street. When in
1860 Edward K Alburtis acquired
about ninety acres from Paul R
Paulison, paying $300 00 per acre for

upland, and $50 00 per acre for
woodland, he, undoubtedly, had in
mind making Ridgefield Park a subur-
ban community as he continued to add
his holdings by making further pur-
rhases from Paul B Paulison and
others in 1861, '62, '64, and '66

These lands were surveyed and a map
of streets and plots by W Williams, an
engineer of Hackensack

Plots were 50 x 200 feet in blocks of
400 x 400 feet The company built two
model houses, shawing that Ridgefield
Park had its model houses half a cen-
tury before many of the older towns in
this vicinity These two model houses
still stand Both are on Bergen Avenue
and Park Street, occupying the north-
east and southeast corners (Editor's
Note: When Albig wrote this article in
1927, both buildings still stoed To-
day, only one still stands and this is the
present Temple Emanuel )

While many plots were sold by the
Ridgefield Land and Building Com-
pany at what were considered exorbj-
tant prices, $500 00 per plot, building
did not immediately set in, due, un-
doubtedly, to Jack of pransporation
facilities, and because most of the land
was bought as a speculation

Many of the plots on the east side
were in the hands of individuals when
the panic of 1873 hit Ridgefield Park,
along with the rest of the country
Considerable holdings of the Ridgefield
Land and Building Company were sald
at auction The house occupied at pre-
sent by the Hebrew Association, togeth-
er with one-fourth of a block, was sold
for $1,200 00, while the house oppo-
site and the present residence of Dr.
David Corn (Editor’s Note: In 1927 oc-
cupied by Dr Corn — now the site of St.
Francis Gymnasium ) was sold, afso with
a fourth of a block, for $2,400.00.
Much land came back to Mrs Burt
through foreclosing the mortgages held.

It was in 1870 that R A. Robertson
acquired considerable of the land, par-
ticularly that on the west side of Hack-
ensack Road, owned by the Ridgefield
Land and Building Company

THE ROBERTSON
CASTLE AND
MEHRHOF MANSION

Edward K Alburtis cccupied a stene
house where stood the Mehrhof Man-
sion now supplanted by the Elks Club
House It was on a plot of ground
bounded by Mt. Vernon, Hobart, and
Main Streets, extending west to the
railroad tracks and river. Robertson
acquired this along with land to the
north of this plot and proceeded to
make an estate out of it He drew a
sketch of a house he thought would fit
his station, gave it to an architect and
went on a three-month trip to Califor-
nia. When he returned, the stone
house formerly occupied by E. K.
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Walker's 1876 Atlas, Showing Propposed Division Of The Old Brinkerhoff Estate By The
Ridgefield Land And Development Company.

Alburtis was torn down and in its place bankruptcy was filed against Robertson 1877 and engaged in the brick-making

was erected the frame of a castle. in January, 1874. Much litigation, business with his two brothers The
Thomas Marshall, who still lives in foreclosing and conveying, and other house from then on until torn down
Ridgefield Park and who came here in  processes over some of the lands was known as the Mehrhof Mansion.
the late sixties, was working on it. formerly held by Robertson went on Peter Mehrhof was democratic and a
When the house was finished, for the next ten or twelve years. In genial character. He soon became
Robertson had a landscape gardener 1885 an insurance company which held  known to the residents as “Uncle

lay out the grounds akin to a park, a mortgage on the house and grounds Peter. The Mehrhof family were very
and it became a show place, It has of R. A. Robertson sold the place to hospitable, and they

been said that he spent $40,000.00 on Peter Mehrhof, the father of H. C.
the house and grounds. A petition in Mehrhof, who came to Little Ferry in
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made thelr home the social center for
the new settlement ol commuters
Mast of the concerts, lectures, dance
parties, etc . were held in the Mehrhof
Mansion, a house of many and large
rooms. In 1905, the Mehrhol estate
was mapped inta lots and sold as the

Mehrhol Park division by Willam J
Maorrison as trustee

FROM HACKENSACK TO
RIDGEFIELD TOWNSHIP

By an act of {egislature in 1871 the
territory on the east bank of the Hack-
ensack River which embraced what is
today Fairview, Ridgefield, Palisade
Park, Leonia, Nordoff, Shady Side,
Edgewater, Fort Lee, Taylorsville,
Coytesville, Ridgelield Park, Bogota,
and part of Teaneck, ceased to be
Hackensack Township and became
the Township of Ridgefield The
Northern Railroad of New Jersey was
already running through Ridgefield ta
Englewoad, having commenced aper-
ations in 1859 Hackensack had no
railroad connections then and did not
until 1872, when the New Jersey Mid-
land Railroad to Paterson was induced
by prominent citizens subscribing to
$100,000.00 worth of stock, to come
through Hackensack

In 1872, the New Jersey Midland
Railroad ran its tracks through Ridge-
field Park, but as there was no station it
was not a railroad stop The two
earliest commuters, Mortimer Smith,
who lived on what is now known as the
Barnes Estate on Teaneck Road, and
Peter Kenney, who lived in a house he
built, now called the "Bishop Manor,”
Bergen Avenue and Mt Vernon Street
(Editor's Note In 1985 now the site of
Park Royal Towers, an apartment
house — 65 Bergen Avenue), came to
Ridgefield Park about 1870 and
trekked daily to the Leania station of
the Northern Railroad of New Jersey,
a distance of three miles This showed
that Ridgefield Park lured on the com-
muter at about the same time that
some of its lands were first sold in plots.
The three mile walk became too much

for Mortimer Smith, so he set out to
collect $200 00 to build the first station
at Ridgefield Park on the New Jersey
Midland, later the Susquehanna or
Erie Railroad

$45.00 PER LOT

This station was respansible for
opening a new road in Ridgefield Park,
Fourth or Mt Vernon Street. Hereto-
fore, there had only been Bergen Pike,
Hackensack Road, Teaneck Road and
Winant Avenue R A Robertson
named two other streets, Preston and
Austin, after his two sons, and when
Daniel B Taylor acquired some of the
land in this vicinity in 1883, formerly
held by Robertson, he organized with
F € McCready the Ridgefield Park
Lot and Building Association with an
office at 79 Nassau Street, New York
City and proceeded to cut the former
50 x 200 feet plots into lots, 20 and 25
feet wide, and of varying depths, sell-
ing them for as low as $45 00 per lot,
on installment terms of $5 00 per
month  After Taylor sold the Park
Street to Hackensack Avenue and
Main Street west section, he bought
the Winant farm and proceeded to sell
that off in small lots, too. This was
about 1887

THE PIONEER
SUBURBANITES

With the completion of the West
Shore Railroad in the summer of
1883, which came through Ridgefield
Park, the “influx" of New Yarkers
began in earnest with William J Mor-
rison, Stephen H Tukey, William
Stevens, and Francis McCready com-
ing in 1886, Albert Ravekes, John W
O'Brien, Conrad W Mergler and
Amos B Abbott in 1887; and Charles
W Calloway, Andrew Gaul, Frank C
Lowe, J A Crandall, and John H
Ficken in 1889

These pioner suburbanites buill their
homes on lands that practically can be
called virgin territory. There were but a
few roads while most streets existed on
paper only. No water, sewer, gas,

streets, or sidewalks; not even a
school. Not until 1886 did Ridgefield
Park bulld a school alter first establish-
ing one in a room over John Shiels’
general store at the southeast corner of
Lincoln Avenue and Park Street. This
cradle of the schoal system was a one-
room structure built at a cost of less
than $5,000.00 at the corner of Sixth
Street (Hobart Street) and Central Ave-
nue (Euclid Avenue) by the first three
school trustees, Peter Mehrhof, David
A Christie, and Willlam J. Morrison,
elected for School District No. 63

SCHOOL OPENS WITH
20 PUPILS

What a sparsely settled community it
was at that date is attested by the fact
that the school was opened with twen-
ty pupils and one teacher The second
year the school opened, an additional
teacher at $300 00 per year was en-
gaged, while at the school election in
the spring of 1888, Conrad W Mera-
ler was elected in place of Peter
Mehrhof and T M Brewster was ap-
pointed to the Board, by the County
Superintendent of Schools, taking the
place of William J Morrison, who had
resigned

Three years later, in July, 1889, a
special school meeting was held to
consider the question of putting
another story on the school building
This proposal was veted down, and in
its place was substituted a plan to erect
an addition to the rear of the original
school, one to be large enough to con-
tain four rooms While the original one
story, one room school house on the
corner of Euclid and Hobart Street was
torn down to make room for the pres-
ent Washington Irving School, the
“addition” is still standing today and is
used as part of the Washington Irving
School (Editor's Note: Washington
Irving School torn down in 1971, Naw
the site of Fellowship Park )



SHEILS STORE

JOHN SHEILS WAS ONE OF THE PIONEER MERCHANTS OF THE VILLAGE OF
RIDGEFIELD PARK. HE OPENED HIS GENERAL STORE ON THE SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF PARK STREET AND LINCOLN AVENUE IN A BUILDING WHICH STILL STANDS
TODAY (1985). HIS SON ROBERT LATER BECAME HIS BUSINESS ASSOCIATE.

THE SECOND FLOOR OF SHEILS STORE WAS USED FOR RIDGEFIELD PARK'S
FIRST PUBLIC SCHOOL CLASSES AND THE FIRST FLOOR FOR CHURCH SERVICES,
BOTH CATHOLIC AND PROTESTANT. THE HALL ON THE SECOND FLOOR WAS
ALSO RENTED TO POLITICAL CLUBS AND WAS USED FOR SATURDAY NIGHT
DANCES. IN THE VERY EARLY DAYS, IT HAS BEEN SAID, THE HALL HAD
UNFINISHED WALLS AND NO HEAT UNTIL IT WAS RENOVATED BY THE
REPUBLICAN CLUB.

JOHN SHEILS IS THE BEARDED MAN IN THE DOORWAY. HIS SON, BOB, IS THE
MAN SEATED IN THE CARRIAGE.







Opposite - upper left is a photo ol Wahrman's Overpeck Park taken in the early 1900's Originally built in the mi
Bergen Turnpike, Wahrman's was earlier known as the Washington House and was owned by a Mr Carling Wahr

facility provided both boating and swimming on the Overpeck Creek. For many years the New York City Fire Dopart

Wahrman's where they were joined by members of the local Fire Department The Eucker Family and the Wal
became known as Eucker's in the 1930's when it was operated by Lows Eucker and William Eucker Eucker
On Monday, July 5, 1965, Eucker’s burned down, ending nearly a century of Wahrman Eucker Family hospiialit
Annual Independence Day Parade and the local Volunteers, under Chief Thomas Spinelly, spent the entirs
occupled by a co-op apartment bullding, shown above




RESIDENCE OF JOHN R. PAULISON AS SHOWN IN WALKER'S 1876 ATLAS. TODAY
THIS WOULD BE THE AREA OF HACKENSACK AND RAILROAD AVENUES. NOTE
THE NEW JERSEY MIDLAND RAILROAD AND HACKENSACK RIVER BEHIND THE
HOUSE. FRESH WATER STREAMS FLOWED INTO THE RIVER THROUGH THIS AREA.
THE PAULISON FAMILY WOULD SOON YIELD TO THE PRESSURES OF
DEVELOPMENT AND THE FARM WOULD BE SOLD TO DEVELOPERS WHO WOULD
DIVIDE THE AREA INTO STREETS AND LOTS. IN 1876, THE ORIGINAL
BRINKERHOFF FARM HAD ALREADY BEEN SOLD AND PLOTTED INTO LOTS AND

STREETS.




WEST VIEW —-

= MEW JERSEY
P e THE CITY OF HOMES, OR NEW YORK'S NEAREST SUBURB.

Far maps and particulars apply 1o FRANK M. STRATTON, Central Building, New York, o, | ¥ 1 Mcamee 53 Brosdway
| Carl Heliberg, MW 420d Si
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THE WESTVIEW SECTION AS IT WAS DEPICTED AND PROMOTED IN THE 1890'S.
CARL HALLBERG ACTIVELY PROMOTED THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE WESTVIEW
SECTION, AS WELL AS LATER PROMOTING THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
HAZELTON HEIGHTS SECTION. HALLBERG LOCATED HIS OFFICE ON PAULISON
AVENUE, NEAR THE RAILROAD STATION, NOW THE SITE OF COMMUNITY
CHEVROLET. THE WESTVIEW SECTION WAS SETTLED PREDOMINANTLY BY
RESIDENTS OF SCANDANAVIAN DESCENT. NOTE THE SCANDANAVIAN LUTHERAN

CHURCH ON FIFTH STREET.




INSIDE MERGLER'S STORE.
THE WANAMAKER OF RIDGEFIELD PARK

When Conrad W Mergler came to
Ridgefield Park in 1887, just forty
years ago, its population was all of six
ty people with 75% of the adult male
population commuting to New York
He lived in Ridgefield Park only a year
when he opened a grocery store in his
home on Preston Street, and a year
later moved it to the corner of Hacken
sack Road (Main Street) and Mt Ver
non, the present location of Smith's
Real Estate Office (Editor's Note: Now

COMMUTERS'

With the opening of a general store
and a school with five rooms, Ridge
field Park was now on its way to
becoming a community, although its
chief convenience was a town pump at
the corner of Brinckerhoff Street and
Euclid Avenue, where commuters liv-
ing in that district, such as Edwin S
Fernis, who came to Ridgefield Park in
1890, did their "daily dozen" by per-
f ig the task of drawing enough
i the day and carrving it to their

the insurance office occupied by
former Mayor Gilbert Gibbs ) Here he
opened a general store carrying every
thing from a lamp wick to a baby car
riage He was known as the "Wana
maker of Ridgefield Park " This store
was continued by him until 1919
when he retired, becoming shortly
after the president of the Ridgefield
Park Trust Company, and is at present
the chairman of its Board of Directors

DAILY DOZEN

homes belore they went to work

One of the first visible improvements
was the laying of wooden sidewalks in
1890 on Mt Vernon Street and Hack-
ensack Road (Main Street) These “im-
provements’ and the aftractive prices
at which Daniel B Taylor was selling
lots on the west side of Main Street
between Mt Vernon and Preston
Streets, land he had acquired through
purchase and tax sales, brought addi-
tional homemakers to Ridgefield Park

By 1892, the 668 residents of Ridge-
field Township residing in the area we
now call Ridgefield Park were i
establish their own Government
1871, the residents of “The Park
been part of Ridgefield Township and p
or to that part of Hackensack Township
all the way back to the arrival of Brinke:
hotf in 1685. Tiring of control of politi
cians from Fort Lee, who then were the
dominant force in Ridgefield Township,
the local citizens organized a referendum

for self-Government. On June 6, 1892, by
a vote of 83-60, a referendum to establish
self-Government was approved and this
was followed by offical confirmation of
the referendum by the State of New Jer-

yondJune 15, 1892 On June 11, 1892,
following the referendum to provide for
the incorporation of Ridgefield Park as a
Village, the first Trustees met at the home
of Thomas Brewster. These first Trustees
were. Andrew Gaul, Dr. Adolph Dex-
heimer, Thomas Brewster, John W.

O'Brien, and John Crandall. The Trustees
elected Andrew Gaul as First President
and Adolph Dexheimer as First Treasur-
er. Joseph Behan was appointed as Vil-
lage Clerk and James Stratton as
Superintendent of Public Works. An
$800.00 tax levy was voted to provide
for operations of the first year. Among
the improvements voted were “lighting
up the town," by putting oil lamps on
several of the main thorofares. Although
the Village was incorporated in 1892, res-




idents did not get control of the School
System until 1896 when the Legislature
passed an act making Ridgefield Park the
Township of Overpeck School District.

Conrad W, Mergler, who had previous-
ly served 4 terms at Fort Lee represent-
ing Ridgefield Park School District, was
elected First President of the Overpeck
Township Board of Education. Legally,
the name Township of Overpeck re-
mained until June 1, 1938, when the
name Village of Ridgefield Park was offi-
cially incorporated and approved by the
State Legislature.

Seven months prior to the referendum
of June, 1892, the Ridgefield Park Fire
Department was begun with the establish-
ment of Hose Company No. 1 on Mt.
Vernon Street. The burning of the Ridge-
field Park Hotel in 1883 had stirred some
interest in providing local fire protection
but only after 3 houses had been de-
stroyed in a disasterous fire on Preston
Street on December 5, 1891, did the
movement for a Fire Department get un-
derway. Neighbors had attempted to ex-
tinguish a fire in the home of John
Henderson, but were unsuccessful and
the flames spread and consumed the
houses of Charles Enders and Charles
Reinhardt. On December 9, 1891, Hose
Company No. 1 was organized with
Charles W, Calloway First President and

In 1891, the John Paulison farm,
which extended from Hackensack
Avenue to North Avenue, and from Main
Street to the railroad, was sold to W.D.
Stratton, who also purchased the Paul
Paulison farm, which extended from
Hackensack Avenue south to Summit
Street, and from Paulison Avenue to the
railroad. The entire area was mapped out
into lots averaging 25 x 120 feet which
were advertised at $300 per lot This
“Westview" area became the home for
many residents of Scandinavian extrac-
tion and in 1897, the Scandinavian
Lutheran Church was erected on Fifth
Street. This Church was converted into a
private residence in 1969, (244 Fifth
Street.) For many years, the Westview
section of the Village had its own Railroad
Station served by the West Shore Rail-
road. This station was demolished with
the building of the Rt. 80 bridge over the
railroads and Hackensack River.

H.R. Carpenter Secretary. 50 citizens
were enrolled but it was not until Febru-
ary 10, 1892, that the incorporation pa-
pers were signed and the Company
legally started. A few days later, on Feb-
ruary 22nd, residents in the southern part
of the community formed a Friendship
Hook & Ladder Company, with head-
quarters on Euclid Avenue. This Compa-
ny was officially incorporated April 5,
1892. Rapid growth of the Village contin-
ued and many community activities were
begun which continue until today.

Until the 1800's, residents of this area
attended religious services by traveling to
Hackensack or Ridgefield. In 1884, Mrs
Barnes began teaching Sunday School in
her home and in the late 1880’s, a Union
Sunday School Class met in a room over
John Shiels' store at what is now Lincoln
Avenue and Park Street. This building still
stands on the Southeast corner and, also,
was the site of the first Public School
classes in the early 1880's. On Nove-
meber 27, 1889, the cornerstone for the
original St. Francis Church was laid at Eu-
clid Avenue and Mt. Vernon Street. This
building was dedicated July 27, 1890,
Also in 1890, the Union Church was orga-
nized by the parents of the Sunday School
group and in 1891 the Union Church was
built at Euclid Avenue and Park Street.
This building, after several renovations

Also in the 1890's, the Northeast
(Hazelton Heights) section of the Village
was losing its rural characteristics The
Haselton-Farm — (Ed Note: all early
references spell Haselton with an s To-
day we spell Hazelton with a “z" Just
when and why the change was made is
not known at present.)—occupied the
area bounded by Highland Place and
Gordon Street, Main Street to Teaneck
Road North of the Haselton Farm was
the Richard Paulison Farm, which ex
tended to today's Arthur Street When
Mary Haselton, widow of James G
Haselton, died in the early 1890's, she
willed the farm to her daughter, Mamie
Kelly, who lived in Stockton, California
Mamie and her husband had the farm
mapped into streets and lots and offered
lots in the “Haselton Heights" develop-
ment at prices from $200 to $300 each

In the meantime, Carl Halberg, a
realtor who was involved in the promo-

and additions, is now the Civic Center
The pipes of the old Pipe Organ can still
be seen

In 1894, a library was begun by the
Union Church, in cooperation with the
Reading Club, Women's Bazaar Commit
tee, and other private subscribers, includ
ing Mrs. E.M. Barnes, who was a driving
force in this undertaking The Women's
Bazaar Committee was the predecessor
of the present day Woman's Club of
Ridgefield Park, which was organized in
1894, The first library was located at 24
Mt. Vernon Street, an area which is now a
car dealer parking lot and a drive-in bank
Mortimer Smith owned the 24 Mt Ver-
non Street building and he provided the
library use of his building, rent-free, for 15
years. Around 1909, a fire damaged the
structure and destroyed many of the
books. The library moved to temporary
quarters until 1911, when it found a home
in the new Municipal and Fire Alarm
Building at Main and Park Streets. The
Library continued to be privately funded
until 1920 when the Village took control
and established the Library Board of
Trustees. Over the years, funding for li-
brary activities has been enhanced by rev-
enues from the Brewster Trust Fund,
established by the Brewster Family and
dedicated to the Public Library.

tion and sale of Westview properties, pur
chased the Richard Paulison Farm, laid
out lots, and named two streets after his
sons, Edwin and Arthur

The last remaining large tract of land
was purchased in 1907 by Charles En-
ders, who was owner and editor of “The
Bulletin,” the local paper established in
Ridgefield Park in February, 1900 En-
ders purchased from Peter Van lderstine,
son-in-law of Richard Westervelt, the
Westervelt Farm, which encompassed all
the land from Union Place north to
Highland Place, from Main Street to
Teaneck Road This large farm, which
had been owned by the Westervelt Fami
ly since the early 1700's, was sold to

Enders for $30,000 Enders followed the
pattern of all previous developers. laid
out lots and streets, and sold off parcels at
varying prices depending on location and
size
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Ridgefield Park Hose Co. #1, Mt Vernon Street Firehouse. Note
This bell is now Firemen's Memonial at Euclid Avenue and Cedar Street. Present Firehouse, built in 1939,
is on this same site

The twenty vear period from 1892 to
1912, when the Village was gaverned by
the Board of Trustees, was not only a
period of dramatic change, but also a
time of local political turmoil Area
newspapers delighted in reporting the
proceedings of the local governing body,
which were marked by many sharp fac-
tional confiicts Factions centered around
personalities and issues and often the fac-
tions would overlap The building of a
sanitary sewer system was accomplished
only after considerable effort Public op-
position to this project was fierce. Older
residents recall the conflict over the
building of the present Municipal Build-
ing Prior to 1911, Village Offices were
maintained over a store al Main and
Grove Streets. Repeated efforts by the
Trustees to get voter approval for a
Municipal Building were defeated While
the Trustees were pursuing the Municipal
Building project, the Fire Department

came forward with a request for a
modern alarm system

By 1911, six Volunteer Fire Com-
panies had been organized, with one Fire
Company in each section of the Village
Reporting a fire and alerting all the
volunteers was a serious problem. The
principal signal was a bell, mounted on a
tower, next to Hose Company #1 on Mt.
Vernon Street. At various locations
around town were “hoop,” old railroad
rails, bent into circles, which were struck
with a hammer to sound the alarm As
the Village experienced its rapid growth,
this system proved very unreliable and
when the Fire Department asked the
Trustees for a new system, the Trustees
thought they found a solution to the
alarm problem as well as the need for a
municipal buillding The Trustees pro-
posed to erect a building, large enough to
house all municipal offices, a building
which would also feature a modern fire

alarm bell on tower behind building.

horn on top—a horn which could be
heard all over the community

When presented to the voters as a
“Municipal and Fire Alarm Building.” the
issue was approved, the Trustees got the
building they wanted and the firemen got
the alarm system. Today. the Municipal
Building still stands and the “Bull Hom"
stilf sounds to alert the volunteer firemen.
The onginal alarm bell which stood next
to Hose 1, is mounted now in the Fire-
men's Monument on Euclid Avenue, just
north of Cedar Street. This bell is officially
tolled each year on Memonal Day to
honor all Village firemen who have died
during the previous year. When you
enter the Municipal Building today, from
Main Street, immediately to the right of
the front door, note the dedication
plaque for the “Municipal and Fire Alarm
Building ”



SOUTHEAST CORNER, MAIN AND PARK STREETS
HOMESTEAD OF PAUL R. PAULISON, LATER THE RESIDENCE OF ARCHIBALD D LEES



The intersection of Mt.
Vernon Street and Old
Hackensack Road (now Main
Street). The view Is westward
down Mt. Vernon Street
toward the river

The houses visible are those
of Mr. and Mrs. Abram V.
Smith, one of Ridgefield Park's
finest citizen couples; Mr
Edward Foote, also an
honored citizen; Mr. John J.
Meginnis, a man and family of
value and importance in many
of our early institutions; Mr
William F. Stevens, a pioneer
real estate man; Mr. Cyrus
Lozier, one of the Village's
earlier builders and merchants;
and, seen in the background,
the home of James and Mary
Doaolan.

There were no buildings on
the south side of Mt. Vernon Street. The open fields and pear orchard were part of the homestead of Mr. Peter Mehrhof, a
brick manufacturer. He conducted business under the name of Mehrhof Brothers in Little Ferry.

It is said that many brick houses in the State of Maine, as well as other New England states, were built with Mehrhof
Brothers bricks, which had been carried to these distants parts in sturdy schooners known as "The Peter Mehrhof and “'The
Philip Mehrhof ' These ships, manned by our neighbors, braved and mastered the tortuous mudflats of our river, the heavy
waters from Point Judith around Cape Cod, and on up to Halifax and St. John's Oakum

Perspiration and kerosene, with perhaps a retained whiff of the sea’s brine, compounded to create an essence that cannot
be easily forgotten and, being recalled, revives the memories of stirred impulses to sail the Seven Seas, and even yet gives
zest to any story of the sea. That's a long way to travel from the intersection here depicted, but, after all, the world is only a
series of such intersections all bound together in a compact little sphere. (Courtesy of Mrs. Lillian Mergler)

On Main Street, looking north
to Mt. Vernon Street intersec-
tion, Circa 1903

Buildings on right: Mergler's
store and residence;
residence of Mr. George
Lowe; Post Office; Abbotts’
store and resident (sold
dressware and notions);
Lozier Building; stores and
Bulletin Office; residence of
Mr. Henry Hober, residence
of Frank A, Lloyd.




MT. VERNON STREET - 1903
If this looks like a quiet country
lane, that's just what it was. This is
Mt. Vernon Street looking east (up
the hill) from Spruce Avenue. A
little of the A.V. Smith residence
{now the bank) can be seen on the
left and a bit of Merglers Corner
and the top of another building on
the right. It appears that the
sidewalks on the left are the
wooden sidewalks which were laid in
this area in 1890. The Peter Merhof
property would be on the right.

HACKENSACK ROAD - 1912
This is Hackensack Road (now Main Street) looking south from Park Street. Hidden on the right is a building under
construction which now is the home of “House of Flowers", Edward Reinhardt, proprietor. Reinhardt's father, Charles _
Reinhardt, owned the hotel on Paulison Avenue. Visible on the right is the steeple of the old town hall, southwest corner of
Main and Grove Streets. The first building on the left is A.D. Lees Market, next a stationery store, then a barber shop which
is still there. The frame building next to the barber shop was a bowling allev and pool parlor known as the “'Casino.”" This is
now the site of Lloyd's Pharmacy. Just bevond the real estate office (and to the rear) was a lumber yard, and beyond is
Merglers Corner. The man in shirtsleeves, starting to cross the road, is the barber, Mike Mirabelle, and the bov watching the
construction is Harry P. (Hip) Murphy.



MASCHKES MOVING PICTURE THEATRE
Main Street, corner of Park Street, 1910 Later known as The Strand. In later years it
became Overpeck Delicatessen. It is now Buy Rite Liquors

MERGLERS CORNER 1889 - 1919
This picture was taken in 1895 The Corner was known as “the gathering place." Mr.

Mergler is at the far right Standing next to him is Abe Hascup, Daniel Mergler, and
George Tuken. The children are unidentified. Over to the left is Mrs. Strohmeyer and her
sister
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Conrad W. Mergler

Conrad Mergler was born in New
York City on February 5, 1861. He
came to Ridgefield Park in 1887 and
started his general store with a fifty
dollar loan, two barrels and a board in
the front room of his home on First
Street. He made his deliveries in a
wheelbarrow. Much of the credit for
his success was due to his wife,
Louise, who bore her full share of the
burden. The business prospered and he
opened a store on the southeast corner
of Main and Mt. Vernon Streets.

It was the sort of general store
where one could buy almost anything.
The local newspaper referred to the
store as the '‘Wanamakers of
Ridgefield Park "' His advertisement
implored "Go to Mergler's Corner for
anything the other stores don't stock,
or are just out of We'll treat you with
courtesy and consideration. Also you
may save time and trouble by coming
here first "'

Conrad Mergler was known by his
customers as the ""Poet Merchant" and
was one of the Village's esteemed
pioneers and one of its most valued
and useful citizens He was a co-
founder of the Volunteer Fire
Department, the First National Bank,
and of the Park Building and Loan
Association, which he served as its
President for forty vears He served as
President of the Board of Trade and
was the Village Postmaster.

Mr. Mergler operated his general
store in the same location until 1919.
He died on Easter Sunday in 1939 at
the age of 78.
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DANIEL Kk KETCH XM Protubinon hll viatices of the Peace | Fall Te ole for thre
L rm | e | f Fernt) Fote for th Hossd of Heatil §ins Yes
SHAS £ ROBINSON Frohulntion Bz CECIL P HEACH Repnbilicar " No
. CHAS OCONNOR HENNESSY  Demncratic lﬁ HENRY T GRIGGS Reprililican "'I" ""v""-"'-l'l Compensativn Yes
| v L pIment a tre Alarm Mamn
: ™MOWILLIAM M. HINNERS Pemtieritic 'E*ﬂ WILLIAM HOEVERMAN Regublican (et & 3/000] No
't
4 [N VAN BLSSU'M e ratic @ BOE CUMMINGS Sexcralisi Yes
sy Garhage L e
8 WILLIAM F OGDEN Republican el CARL B OSVENSDN Socialist Wh
] -
FEANK M STEVENS Repulilican @ MLBERT L WILSOW Socialist Yes!
; e e R e s Street e or- S0, 500 200~ ]
: VAN VORST WELLE Kepuniiean H} MICHAFL [ O SHAUGHNESSY Democratic NV e e
! F_«ﬁ DANIEL | TIMONY Demveratic | R 1 Yes
¥ - ¢ ~ " atch RIS b ISR
r | | No
~ e -
| s ; Yes
Tk Pobilie Labrear S100 ]
Lkamier Fute for ane ‘Fm No
CORNELIUS COLLINS L fegrenddent | Fﬁ“.: Comtaileg Fiite far toe Hatkensack  Hospita &1 Yes
CHESTER A KING Protubticn | " CHARLES | FISHECK Secialist| No
o o, ,
M OIEAN HENRI RAAS Dewmoarati A EUGENE LAUBER, Ju Sncialist St
LOLTS RAUCH Socialist %:ﬂ WILLIAM GLASOW Democratic | No
Ffﬁ; CHARLES § ROBERTSON Rep hiiean L jony RITTER, * . Dempgratic Vo B g T L
H el EOWARD MARSHALL Repihlican g
Y ." — ) — { Yes
Phewetiitlibor Vate for one ;LQq GEORGE MORLEY Repubhean Sl il e
o] .
: = K
| GEORGE 11 FISBECK Secialist 5'1.
e il
FIRED A LYMAN Dienmocratic o z
A LA
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Yoal 1f you faver thy proposition printed below, mark a Crows
X in the SQUARE opposite the word ~'Yes'"; \f opposed
therets, mark s Croan X in the SQUARE opposita the
Bt af the Peare (Unespied T Fote for one i
SILAS A WILCOX s\-=|.uq.|.c,-...| Sl tie act providing for redrganization | ypg
R - anil reducmg the membership of the Board of
Freeholders be adopted in Bergen County?  No

Sample Ballot for the November, 1911, Election. This would be the last time voters would elect Trustees In Mav, 1917 we
changed to commission form of government. The last President of the Board of Trustees was Louis A Eucker
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EARLY HOME OF THE BREWSTER FAMILY AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF MAIN
STREET AND WINANT AVENUE.

Partisan politics dominated the
Village during the period of the trustee
government. Following the election in
the spring of 1894, for example, when
only three or four votes separated the
winning and losing candidates for
trustees, four persons were indicted for
alleged illegal voting. The case,
however, was subsequently dropped
for lack of evidence. Leaders of the
two warring facti n
were Thomas B |
O'Brien. Under the trustees many
improvements were Initiated which still
serve the Village. In 1900 a sewer
system was installed Mr David
Christie served as the Sewer Inspector
and it is reported that belore the
sewers were put into operation Mr
Christie traveled through the systen
on a skateboard, lying down to inspect
all the connections to Insure that the
sewers would operate properly

The Village grew rapidly during the

period between 1892 and 1912, In

1892 the recorded population was

688 By 1900 this had grown to
approximately 3,000 people, and by

1910 the population had reached

4,500. Until 1910, with the exception

ol Ridgetield Avenue, which was our
first business district, all streets in
Ridgefield Park were dirt. In 1910 a
street-paving program was begun
starting with Central Avenue, which
today is called Euclid Avenue, and old
Hackensack Road, which today we
know as Main Street. The street-paving
program continued until about 1928
when all streets in the Village were
fully paved.

Although these and other
improvements were a credit to the
trustee form of government, the
factionalism, political turmoil, and
infighting among the trustees created

real uncertainty in local government.
The trustee system itself made it
difficult to get things done. On page
29 is a ballot which shows that each
item in the Village budget had to have
voter approval before anything could
be done and this approval was not
always forthcoming. Many residents,
including some of the trustees, saw the
need for change. For example, one of
the problems encountered was the
raising of funds necessary to pay the
debt which was incurred by the
trustees who had authorized various
Village improvements. Until 1909 no
provision had been made to meet
these obligations. After considerable
criticism, Village Board President Cyril
DeWpyrall appointed a Sinking-Fund
Commission to supervise the payment
of the Village debt. This Commission
;ﬂas in existence until after World War
I
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Progressivism was a force in
American politics shortly after the turn
of the century and this movement had
its effect here in Ridgefield Park.
Across the land citizens were tiring of
political squabbling and partisan strife
and they were looking for government
to improve its efficiency and be more
responsive to the needs of the people.
Following a disastrous flood in
Galveston, Texas, in 1906, the idea of
commission form of government took
hold as a progressive idea. On April 2,
1912, residents of Ridgefield Park
voted to change from the trustee
system of government to a commission
form of government, which was
provided for in the Walsh Act. The
commission form of government, which
is still in effect here in Ridgefield Park,
provided for non-partisan elections and
for economical and efficient
government operations. Each
commissioner is responsible for a
particular area of local government and
the voters retain the right of initiative,
referendum and recall. Following the
approval to change to a commission
form of government, an election was
held in May 1912 and Harry F. Ayres,
Adolph Dexheimer and Ernest Webbon
were elected to the newly-formed
commission. In the commission form,
even today, the elected commissioners
choose one of their number to be
mayor, and the honor in 1912, to be
the first mayor under the commission
form, went to Ernest Webbon. The
voters must have been pleased with
the performance of the first three
commissioners since Ayres and
Dexheimer were reelected in 1916
along with William Hunter, who was
put on the ticket to replace Mayor
Webbon who had been elected to the
County Board of Freeholders.
Following the 1916 election, the
commissioners chose Adolph
Dexheimer as mayor. In the 1920
election Harry Ayres was elected for a
third term, William Hunter for a
second term, and Hugh McGowan was
elected for his first term, replacing
Mayor Dexheimer, who chose not to
stand for reelection. In the 1920
election the elected commissioners
chose William Hunter to be the mayor.

In the 1900's, through the Teens
and into the Twenties, Ridgefield Park
was being promoted as a suburban
community. Most of the residents
traveled by train to New York City
for employment. A 1909 American
Journal of Commerce article describing
the Village reports as follows:

“As a suburban homesite,
Ridgefield Park is one of the

most charmingly attractive
locations in the vicinity of the
metropolls. And its development
as a residential location for
business and prolessional men in
the great city is the natural result
of a commanding natural
advantage of situation and
surroundings. Ridgefield Park is
located at the junction of the
Hackensack River and Overpeck
Creek. It is below Hackensack
and on the opposite side of the
river. The name Ridgefield Park
is appropriate and well chosen
and suggests natural topography.
The ground is high, rising from
river to creek at a slope which
gives good natural drainage and
adds to the healthiness of the
situation and surroundings. Only
a half hour from New York by
train, Ridgefield Park has all the
charm of the country with easy
access to all the privileges of the
City."

And what were some of the things
that made Ridgefield Park such an
attractive place to live? Certainly the
community was developing great civic
pride. Back in 1894 the Fourth of July
celebration began and a member of
that early committee was Milton Votee,
who later moved to Teaneck, where he
became mayor. Early Fourth of July
celebrations took place on the UA
Field which was located at Euclid
Avenue and Poplar Street, the site of
the present Presbyterian Church. It
was at the UA Field that the parades
began, that the fireworks were
displayed and the Fire Department
held its annual inspection.

One of the major July Fourth
activities was a bicycle race. These
bicycle races attracted teams from all
over the area, including the
Hackensack Wheelmen and thé
Overpeck Wheelmen. One of the men
responsible for these races was Emil
Fraysee, who started visiting Ridgefield
Park as a vacation spot in the 1890’s
and moved to Ridgefield Park in 1911.
Mr. Fraysee was selected for the 1912
Olympic cycling team along with
another Village resident, Julius
Schmidt. However, Mr. Schmidt's boss
would not let him off work so Mr.
Schmidt was replaced with Carl
Shultee, who placed third in the
Olympics. It is interesting to note that
in competition with Julius Schmidt here
in the United States, Carl Shultee
never beat Julius Schmidt. Emil
Fraysee later served as Olympic coach
of the 1928 and 1932 Olympic cycling
teams, and the Fraysee family has

maintained its Interest In eycling and
the Olympics over the years, operating

the Park Cycle Shap an Main Street
today.
The woods, fields and farms which

characterized early Ridgefield Park
were fast fading in the years before
World War I. The principal area of
business activity was shifting from
Ridgefield Avenue up to what is now
modern-day Main Street. The first
movie theater, the Opera House,
opened at the corner of Park and Main
Streets across from the Municipal
Building. In addition, there was an
open-air theater which operated in
summertime on the west side of Main
Street in the block between Mt.
Vernon and Cedar Streets, the area
now occupied by Fraysee's Bicycle
Shop. The Crescent Arcade movie
theater was located downtown, at
Bergen Pike and Ridgefield Avenue.
Another open-air theater was located
on the Bergen Pike. We had not only
movie theaters, but also moving picture
studios long before Hollywood,
California, was ever heard of. James
W. Gunby, who lived at 34 Central
Avenue, was a pioneer in moving
picture experiments and developments.
He built a laboratory and studio at 53
Second Street in 1912 In 1916 he
leased it for five years to Benjamin
Chapin, whose characterization on the
screen of Abraham Lincoln brought
him national reputation. “The Son of
Democracy'' was a fifteen-reel picture
of the life of Abraham Lincoln and was
filmed in Ridgefield Park. Interior shots
were all taken in the Gunby studio,
which became known as the Benjamin
Chapin studio. Outside scenes for this
movie were taken in the Westview
section, with local residents acting as
extras, Other movies had scenes taken
along the railroad tracks and along the
Hackensack River. Ben Chapin died
June 2, 1918 before his lease of the
Gunby studio expired. He was buried
from the Gunby home on Second
Street, which he also had leased. His
studio was destroyed by a spectacular
fire on January 7, 1926. Twenty tons
of old film, which were being salvaged,
were consumed by the fire, which
made it one of the most spectacular
blazes that ever occurred in Ridgefield
Park.

Another film maker, Mack Senneit
of Keystone Kop fame, used to shoot
scenes at the Ridgefield Park railroad
station at the foot of Mt. Vernon
Street, although his studio was in Fort
Lee.



hat w long gone In
Ridagelleld Park when there wers
woods, sand banks on the Hackensack
River, and clear streams for boating,
swimming and fishing Some folks say
it was a time that was a paradise just
made for boys and young men who
had visions and dreams

George Barbier was another famous
actor who lived in Ridgefield Park
nearly sixty years ago. His home was
at the corner of Third Street and
North Avenue. When Barbier died, he
provided that his estate should
underwrite two scholarships to be
given eac h year to gral.iuahng seniors
of Ridgefield Park High School

Of course, the most famous
entertainer to come from our Village
was Ozzie Nelson, who was a local
football star as well as band leader
Further details on Ozzie Nelson are
found elsewhere in this book

Pre 1910 — Euclid Avenue. loak
crosses at about center. Larg:

Christie-Roem Grocery Store an
Damiano's

h from the thire

! wnd was also a doctor's 0”!69_ Now owned by
Shoe 5 shop, Waune' [ )

>hoe Repair Shop, Wayne's Euclid Sweet Shop and a Hair St
can be determined, all buildings shown in the photo are still standing.

Prior to 1904 students from the
Village who attended high school went
to Hackensack High School. From
1904 until 1912 high school classes
were conducted on the top floor of
Washington Irving School; and from
1912 to 1917 the high school classes
were conducted at the school at the
corner of Hackensack Avenue and
Eighth Street, across the street from
the present Lincoln School In
September 1917 the doors opened to
Ridgefield Park High School, then
officially known as Washington High
School, at the corner of Bergen
Avenue and Hobart Street. After
Hackensack High School, Ridgefield
Park High School is one of the oldest
high schools in the County

The opening of the High School
coincided with the entrance of the
United States into World War |. The
Village responded strongly in support

Fa

of the war effort. A public roster was
maintained at the foot of Mt. Vernen
Street, near the railroad station,
all Village residents serving in the
effort. The Armistice, November 1
was greeted with great joy here In
Village. As the men came home from
war, celebrations were held throughout
the community. Five hundred two men
from Ridgefield Park served in the
Armed Forces in World War I,
The Post Office

To go to the Post Office in the very
early days of Ridgefield Park meant
going over to Little Ferry for mail.
Later, when the railroad came through,
Mr. Ed Carr was named Postmaster of
Ridgefield Park at the railroad station
at the foot of Mt. Vernon Street. In
1888 Conrad Mergler was named
Postmaster by the Postmaster General,
John Wanamaker. He served during
the four years of the term of President

T

south 1 f, ' -

i e -'f.‘lf_\r of Wash;.ngron Irving Schgo! at f_‘fobarf Street. Christie Street
g corner of Brinkerhoff Street. This building originally housed the

George Damiano, the building houses Mr.

vle Shop, as well as several apartments. As far as
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The First Uniformed Police in Ridgefield Park - July, 1907

Standing: H. Cole - Fred Larson - J. Britten -

Captain Wm. Malia

Harrison. Mr. Mergler handled the Post
Office in his general store. Next came
Mr. Schwint, who had the Post Office
in his barber shop in the middle of the
block on Main Street between Mt.
Vernon and Cedar Streets. Later Mr.
George Lowe had the Post Office for
quite a while at his residence at the
northeast corner of Main and Mt.
Vernon Streets. In 1902 free mail
delivery was started in Ridgefield Park.
The Post Office continued for many
years on the northeast corner of Main
and Mt. Vernon Streets until 1935
when the present structure was erected
at Main and Cedar Streets. The
present Postmaster is Francis Kasse,
who replaced Victor Heineman 22
years ago.

Over a half century ago a directory
was published in Ridgefield Park listing
the names of all of the inhabitants as
well as many of the businesses.
Thumbing through this directory and
reading the advertisements gives a
feeling of the vitality of that period.
We learn that Thomas E. Williams &
Sons of 182 Main Street were
electrical contractors and they were
advertising for the installation of
electrical wiring and electrical fixtures

to replace gas fixtures in homes and
businesses. Genuine Ford parts could
be obtained from Park Auto Supply at
169 Main Street. Louis Zeigler would
install gas ranges from his business at
72 Hazelton Street. Queen Quality
Shoes could be obtained from the
Model Shoe Shop at 208 Main Street
B. Goodman offered men's clothing
from 15 Ridgefield Avenue, which was
next door to Frank Pagliaro’'s barber
shop. Carl Hallberg Insurance at 9
Paulison Avenue had been in business
since 1891. The Babich Bakery was at
29 Ridgefield Avenue and the Busy
Corner Garage was located at Teaneck
Road and Bergen Pike. C. Fred
Brewster Company, Plumbing and
Heating Contractors, were specializing
in mazda lamps. Their business was
located at Main Street opposite Grove
Street. John Baldwin of No. 1 Mt.
Vernon Street was selling real estate
and insurance and Otto Hasig had a
French Dry Cleaning and Dyeing
establishment at 129 Main Street. The
Ridgefield Park Trust Company offered
checking accounts and special interest
accounts for idle funds. Conrad
Mergler had retired and in 1921
Merglers Corner was known as

Weinbergs Corner. In addition to a
restaurant and picnic area at
Wahrman's, one could also bowl and
dance. Charlie's Oyster and Chubb
House operated at 52 Bergen Pike,
while Healthstern's Pharmacy was
located at 68 Euclid Avenue.
Ridgefield Park's oldest and largest
paint and hardware store, H. H.
Ludwig, was at 205 Main Street.
Across the street was the 5-10-25 &
Up. Conrad Mergler and Morton
Brewster were President and Treasurer
respectively of the Park Building and
Loan Association. Secretary of this
Association was John Appler, who
would later be Principal of Roosevelt
School for many years. Sidney Block
operated the Favorite Meat Market on
Ridgefield Avenue at the corner of
College Place. Oellerman's Delicatessen
was at 192 Main Street. Park Lumber
and Supply was located at 205 Main
Street and the Ridgefield Park Bullet
was at 201 Main Street. Geils Brothers
offered fancy and staple groceries

their headquarters at 63 Winant
Avenue. Anderson and Sandine offer:
high-grade tailoring at -
from their store at 206 Mair
Down at 16 Mt. Vernon Street Alfred

aireetl

Wm. Glassow - John Ritter - H VanDenhlen, Seated: Chief Louis A. Eucker




Rhodes offered real estate and
insurance. Breslow's of 218 Main
Street was a full-line stationery store
And the old Opera House at Main and
Park Streets was now known as the
Strand Theater, Albert C Wrede and
Gary F. Koop operated the famous
Wrede and Koop's [ce Cream and
Confectionary Parlor at 216 Main
Street. A. Solheim of 55 Ridgefield
Avenue offered choice meats. And
Gordon Smith of 8 Mt. Vernon Street
operated a day and night taxi service.
H. C. Renner, the butcher, had a store
at 88 Euclid Avenue and Andrew
Wright, the printer, was located at 34
College Place.

In 1921 there were eight men on
the Ridgefield Park Police Department.

Shortly after Ridgefield Park became  town<h ..
at the foot of Mt Vernon Stre West
a bog. Just to fill it in was
for $1.518 The West Share
their teams to do the .
White, the park be named

John McElroy was Chief of Police and
Fred Larson was Sergeant, Many old-
time residents remember Fred Larson,
who later became Chief. His favorite
expression before he began any
statement was ' Yl.implng Yiminee."
Willlam Sands was the dog warden and
no history of Ridgefield Park could be
complete without a comment about
Mr. Sands. He had one leg and he
lived in the house at the junction of
the Overpeck Creek and Bergen
Turnpike. To get about town, he rode
a bicycle, and when he went out to
pick up stray dogs he would tie the
dogs to his bicycle and then, with only
one leg, peddle back to the pound
which was located at his house. It is
reported that some of the Village
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onto the Overpeck Creek Bridge into
Ridgefield. Nevertheless, he s H:l“:
fond memory age
residents and he did his job well.

The only police officer to die in the
line of duty in Ridgefield Park was
John “Doc” Ritter, In 1920 Ritter was
called to quell a disturbance of some
local youths, who turned out to be
under the influence of alcohol. Ritter
knew the culprits and when they would
not cooperate he started to '
into headquartérs. One of i h

g
&
:
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5 'I.’.--_ Mt Vernon Association was formed on April 27, 1897, to fill in the swamplan
o ars getting off on the east side of the tracks were often compelled to step 0

! lo make a park After considerable negotiations, twelve lots were purchased

e 1 M Brewster, P H. Smith, William Strohmeyer and H. C. Cruthers ued
¢ided that in honor of the President of the Mt. Vernon Association, Frank
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men grabbed Ritter's gun and Ritter
was fatally shot.

In the 1920's there were eleven
churches in operation in Ridgefield
Park and they had a strong influence
on the community. Although there
were many sports teams and athletic
teams in the Village, no games could
be played on Sunday. All Sunday
games were played at Martin's Oval in
Teaneck, just north of Arthur Street.

In 1921 the members of the Board
of Education were George Ley, David
Garrison, George Nelson, George
Lennox, James Wilson, Claude
Meredith, John Petrie, Mrs. Charles
Sidman and Edwin Mangels. The
Library was located in the Municipal
Building and was open from 2:30 to
5:30 every afternoon, and from 7:30
to 9:00 on Tuesday, Thursday and
Saturday evenings, and from 10:00 to
12:00 on Saturday mornings. The
Librarian in 1921 was Miss Muriel
Kern. Conrad Mergler was President of
the Library Board of Trustees and
other members included Mrs. Charles
Sidman, Mortimer Brewster, William
Marsh and George Nelson. George
Nelson was also President of the
Chamber of Commerce. In March of
1921 the population of Ridgefield Park

Reinhardt's Hotel - Paulison Avenue -
Building destroyed by fire in 1929

was 9,251.

There were many fraternal societies
and organizations for Village residents
to join. These included the American
Legion Post No. 40; Daughters of
America-Pride of Overpeck Council;
Daughters of Scotia; The Masonic
Lodge; The Junior Order of United
American Mechanics; The Liberty
Dames; The Modern Woodmen of
America; The Phil Sheridan Council of
the Knights of Columbus; The Ladies
of the Grand Army of the Republic;
The Order of Scottish Clans; The
Royal Arcanum; The Ridgefield Park
Mannechor; The Sons and Daughters
of Liberty; The Veterans of Foreign
Wars; The Young Women's Patriotic
League; The Bergen Athletic Club; The
Ladies Village Improvement
Association; The Pasttime Athletic
Club; The Thursday Afternoon
Pinochle Club; The Seneca Club; The
Womens Club. All of these activities, in
addition to the six companies of the
Volunteer Fire Department, all of
which had waiting lists for men wanting
to serve the community. And, of
course, all of the groups associated
with each of the religious groups.

The 1920’s are well known in
history as the “'Roaring Twenties." It

1910

was the time of prohibition and
Ridgefield Park certainly had its
exciting moments. The rules of
prohibition permitted each household
to make 200 gallons of wine per year
for home consumption. Home-brewed
beer was also permitted and a number
of people had stills. It seems that
anyone who wanted to imbibe did not
have too much difficulty. Indeed there
were a number of speak-easies located
throughout the community. These
could be found at Bergen Turnpike
and Teaneck Road, along Ridgefield
Avenue, along Mt. Vernon Street and
along Main Street. Every now and then
a raid would be conducted to make
everything look right. The route of the
prohibition agents coming down from
the Ramapo Mountains went along the
Bergen Turnpike and with the right
connections one could pick up barrels
of beer or bottles of liquor at the
railroad crossing at the Bergen
Turnpike. Keep in mind that the
railroad gates which cross the Bergen
Turnpike were manually operated

one contacted the operator in the
gatehouse which was a two-story
structure located just next to the
railroad tracks, and the operator would
lower the gates to stop the prohibition
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agents. The prohibition agents wer
told what was required, and they
would drop ofl whatever was needed,
then the gates would be raised and the
prohibition agents would continue on
with their convoy down to the Hudson
River

The dedication of Roosevelt School
in 1921 brought to the surface a latent
religious animosity which,
unfortunately, characterized some of
America in the 1920's. Roosevelt
School was a very advanced building
for its day, and included an indoor
pool. Both the school and the pool still
serve our community. The local
Masonic Lodge participated in the
laying of the cornerstone for this
building, and Masons from all over the
area came to march in the parade that
accompanied the dedication. Members
of other fraternal groups felt left out
of these ceremonies and a certain
amount of bitterness was engendered
Harry Morrison of the Masonic Lodge
and Joe Cerina of the Knights of
Columbus commuted together on the
West Shore Railroad. They agreed that
it would be a good idea to try to bring
the members of the Knights of
Columbus and the Masonic Lodge
together for an annual fellowship
gathering and to help promote good
will in the community. Out of their
discussions on the train was started the
annual Masons-K of C softball game
which traditionally always ends in a tie,
followed by a fellowship dinner. Over
the years this spirit has come to
dominate Ridgefield Park.

In 1923 the Rialto Theater was built
at the corner of Main and Cedar
Streets, and this soon became the only
movie theater in Ridgefield Park.

For those familiar with the old high
school at Bergen Avenue and Hobart
Street, all athletic activities took place
in the gymnasium on the Hobart Street
side of the building; this would be later
known as the Girls' Gym. This gym
proved to be inadequate and with the
growing school population an addition
was needed for the high school
In 1926 the auditorium on Hobart
Street was opened with classrooms and
science laboratories on the third floor:
at the same time the Boys' Gym was
opened on the Bergen Avenue side of
the building Now, indeed, Ridgefield
Park boasted of the most madern high
school in the county. One cannot -
underestimate the particular effect that
Ridgefield Park High School had «
the entire community, The schoal was
a real source of pride for all residents
and the athletic teams provided
excitement and helped promote
community unity and spirit. Elsewhere
in this book the exploits of Ridgefield

Park's athletic teams, particularly those
of the 1920's and 30's, are recorded.
One should note that on the day
before the Saturday football games,
Main Street was a beehive of activity
with people gathering to discuss the
following day's game and perhaps even
to place wagers. Wrede and Koop's
lce Cream Parlor was a favorite
gathering place.

1927 saw the opening of the
railroad station at the foot of Mt.
Vernon Street. By that time Ridgefield
Park was the second largest
commuting station on the New York
Central Railroad Records show that
3,269 residents boarded trains to New
York City every day — a number
exceeded only by White Plains, New
York. The new railroad station
replaced an old, wooden structure and
came about only after a prolonged
battle with the railroad. At one point
the railroad attempted to satisfy
residents by placing an old freight car
to act as the station. The wooden
structure, which preceded the present
station, was moved south and became
the Little Ferry station; it burned down
in the early 1970's.

Another major accomplishment
which occurred during the 1920's was
the building of Veterans Park. The
land was purchased in 1920 for a little
less than $15,000 at the suggestion of
Dr. John D. Morrison, who recognized
the possibilities of the area. Work was
begun on the park in 1924 and it was
officially opened on July 4, 1926, in
observance of the sesquicentennial
celebration of the signing of the
Declaration of Independence. In the
1924 Commissioners election Edwin
Ferris, Arthur Kneerim and Hugh
McGowan had been elected, with the
commissioners selecting Mr. McGowan
to serve as Mayor. It was Mayor
McGowan who obtained the cinders
from Copper's Coke which were used
by the townspeople for building the
quarter-mile track in Veterans Park.
This track was built by the
townspeople. At the time Veterans
Park opened it was acclaimed as a 10-
Y2 acre track with a concrete stadium
seating 4,000 people, an athletic field,
lennis courts and various ather
recreational facilities. During the
1920's the high school football team
continued to use Roosevelt School field
for both their games and practices.
The practices continued at Roosevelt
School field until after World War I,
although the games were played at
Veterans Park.

By January, 1927, the population of
our Village had reached 12,300, We
were about at the maximum. Of that
number there were 2,004 one-family

houses; 259 two-family
three-family houses, eig
houses, one six-family house;
eight-family house. It was in
the first apartment house ¢
began. A three-story apartment
then costing $68,000, for nine
families (the first of its kind in
Ridgefield Park) was erected at
Teaneck Road and Poplar Street. |
the same time a four-story apal

house, costing $75,000, to house
twenty-one families, was started at
Bergen Avenue and Poplar Street.

In addition to school activities ther
were a number of activities for young
people in Ridgefield Park. These would
include the Boy Rangers of America,
which met at the Neighborhood
Reformed Church, and a number of
Boy Scout Troops, including Boy
Scout Troop #1 of the Baptist
Church, which is one of the oldest Boy
Scout Troops in the United States.
Troop #2 met at the Knights of
Columbus Hall in 1927; Troop #3 at
the Neighborhood Reformed Church;
Troop #4 at the Episcopal Church;
Troop #6 at the Methodist Church;
and Troop #7 at the Presbyterian
Church. There were four groups of
Campfire Girls, two of which met at
the Union Church and two of which
met at the Methodist Church.

All of the PTA organizations in town
were organized in the early 1920's as
was the Ridgefield Park Rotary Club.
The Ridgefield Park Garden Club was
organized in 1925 and by 1927 it had
110 members. The Women's
Democratic Club of Ridgefield Park
and the Women's Republican Club of
Ridgefield Park were organized in
1923 and 1924, respectively. On June
20, 1925, Elks Lodge No. 1506 was
organized with 100 members. The Elks
Club purchased the old Peter Mehrhof
Mansion, located at Spruce Avenue
and Cedar Street.

At one time the Mehrhof property
extended from Mt. Vernon Street
south to Hobart Street, and from Main
Street west to the river. The
intersection of Main and Mt. Vernon
Streets, where the Mehrhof property
was located, was the site of a number
of tent meetings and religious revivals
in the Teens and in the Twenties.
Peter Mehrhof was a very genial
gentleman and opened his grounds to
residents on any number of occasions
for carnivals and fairs, as well as
lectures and religious meetings. For a
number of years prior to the sale of
the property, the Fire Department
sponsored a “‘monster” carnival and
fair. These fairs were major community




Masonic Hall, Main and Hobart Streets, 1910. The hall still
stands and is still used as the Masonic Hall, but the commercial

stores on the first floor are gone.

games and amusements and all the
proceeds went to maintain the various
{ire houses, which were owned then as
they are today by the men themselves.
The fairs were often scheduled to be
held in September so that the local
political candidates for county and
state office would attend, The program
of the 1916 carnival includes
advertisements for the Bouse Back
Brothers Ridgefield Park Hotel; the
College of Music, operated by
Professor Otto Hubenriser at 68
College Place. Beer, wines and soda
delivered by the Ridgefield Park
Bottling Company of Hackensack
Avenue; the Hazelton Meat Market of
72 Hazelton Street; Martin Baer, high
class bakery and confectionary of 185
Hackensack Road; Frank L.
Forchinger, Tinsmith and Roofer of
161 Hackensack Road; Reinhardt's
Hotel, Charles Nelson, Tin and
Coopersmith, between Cutter and
Gibson Streets (Gibson now known as
Roosevelt Avenue); Thomas Chaterdon,
painter and decorator of 16 Edison
Street; Cincotta's Wholesale Fruit
Dealer of 179 Hackensack Road;
Herman Kramer Paint Store, 215
Hackensack Road; Best Tin Roofer in
Ridgefield Park — Joseph Landy of 203
Hackensack Road; Crescent Arcade
Theater opposite the Little Ferry
Station on Ridgefield Avenue. And an
advertisement for the Hudson Supér
Six, $1,475.00, FOB Detroit, Michigan,
for sale by the Neihaus Motor Car
Company of Teaneck Road and the
Bergen Turnpike.

By the end of the 1920's Ridgefield
Park had indeed developed as Bergen
County's most modern suburban
community. Any further growth would

be limited. At the close of that decade
the school system was in place and
would remain unchanged for many
years; all of the churches had been
built and were in operation Indeed,
the Congregational Church, at the
corner of Euclid Avenue and Cedar
Street had lost membership to the
point where it could no longer operate;
that building would become the Public
Library. Commission form of
government was firmly established. The
DPW Garage had been erected on
Industrial Avenue in 1926 and was in
full operation along with the Sewage
Disposal Plant, which was a local
responsibility. The full-time Police
Department was in operation out of
headquarters in the Municipal Building,
and the six Volunteer Fire Companies
each had their quarters in various
sections of the Village. Most residents
commuted on the railroad, but some
bus service was available for those who
preferred it. A trolley operated in
Ridgefield Park along the Bergen
Turnpike. This trolley line terminated
at Fricke's Restaurant because the
railroad would not give permission for
the trolley tracks to cross the railroad
tracks. Thus, the trolley came up from
Weehawken and Jersey City, stopped
at Fricke's Restaurant, and for those
who wished to continue on the trolley,
they disembarked, crossed the railroad
tracks and got on another trolley on
the west side of the tracks. That
troilley would then continue across the
Bergen Turnpike, past Tracey's Nine-
Mile House, and on to Hackensack,
Paterson, or wherever their destination
might be.

Wahrman's Overpeck Park, at the
Bergen Pike and Teaneck Road, was a

Northeast corner, Main and Mr. Vernon Streets. At one time
this building housed the post office. This is now the site of the
Schiff Philatelic Auctioneers (formerly Central Bergen Savings
and Loan Association.)

very popular picnic grove and
restaurant. During the 1920's members
of the New York City Fire Department
would conduct their annual outing at
Wahrman's. One of the traditions
would be that at a certain time in the
afternoon the New York Fire Chief
would go out and pull Box 15 for
Bergen Pike and Teaneck Road.
Members of the Ridgefield Park Fire
Department would then join their
brother firemen from New York City
for the annual picnic, boating,
swimming and refreshment.

Swimming was very popular along
the Overpeck Creek, but it was a
“swim at your own risk'" propesition.
The drowning of young Ed Schipper
did put a damper on a lot of
swimming activities on the creek and
the river. But in later years, with the
growth in population, the river and
creek pecame polluted, making many
of the waterfront activities no longer
possible. The Ridgefield Park Boat
Club and the Hackensack Boat Club
were out of existence by the late 20's,
and only the Overpeck Boat Club
remained. George Schlum, the furrier
of Bergen Pike and Edison Street, held
the mortgage for the Overpeck Boat
Club. As the boat club was unable to
generate enough suppori to keep
going, the mortgage was taken over by
Vic and Carl Kruger who held that
mortgage through the late 30's and
through World War Il. After World
War 1l the Overpeck Boat Club
became the home of the Veterans o
Foreign Wars, which had originally
in the Junior Order Hall on Winant
Avenue

The shores of the Overpeck Creek
and the Hackensack River were
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THREE GENERATIONS IN JULY FOURTH PARADE

known for their sandy beaches. Indeed,
the present Brewster Park and Main
Street ByPass were at one time known
as the "‘sand banks."

In the late 1920's Emil Fraysee
began a community orchestra. In
1928 this was taken over by Mr.
Henry Cross, a music teacher in the
Ridgefield Park School System. Mr.
Cross later started a brass band and
was responsible for arranging several
John Philip Sousa concerts in the old
high school auditorium. Several
residents have advised us that John
Philip Sousa’s last public concert was
given in Ridgefield Park High School in
either 1930 or 1931.

The community orchestra did not
last too long into the thirties, and was
disbanded because members could not
afford instruments necessary to keep
the band going. We had entered the
period of the Depression

The team of McGowan, Ferris and
Kneerim, was reelected for a second
term in 1928 In the 1932 election
Ferris and Kneerim were reelected
McGowan was unsuccessful and was
replaced by Herbert Lowe. Arthur
Kneerim, was reelected for a second
Mayor. The 1932 election was
particularly bitter, and 72%
voters participated — a record for a
local election here in Ridgefield Park

of the

Newspapers in Ridgefield Park
William J. Morrison, whoe had a
printing establishment in New Yoark
City, had come to Ridgefield Park in

1886. When the Village was

incorporated in 1892, Morrison felt the

need for a community newspaper so
he issued the "'Gazette'' on June 1.
This paper was a four-page weekly, 4"
x 7" in size and in it Morrison printed
the complete Village Act with an

editorial comment in which he gave the

Village politicians to understand that

there was something more to running a

Village than the process of holding
office and title. Morrison followed this
issue of the ''Gazette' with a paper
called the "Kicker," which did not
have any regular publication date but
was published whenever Morrison felt
the need to bring to the attention of
the people of the community items of
interest. The latter part of 1894 John
Race edited and published a paper
called the “Era" which he continued
for a year and a half, but not without
getting company in a weekly
newspaper called the “‘Bergen County
Advertiser,” published by William
Morrison and edited by William Down,
who was connected with Harper
Brothers in New York. The first issue
of the "Bergen County Advertiser’”
was published October 26, 1895, and

continued long after the “Era'" gave up

the ghost. In fact, the ""Advertiser” did
not cease publication until a few years
Bulletin" was established.

27, 1900, the first issue
old Park Bulletin” came
s to that time it was
the “Bulletin'' at Pompton
Plains, N.J., by H. G Wells & Sons,
vho sold the franchise to John Hoey,
Delos Service, Cylis Wilcox, William
Schwab, William Wilcox and others. An
office was established for the
“Bulletin at 201 Main Street. For

out. Previ

published as

Mildred Lenox (Lowe) - first prize 1916; Nancy Lowe (Alderton) - first prize 1945, Jennifer and Douglas Alderton - fifth prize

several years the "Bulletin”' was
published every Saturday and delivered
by boys. When Charles Enders, Jr.,
took over the paper in 1906, he
enlarged it to seven columns to the
page and it was delivered by postmen.
In 1926 the “Bulletin'' office was
erected on Railroad Avenue, where the
paper was printed. The first telephone
installed in Ridgefield Park was in the
“Bulletin'' office. Around 1912 another
paper, "The Review", and a printing
plant was started in Ridgefield Park by
a stock company of local men. This
printing plant and paper was sold in
March 1927 to a group of residents
who elected A. Wolk of Englewood as
President; John Lusitana of Ridgefield
Park as Vice President; E. J. Murwey,
Treasurer; and L. Wolk of Englewood,
Secretary. The editor of “The Review"
was Paul Heffernan of Ridgefield Park.
Only the "Bulletin" survived the
Depressions, with David Sadler serving
for many years as editor. In the early
1950’s the “Bulletin' was sold to an
interest controlled by the Teaneck
Sunday Sun.

For many years the two papers
published companion issues, with the
“Sun Bulletin" being delivered on
Thursday and the “"Sunday Sun" on
Sunday. Control of the “Bulletin™
returned to Ridgefield Park interest
when in 1963 Carl Tenney, owner of
the Ridgefield Park Press on Mt.
Vernon Street, purchased the “Sun
Bulletin." Tenney operated, published
and edited the paper for many years
until it was sold in 1973 to interests
controlled by the “Bergen News," who
presently print and distribute the “Sun-

.



Bulletin' along with the “Bergen
News." These two local papers are
now delivered as free distribution
papers throughout the community.

The great Depression of the 1930's
did have an impact on Ridgefield Park,
but the impact was minimized by the
nature of the community. We had
already been built up, and the people
of the community were generally very
conservative and hard-working. The
Village itself, through Mrs. Pool, the
Welfare Officer, saw to it that no
family went without food or coal,
although Mrs. Pool did insist that the
recipients of welfare perform
community service and work if this
were possible. People receiving
assistance were paid at the rate of
$3.00 per day. Other residents note
that the Overpeck Building and Loan
Association extended every effort to
make sure that no resident would lose
his home because of inability to pay
the mortgage, and extended terms and
revised payment arrangements were
common.

A number of WPA projects were
conducted within the community. The
WPA (Works Progress Administration)
was a federal public works program.
These projects would include further
improvements to Veterans Park, with
the building of steps from the park to
the Poplar Street entrance, as well as
the placement of a number of
macadam paths on the hillside in the
park. A Civilian Conservation Corps
Camp was located at the foot of Union
Place on the hill to what now leads to
the present Ridgefield Park High
School. Members of the Civilian
Conservation Corps worked in the
Overpeck Meadows, digging drainage
ditches 1o the creek. Another WPA
project was the building of a new
firehouse for Hose Company #1 on
Mt. Vernon Street. Other WPA
projects included the publication of a
history of the Ridgefield Park Fire
Department in 1939 as part of a
federal writer's project. The WPA
sponsored the painting of a mural on
the south lobby wall of the Ridgefield
Park Post Office. This mural depicts
George Washington Bridge, and is
listed in a national register of historic
art works. Today work is being
undertaken to restore this mural to its
original condition,

The building of Route 6, now Route
46, along Winant Avenue in the early
1930's brought further changes to the
community. The completion of the
Route & bridge across the Hackensack
River led to the eventual demise of the
Bergen Turnpike Bridge, which was
about a quarter of a mile to the south

Twelve candidates participated in the
1936 Board of Commissioner's election
with over 63% of the voters casting
votes. The successful candidates were
Herbert Lowe, Henry Ludwig and
George Malley, with Herbert Lowe
being elected by the commissioners as
mayor. Shortly after the election Henry
Ludwig passed away, and he was
replaced by George F. Wagner, who
had been a candidate in the 1936
voting.

Community interest in Ridgefield
Park High School remained high in the
depression years. High school athletic
teams in all sports continued to
dominate, George Bate was principal
of the high school and was well
respected in the community. But the
man everyone knew was Carl Biggs,
who coached all sports at Ridgefield
Park. Coach Biggs taught his players
how to be champions, both on the field
and off. When he died at a young age
in 1940, a plague in his memory was
dedicated at Veterans Park. This
plague can be seen today at the base
of the flagpole.

Many of the teachers in Ridgefield
Park High School had begun their
careers in the 1920's. These careers
lasted into the 1950's and 1960's, and
some students were taught by the
same teachers who taught their
parents —and in a few cases even their
grandparents! It would be a mistake to
try and list some of these imposing
figures for, inevitably, some would be
missed. But some of the principals can
be mentioned, for their tenure covered
decades. A Ray Palmer was
“supervising principal."" His career
began in Ridgefield Park in 1913 and
lasted 42 years. High school principal
George Bate, for whom the Bate
Student Loan Fund is named, died in
1935 and was succeeded by Frederic
K. Shield, who served for 18 years.

John Appler, after serving first as
principal of Washington lrving, was
principal of Roosevelt School until
1953, One of the fe
administrators was 7
principal of Lincoln School, who
retired following World War Il after
many years of service Merrill Burnham
was principal of both Washington Irving
and Grant Schools, alternating with his
secretary, Anna DeWyrall, part of the
day in each school. Miss DeWyrall's
father, Cyril, had been a Village
trustee.

Not mentioning any teachers may be
a disservice to one whose name is
mentioned in every discussion of the
“old"" Ridgefield Park High School.
Vira Puritan Jepson had a profound
impact on all her students, who still
recall her stern discipline and excellent
teaching. The Library of the new high
school is named in her honor

Although the Depression lingered
through the 1930's, at the ciose of the
decade attention was focused on
events in Europe as the world moved
into a second World War. Here in
Ridgefield Park, as it was across the
United States, opinion was divided as
to what course of action the United
States should follow. Some favored
intervention to help our allies, while
others were America “firsters” and felt
that the United States should not
participate in European affairs

The Commissioner's election of 1940
saw six candidates vying for the three
seats. Elected were Ernest G.
Alberque, Jr., George F Wagner and
Herbert | Lowe Herbert Lowe
continued to serve as mayor following
this election This same team of
Alberque, Wagner and Lowe was
reelected in the 1944 election during
World War Il There was no opposition
in the 1944 election

W wamen

eresa Huber

Looking north on Ridgefield Avenue — Crescent Arcade Theater



With the completion of the Route 6
Bridge across the Hackensack River
In 1934, the Village entered the ers
of the modern highway, Winant

Avenue was no longer a local street,
but became one segment of a direct
route from West Jersey to the

George Washington Bridge.
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~ BRIDGE QOPENING COMMITTEE
ROUTE No 6
% RIDGEFIELD PARK, N. J.
X John G. Schipper, Chairman
\ Frank L Chapman, Vice-Chairman
L Edward Lord, Secretary
Frank E. Smith, History
David C. Boswell, Maps
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Route 6 would lster become U.S.
Route 46, and today It Is commonly
referred to as 46", although many
residents etill use the Winant
Avenue designation. David Winant
was one of our early residents and
his home, dating from the 1840's
still stands at 12 Orchard Street.

Frank, A Morrison, History
Frederic C Weidling, History
Kenneth Wallace, History

George F Malley, Parade Marshal
Major Wm. B Love, Parade Marshal

*Fred L Notton




THE WORLD WAR Il YEARS —
1940.1945

The decade of the 1930's ended
with the sobering preparations for
another World War. Truly pertinent
today were efforts to fingerprint all
Village school children. These efforts
started as early as 1937. Copies of the
fingerprints were stored in the
Municipal Building and at the Bureau
of Identification in Washington, D.C.
The purpose of this exercise was to
identify children who may be displaced
in time of national emergency.

Records had to be kept to allow
police and Civil Defense officials to
identify the children at a later date.
Grant School was the first in the
Village to report 100% participation in
finger-printing of its students.

Wednesday, October 16, 1940,
dawned as Draft Registration Day. The
Village school system cooperated in
the registration by declaring a school
holiday so that teachers could assist in
the registration. All men between the
ages of 21 to 35 had to reagister for
the draft. The registration oc
the regular polling places
Village. This was t ce fi
draft in United States history All 1,39
Village residents of the sp
registered for the draft or

Ridgefield Park, Rid:
Bogota were under the authori
Selective Service Board 12. On
October 23, 1940, serial numbers of
all the registrants were posted in th
Municipal Building. The draft started in
December, 1940, with 14 men from
Selective Service Board 12 being called

curred at

nd the

every two weeks. Men who were
drafted reported to draft board
headquarters on Mt. Vernon Street at
6:30 a.m. Once at headquarters, they
were sent by bus to the 113th Infantry
Armory in Newark, N.J. for induction.
If any draftees were rejected, they
would be replaced by the next person
on the list. By July 4, 1941, there had
been 15 groups of men drafted. All
men in uniform at the time were
invited to march in the 1941 Fourth of
July Parade.

Many other units were gearing up to
do their part in the upcoming war.
Civil Defense teams were organized
The American Legion registered all of
their 1,078,119 members on February
22, 1941, the 209th anniversary of the
birth of George Washington. The
Legionnaires were asked to fill out
registration forms so that the
organization could take inventory of its
assets in manpower experience and
special training, to be made
available to the government if needed
in the defense of the nation.

Of course, any war the nation may
undertake has to be financed. U. S.
Defense Savings Bonds and Stamps
were placed on sale at the Post Office
on May 1, 1941. A defense bond
could be purchased for $18.75 and in
len years It would be worth $25.00.

I'he closing weeks of July brought
the Village its first aluminum drive.
Local Boy Scouts, Girl Scouts and
Mariners canvassed the Ulllage
collecting 3,714 pieces of aluminum
for the local defense board. The last
week of July was declared by Mayor

WORLD WAR Il HONOR ROLL Lacated at the nartheast corner of Park and Main Streets, now the site of a gas station, this
Honor Roll was erected by the local Rotary Club and contained the names of more than 1,300 men and women in the
Armed Forces of the United States. This was more than 11% of the total population of the Village at that time.

Lowe as “‘Battle of the Atlantic Week™
to depict to the Village citizenry the
threat of invasion faced by our nation

The Local Defense Council swung
into full gear on November 5, 1941,
by distributing a questionnaire to all
residents. The questionnaire had been
broken down into several sections
dealing with work best suited for each
person. As with the aforementioned
American Legion registration, it
enabled the Local Defense Council to
appraise the manpower of the Village.
Once the forms were assembled, each
resident was notified of his placement
by the director.

As we all know, the war came on
December 7, 1941. On December 10
Ridgefield Park had its first Air Raid
Warning. Children were all sent home
from school and all citizens were
advised to seek shelter. A mistake was
made by aircraft spotters by
misidentifying U. S. Naval Aircraft
flying out of Mitchell Field, Long
Island. This was not the last of such
mistakes,

On December 19, the Local Defense
Council recommended the following
rules in the event of an Air Raid
Warning:

1. Remain calm 2. Seek shelter in
central portions of the nearest building
3. Motorists should park their cars as
quickly as possible and go to the
nearest building 4. Avoid the use of
telephones but keep the radio on for
instructions. 5. Put out all lights and
pull down shades 6. If bombs should
fall, turn off gas and electric and lie
down,
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January, 1942, marked the issuance
of the plans drawn up In the event of
an Air Rald. Basically, the village was
broken up into four precincts, with a
precinct warden overseeing each
quadrant and answering to the Village
Air Raid Defense Director, Richard
Mahon.

In this month it was also decided
that in the event of an air raid Village
school children would continue to be
evacuated from the schools. The
reasons for this evacuation were due
to fears regarding the concentration of
children in any one area, and the
probability that parents would rush te
the schools at the first sign of an air
raid and possibly cause a panic. The
decision to evacuate children was
unanimously agreed upon by the mayer,
the Local Defense Council, the Board
of Education and the Commissioners.

February 16, 1942, marked the
registration day for the expanded draft.
Requirements for registration were
increased to aircraft which turned out
to be a U. S. Army Bomber. It was
the first air raid warning to be
conducted in Ridgefield Park under
blackout conditions.

The Local Defense Council had also
purchased 30 cots and mattresses and
12 stretchers for an emergency
hospital (just in case). Placed on order
were tools and equipment for
Demolition, Clearance and Road Repair
Committees. A Civilian Defense
Control Center was set up and staffed
on a 24-hour basis by volunteers.

The year 1943 brought about
adjustments which had to be made by
all, including the homemaker who had
to make do with wartime rationing. In
response to this need, the War Service
Council organized Consumer and
Nutrition courses. Representatives of
The Woman's Club, Girl Scouts, St.
Francis Canteen, Junior Woman's Club
and the Home and Arts Department of
the public schools were represented.

Classes were held on a weekly basis
with an afternoon and evening session.
The course was to give practical
training in the conservation of food
values and in the selection and
preparation of foods which meet the
nutritional needs of the individual and
the family. Twenty-three women
attended the first class.

The practice air raid of February 9,
1943 brought about a dramatic change
in procedure. At the end of the
blackout, air raid wardens did not use
their whistles to signal the all clear. It
was explained that the warden’s
whistle is used mostly to call attention
to lights not extinguished and to get
people off the streets. If the whistle is
to remain effective for those purposes,

it must not be permitted to be used
for other functions as it may become
confusing,

In early 1943, air rald warning
signals were standardized throughout
the State of New Jersey, thus
Ridgefield Park abandoned the 2-2-2
signal which it had been using. The
new signals were as follows:
CONDITION BLUE: A steady two-

minute blast on sirens. All lights in

homes, offices and businesses must
be extinguished. Street lights and
traffic lights remain on. Pedestrians
and traffic may continue to move

CONDITION RED: (Air Raid) A two-
minute warbling or fluctuating blast
on sirens. All lights turned off.

Pedestrians and motorists seek

shelter.

ALL CLEAR: A ten-second blast on
sirens. All lights may be relighted

Apparently if a Condition Red was
sounded, the status would once again
be changed to Condition Blue before
the All Clear could be sounded.

Ridgefield Park distinguished itself
during 1943 with blood drives and Red
Cross contributions. In March, 1943,
contributions to the Red Cross were
$1,121.57 over the Village's quota of
$6,360.

In May, 1943, the Local Defense
Council announced the purchase of
600 helmets for its members, The
problem was there were 998 men and
women on the council. The issue was
quickly decided by distributing the
helmets on a first-come, first-served
basis.

During the last week of May, 1943,
the U. S. Army asked our Village to
be prepared to receive, shelter and
feed 1 128 men, women and children
who might be evacuated into this area.
By way of explanation, it was offered
that Ridgefield Park is not and will not
be a military target, however, if enemy
bombers come in this direction they
will be hitting New York City and
possibly the great Wright Aircraft plant
in Paterson.

A response to the Army's request
was prepared by the Rev. Robert
Megaw, director of the Division of
Emergency Food and Housing. It
leaves nothing to chance, pegging
evacuees down to where they will be
housed and how they will be fed.
Local residents were listed, along with
how many evacuees they can handle

It was all on paper!

1943 also marked a shortage of
seed and fertilizer due to the planting
of victory gardens. Block leaders
surveyed Ridgefield Park noting the
number of gardens, average size and

any new gardens. This information was
made avallable to seed and fertilizer
companies so that shortages could be
avoided in 1944

As the war started to turn
Germany, there loomed the question of
how desperate the enemy
become. In an age before the atomic
bomb, the most devastating weapon
was gas warfare. Alert to the
possibility of this type of attack, the
defense council decided to have a gas
course. The course would be designed
so that more people would be trained
in detecting and combatting various
types of war gasses. The use of gas
masks would also be demonstrated.
Speakers for the course were provided
by the office of the State Gas
Consultant. The course ended on
October 31 with a gas test conducted
at the field house in Veterans Park.
All Air Raid Wardens, First Aiders,
Decontamination Squad Members and
Firemen attended the test where the
field house was filled with tear gas and
all participants entered the building.
The test was successful.

The end of 1943 was marked with
warnings of over-confidence. It was
feared that German high command, in
an effort to bolster morale, may launch
a strike against the U. S. mainland.
The Ridgefield Park Bulletin exhorted
as follows:

dark for

would

“The Axis is hurtling to defeat.
That's as sure as Friday follows
Thursday. But don't be
complacent about it, for there's
going to be savage fighting in
Europe before the job's done. As
the shadow of defeat darkens,
the Axis will grow desperate.
They haven't been squeamish in
the past and the spectre of
defeat isn't likely to refine their
technique of war. The desperate
march of events may be the
spring that will hurl them into a
last desperate gamble, Twice
Churchill has warned Germany of
retaliation if gas is used in
England. A Germany desperate
enough to ignore Churchill's
warning would be a Germany
desperate to the point of
madness, and such a desperation
could well strike at part of the
United States.”

Preparedness continued as usual

November 26, 1943, saw the opening

of a U.S.0. center at 223 Main Street

The center was opened by the loca

U.5.0. committee with hosts an

hostesses ready to welcome servicemen

and women between the hours of 2 to 4
5 p.m. daily. The primary purpose of
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Young ladies from Ridgefield Park who went to Halloran Hospital to entertain the servicemen during World War I

the center was to give Service people
a chance to register so that the U.S.0
may alert families that they are at
home on leave.

There was also a responsibility felt
toward local men and women serving
in the armed forces. A news bulletin
called ""News from Home" was
published to keep service people
apprised of what was happening on the
homefront. The news bulletin was
edited by Singleton McKay. In early
1944 American Legion Post 40
underwrote the cost of the bulletin,

War bonds sold briskly in Ridgefield
Park. On February 11, 1944, a war
bond rally was held at Ridgefield Park
High School. The highlight of the
evening was the singing of war songs
written by the school children

The war was rapidly coming to an
end with the defeat of Germany in
North Africa and the fall of Italy
Once again editorials warned of

overconfidence but the facts remained
there were less air raid drills and
everyone was breathing easier

The newspapers of March, 1944
carried articles concerning compilat
of servicemen's names and plans |

soldiers’ memorial to be

war. The salvage drive of

resulted in the following eollecti
Waste paper 111.7%
Tin cans 7,08(
Scrap metal 11,870 |hs
Rags 3,152 Ibs
Household fats 2,935 |bs
Ridg&.‘flvh.ﬂ Park was well abave its

quota on fats and paper. Many
housewives spent a lot of time to save
every scrap of fat, straining it and
clarifying it as the government
requested

While war bond drives and war loan
programs continued, the war in
Ridgefield Park was winding down. In
June, 1944, while the Normandy
invasion was underway, air raid
wardens were given service ribbons
and certificates for their contribution to
the war effort,

A new alarm went up in August,
1944, when Germany unleashed their
rockets against Great Britain It was
feared that rockets would soon be
unleashed against America's East
Coast. Evacuation and Emergency
Plans were examined and new plans
were made to put the plans into action
on short notice. The war, even on the
Village front, was not over vet.

The Rotary Club provided an unique
service to servicemen on leave or
furlough in Ridgefield Park. As an
entire generation has been off fighting
a foreign war, many servicemen
returning home wanted news of friends
serving in other branches of the service

in different theaters of war. The

ry Club provided a Furlough
r at the police department,
s, a returning serviceman could see
who else was home on leave at the
same time
_ As the war in Europe ended, Bergen
County Sheriff Tipping asked all
mayors to issue a proclamation

requesting that the sale of alcohol at a
bar or in containers be suspended from
the hour of the victory announcement
and remain suspended until the legal
hour for opening the following day. It
is not recorded whether or not
Ridgefield Park complied with his
request.

While the war in Europe ended, the
Pacific war continued. The Civilian
Defense Organization announced that
certain phases of their work would be
eliminated. The organization would be
continued as an executive committee
of five and a council of 15 members.

While writing this narrative of the
war years in Ridgefield Park, the
author purposely avoided naming local
servicemen and the decorations which
they received (there were many). The
reason for the author's aversion was so
that no one would be slighted if 2
decoration was missed. There is a
section in this book giving tribute to
those who made the ultimate sacrifice
in the service of their country.

There is, however, one other who,
by circumstances, is worthy of note.
That person is Captain Robert (Bud)
Lewis who was born in the Village and
was a product of the Ridgefield Park
School System. Almost forty years ago
to the day, Bud Lewis distinguished
himself as the co-pilot of the “‘Enola
Gay", the aircraft which dropped the
first atomic bomb on Hiroshima, Japan,
In August 1945. This action ended the
war in the Pacific and started a new
era in the history of mankind.



CAPTAIN ROBERT LEWIS

On August 6, 1945, the United States
Air Force B-29, nicknamed "“The Enola
Gay," dropped the first atomic bomb on
the Japanese city of Hiroshima. Colonel
Paul Tibbets, Commander of the Enola
Gay, is quite well known in history books,
but not so the co-pilot of the bomber,
Captain Robert “Bud” Lewis.

“Oh, my God," was all young Captain
Lewis could say as he witnessed the most
awesome event of our time This quote
has not come down to us quite so mem-
orably as some have. The June 1970 edi-
tion of the American Heritage Magazine
said this in part about quotations: "Once
it was possible to get into the quotation
books by winning a small battle and an-
nouncing, ‘We have met the enemy and
they are ours.'” As quotes go, it is a very
good one and has survived these past
two hundred years. But could anything
like it, or anything at all, be equal to what
happened on that fateful morning in
1945.

Just as this quote is almost forgotten,
so is the man who uttered those words
Bob Lewis was born in Ridgefield Park
He received his education in its school
system, and was graduated from Ridge-
field Park High School. In an interview in
the July 12, 1981 edition of The Sunday
Star Ledger, Jack Elliott called Bob Lewis
“the forgotten half of the Encla Gay
team." Lewis, himself, would rather re-
member the fact that he played on the
town's championship football team in
1937,

One of the highlights of Bob Lewis' fly-
ing career occurred when he met his
boyhood hero, Charles Lindbergh,
which Lewis described as “the thrill of his
life. " He was having dinner in the Officers
Club, Egland Field, Florida, one day dur-
ing the war when Lindbergh came in with
some of his staff people. A little while
later he walked over to Lewis’ table and
asked if Lewis would take him up on cne
of his test flights. The next moming they
went on a gunnery mission over the Gulf
of Mexico. Lindbergh asked Lewis all
kinds of questions and then took over the
controls of the B-29.

After the war, Bob Lewis became a
Project Engineer for the Estee Company,
a leading candy manufacturer in Parsip-
pany, New Jersey. He died in 1984, but
will be remembered as a brave man who
answered his country's call to duty, as
had many other millions who served in
World War II.

Bob Lewis fleft] with Charles Lindbergh, when Lewis took Lindbergh up in a B-29 Superfortress at
Egland Field in Florida, 1943

Captain Lewis standing with the crew of the Enola Gay befare on
August 6, 1945, with Lewis as co-pilot, this crew and this plane, ushered
dropping of the "A" bomb on Hiroshima, leading to the end of World Wa




Following World War Il veterans
returned home to a community that
had been well established for at least
twenty to twenty-five years. Many of
these men and women sought new
horizons and moved up the line to
communities that were changing from
farmlands to suburban communities
The growth that characterized
Ridgefield Park in the Teens and the
Twenties characterized communities in
the northern and western parts of the
county. Because Ridgefield Park was
fully developed, there were only
limited opportunities for new homes.
Some veterans' houses were erected
on portions of the old Mehrhof Estate,
just east of the railroad station. But by
and large Ridgefield Park did not have
any large-scale development.

Other changes took place following
World War Il. Where once the railroad
had been the principal means of
transportation, buses and automobiles
took its place. Where Ridgefield Park
had once been a vacation spot for
others, now residents of Ridgefield
Park left the community to take their
vacations elsewhere. No longer were
boating, swimming or fishing practical
or even possible along the Hackensack
River and Overpeck Creek. Waters
were polluted to the point that all of
these activities were considered unsafe.

New problems faced the Village
after World War Il. The sewer system
was approaching 50 years old, and
was no longer suitable for the Village's
needs. The fact that it was a
combination storm and sewer system
further added to the problem.

Washington Irving School, which had
heen erected In 1904, was no longer
adequate and students used high
school lacllities for physical education,
assembly, and other school activities,
The third floor of Washington lrving
School, where the original high school
classes were held, was condemned and
could no longer be used for academic
purposes. Other schools were in need
of repair and there was some talk in
the community of making
improvements to the high school.
Eight candidates participated in the
1948 Commissioners election, the first
local election held after the war. The
successful candidates were Ross Vogt,
Herbert Lowe and George Wagner.
Shortly after he took office in 1948,
Mayor Vogt was approached by L.
Freeland Felgraff to discuss the idea of
purchasing the Union Church on Park
Street to be used as a Civic Center
The Union Church had fallen into a
period of disuse and was occupied by
its minister, Reverend Gnagey. The
trustees of the church were unable to
generate enough support for regular
church services. Mayor Vogt and Mr.
Felgraff approached the trustees of the
church and they agreed on a price of
$25,000 for the building. This sum was
raised in a civic campaign in the
Village. Upon receipt of the $25,000,
the trustees of the church paid half to
the minister and returned half to the
Village to be used to buy equipment
for the Civic Center building. One of
first television sets in Ridgefield Park
was put in the Civic Center which
today remains the meeting place for

many clubs and organizations in the
community. In the 1970's, an addition
was put on the Civic Center to serve
as a Senior Citizen meeting area and
nutrition center,

Not all politics in Ridgefield Park
dealt with local Issues. The United
Nations had been formed in 1945 and
following World War II an “Iron
Curtain"" had drawn down across
Europe. Feelings about the United
Nations were intense. Some saw the
world organization as the best hope for
mankind, while others thought it posed
a real threat to United States freedom.
Samuel Barden, a local pharmacist,
under the auspices of the Ratary Club
organized an information program on
the United Nations and a luncheon.
Chaired by noted columnist Jim
Bishop, it drew an audience of nearly
300 people. Following the luncheon,
sharp debate appeared in the local
papers. David Boswell was a strong
United Nations foe, while Mrs,
Florence Griffith, wife of the local
Methodist minister, wrote strongly in
favor of the world organization.

United Nations or not, in June,
1950, the country found itself back at
war in Korea. Once again, the youth
of the community were called to fight
in a distant land. This time a new
enemy — Communism. Villagers
generally favored prosecution of the
war effort and supported the formation
of the NATO alliance. Residents served
in Korea. On the home front, air raid
sirens sounded again, civil defense
reorganized, and the Village prepared
for a conflict.

« YOUR CIVIC CENTRE CAMPAIGN

for the purchase of the Union Community Church property on
Park Street, between Euclid and Hudson Avenues.

« Starts July 6, 1948 - Goal $ 13,500.00 (worth lots more)

* To Provide a civic center for your children’s, and your, and your

organization’s second home.

» To Be Operated by you through your Village Government.

* Your neighbor will call for your contribution.

GIVE GENEROUSLY - IT'S FOR YOU AND YOURS

Contributed by:
AUSTIN DEVINE
LLOYD'S PRESCRIFTIONS
S8CHMIDT'S MARKET

Ridgefield Park Civic Centre Association
Herbert 1. Lowe, Honorary Chairman
L. Freeland Fellgra#f, Chairman
John E. Davis, Secretary and Treasure:
E. Alden Ferris, Campaign Manager
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Main Street Bypass, completed in 1954 under the administration of Mayor Ross Vogt. Completion of the by-pass ended
severe traffic congestion at Main Street and Winant Avenue. (Route 46) Top Left: The "‘Sand Banks'' (Brewster Park) looking
north from the Route 46 bridge. Wood structure at right was first Rescue Squad Headquarters. Top Right: Looking south
from the "'46" Bridge as construction of the Bypass is under way. Bottom Right- Bupass is nearing completion, looking North
from South Main Street. Bottom Left: Bypass is completed, as seen from Brewster Park.

In the late 40's and early 50's, the
Village also had to contend with the
State of New Jersey, which had
ambitious plans to build highways
which would take much of the Village
land. One of these plans called for a
Route 100 to be built. This plan was
soon abandoned in favor of what
would become the New Jersey
Turnpike, which would terminate in
Ridgefield Park at Route 46. Originally
the Turnpike Commission planned to
build a bridge across the Overpeck
Creek, but at the urging of Village
Engineer David Boswell, plans for a
bridge were scrapped in favor of
building a dam. These flood gates
meant that the waters of the Overpeck
Creek could be isolated and eventually
a recreation park built in the Overpeck
Creek valley.

In the early 50's, the Little League
was established in Ridgefield Park,
beginning the trend to organized

athletic activity. Early Little League
games were played in Brewster Park,
then known as the “‘sand banks.”
Under the leadership of the Lions
Club, funds were accumulated to build
the Little League Field south of
Veterans Park.

As automobile traffic continued to
increase, getting from the north side of
Route 46 to the south side on Main
Street was a real problem. One
suggestion was made to continue
Railroad Avenue south, past the
railroad station to connect with Main
Street. Another suggestion was to build
a bypass from Main Street to
Brinkerhoff Street, through the sand
banks, and down to connect with Main
Street at College Place. The Railroad
Avenue proposal was considered too
costly, The State eventually approved
the building of the Main Street bypass.

Throughout the 50's, as it had for
many years, the Village maintained its

own garbage dump in the Overpeck
meadow to the east of Hobart Street
The idea was for this dump to serve
as a land-fill for the eventual
development of a recreation area. The
State, however, continued to press the
Village for improvements and the
maintenance of the dump Concern for
the environment was just beginning
The voters appeared to be well
satisfied with the team of Vogt, Lowe
and Wagner who were elected in
1948, because in the 1952 election
there was no opposition and this same
team returned to office Followir
election, the commissioners
George Wagner to
Wagner served for
died in office. Following his deat
George Alberque was appoints
commission and Ross Vogt retu
mayor. Death prevented
completing his term i
Eucker was selected in his

be the mayor




THE COMING OF ROUTE 80

One of the lmm.-x.l issues to face the community in the 50's cccurred in 1954 when plans were
announced to build the Bergen-Passaic Expressway. Today, of course, we recognize the Bergen-Passaic
Expressway as Route 80 However, when the plans were first announced, the rOﬂCI’ W'a.’f promoted as the
Bergen-Passaic Expressway. As originally proposed, the expressway would enter Rlldgefield Park at about
Arthur Street, travel in a westerly direction and remove most of the northern section of the community.
As you can imagine, there were many, many protests over the selection of this route. Eventua!ly. the
road took shape as it is known today, but Ridgefield Park did lose 67 parcels of land, mostly in the
northwest section. It was several years before the various negotiations and route selections were
completed, but by the end of 1958 the state had moved in and began to demolish homes for the
eventual building of the road, which was completed in the mid 1960's. Some homes were purchased and
moved to vacant lots in town,

i riats e - - -

June 14, 1959 - North Avenue & Fourth Street. Expressway Not all homes were destroyed in the path of the Expressway.
demolition has begun. Some were moved to vacant lots in the area. This home is
being moved down North Avenue. (May 21, 1959)
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Route 80 from Palisade Avenue in Boon
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Looking west across Railroad Avenue at what will be the

August, 1963 The Queen Anne Road Bridge has

been

completed and to the west, we can see that the Palisade
Avenue-Second Street Bridge is in the final stages of

construction.

All these Route 80 construction photos are courtesy of Ray Humphrey, 21 Fourth Street, who also furnished the photos of the Main

Street Bypass construction,

As has been noted earlier, for all
intents and purposes Ridgefield Park
was now fully developed, and in the
50's there was some pressure to allow
development in a vertical direction.
Should or should not apartment house
structures on any large scale be
permitted? The issue divided those
who wished to maintain the character
of the Village against those who saw
apartment houses as a source of much
needed revenue to maintain Village
services. Would apartment houses
contribute more to the tax base than
they would cost? This was the question
that divided many residents at that
time. Developing a comprehensive

1 master plan was greeted with some

~ skepticism, and it wasn't until the early

4 60's that a Planning Board was

appointed.
_ In the 1956 Commissioners election,
‘B the voters returned to office Ross
Vogt, Edward Eucker and elected
Daniel Collins, who was a member of
their ticket. Ross Vogt was again
selected by the Commissioners to be
mayor.

Ridgefield Park had earlier donated
the Overpeck meadows to Bergen
County, to be used as a county park.
The failure of the county to act on
parkland proposals led some to seek
the return of this land to the Village.
. A referendum on this matter in 1957,
%" . seeking return of the land, resulted in
+"  a‘“no" vote of 1,707, and a ‘'yes"

vote of 1,664. Though the county
retained the property, pressure was on

for the county to develop park land.
In 1959, the Village of Ridgefield
Park, along with four of its citizens,
initated a lawsuit which would lead to
a revision of the property tax structure
throughout the State of New Jersey
Principal source of revenue for all
communities in New Jersey was the
property tax, and how this tax was
levied proved to be a real problem.
The Village took the position that the
property tax should be assessed on the
basis of 100% evaluation, Other
communities were using different
evaluations with a result that the tax
structure was unequal. Some
communities were paying a higher
portion of county taxes than they felt
was proper and Ridgefield Park was
one of these communities. In 1959,
Ridgefield Park sued, demanding
100% assessment and withheld
payment of the county taxes. The
county, in turn, countersued. The
matter was argued through the
Superior Courts and dragged on for a
number of years, but eventually
Ridgefield Park won the suit in the
State Supreme Court, thus establishing
the base for the 100% assessment.
Some residents felt that it was a
mistake for Ridgefield Park to seek
100% assessment, as they thought
that this would prove to be more
costly to the taxpayers. There was also
the question of apartment house
development and some further charged
that the Village had not done enough
to resist the development of Route 80,

Other residents thought we had lost an
opportunity to be the home for the
Public Service electric generating plant
now located in Ridgefield, even though
Public Service never expressed any
real interest in locating in Ridgefield
Park. These issues led to what has
been characterized as one of the most
hard-fought and liveliest commissioners
elections in Ridgefield Park's history.
The 1960 election pitted incumbent
Mayor Ross Vogt with running mates
Walter Hespe and Joseph Floyd
against another ticket headed by
Gerald Monaghan, with Lawrence
Musella and Willam Wagper. Giles
Brent was an independent candidate in
this election. The election was hard
fought. Flyers circulated the community
and it seemed that everyone was
involved In 1960, there were 6,284
registered voters. 4,326 cast a vote in
this election, a 68.8% participation,
which was exceeded only by the 72%
who had participated in the 1932
election. The 1960 election resulted in
Monaghan, Wagner and Musella being
put into office by the voters by a
narrow margin. The new co
selected Gerald Mona
mayor. Mayor Mo
two years, resigning and being replaced
as mayor by Lawrence Musel
Musella and Waane;
Alberque as the third commiss
The 1960 election was clos
as being hard fought i th
that divided the people
away

mmissioners

Intense feelings remained
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The Driver Estate, on the east side of Main Street, occupying the full block between Christie and Hobart Streets. The

property was

“T' shaped and the rear center section of the property extended to the middle of the block. Mr. William Driver

was also an active Elk and during the depression he was instrumental in saving the Elks Club property from foreclosure. The
Driver Estate is now the site of a Garden Apartment complex, built during the Wagner Administration.

following that election, and the
supporters of former Mayor Vogt and
his ticket formed a group known as
the Villagers which closely monitored
all the actions of the newly-elected
team. In 1963 a split developed
between Mayor Musella and
Commissioner Wagner which would
serve as a prelude to the 1964
Commissioners election

While the commissioners were
dealing with their problems, in the
1960's the Board of Education was
wrestling with a number of problems in
the school system. Principal among
these was what to do with Ridgefield
Park High School, Beginning in
September, 1953, Ridgefield Park High
School served as a receiving school for
Little Ferry high school students
School population continued to grow
and by the 1960's Ridgefield Park
High School was overcrowded Some
felt that the solution to this prablem
was to have the Little Ferry
moved, but this was not approve:
the State. Others felt that with o
without Little Ferry, the sche
itself was Inadequate. The coa
heating system was antiquated
some considered it dangerous. Thi
building, though structurally sound
many shortcomings. The original gas
lamps had been replaced many yvears
earlier with electric, but the
system in ltsell was now unable to

students

electrical

support the “load." Modern times
brought many changes in curriculum
and the school building did not have
proper facilities to offer some of the
new courses which were necessary.
Some thought that the best course of
action was to expand the school at its
site on Bergen Avenue and Hobart
Street. Others felt that a new structure
should be erected at another place in
the community. The most frequently
mentioned site was Dexheimer Park, to
the north of Veterans Park. Various
agencies in the Village took part in the
discussion of the high school question.
Initially the Board of Commissioners
opposed the land swap which would
give the Board of Education title to the
Dexheimer Park site in return for
giving to the Board of Commissioners
title to the site of the old high school
and Washington Irving School.
Eventually a land swap was agreed to
and the Board of Education was given
the go ahead to develop plans for a
new high school Such a structure
would have to be approved by the
ters
1960, the 1964
oners election was bitter and
jht. Thirteen candidates
e fray. Efram Brauer, an
‘ependent candidate, was the top
etter. William Waagner and Louis
Windecker, members of one ticket,
were elected also. Wagner was chosen

to serve as mayor.

The Wagner administration proved
to be controversial, so much so that
one year after the election a special
recall election was held seeking the
removal of Mayor Wagner and
Commissioner Windecker from office.
This was the only recall election in the
history of Ridgefield Park. Interestingly
enough, on the section of the ballot
which provided for the recall, William
Wagner was recalled as was Louis
Windecker. However, in the section of
the ballot which provided for the
replacement election, Wagner and
Windecker were the successful
candidates in a field of three. Thus, we
had the situation of recalling two
Commissioners from office and then
reelecting both of them.

By 1965, the Board of Education
was ready to present its plans for 2
new high school to the voters. The
State of New Jersey had come in and
condemned certain sections of the old
high school. Earlier, Washington Irving
School had been shut down on state
orders. Indeed, the local high schoal
was closed for a period of three wes
in 1965 during the schoo'ln:y‘:r :ﬁ-
emergency repairs were !
to gain temporary state approval to
continue operations.
classrooms were set up in Washington
Irving School yard, and students also
attended classes in the Public Library

P




and the First Baptist Church. An Initial
high school building proposal, at a cost
of $3,855,000 was turned down by the
voters. Later scaled down by
approximately $600,000, the proposal
to build a high school in Dexheimer
Park was approved. The last
graduating class from the old high
school at Bergen Avenue and Hobart
Street left in June, 1967. Fifty years
of education came to a close and
beginning in September, 1967, all high
school students entered the building in
Dexheimer Park.

Commissioner Brauer did not choose
to seek reelection in 1968, while
Mayor Wagner headed one ticket and
Commissioner Windecker headed
another. There was a third ticket in
the race, the ticket of Gilbert Gibbs,
Eugene Mcintyre and Benito Deluca.
The ticket of Gibbs, McIntyre and
DeLuca was elected by a better than
two to one margin, with Mclntyre and
DelLuca selecting Gibbs to serve as
mayor. The Gibbs Administration
brought about the end of any further
significant apartment house
development in the community.

In 1969, the commissioners
approved a proposal to increase the
number on the commission from three
to five, and in a special election held
in 1969, John Davis and Thomas
Johnson were elected as the fourth
and fifth commissioners.

Some consideration was given to
converting the old high school into a
municipal complex. However, this
proved to be a very costly renovation
so it was decided that the old building
should be torn down. The building was
demolished in 1971. The site is now
Fellowship Park.

In February, 1971, teachers in the
Ridgefield Park Public Schools
conducted a one-day strike in a dispute

with the Board of Education over
salary. The strike was settled when the
Education Association accepted a 6
%% salary increase. This was the first
strike in the history of the Ridgefield
Park School System.

During the Gibbs Administration,
other improvements were made
including the erection of the
Ambulance Corps and Special Police
Headquarters in Brewster Park. With
the closing of Palisade Amusement
Park in 1971, the Village obtained
several of the lights which were
installed in Veterans Park to permit
the use of the park in the evening.

The 1972 Commissioners election
saw eleven candidates vying for the
five seats, 45% of the voters went to
the polls and returned Gibbs, Mcintyre,
Perna, DelLuca and Johnson to office.
Louis Perna had earlier replaced John
Davis who had resigned. After the
election Ben Deluca moved from
Ridgefield Park and his place was
taken by Leroy Schrumpf.

The man who had been largely
responsible for the building of the new
high school in Ridgefield Park,
Superintendent Erwin Arbo, who began
his career in Ridgefield Park as high
school principal in 1959 and would
later become superintendent, resigned
in 1972 to accept a position in South
Jersey. The principal of the high
school, Fred Scherer, was appointed as
acting superintendent. George Kane,
the vice-principal of the high school,
was named principal

America's entry into the conflict in
Vietnam began on a small scale in the
early 1960's, By Lyndon Johnson's
term as President in the mid 60's, the
conflict had grown and once again
young men from Ridgefield Park
answered the call. And yet, this time it
was different. There were no mass

marches and patriotic celebrations. In
the end, it seemed the conflict did not
satisfy much Eight young men from
our Village gave their lives
country Again, Ridgetield Park had
contributed. Again, our young men
died for America

In November, 1972, contracts
totalling over $149,000 were granted
to provide renovations and additions to
the Municipal Building, the first real
changes to take place since it was first
erected in 1910. Also in 1972, the age
for entry into the Ridgefield Park
Volunteer Fire Department was
dropped from 21 to 18 in an effort to
attract more volunteers. In 1974 plans
were announced for the development
of a Municipal Swimming Pool and
over 400 membership deposits were
received. Also in 1974, women were
admitted to the Dr. Knox Volunteer
Ambulance Corps. for the first time in
the history. In 1975 the Village dump
was closed and all refuse had to
be transported to the county dump
site. Over the objections of many
residents, a new traffic code was
adopted in 1975 which provided for
many one-way streets and established
certain parking regulations. Fellowship
Park was dedicated in 1975, on the
site of the old high school, and was
named Fellowship Park in honor of the
Masons/Knights of Columbus annual
softball game which had begun in
1925. One of the Village's most
famous residents, Ozzie Nelson, passed
away in 1975.

Residents of Ridgefield Park
participated actively in the Bicentennial
celebration in 1976. Among the
Bicentennial activities was an unveiling
of a series of pictures of Ridgefield
Park from the early 1900's. These
pictures are located in the Palisade
Savings and Loan Association building

far the

November, 1958. Within a year, commuter service on the "West Shore" will be gone The two center :
through trains have been torn up. Now a single track runs along the old West Shore route and a single track also serves the

Susquehanna. (Ray Humphrey photo)
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What we celebrate in the year 1985
is more than the observance of Joris
Brinkerhoil's buliding the first home in
Ridgefield Park, although this is the
particular event which gives rise to
celebration. We celebrate a community
and we celebrate its people. There is
something about Ridgefield Park which
makes us just a little bit different from
other communities. Men like the late
Frank Morrison and the late Hip
Murphy, whose efforts made possible
much of the information that goes into
this haok. Without Marrisan and
without Murphy, this book would have
been impossible, but there is more A
number of interviews were conducted
with long term Village residents.
Analyzing these different interviews,
one comes up with the same
conclusion, because each of the

Two of of our older citizens who attended the Fifty Plus reception at the Elks Lodge on July 28
On the right is Tecla Jensen Bayer who lives at 65 Bergen Avenue, and her sister Jasephine
Jensen Koch of 138 Cedar Street. Village residents for over 80 years.

on Main Street
In 1976 the Village ended a seven
year dispute with the State of New
Jersey regarding awnership of the
marshland property adjacent to the
Overpeck Creek. The Village retained
title to the property and benefited
financially. This area is now the site of
the present Hartz Mountain
development. The traffic ordinance
referred to earlier had generated a
great deal of opposition from Village
residents. A petition was presented to
the Board of Commissioners asking
that the matter be put on the ballot. In
November 1977 the traffic
ordinance question in an advisory
fashion was voted upon by the people
The people indicated the desire for
revisions. Although the one-way streets
were not changed, there were a
number of revisions made to the
ordinance to meet some of the
objections which had been raised. The
proposal by the Board of
Commissioners to develop more park
land in the northeast section of the
Village, a thirteen acre tract commonly
called “The Woods," was met by
opposition by those residents who
wished to see ths

rea preserved as a
nature preserve and by other residents
who felt the area ought to be left
alone

The 1980 Commissioners olecti n
saw a record breaking numt
candidates enter the field
17 vied for the spots. The
chose fram a number of diffe
tickets and an independent to se

48% of the voters chose Edward
Alberque, Fred Criscuolo, John Davl
Louis Perna and John Anlian. Alberqus

was a member of one ticket Criscuolo,
Davis and Perna another ticket and
Anlian was an Independent After the

election, the five commissioners chose
Fred Criscuolo to be the mayor. A
principal activity of this new board of
commissioners was the negatiation of
the development of the Overpeck
meadow property with Hartz Mountain
Industries, In November 1983,
members of the Ridgefield Park
Education Association conducted a
strike. This was the longest and
costliest strike in the history of the
Village school system. At its
conclusion, a two-year contract was
agreed upon

The voters seemed satisfied with the
administration elected in 1980. The
1984 election saw four of the
incumbent commissioners joined
together to form a ticket to seek
reelection. Mayor Criscuolo,
Commissioners Anlian, Alberque and
Davis were joined by George Fosdick
and this five man group was a
successful ticket in a field of seven
candidates,

Of necessity, this history of
Ridgefield Park has been limited in
scope. What started out to be an
ambitious research project has turned
into a general overview of the
community. It simply would not be
possible, within the confines of this
boak, to provide a detailed history of
each of the organizations, events and
activities that have taken place. For
¢xample, former Fire Chief Louis
ler, in compiling just a history of
of the fire companies, Hook and

1 1, has already prepared over

W0 pages of history. We have wanted

t wok to Include an overview as

5 many of the pictures because,
as they say, pictures are worth a
thousand words, Much of the research
that went into the preparation of this
book can be found in the Public

interviews brought forth the same
comments and the same spirit
Ridgefield Park was and is a friendly
town. Ridgefield Park was and is a
close-knit town. Ridgefield Park was
and is a community that recognizes
and attempts to deal with its problems.
Ridgefield Park was and is a
community that is proud of its
heritage. Mayor Gibbs tells the story
about the Bar Mitzvah for the son of
Rabbi Mendelowitz. Rabbi Mendelowitz
approached Father Coyle, Pastor of St
Francis Church, and asked if St.
Francis Gymnasium could be used for
the Bar Mitzvah At that particulas
time, St. Francis was holding its annual
play, and the gym was unavailable.
However, Father Coyle made one
phone call and the K of C Hall was
made available to Rabbi Mendelowitz
for the Bar Mitzvah of his son. This
kind of thing happens over and over
again, in many different ways. The
people of Ridgefield Park have always
extended themselves to be of service
and help to their neighbors. In
comparison to other communities in
Bergen County, Ridgefield Park is an
old town, but it still remains young in
spirit and young in hope. Older
residents have passed on or moved
away, but in its place younger
residents have come and with them
they have brought the hope for the
future.



s The 1927 Book commemorating the opening of the new Railroad Station, “RIDGEFIFLD) PARK  BERGEN COUNTY'S
* MOST MODERN COMMUNITY" by George L. Albig, contains a directory of all clubs and organzations active n the
b communtiy at that time. Many of these groups are still active, while others have passed aut af euistence There were many
\ activities avallable to Ridgefield Park residents in 1927,
BERGEN COUNTY'S MOST MODERN COMMUNITY
ORGANIZATION DIRECTORY
LOCATION OF MEETING HALLS
\ B. P O ELKS, Spruce Ave and Cedar St
JUNIOR ORDER CLUB, Winant and Ridgefield Aves
KENIGHTS OF COLUMBUS, Bergen Ave and Park St
MASONIC TEMPLE, Muim and Hobart Sty
MUNICIPAL BUILDING, Mam and Park Sts
VASA HALL, Central Ave and Sixth St
HOSE CO No Nii Mt Vernon St near Muain St
OVERPECK FIRE HOUSE (HOSE CO No 2), Euchd Ave and Brinkerhoff St
WEST \’[‘;E\\' FIRE HOUSE (HOSE €O Nu 3), Hackensack Ave, bet Lincoln and Paulison
Anies
HAZELTON FIRE HOUSE (H. & L Nuo 2), Hazelton 5t near Roosevelt Ave
BAPTIST CHURCH, Euchd Ave and Hobarr St
METHODIST CHURCH, 60 Cedar, near Main 5t
NEIGHBORHOOD CHURCH, Arthur siear Main St
PARISH HALL, EPISCOPAL CHURCH, Preston St. ber Enchid and Hudson Aves
PRESBYTERIAN CHURCH, Euclid Ave and Poplar St
ST FRANCIS CHURCH, Bergen Ave and Mt Vernon 5t
UNION COMMUNITY CHURCH, Ewhd Ave and Parl; 5t
AMERICAN LEGION ”l’fh'-._r-- !-'\JIJF' Rev. Theadure Brincker-
Ridgefield Park Post No. 40. hotf, Asst Guide, Henry Moody, Ass't
Ohrganized in 1919 satly 40 members Guide, Ernest Sandri, Sachem. Kenneth
Wemiees 103 — 48 Fishee, Treasurcr, Ernest Sandri, Secre-
Meets First and Third Tuesdsys, 8 P M tary, Henry Moody, 86 Sixth St
93 Summat Street ? B & TERIC
Ofheers.  Commander, Walter M Schirra, G SOOUET O ANMERICA
Sr.. Vice-Commander, William H Hun Ridgefield Park Troop No, 1
ter, Jr _Fm.uu e l_'\l'i'm_r, IJ.l.f--l-]I A Organized September, 1909, with 20 mem-
Meixcll: Secretary, Samuel R Esdler, 28 bers
Sumimit Strect Menmbers, 1927 45
THE ASSOCIATION OF EXEMPT FIRE hitee ity Mt SO0 S s Bap.
MEN OF RIDGEFIELD PARK Officers  Scoutmaster and Deputy Scout
Orpganized Apnl 16, 1907, with 16 mem Commissioner, Neil P Munroe. Ass't
Cre Scoutmasters, Wm E Mehnert, Jos. C
| Number of members 1927—134 Watson, Jr, Douglas Murray., Kenneth
. Mecet First Monday of each month, 815 13 L Dauhert. Treasurer, Douglas Murray:
M Mo definite hall Al fire houses Seout Herbe, Joseph € Watson, Jr
and Mumcipal Bulding used
Officers  President, Loms A Eucker, Vice Ridgefield Park Troop No. 2
resident, Frank Haommell, Treasurer, N . . A = -
[ 1 ] o Orpamized August, 1915, with | member
Charles E  Thael, Finance -“fcn.lrt-l'_\'. Merhers, 192726
](.'runu.' Fisher, Recording ‘h;.'urcl-i"&’. WERE Euwr Bdday, 730 B0 M- Knights
George ] Smuth, 114 Umon Place ol Colvmbus Hall
BOY RANGERS OF AMERICA 'J’rjw-* wESdimusey, E"’r;l Gk -‘\{be;jue.
", T.od No. 325 T Asst ﬁnllt!'_ngs[cr&, rank J ! ur-
1 Olﬂf:i't'dn-’\ug 11. 1925, with 11 membets ray, lr, John Ot, Thomas L Walsh;
r Mer;ahc:_; I‘Jl"——l'l-’ LS T"”'p f_".n_lnnr:!h'r, Fr:r_!k A _Mcnrnmn,
- Meet E\-”Ely Friday Afternoon, 430 P. M qu ]':‘-‘h" 2 Q?I‘Kii”n' f'!n}r‘\kg Murry,
Neighborhood Reform Church '] 't_,“”l Scribe, Josep wyer, §21
Officers Guide, Rev Theodore Brincker Third Strect
¢ hofl, Act Guide, John Pink, Ass't Guide, .
oy illiam Toree Sachem. Robert Rouge: Ridgeficld Park Troop No. 3
2 Trousurer, Benckt:  Sundr;  Secretary, lh_f‘l‘lru.'.{u:cd 11\«:[;\.\?'. 1;5-:;’_6_ with 15 memhbers
. . A 8 < Strect eimbers, W4 F3
= A BAODRY B0 St Btee Meet Every Friday, 8 P M Neighborhaod
Lodge No. 485 Refarm Church
Orgamized Qcr 1, 1926, with 11 members. Officers:  Scoutmaster, W Pierson Sohr
Members, 1927—29 Ass't Scoutmaster, L H Tallman Chair
Meet Every Fruday, 715 P M Nayghbor- man, Troop Committee, C M Chapman,
hood Refarm Church 80 North Avenue, Bogota
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Ridgefield Park Troop No. 4

Organized 1916 with 10 members

Members, 1927—10

Meet Every Frday, 8 P. M Pansh Hall,
Episcopal Church

Officers  Scoutmaster, Willium H  Zuun,
Ass't Scoutmasters, George Mahon, Wes-
ley Lowe. Scout Scnbe, Jack Perry, 186
Overpeck Ave

Ridgefield Park Troop No. 6

Orgamized 1916 with 12 members

Members, 1927—125

Mect Every Friday 745 P M. Methodist
Church

Officers  Scoutmaster, John D Easterhin,
Ass’t Scoutmasters, Willam € Schlag,
Harold A McElroy, William Henning,
Ralph  Jones; Sccretary, Willam C
Schlag, 55 Grove Street

Ridgefield Park Troop No. 7

Organmized November 1916

Members, 1927--20

Meet Every Friday, 745 P. M Preshy-
terian Church

Officers  Scoutmaster, D M Waesche,
Asst Scoutmasters, H E. Ewing, D F
Schelberg, Scout Scribe, D. F Schelberg,
16 Rooscvelt Avenue

RIDGEFIELD PARK

Masonic TemprLe
Main and Hobart Sts

B P O. ELKS
Ridgefield Park Lodge No. 1506
Organized June 20, 1925 wath 1000 mem-

55

Members, 1927—425

Mect First and Third Wednesdays, 8 31 P
M Vasa Hall until new home is hrished

Officers Exalted Ruler, William H Driver,
Estcemed Leading Kright, Loms E La
Tuur; Estcemed Loyal Knight, Chifton A
Orcutt, Treasurer, Charles W Carlson;
Secretary, ] E Williams, 71 Park Street

CAMP FIRE GIRLS

Okiyuskin Group.

Orgamized December 1924 wich 7 members

Members, 1927—10

Mcet Every Fniday, 4 P M Union Com-
munity Church

Officers  Guardian, M Erb.  Presdent,
Margret Biler Vice-president, Ewvelyn
Willlams Treasurer, Viola Henschel Sec-
retary  Eleanor Miller, 165 Teancek Rd

Elunota Group.

Organized December 1925 with 7 menibers

Members, 192721

Meet Every Wednesday, 4 P M Umun
Community Church

Offcers Guardian, M Erb. Presadent
Alice Jane, Vice-president, Evelyn Rich;
Treasurer, Dons Walker, Secretary,
Evelyn Randall, §0 Chestnut St

Litseard J. Alguirt, Builidcr

-
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Wiin. F. Penncll and Lowss J Latzto, Associate Architects

Ldward J. Alguise, Builder

Evrs Lonce anp Crun House
Spruce Ave and Cedar St.

Minowe Group.

Orgamized 1923 with 20 members.

Members, 1927—10

Meet Every Wednesday, 330 P M. Meth-
odist Church

Officers Guardian, Beatrice Fox, President,

Mildred Harwell, Treasurer, Ida Deyo,

Seccretary, Geneva Arwidson, 37 Third
Street

Helomala Group.

Qrganized May, 1926, wuh 6 members

Members, 1927—10

Meet every Tuesday, 345 P. M, Mectho
dist Church

Officers Guardian, Gertrude A, Outwa-
ter; Ass't Guardian, Ruth W. Pearece;
Treasurer, Esther Olson, Secretary,
Eunice Spillane, 64 Overpeck Ave

COMMUNITY LEAGUE FOR WOMEN
Orgamized Junc 24, 1918, wath 35 members
Members 1927—130
Meet third Monday of each wonth, 815
P M, at the homes of members of the
Board of Directors

Officers  President, Miss Hartense Hanky,
VicePresident, Mrs. E. B Lane, Treas:
urer, Miss Elizabeth Marshall, Seeretary,
Mrs. L C MacNutt, 71 Grand Ave

DAUGHTERS OF AMERICA
Pride of Overpeck Council No. 3.

Orgamzed 1918, with 28 mewhers
Members, 1927 —1126

Meet second and fourth Tuesdays, 8 P. M,
Junror Order Club

Officers Councilar, Flarence E. Woolsey;
Ass't Counailor, Alice G Steigler, Vice-
Councilor, Dons  Mather, Treasurer,
George van DeMark, Recording Secre-
tary, Carolyn A Hanng, 20§ Preston St

EIALIC-'HTERE.\ OF THE BRITISH EM
RE

Dover Patrol Chapter.

Orgamized Aprl 4, 1922, wich 10 members

Members, 1927—16

Mcet third Monday cach month, 230
P M, members homes

Officers: Regent, Anmie L Chalmers; Vice-
Regent, Ada A Wyss, Treasurer, Jean
Handling: Sccretary, Agnes M. Moody,
56 Sixth Street

DAUGHTERS OF SCOTIA

Lady Douglas Lodge No. 83.

Organized Avgust 16, 1918, with 28 mem-
bers

Menmbers, 1927—34

Meet second and third Thursdays, B 0D
P M. Hall, Ridgefield Reformed
Church, Ridgefeld

Ofhcers: Chiel Duughter, Elizabeth Arneil;
Sub-Chicf Daughrer, Mary Gral, Treas
urer, Jessie Tetley, Secretary, Anne F
Camphell, 128 Edwin St




“RIDGEFIELD PARK-BERGEN COUNTY'S MOST MODERN COMMUNITY”

George L. Albig, 1927

DEGREE OF FOCAHONTAS

Massapequa Council No. 130.

Organized 1925, wath 96 members

Members, 1927—105

Meet second and fourth Mondays, 8.00
P M, Junier Order Hall

Officers: Pocahontas, Carolyn Huels, We
nonah, Mae Steinberg, Prophetess, Mary
Clements, Powhatan, Hennetta Mavus,
Keeper of Wampum, Belle Henry, Keep
er of Records, Helen Huels, 338 Teaneck
Ruoad

FREE AND ACCEPTED MASONS

Mosaic Lodge No. 194,

Organized June, 1910, with 26 members

Members, 1927—184

Meet first and third Thursdays, 800 P M ,
Masonic Temple.

Officers: Master, Fredenick Schwenck; Se
mor Warden, Edward O Dixon, Jumor
Warden, Alfred T Flach. Treasurer,
William B Barnett, Secrctary, Robert A
Stuke, P. O Box 205, River Edge, N ]

HOLY NAME SOCIETY

St. Francis Church.

Organized 1902, with 12 members

Members, 1927—400

Meet first Monday after second Sunday of
cach month, 815 P M, in the church
auditorium

Officers  Presidene, William | Morrson,
Jr.: Treasurer, Joseph Collins; Marshal,
Robert Crumm; Secretary, Roswell Fr-
chette, 104 Arthur St

RIDGEFIELD PARK

JUNIOR ORDER UNITED AMERICAN
MECHANICS

Overpeck Council Nn. 314,

Orgamized 1913, with 63 members

Members, 1927—400

Meet second and fourth Thursdays, 800
P M, Jumor Order Club

Oflicers Councilor, HMarry Chatterton,
Vice:Councilor, E Stephens, Jumor
Past Councilar, E R Marsiho, Treas-
urer, George 5 Van DeMark, Secretary,
Juhn E McLeester, 64 Grand Ave,
North Hackensack, N |

JUNIOR ORDER CLUB OF RIDGEFIELD
PARK

Organized 1923, with 174 members

Members, 1917 —392

Meet third Friday of each month, 81§
P M, Jumur Order Club

Officers  President, F W Roberts; Vice
President, William  Beliez. Treasurer,
George 5. Van DeMark, Secretary, C. L
George, 50 Hille Place

KNIGHTS OF COLUMDBLIS

Phil Sheridan Council No. 2229.

Orgamzed 1921, with 95 members

Members, 1927 —300

Meet frst and third Tuesdays, 830 P. M,
Krights of Columbus Bulding

Cfficers Grand Kmght, Joseph A Cenna
Deputy Grand Kmight, Edward T. Fin-
neran, Treasurer, Harry Compa.  Re-
corder, Walter McHugh, 73 Central Ave

ExtGHTs or Cotumsus Hato
Berzen Ave and Park St
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Jurior Ornre Coun Housy
Winant and Ridgeficld Aves

LADIES OF THE G A R.

Col. Theo, Roosevelt Circle No. 50.

Orgamized June 15, 1920, wicth 15 mem
bers

Members, 1927—21

Meet second and fourth Fndays, 800

P. M Overpeck Firchouse.

Ofpcers  President, Aunna Schacller, Sr
Vice-President,  Ehizabeth  Sullivan, Jr
Vice-President, Kate Atken, Treasurer,
Louise Watson, Secretary, Hattie Ferry,
64 Park 5t

LADY FORESTERS OF AMERICA

Star of Unity No. 41.

Organized April 20, 1924, with §7 mem-
bers.

Members, 1927—114

Meet second and fourth Wednesdays, 8 30
P M, Overpeck Firchouse

Officers  Deputy, Mrs E  Muller, Com-
mander, Mrs E Solheim; Sub-Comman-
der, Mes L Waed, Treasucer, Mes S
Orth; Financial Secretary, Mrs L. Chat-
terton, 16 Edison St

LADIES VILLAGE IMPROVEMENT AS.
SOCIATION
Orgamzcd August 28, 1900, with 45 mem-
Ers.
Members, 1927—60.
Meet second Wednesday each month, 230
P. M, Municipal Building.
Officers President, Mrs. John Porter. Vice-
President, Mrs. Wm  Schelberg, Corre-
sponding Secretary, Mrs. Carl Fleisch-

man, Recording Secretary, Mrs N H.
Jocelyn, 119 Brinkerhoff St

MASONIC CLUB OF RIDGEFIELD PARK.
Orpanized 1910, with 30 members
Members, 1927—250
Meet second and fourth Fridays, 815
P M, Masonic Temple

Officers President, Alfred F Fleischmann;
VicePresident, C Graham Younp; Treas-
urer, Charles L. Pearce; Secretary, L Roy
Blukeslee, 38 Roosevelt Ave

MODERN WOODMEN OF AMERICA
Ridgefield Park Camp No. 12,498.
Orgarized March, 1907, with 17 members
Members, 1927—106
Meet second Wedrnesday of each month,
B P M, Jumor Order Club

Officers: Venerable Consul, Wm Getz; Ad
visor, Alfred Olsen; Banker, H ]. Dex-
ter; Clerk, Frank P Bell, 62 Hazelton St

ORDER OF THE DE MOLAY

Nathan Hale Chapter.

Organized Apnl 18, 1927, with 62 mem-
bers

Meinbers, 1927—62

Mcet fiest and third Mondays, 8 P. M,
Masonic Temple

Officers Adwvisor or Dad, Horace W. Yar-
rngton, Master Counaillor, Calvin G R
Olhlsen; Sentor Councilor, William Kern;
Junior Councilor, A 1 Mehrhol, Treas-
urer, Kenneth Lloyd, Scribe, Howard
Watt, 37 Eightk St.

“RIDGEFIELD PARK-BERGEN COUNTY'S MOST MODEEN COMMUNITY"
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RIDGEFIELD PARK

ORDER OF THE EASTERN STAR

Naomi Chapter No. 28.

Orgapized 1905, with 21 members

Members, 1927—351.

Meet frst and third Tuesdays, 7.30 P. M.,
Masonie Temple

Ofhecers: Worthy Matrun, Mae F. Young;
Worthy Patron, Dawid Hardie, Asso
crate Matron, Margaret Hardie, Treas-
urer, Margaret Jursch, Scerctary, Ida |
Stoerzer, 44 Union Place

ORDER OF SCOTTISH CLANS

Clan Douglas No. 243,

Organized March 4, 1218, with 27 mem-
bers

Members, 1927—46

Meet first and third Wednesdays, B.1F,
Junior Order Club

Officers:  Chief, Douglas Murray, Past
Chiel, Robert Arncil; Tanist, Robert
Watt, Treasurer, Walton Carron, Sec-
retary, Alex, Kerr, 13 Oak St

ORDER OF VASA

Lodge Orn No. 284.

Organized' 1914, with 17 members

Members, 1927—170

Meet second and fourth Wednesdays, 8 00
P. M., Vasa Hall.

Oﬁrers Districe Master, ]npcmnr Ander-
son; President, Algot Anderson; Vice-
President, Chas. Nelson; Treasurer, A T
Sandin, Recording Secrctury, Chas John-
son, B2 North Ave., Bogota,

OVERPECK BOAT CLUB

Organized August 25, 1910, with 8 mem-
bers

Mcmbers, 1927—61,

Meet «ccond Wednesday of each month,
$.3 P M, Ovc:pc(k Boat Cluh

Officers: Commodore, Benjamin  Ander-
son; Vice:Commodore, Michacl Nealon,
Treasurcr, Fred Effler, Recording Sce-
retary, Thomas E. A Connolly, Over-
peck Boat Club, Bergen Pike

PARENT-TEACHERS ASSOCIATION

Grant Unit.

Orgamized Apnl 22, 1921, with 71 mcm-
bers

Members, 1927—110

Meet sccond Thursday of ecach month,
8.13, Grant School

Offcers: President, Sadie Rich, Vice-Presi-
dent, John Robertson; Treasurer, Miss L
Mergler, Seccretary, Carne Orth, 17
Main St

High School Unit

Organized Apnl 21, 1921, no record of
charter members

Members, 1927—153.

Meet third Monday of cach month, 515
P. M., High Schouol

Officers. President, Myra  Hargraves;
Treasurer, Miss Ruth Scribner; Secre-
tary, Mrs. R Cromus, 114 Edwin St

Vasa HavLv
Central Ave and Sixth St
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Lincoln Unirt.

Organized 1921, wath 200 members

Members, 1927—230

Muet secund Monday of cach month, § 1§
P M., Lincoln School

Officers  President, Helen § Wroight, Viee
Pressdent, Thercsa M Huber, Treasurer,
Homer ] Staley.  Secretury, Bernice
Stuups, 245 Main St

Roosevelt Unit.

Orgamzed September, 1922 No record of
charter members

Mombers, 1927 420

Neet fourth Munday of each month, 815
P M, Ruowevelt School

Officers  Presdent, M= F 1" Darte Viee
President, | O Appler: Treasurer, Edia
Tanes: Secretary, Frances U Plice, 48
(Gordon St

Washington-Trving Unir.

Orgamzed an 1922 No record of charter
members

Meihers, 1927—225

Meet first Monday of cach mionth, 8 ' M,
Hn‘;.'n’r Schaal

Othcers  Preadent, P E Katz Treasurer,
Mrs Euyre Secrctary, Miss Powcllson,
Washington-leving School

PHIL SHERIDAN K. OF C BUILDING
ASSOCIATION AUXILIARY
Organized 1925, with 25 nember-
Members, 1927—75
Meet first and third Mondays, 830 P M,
Krights of Columbus Hall
Officers  President, Mrs Thos | Hateh-
man: Vice President, Miss A Marcus
Treasurer, Mrs | Higgins. Recording
Secretary, Mrs R Frisca, 121 Gurdon
Street

PINE TENNIS CLUB

Organized 1908, with 12 mcmbers

Members, 1927-—102

Meet second Tuesday of cach month, 8 00
P M, Pine Tenmis Club

(fhcers  President, FE Browne: Vice
Preadent, E G Higgns:  Treisurer,
Wi H Zaun. Captain, George W
Schoepps. Secretury, Paul Hellernan, 25
Seventh St

RIDGEFIELD PARK FIREMEN'S RELIEF
ASSOCIATION
Ohrpanized 1902 _
Members, 1927—all active firemen of all
conpanies (whout 150)
Meet guarterly, March, June, September,
December, Mumecipal Building
Officers  President, Thos W Cashmin.
Vice:-President, George L Howe. Treas:
urer, George | Smuth, Secretary, Jerume
Fisher, 384 Main St

RIDGEFIELD PARK GARDEN CLUB

Organized 1925, with 15 members,
Members, 1937—110

BERGEN COUNTY'S MOST MODERN f'_:('i.\‘IML.lNl-TY

Mect second \\’n.!lu-.gl,.\' ol ecach nnml'l\_
830 P M, Muniaipal Bulding

Officers  Preadent, M © L Northrop,
Vice-President, Wm Windecker, Treas
wrer, © ] Fleseliman, Secretary, Mrs
N H Jocelyn, 119 Brinkerhoff St

RIDGEFIELD PARK HEBREW ASS'N
Orpanized 1919, with 30 miembers
Mcmbers, 1927—40
Meet biest and third Thursdays, 900 P. M
Ridpcheld  Park  Hebhrew  Association
Hinlding

Officers  Preadent, Ben Corn. Vice-Presi
dent, Henry Cohen. Treasurer, L Bres
low. Beeretiury, ] L Sunders, 440 Tea-
l‘l\L RI‘-‘LJ

RIDGEFTELD PARK KIWANIS CLUB
Ohirganized 1923, with 30 members
Mcmbers, 1927—22
Meet every Thursday 1215 noon, Wahr
mani’s Restaurant

Officers  President, Jesse T Ewing, Vice
'ressdent, H D Baun, District Trustee,
Fred 1 Stork: Treasurer, Emil Gehm,
Secrctary, Edward Herzog, 65 Park St
RIDGEFIELD PARK MAENNERCHOR
Ohrgamzed June 14, 1899, with 11 members
Menibers, 1927—a0
Meet every Tuesday, 830 P M, Arm-
»lll-llL:.ﬁ Hlitl‘1

Officers.  Preaadent, Henry Foerster, Vice
President, Fred Dusterberger, Treasurer,
John Erdinann, Corresponding Secretary,
Charles Seciler, Fairview Ave, Bogota
RIDGEFIELD PARK ROTARY CLUB
Organized Apnl, 1921, with 15 members
Members, 192735
Meet every Tuesday, 12 v'clock noon, Blue
Bird Inn, Teancck

Officers President, George A Wall, Vice
President, | O Appler, Treasurer, Sid-
ney R Stern: Secretary, Edward Greer,
Buguta National Bank, Bogputa
SON5S AND DAUGHTERS OF LIBERTY
Ridgefield Park Council Ne. 123,
Chrgamized Mirch 28, 1898, with 21 mem
l‘l s

Mebers, 1927 —124

Mect first and third Thursdays, 800 P. M |
Junior Order Hall

Officers Councilor, Ruth Crag; Viee
Councilur, Madehine Dulmage, Associate
Councilor, Gussie Schrompl. Treasurer,
Ellen' M Wocher, Sceretary, Cora May,
200 Cedar St

Nathan Hale Council No. 229,

Organized March 29, 1921, wath 28 mem-
bers

Members, 1927—100

Meet first and third Mondays, 800 P M
Jumor Order Hall

Officers Councailor, Mamie Phelan, Vice
Ceouncilor, Emma Hennch, Associats
Councilur, Chnstina  Jahn, Treasures
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Gertrude Jahn, Seecretary, M L Her
vieux, 40 Orchard St

STEUBEN SOCIETY OF AMERICA

Ridgefield Park Unit No. 779,

Organized October, 1923, with 30 members

Members, 1927—several hundred

Meet first and third Thursday, 815 P M,
Overpeck Firchouse

Officers Mapgistrate, Victor Houst, Coun
cillar, M Rosseck, Treasurer, John
Erdmann. Secretary, Fred Kirschner, 105
Laurel 5t

THE MEN'S CLUB OF THE FIRST PRES
BYTERAN CHURCH OF RIDGEFIELD
PARK

Organized 1911, with 21 mecmbers

Members, 1927—120

Meet first Friday of each month, 8 30 P. M,
Preshyternian Church

Officers  President, Conrad W Mergler
Vice:President, Alfred F. Fleschmann
Treasurer, Frankhin Felter, Jr |, Secretary,
Gerard L. Bory, 201 Park St

VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS

Philip J. Ford Post No. 277.

Orgamized Nowvember 21, 1920, with 50
members

Members, 1927—126

Meet hrst and thied Frdaye, 830 P M,
Municipal Building

Officers Commander, Major Charles A
Sidman, Sr. ViceCommander, Edward
Boath; Jr. Vice:Commander, Anthany
Weais; Quartermaster, Harry W, Stroh-
meyer; Adjutant (Sec ), P. F Cunning-
ham, 40 Orchard St

WIMODALUSIS CLUB
Organized Apnl 6, 1924, with 23 mem-

bers
Members, 1927—86

RIDGEFIELD PARK

Meet hirst Frday of each month, 8§30
P M, Masonic Temple

Officers Presdent, Lorena F Stich, Viee
Preadent, A Caldwell, Treasurer,
Victora H Behnnger, Secretary, Truell-
td Summel, 38 Central Ave

THE WOMAN'S CLUB OF RIDGEFIELD
PARK

Orgamized 1894—no  record of charter
members

Members, 1927--98

Meet first Wednesday of each month, 2.30
P M, Mumcipal Butlding

Officers  President, Mrs | G Dooley;
Vice Preadent, Mrs Charles A. Sidman:
Treasurer, Mrs. C B Thompson; Sec-
retary, Mre O H Stanberg, 388 Man
Street

WOMEN'S DEMOCRATIC CLUB OF
RIDGEFIELD PARK

Organized September, 1925, wath 13 mem-
hers.

Members, 1927—51

Meet second Monday of cach month, 200
P M, Mumcipal Building

Ofheers  President, Mrs A F Moran
Vice:Prestdent, Mrs Lynch: Treasurer,
Mrs Higgins:, Secretary, Mrs | Wil
liams, 119 Edwin St

WOMEN'S REPUBLICAN CLUB OF
RIDGEFIELD PARK

Orgamzed Febru oy 1, 1924, with 12 mem-
bers

Members, 1927—40

Meet first Friday of each month, 230 P M,
Municipal Building

Officers.  President, Mrs. Jerome Fisher:
Vice-Preadent, Mrs. T M. Cook, Treas-
urer, Mrs Hattie Ferry, Sceretary, Mrs
Anna Henming, 4 Fourth S
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THE RIDGEFIELD PARK HOTEL WAS ONE OF BERGEN COUNTY'S FINEST VACATION ESTABLISHMENTS. THE HOTEL
STOOD ON MT. VERNON STREET, FROM MAIN STREET TO THE RAILROAD. THE HOTEL BURNED DOWN IN 1883

THE RIDGEFIELD
PARK HOTEL

There was a time when Bergen Coun-
ty was a “vacation land,” an era that
stretched from the Civil War to the “Gay
90’s." There were advertisements for
summer guests to spend time in the coun-
ty, and railroad lines advertised special
one-day or weekend/overnight excur-
sions There was much pride in Bergen
County, as evidenced by the following
advertisement in The Bergen Democrat:

“What little sense is manifested by
rushing to Saratoga, Newport, or Long
Branch where cannot be realized a parti-
cle of enjoyment.

“How much more agreeable is the
quiet of the Ridgefield Park Hotel, or the
Palisades Mountain House in Englewood
or the Highwood Hotel in Tenafly.”

These plush hotels were set on quiet,
tree-shaded lawns with picnic grounds.
There were bandstands, carriage drive-
ways and sheds, horse and livery stables,
even private boats and launches to take
passengers into this wonderland of
pleasure. Chandeliers blazed into the
night air, sparkling over the clear water,

——

and elegant carriages filled the driveways
It was a time of galas, annual club dances,
and political rallies when pleasure was
not a spectator sport.

In this elegant surrounding stood the
Ridgefield Park Hotel on Mt. Vernon
Street from Old Hackensack Road (Main
Street) west to the Hackensack River It
was built by Abraham Bronson in 1870 at
a cost of $70,000 It was 260 feet long
and six stories high There were en-
trances on Mt Vernon Street, Old
Hackensack Road, and Park Street
(there was no Grove Street then).

Mr. Bronson described his hotel in an
advertisement as follows:

“The new and elegant hotel opened on
May 15, 1870, for the reception of
boarders It is situated in Ridgefield Park
on the Midland Railroad, about ten miles
from New York.

“Ridgefield Park is one of the finest
suburban locations in the neighborhood
of New York, possessing all the requisites
for a pleasant residence during the sum-
mer months. The building is new, and
was built expressly for a summer hotel. It
contains all the modern improvements —
billiard rooms, bath rooms, gas, splendid

rn\\‘
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wide piazza, large croquet grounds, mag-
nificent grove, bathing and boating in the
Hackensack River."

As many hotels of that era, the
Ridgefield Park Hotel was an American
Plan Hotel, hence the price of food was
not listed but the wines were. Old Bour-
bon whiskey was $2 a quart and East In-
dia Pale Ale was forty cents a quart

Some time after 1875 the elegant hotel
fell upon bad times and was sold to a Mrs
Bulman for $23,000. As it was being
remodeled in August 1883, it caught fire
and was totally demolished The fire
equipment and manpower in that day
were such that the volunteer firemen
could only stand and watch the building
burn.

The great hotels of that era are long
gone, and with them a way of life, forto a
great many people they were more than
places of pleasure and travel For some
they were all they had in the way of home
and family life. How nice it must have
been to be a part of Ridgefield F
those golden days before the turn of the
century, the likes of which will never be
seen again.
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THE TOLL GATE AT RIDGEFIELD, BEFORE CROSSING THE OVERPECK CREEK INTO SOUTHERN RIDGEFIELD
PARK. NOW THE SITE OF INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AND A TWO LANE VEHICULAR BRIDGE.

THE BERGEN TURNPIKE

During the 19th Century, America
was a quieter and a more complacent
place to live The time from 1865 until
1900 has often been referred to as the
"Age of Innocence." Here in Ridaefield
Park, however, sometimes tempers

flared over things which are taken for
granted today. There was anager and
there were protests. One source for anaer
was the collecting of tolls on the Bergen
Turnpike

This road was established in 1660 as a
free road coming from Communipaw in

Jersey City It was exterided in 1718 to
Weehawken and became part of the Ber-
gen Turnpike in 1802 In that year the
Bergen Turnpike Company was estah
lished. The purpose was to construct a
road from Hackensack to Hoboken. At

their meeting, the Commissioners,
Aaron Kitchel, John N Cuming and
William Colfax, decided that said road
shall strike the Overpeck where it empties
into the Hackensack River This road
shall be 4 rods wide (662 feet) There
shall be four tollgates as follows:

One 4t Farview (Dan Kelly's Hotel);
the second at Ridgefield (the bridge
across the Overpeck), the third at the
bridge to Little Ferry; and the fourth in
Hackensack opposite the New York City
Lemetery.

The toll rates to be established were:
one-horse drawn wagon $ 05; one cart
% 05, one carriage $.05; two-horse
drawn cart $.10, two-horse drawn car-
riage $.10

The Bergen Turnpike Company con-
tinued to charge farmers and others who

used this road through the years. Even-
tually people started to resent paying
these fees, even though they knew the
turnpike was a private road Ata meeting
of the Bergen County Freeholders in
1898, A.J. Rodman, a Freeholder from
Overpeck (Ridgefield Park), finally raised
his voice in anger over the tolls collected
on the Bergen Turnpike. He was op-
posed to paying said tolls. The minutes of
the meeting show he called the turnpike a
relic of barbarism and an incubus of op-
pression! He urged that the County take it
over and put an end to this toll system.
Many people agreed with Mr. Rodman,
but the turnpike still had a few more years
to go. The County, however, did take the
road over in 1912 and abolished the toll
system in 1915.



THE UNWRITTEN HISTORY OF
RIDGEFIELD PARK
(NOW WRITTEN BY HERB
WATSON)

Long before our historians, Morrison, Murphy,
and Fosdick took their quills in hand, there was
a trail blazed across the south end of Ridgefield
Park along the Overpeck Creek. The Ho-bo-ken
Indians and the Hack-en-sack Tribe used the trail
to swap their fish and corn. When the white man
came, he saw great possibilities in the trail. He
said, “"we will make it a good road and charge
people to use it. We will put poles across and
call them pikes, and they shall be turned for
passing when the toll is paid.” Thus was born
our first turnpike. We now had a man-made
southern border. Later, trolley cars clanged
along it and boat clubs were built on the river
banks. Then the railroad decided to lay track on
the west side, not one, but two. They really
doubled with their spades. Now our western
border was man-made.

Nothing happened for a long while until the
Trentonians took a look at our little peninsula
and said, "It is good, we can build bridges and
put Route 6 through there and cut off the
bottom of their town." Later, a good mayor had
part of it sewed back on by getting the
Trentonians to build a by-pass under Route 6
(46). This did not stop them so they decided
that the new Turnpike (remember how it started)
should stop somewhere. So why not on Route
46 in beautiful downtown Ridgefield Park. Three
more bridges did the job at that time (but don’t
try to count them now).

Then Public Service decided to build a power
plant. They said, “You look good to us, but you
are not big enough for us, so we will hide away
in a corner of your neighbor’s yard where they
won't see us and you folks can have the
pleasure of our company." The good mayor
said, “Too bad, but if you do, give us your front
side to look at and not your backside. “O.K.",
they agree “‘and we will light up your beautiful
creek with our power."

The Trentonians never took their eyes off
good old Ridgefield Park. “Why not,” they said,
“build Route 80 across the north end of
Ridgefield Park. We will put in a big hole and

they may never see it."" The good mayer said,
“Nay, give us not all of Route 80, put some in
someone else's yard." So Bogota and Teaneck
share in this “holesome" venture. Now our
northern border was man-made, with some of
Bogota in Ridgefield Park and part of Ridgefield
Park in Bogota, and the Grand Canyon of
Bergen County in all three towns.

The natives looked over what was left of their
little village, surrounded and cut up by rivers,
roads and railroads and they said, “"What next?
haven't we had enough?’ ““No,"” they agreed,
“we must have one more mile of highway." our
east side is still partly open to the creek, Can't
Trenton see that?”’ So for ten years, they cried
for one more mile. The good mayor was no
longer in office and they waited and waited.

The Trentonians were confused. They said,
“We don't know which way to head. Shall we
build it with our left hand or our right hand.”
They could not decide, so they did not hem us
in, they just hawed.

Then on the 4th of July, they saw happy
Ridgefield Park natives enjoying fireworks.
“Aha,” they whispered in fiendish glee, “We will
build the missing mile right past the park so they
can't have fireworks anymore, and maybe we
can mess up their High School site, too."

So now, folks, vou know why vou can’t leave
town without going over or under a bridge. You
have about 10 choices, or you may swim, sail,
or fly. But, be careful if you fly - our friendly
skies are united with the wings of man as we
live under Teterboro Airport. Now, we have 2
rivers that we do not use for boating, swimming,
or fishing. We have 2 railroads that we cannot
ride, unless we hop a freight. And we have
many acres of concrete that can be used very
little for local traffic. Now Bird Seed City is
using our eastern shore and many of our natives
are concerned about the traffic that will be going
from there to here and back again. So, happy
motoring - but keep your nose, eyes, and ears
closed. Pollution and decibels are part of our
lives.
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When this article was written, Mrs. Hildegard St
lebrating its Tercentennial. With permission of bo e“ .
::; tomtlneul as It appeared in the February, 1985 Issue of “Good Old Days.

NJ. & OZZIEN

by Hildegarde Tucker Cleveland
to come out, he would sit me on the front porch
with the dental pliers in his hand, showing the neigh-

.
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| REMEMbB

R. P. is Ridgefield Park — a beautitul little town
in Northern New Jersey, close in commuting distance

to New York City. —
The town fits its
name, being a penin-
sular-like ridge, bor-
dered by a wide
swamp, the Over-
peck Creek on one
side and the Hacken-
sack River on the
other.

Our father bought
our newly built
house in the upper
end of the town at
98 Edwin Street in
1910, when [ was
three years old and
my brother, LeRoy
(we called him Roy),
was ten. It was said
that Edwin Street
was one of the first
streets to be electri-
fied — in that town,
that is. Our chande-
liers were a combin-

the gas.

Daddy graduated with three de-
grees — medical, dental and phar-
macological. However, he never
did open an office or practice in
our town. Mamma said that after
buying the house he didn’t have
enough money to risk trying to
open a practice again in a strange
place. We were always told that
Daddy wanted to get Roy and me
off the “‘city streets’ and it was
enough that he was able to bring
us to live in this lovely place
where grass was green and we
didn’t have to be taken to the
park for fresh air. So, instead of
going into practice again, he took
a job with Parke Davis & Co.. lec-
turing at medical colleges on the
uses of their new drues. Tlie hig‘
gold plaster tooth which had hung
aver the door of his New York of-
fice now lay forgotten and dust
covered in the attic,

When my baby teeth were ready

R RD,

Mamma, Roy and me.
We moved to Ridgefield Park in 1910,

ation of gas and electric, both in the event that if
the electricity failed, one could always depend on

e

Tucker Cleveland was unaware that the Village would be
® of both “autlmr and Tower Press, we reprint the article In
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borhood  children
how brave | was
while he yanked the
offending member.
For this act of bray-
ery, | and any other
child with a loose
tooth and willing to
submit to the ordeal
were given i pepper-
mint patty. Whether
or not the Nelson
boys were present, |
do not know. That
was just too many
light years agao.

My father was a
failure in the eyes of
his more aftluent fa-
mily. True, he wasa
dreamer, but he was
a happy man and we
loved him dearly. He
was also frustrated in
many other things,
as an artist, world

traveler, poet, playwright, and stage director. He
even manufactured cold creams and other concoc-

tions in our basement. Once, he used some depilato-

Mamina, on her way
to be “Liberty”.

ry mess on one forearm and part
of his chest. Believe it or not, the
hair never did grow bacle. Daddy
was going to make us a fortune on
that deal, but sadly and typical of
Daddy, he forgot the formula. Ed-
ward James Tucker, M.D. was
loved and admired by many, n-
diculed by a few.

Among his admirers was the fa-
ther of Ozzie and David Nelson,
who lived around the corner. [
guess Mr. Nelson was also a frus-
trated something or other. I don't
recall what his business in life was,
but I surely can remember he and
Daddy putting together their com-
bined efforts of showmanship.
There were the “Christy Minstrels”,
a la Nelson and Tucker with Dzzie
and David and my brother Roy as
black-faced end men and Mr. Nel-
son handling the role of “Mr. I
terlocutor”, black faced alse
tle Ozzie plunked away ¢




soon-to-be-famous banjo. David and my brother
clacked their ebony “bones”. Mamma and Mrs. Nel-
son were sure to be in the cast somewhere, but I can’t

recall where.

Then came the countless performances of Gilbert

& Sullivan's operet-
tas which the two
men produced and
directed and I des-
pise to this day, I
can still see Daddy
on the floor of the
firchouse, painting
his backdrops for
the performance of
H.M.S. Pinafore on
yards and yards of
white canvas. I can
still hear the taunts
of some local brats
singsonging with
their heads through
the open window,
“*Hilda's father is a
nut.” But I didn't
care. I can still see
little Mrs. Nelson
tripping across the
stage, singing, “I'm
called little Bu ‘er-

cup, dear little Buttercup . . .”” As I remember Mrs.
Nelson in those faraway days, I seem to be reminded

of Ozzie’s wife, Harriet Hilliard.

Some of the other projects my father and Mr. Nel-

son worked on together for the
“edification” of the little town
were the tennis court and club,
Together they dug, raked, rolled
and taped the ground to set up the
court. I also seem to recall some-
thing about the starting of a boat
club, but since we never did have
anything closer to a boat than
Roy's canoe, I can't remember
much about that project.

I'm sorry I don't have any Nel-
son pictures, but who could pre-
dict the Hollywood and TV fame
of a local high school football he-
ro back in the early "20's?

And then there were the Fourth
of July parades. Every organiza-
tion made a float. Daddy always
set one up for the Sons and Daugh-
ters of Liberty, or America. He al-
ways insisted that Mamma be the

“statue’’, That was because he hired the huy wagon
and team of horses himself and draped the wagon in
his own bunting. Naturally, there was jealousy among

the women, but he suid that if someone else wanted
to be “'Liberty’, let their husbands do the work. And
so, once again would be my lovely mother, with a

white sheet draped over her shoulders, a paper crown

Daddy, in the foreground, with Mr. Nelson
on their new tennis court.

on her head, and in her hand, the fake torch. An em-

barrassed smile play-
ed across her face,
but Daddy's pipe
was clenched in his
teeth as he doggedly
drove the team.
Ashes spilled heed-
lessly over his white
duck pants but a tri-
umphant grin was
on his face, for once
again he was showing
his beautiful, blonde
young wife to the
uncaring town. My
father was twenty-
five years older than
Mamma and he re-
sented with fury
when she was mista-
ken for his daughter,
yet he surely did love
to show her off.
Daddychangedhis
theme for the 1917

war parade. This time Mamma wasa Red Cross nurse,
bending over a badly wounded soldier. The soldier

was Roy. Roy was about 17 in war time and wanted

Roy, on his way to be the
“wounded" soldier.

so badly to go “over there’’, but he was ailing even

then and Daddy wouldn’t let him
go, so he had to content himself
by donning his old and outgrown
Scout suit and lying down on a
cot in the wagon bed, swathed in
ketchup-splashed bandages.

These early recollections are
sometimes vague, but very clear in
certain recall is the thrill when Oz-
zie selected me to ride on the bar
of his bike! Not the handle bar,
mind you, but the bar itself where,
uncomfortable as it was or nnt,
you got to sit up close, cuddled
somewhat in one arm as you flew
screaming down the hill, no brakes!

Somehow, I always liked David
better than Ozzie. In fact, when [
was older, T had a real but useless
crush on him. He was far more the
attractive of the two boys, vel
somehow Ozzie had that eertain,

inexplainable charisma which drew people to him
like steel filings to a magnet. He wasmore gregarious,
hence more popular and sought after. David was old-
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er. mate reserved and quiet, Another big thrill of a
Iif'elime came when Ozzie selected you to tear down
the hill with, on his or your sled In the winter,
Barnes Estate opened a frozen field which ran down
the long ridge over the frozen sv.amp below. You

held your Flexible
Flyer up close to
your chest and sto-
mach, and with Oz-
zie’s arms around
you from behind,
you both ran and
then dropped to the
sled for a belly
whopper, you below
and Ozzie on top.
Crashing into the
frozen cattails of
the marsh below,
you were the envy of
any girl waiting. You
were the one Ozzie
chose. Also, you con-
sidered you had it
made if he select-
ed you to smash his
sled into on the way
down if he were sled-
ding alone.

Roy had a big-six
seater with footrests
on each side. It was
seldom that we squirts
got to ride on that.

Later on in high
sthool, Ozzie Nelson
became the football
hero, Captain of our
team. I can still hear
our screeches of
“Yeah! Ozzie!” as he
came frotting out on-
to the field.

The forerunner of
his Hotel New Yorker
Band in the Big Band
era was our own R. P.
High School Band. It
was a really good one,
headed up by you
know who, plunking
away on his old banja,
It was at about this
time, I guess, that he
used to come over to
our house quite a bit,
mostly to teach Roy
to play his new tenor
banjo,

On a camping trip — Roy, me,

Above:
Hackensack River.
ey Lef[.

Mamma, and Daddy.

Roy sledding — 1918.

Myself,

on Edwin Street.

It was shortly alter this that we "1“" away fro
the town. Roy died. He was just twenty-three and [,
fifteen. Roy's ailment had finally developed into tu-
hercutosis, 1t was fatal in those days. Among his ma.
ny friends who offered their blood to save him, [

can only recall the
one who did, John
Lusitana. Perhaps his
was the only one
whose blood was the
same matched type.
Mamma couldn’t
stand the memories
in the town after we
buried Roy and so we
left.

I didn't see Ozzie
again for many years,
and by that time he
was well on his way
to fame. His band
was playing at the
Hotel New Yorker
and Harriet Hilliard
was his girl singer. A
group of us had gone
over to the hotel for
dining and dancing.
Despite the Depres-
sion and fears of the
early thirties, we did
have fun times. [ sent
a note to Ozzie, ask-
ing him that if he
remembered me, to
join us at our table.
He came over and in-
troduced Harriet.
They were planning
to leave for Holly-
wood shortly. I never
heard of them again
until I saw the Ozzie
and Harriet TV show,
with their boys, Ricky
and David.

I  have often
thought that I would
like to take a trip
back to the town
someday, but now in
these twilight years
of living in Summer-
field, Florida, Ridge-
field Park is really
many moons away. #
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Looking back over the years | recall it
was on October 1st, 1884, that | saw
Ridgefield Park for the first time. The
town in those days did not resemble that
of today in any way except in one particu
lar, that being the two railroads and sta-
tions which were located on the same
sites now occupied by the present
buildings.

In those days Ridgefield Park was a
farming section with a population of less
than 100 persons. There were no im-
proved streets. No sidewalks or street
lights. It was a favorite pastime for the
small boys, during the winter months, to
meet their returning fathers at the rail-
road stations after sundown and guide
them home by lantern light.

Trains of the West Shore Railroad,
then known as the New York West Shore
and Buffalo, made no stops at either of
the stations. Person wishing to use this
line would travel as far as Little Ferry
Junction by the Susquehanna and there
transfer for points on the other railroad.

Before the days of rural free delivery
and having no post office in town it was
necessary to use the Little Ferry office,
which was the nearest, then located in the
building since known as the Seven Mile
House (this building burned last month)
just across the bridge and then used as a
general store,

There was no public school and the
children of school age attended the dis-
trict school in Teaneck then situated on
the Fort Lee Road just east of Teaneck
Road.

When the urge for a local school be-
came so great about a year later a meet-
ing of citizens was called for the purpose
of planning for what has since become the
school system. The only room in town
large enough te hold such a gathering was
the waiting room in the Ridgefield Park
railroad station. Plans were made there to
erect a new school district and establish a
public schoal.

Voters were few and the political divi-
sion was then the Township of Ridgefield
The casting of ballots on election days
was done at times either in Fort Lee,
Ridgefield or Fairview. For transportation
of voters to and from the polling places
was furnished by farmers who used their
large market wagons.

Prior to 1884 Ridgefield Park was a
summer resort frequented by well-to-do
New Yorkers. A large hotel stood at what
is now the corner of Main and Mt, Vernon
streets. The grounds were laid out as a
beautiful park and extended west to the
railroads, On Paulson avenue at the foot
of Grove street, were located the service
buildings for the hotel. These buildings

JL&M very large barn and carriage

RIDGEFIELD PARK AS IT WAS FIFTY
YEARS AGO-WARREN H. ABBOTT
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house, ice house and pumping station
which supplied the hotel with water from
a large natural spring situated on the west
side of the avenue.

The hotel burned late in the fall of
1883 and was never rebuilt.

A few years before my first acquaint-
ance with the town a man of far vision saw
the future of Ridgefield Park and built
some very fine houses at large expense
Among these was the property later
owned by the Mehrhof family. The house
was located on the present site of the
Elks' Club. It was reported at that time
that this house cost $45,000.00 to build,
while the barn and carriage house repre-
sented an expenditure of $12,000.00.

Two other houses constructed at the
same time are those now occupied by Dr
Comn and the Jewish Synagogue, at the
corner of Bergen avenue and Park street

As we started up Mt. Vernon St on
that day fifty years ago to take up our
residence in the old Colonial house on
Hackensack Road (now Main street) and
Park street, the sight to greet us was one
long to be remembered. On the right was
the great Manor House with its spacious
grounds extending south of the station
from the river to the Hackensack Road,
while on the left the beautiful hotel park
with its stately elms and charming walks
still unmarred by the oncoming
homeseekers.

For the benefit of those who have come
to the town in recent years [ will draw a
word picture as it was in those early days.

Arriving at the top of the hill and turn-
ing right at Hackensack Road to walk
south we first came to the Christie farm
which extended all the way from the
Hackensack River to the Overpeck
Creek. The homestead (still standing) built
of red sandstone and dating before the
war for independence stood back from
the road on our left. Adjoining the Chris-
tie property was the Brewster farm. Mr
T. M. Brewster had just completed and
moved into a large new home. While di-
rectly back under the great spreading red
beech tree stood the old Brewster home-
stead and occupied by the Chas. R Brew-
ster family. Across the street on the left at
the bend of the road Horatio N, Brewster
made his home in a quaint old house,
Down Ridgefield avenue were four or five
small houses occupied by Brewster
farmhands.

At the corner of Winant and Ridgefield
avenues, where it still stands, was the
Winant home. Proceeding along Winant
avenue, to Teaneck Road, we came to the
home of Judge Voorhees, the town's first
Justice of the Peace. Across the road the
Thos. R. Lindley family lived. This family

Warren Abbott was one of
our early settlers, arriving
here in 1884, This
recollection was printed in
the "Bulletin' in 1934.
Lillian Mergler kept a
copy of the aricle which is
now in the Library, and is
reprinted here in its
entirety.

was the largest in the town then or
since — sixteen children

Our route now takes us north on Tea-
neck Road about an eighth of a mile to the
David Christie home. Continuing on, at
Park street, there stood, as now, the
home of Thomas Marshall and his family.
Beyond on the right a few hundred feet
the burned ruins of an earlier settler. The
Clausen truck farm came next at the end
of Preston street. To the left at the inter-
section af Teaneck Road and Grand ave-
nue, lived the Van Iderstine family, who
framed that part of the town Across the
road was the home of the Melias’ who
then farmed the Hazelton property This
was one of the largest farms in the whole
town. It covered an area from Overpeck
Creek to Queen Anne Road On the west
side of the road there remained the ruins
of the old Hazelton home

At the extreme north end of Teaneck
Road within the town limits were on either
side the homes of Edwin M. Barnes and
his father-in-law, Mortimer Smith.

Crossing through the fields of the Ha-
zelton property to the Queen Anne Road
we came to the Paulison farm occupying
the entire northwestern section of the
town. Under the hill on the river bank was
the homestead then possessed by the Au-
gustus Duane family who worked the
farm.

Traveling south on Queen Anne Road
at the head of Austin street, stood a large
house in which P H Smith and his father
in-law, John Marshall, made their home
Across the street on the northwest corner
of Preston street stood as it does now, the
home of Samuel Breakey. The house
halds the distinction of being the first built
in the new development of Ridgefield
Park. About a block below on the corner
of Lincoln avenue and Austin street, near
ing completion, was a house owned by
John Faulkner. This home was destroyed
by a fire within a month after the family
moved into it

Continuing down Hackensack Road to
Park street, ane arrived at the old house a
portion of which dated back belfore the
Revolution, where we made our home fe
the first year in town. The property was
owned by Thomas Howe Next and on
the corner of Mt. Vernon street and Hack-
sensack Road on the site of the Overpeck 67
Trust Company building, was a small




house owned by a family
named Shay On the south
east corner of M Vernon

street and Bergen avenue was
the fine large home of Peter
Kenny, while just a block
north were the houses at Ber-
gen avenue and Park street,
earlier referred to.

This in 1884 was Ridge-
field Park, a town of less than
thirty homes.

A far-seeing real estate de-
veloper named Daniel Taylor,
had shortly before bought
one of the Paulison farms,
which comprised all of the
property bounded by the

Hackensack Road on the east
and north, 100 feet south of
Webster street and west by
the river He cut the streets
thru and subdivided into
building lots, which it may be
interesting to note In passing,
were offered for sale at that
time for $65.00 and $75.00
per lot, according to location,
From this start Taylor and
others bought farms and oth-
er available plots for sub-divi-
sion until Ridgefield Park
soon ceased to be a farming
section and became a fast
growing suburban town.

O Ridgefield Park upon the meadows,
That towers o'er the “Hackie" still,
You are our quaint little village

From which our children draw their fill.
You give them hope and education

And help to make therr dreams come true.

O Ridgefield Park upon the meadows
We surely do love you.

Congratulations are in order.

For three hundred years the world has
What once was but a lonely outpost
Turned into the American dream

So once again we'll raise our voices
And let the church bells ring

O Ridgefield Park upon the meadows
It's to you "Of Thee We Sing”

Though we may be small in stature
And our numbers may be few,
We'll stand against all Bergen County

seen

When it comes to the Red, White and Blue,

So let's all stand among the counted
And shout out good and loud

"0 Ridgefield Park upon the meadows
You really make us proud "

To Ridgefield Park we will be faithful
For Ridgefield Park we'll do or die
We'll send the message to all others
That we walk with our heads held high
No matter what may be the future
Hand in hand we'll see it through.

O Ridgefield Park upon the meadows
‘Happy Birthday and God Bless You."

Ornginal -January 24, 1985
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SARA KIERSTED’S BEADED

For years a local legend has
persisted that on the banks of
the Hackensack River the
children of Chief Oratam
presented a beaded pouch to
Sarah Kiersted, then 17, a
prominent New Amsterdam
figure who received from
Oratam 2,260 acres of land in
the Ridgefield Park-Bogota-
Teaneck area for her services as
an interpreter.

Who was Sarah Kiersted, who
merited such consideration from
Oratam and his people, and
what of the pouch?

Sarah arrived in America at
the age of 6 and was brought
up at Beverwyck, near Fort
Orange, the foremost fur trading
center of the Dutch. Her father,
Roelaf Jans, had come as a
superintendent for Patroon Van
Rensselaer's spreading manor
lands. Here Sarah had ample
opportunity to learn the ways
and language of the Indians.

At 13 she was sufficiently
skilled to appear publicly as an
Indian interpreter. In later years
she served as interpreter for
Dutch Governor Peter
Stuyvesant during his famous
treaty making with the Five
Nations. She also taught the
Indian language in New
Amsterdam. Annetje Jans,
Sarah's mother, moved to New
Amsterdam after her husband
died. There she remarried. Her
second husband was Dominie
Bogardus, the first settled
minister in New Amsterdam.

It was Sarah, then in her
teens, accompanied by her
stepfather, Dominie Bogardus,
who was interpreter at the
negotiatons that made possible
the 1641 settlement of whites

POUCH

on the land of the Hackensack
in what is today Bergen County
This settlement lay close to the
first fort in the county, on the
west side of the Hackensack
River just south of the mouth ol
the Overpeck Creek.

At 18 Sarah married Dr
Hans Kiersted, the best
physician of his day.

Family traditions say that she
frequently visited the Indian
villages along the Hackensack,
teaching Dutch crafts to Indian
women as she sat in the center
of their circle

One legend tells of her
rescuing the voungest child of
Oratam from a fire and of her
saving his life by smearing his
burns with white mans’
omntment.

So much for Sarah, but what
about the pouch? Nothing more
is heard about it in Bergen
County until 1941, 16 years
after the Paul Hanway family
had moved from Philadelphia to
Ridgefield Park. The Hanways'
are decendants of Sarah
Kiersted. One day Mrs. Hanway,
while reading a local history,
discovered that she was living
on the very site that had been
deeded to Sarah

Meanwhile, back in
Philadelphia, Mrs Wilmer
Hanway, Paul's mother, received
a telephone call asking her to
come to Long Island to accept
from an aged woman a valuable
family heirloom. Mrs. Hanway
had never seen this woman,
although as members of the
Kiersted family, they had
corresponded through the years.

Mrs. Hanway went to Long
Island to receive the heirloom,
which turned out to be Sarah

Kiersted's pouch. With the
pouch Mrs. Hanway received
instructions, in turn, to pass it
on to a decendant. This she did
before her death by giving the
pouch to her son Paul, who has
it today

The pouch is flat and is made
of red cloth Each side has a
distinctly different design in
grass-strung beads, from its wide
top to the finger-like divisions of
the bottom. Such pouches were
the Indians' pockets, used on
journeys to carry parched corn
or gunshot. Ceremonial pouches,
such as the Hanways, were used
to carry precious or sacred
articles

The late Frank Morrison of
Ridgefield Park, an Indian
scholar, had no doubt the
Hanway pouch is the the one
which passed from the children
of Oratam to Sarah Kiersted.

Thomas Dorsey, better known
by his Indian name of Tom Two
Arrows, examined the pouch in
1958 and said: ‘‘Yes, the flower
design is definitely Lenape, and
these small beads preceded the
larger trading beads in this area
It looks to me like the work of
our Seventeenth Century
Lenape Indians.

Dr. Lewis Haggerty, well
known Indian scholar living in
Hackensack in 1959, also firmly
believes in the pouch’s
authenticity. He was a collector
of Indian artifacts

Though the tongues which
might answer all
have been silent for a long time,
it well can remind us of
inheritance
people who gave better thar
they received

our queshions

Irom a primativi



THE LENNI LENAPE INDIANS . ..

During the course of time, the
landscape as well as the biological
existence of most any area, are subjected
to gradual change. In the midst of the
continual industrial and residential
development of Northern New Jersey,
little of the terrain remains in its natural
state,

Many high areas have been leveled and
swamps filled in. Much of the area has
been sealed, in the construction of
highways and parking lots.

Preserving the area's known historical
facts therefore becomes important. it is
difficult to visualize a scattering of Indian
Villages, and a wilderness of virgin
forests, as ever having existed here.

However, based upon the records of
early missionaries, as well as upon the
artifacts left behind by our aboriginal
predecessors, these conditions did exist,
when early explorers arrived. In earlier
times, when farming was the major
industry here, almost any plowed field
might yield its treasures, to those whose
eyes were trained to recognize stones that
had been flaked or ground by the Indians.

Historians and archaeologists generally
agree, that the Indians were members of
the ancient Mongol Race. It is believed
that they migrated from Asia across the
Berring Sea to North America sometime
after the last ice age, which occurred
some 17,000 years ago.

The Indians who inhabited what is now
the State of New Jersey called
themselves "'Lenni-Lenape’’, meaning
“Original People " They have been
classified as Eastern Forest Indians. They
lived in log houses and bark covered
wigwams. In addition to being skilled
hunters and fishermen, they also
cultivated fields, and raised crops such as
corn, squash and beans

The rivers were the gateway through
which they initially entered our state. The
infant mortality rate was extremely high,
and it i1s believed that there were never
more than several thousand [ndians
inhabiting the state at any one time

To the northern portion of New Jersey.
the valley of the Hackensack River had
positive indications of occupation b
aboriginal people From the river
confluence with Kill van Kull, and
extending northward into Rockland
County, New York, were once located
low hills and banks of sand. Numerous
relics had been found at all of these sites,
which were inhabited by the Hackensacks

and Kindreds. Nearness to the river and
its tributaries, which were the source of
much of their food supply, made these
locations ideal. The lightness of the soll
made it easy to till, in addition to
providing good drainage

The largest Indian Campsite in the
Bergen County area existed in Ridgefield
Park. It extended from the junction of
Overpeck Creek and the Hackensack
River, northward along the east bank of
the river, for a distance of nearly a mile.
Its northern boundary extended eastward
across Teaneck Road ta Overpeck Creek
This conclusion is based upon the great
number of relics of permanent camp life
which were found in the area.

Most of the relics found in Bergen
County were made of stone or clay. Few
metal objects were found. Those made
from perishable materials such as wood,
bane, shell or hide have long turned to
dust.

One notable exception was a dugout
canoe, constructed from a white oak log.
It had been found in 1868 by the late
Judge Garrett G Ackerson, when he was
constructing a house in Hackensack, just
southeast of the Bergen County Court
House. It was later presented to the
“Bergen County Historical Society" by
the Judge's grandson and namesake.

At times young men of the tribe would
travel considerable distances to natural
outcroppings of the desired types of
rocks. There they would break off
fragments to a workable size and bring
them back to the village. There more
skilled craftsmen would undertake the
final refinement by chipping and flaking.
Needless to say, the chipping and flaking
of stone implements is now a lost art!

The local tribes were quite adept in the
art of making pottery They made
cooking and storage pots, as well as clay
smoking pipes. Fragments found along the
Hackensack River, which were carefully
examined, were found to contain pieces
of shell, mica, as well as meadow hay.
These substances were used for
tempering, and contributed to the baking
process. There was little or no decoration
on local pottery, except a herringbone
pattern on the necks. The maker's
lingerprints were also often preserved on

its. At a later date the white man
utllized the clay from these deposits to

make brick, in the vicinity of Little Ferry.
g .

ndian place names still exist in our area.
When the Indians named an area, the

name was usually based upon some
physical aspect, which was of significance
to them.

For example, the rock was of great
importance to them. It often marked their
boundaries. They also had their “'Council
Rock'', which was a meeting place for
important events, as well as for religious
festivals.

OVERPECK was ""The Stream Behind
The Rock''. The rock was probably the
Palisades, which overlook the winding
Overpeck Creek in the valley below.

QUOCKSOC referred to what is now
the Borough of Little Ferry. It meant
“The Place Of The Turtle."

Here, on the west bank of the
Hackensack River, on September 17,
1643, Indians staged a massacre and
totally destroyed a trading post by fire.

MOONACHIE was "The Place Where
We Dig." Here they dug clay for pottery
and pipe making.

KINDERKAMACK applied to portions
of Oradell and Emerson. It meant “The
Dancing or Festive Place.”

TAPPAN meant “The Low Place."”
The domain of the Tappans extended
from Sparkill southward and westward
through Closter, Cresskill, Harrington
Park, Haworth, Norwood, Old Tappan
and westerly through Oradell, to the
Hackensack River. Then from the New
Bridge area on the south and northward
to the land of the Munsees. The Munsees
occupied the higher lands extending into
Rockland County, New York.

PASCAK is derived from the Lenape
word ‘‘Passikachen," and meant to "Make
Boards."

PARAMUS is the word for “Little
Meadow "

MAHWAH - its literary meaning is
“The Field "

CAMPGAW - derived from the words
“Kaaka", the grouse, and "Gaw", the
woodchuck.

RAMAPO - "All Rock."

HO-HO-KUS - “Ho" was an
exclamation of joy and “‘Hokes", bark of
a tree. The probably meaning was "“a
place where trees with a bark which had
some special medicinal or ceremonial use
grow."

PASSAIC - “The Valley." The Passaic
River Valley also had numerous camp
sites, as evidenced by the many types of
artifacts of permanent camp life, which
were found there.

ACQUACANOK - “The place of the

e



OUR ABORIGINAL PREDECESSORS

bush net." This referred to a place in the
Passaic River where a weir of stones,
brought to a point, had been constructed.
The weir was built from each shore, at
down stream angles, with a pile of brush
at an opening near the middle. This
constituted a primitive but effective fish
trap.

SECAUCUS - From the Indian word
“'Siskakes." “The place of small stones.’
HOBOKEN - From the Indianword
“"Hopocan' meaning ""The Pipe Place.’

The name would have a perfect
application there now, with the tunnel
extending under the Hudson River to
Manhattan. However, it probably referred
to stone smoking pipes, The material for
these came from Serpentine Rock This
rock is firmer than red shale, and softer
than the rock of the Palisades Ridge.

WEEHAWKEN was “The Winter
Place."" This name applied to the flat
plain 10 to 15 feet above the level of the
Hudson River It had a grass covering and
numerous trees. In addition, there were
several spring fed brooks. It was a
pleasant sun pocketed place, sheltered on
the north and west from stormy winter
winds, by the high rock cliffs. It faced a
river which was too salty to freeze over
It had an abundance of salt water fish, as
well as those usually found in fresh water
There was a natural protection from
attacks by more warlike tribes to the
north, since the upper reaches of the
Hudson River do freeze over.

The “Old Hackensack Area'" consisted
of what is now Ridgefield Park, Bogota,
and that portion of Teaneck lying south
of Cedar Lane. Teaneck is not an Indian
Name. It was derived from the Dutch
words "'Tiene Nek,” meaning “Little
Neck." This name distinguished it from
the larger neck of land to the east — the
Palisade Ridge.

While the Indians travelled the area's
waterways quite extensively with their
canoes, there were a number of trails as
well. There was one trail which led down
Dan Kelly's Hill in Fairview, through
Ridgefield along Grand Avenue, Palisades
Park, Leonia, Englewoad, Tenafly and
Sparkill, New York. It lead to the village
site of the Tappans and Nyacks.

Another trail crossed the Overpeck
Creek between Ridgefield and Ridgefield
Park, at approximately the same location
as the existing Bergen Turnpike Bridge

An Indian Trail also made a crossing of
the Hackensack River in the vicinity of

'

the VonSteuben House in River Edge

Kinderkamack Road was once an Indian
Trail, which led up as far north as the
present city of Albany, New York

In order to protect themselves from the
swarms of mosquitoes, the indians rubbed
the exposed portions of their bodies with
rendered bear grease, as well as
maintaining smokey, smoldering fires.

During the hot, humid weather, many
of the local Indians would paddle their
dugout canoes along the Hackensack to
Staten Island. There they would spend
the summer, enjoying the cooling sea
breezes. The northeasterly portion of the
island was the summer domain of the
Hackensacks. Relics of their occupation
had at one time abounded there.

Any story about local Indians would be
incomplete without making mention of
their famed sachem, Chief Oratam, who
was born in Teaneck in 1577. His people
justly called him "Wowoatam' — "The
Wise, Experienced and Skillful One." The
records indicate that he was a realist.
Being cognizant of the fact that his
people were outnumbered and outgunned,
he strove to co-exist with the white
settlers. His displayed understanding and
psychology at least equal to those who
came to conquer and destroy. The evils
resulting from the consumption of alcohol,
introduced by the settlers, was the chief
cause of most of the Indian squabbles
They simply could not handle firewater!
The Dutch attempted to suppress the
liquor traffic, but without much success
Ultimately they turned to Oratam, and
appointed him as America's first
prohibition agent. He was authorized to
confiscate any firewater found among his
people. However, no stipulation was
made as to its disposition.

Oratam had led his people wisely for a
generation. He died in Teaneck in 1667
at the age of 90. It 1s believed that he is
buried in Staten Island, said to be the
burial ground for the honored dead.

As a fitting conclusion to this story, it
is well to point out that while the settlers
looked down upon the Indians as inferior,
in reality they had founded a culture long
before the arrival of the pale face They
worshipped “The Great Spirit In The
Sky." They interpreted his lightning and
thunder as displeasure with some earthly
matters. Their bountiful food supply was
looked upon as his blessings, for which
they gave thanks. These blessings were
something which was not to be wasted

They never killed wantenly, nor
more fish than they could
reality, they were our first
conservationists! They were a resol
rugged, vet kindly race
gifts and greeted the settlers peacefully
Unfortunately for them, their weapons
and implements of the Stone Age were
no match for gunpowder and steel. Hence
they came out second best in their
struggle for survival

However, they certainly merit an
honorable place in history! | have been
interested in Indian Artifacts since
October 12, 1924, at which time | made
my first find in a wooded area of Little
Ferry.

In the spring of 1925 | began working
on the Clausen Farm in Little Ferry after
school hours and during the summer
months. It was here that | found the bulk
of my collection.

| am a member of the North Jersey
Archaeological Society. It was my good
fortune to have known the late Mr. Frank
A. Morrison, a former Ridgefield Park
Attorney. He had been Vice-President of
the Bergen County Historic Society and
Chairman of its Archaeological
Committee

He was an amateur archaeologist,
whose chief hobby was not merely finding
numerous Indian Artifacts. He also did
considerable research on the history of
the Lenni Lenape Indians. It was from the
records of early missionaries that he
learned about the language, customs and
beliefs of the Red Men

Translating local Indian place names
which still survive was not an easy task,
since there were several Lenape dialects
In addition, racial origin of the
missionaries also varied. There were
Dutch, French, Swedish and English
Missionaries, all of whom would receive
varied phonic impressions from Indian
words. Therefore, none of his opinions
were intended to be final, nor to deny
any other opinion held by anyone else

Mr. Mornison very generously shared
his knowledge and opinions with anyone
who displayed interest in his hobby

Until someone is able to disprove his
translations, | will view them as authentic!

lerry W Komarek
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SCHOOLS

Ridgefield Park’s first public school
classes were held in a room over a
general store in Sheils’ Hall, located on
Lincoln Avenue and Park Street. This
building 1s now a three-family apartment
house. Prior to that ime, children from
the Village attended classes in a building
on Fort Lee Road, just east of Teaneck
Road In 1886 the first school building
was erected on the corner of Hobart
Street and Euchid Avenue (then called
Sixth Street and Central Street, respect-
ively). This was a one-room structure that
had an enrollment of twenty pupils with
one teacher This building only lasted six

years, then was demolished and a new
four-room school was erected on the site
The four-room bu -'--'.-__l served as the
kindergarten room of Washington lrving
School for many vear

In 1904 Washington lrving was built a
a cost of $30.000 The bu
made of brick, with slate
the second floor The main entrar

on Euchd Avenue with a d

the north side and one | nrls on th
2outh side of the building The third floc
of this school was used for |

| I :
la another school was built in

TURN-OF-THE-CENTURY CLASS ROOM

SCHOOL #2
- EIGHTH STREET AND HACKENSACK AVENUE



the West View section, along 8th Street.
Washington Irving School was Public
School #1 and remained standing until
1971, when it was torn down. The area
once occupied by Washington Irving is
now the site of Fellowship Park

As the Village continued to grow, the
need for an additional school was ap-
parent. A two-story wooden frame build-
ing was built in 1897 at the intersection of
Lincoln Avenue and Eighth Street, the
northwest corner, opposite the present
Lincoln School. This school had dormers
and a large bell in the center of the roof
Though this school started as an elemen-
tary school (Public School #2), it became
the first building to house the high schoaol
in 1912 and remained in use until 1917
when a high school was opened on
Bergen Avenue and Hobart Street (Prior
to 1912, Village students attended
Hackensack High School ) After World
War | (1918), School #2 was purchased
by the Ridgefield Park American Legion
Post. At the time the Legion Post was
one of the first in the country to have its
own meeting hall. This site is today oc-
cupied by two 2-family houses

Ridgefield Park was growing steadily,
especially in the West View section On
land that originally belonged to the
Paulison Estate, another school was built
In 1896 Lincoln School was built facing
Lincoln Avenue between Hackensack
Avenue and Summit Street It opened in
September of 1897 with a festive corner
celebration. Lincoln School was just a
short distance from School #2. This two-
story brick and concrete building, com-
plete with shop, kitchen, auditorium,
slate stairs, and modern plumbing, was a
welcome addition to the school system
The students had a shorter walk than go-
ing to Washington Irving. In 1924 an
eight-room addition with a gymnasium
was added to the north end of the school
Miss Theresa Huber, who started her
career as teacher in school #2 teaching
Grades 1, 2, and 3, became the principal
of Lincoln School. She was the first and
only woman to this date to serve as prin-
cipal in the Village of Ridgefield Park
She held that position until she retired

Ridgefield Park soon needed another
building in the southern part of town. The
Board of Education was authorized to
issue bonds for $50,000. to purchase a
site and to erect Public School #3.
Known as Grant School, it was built on
Henry Street and Teaneck Road in 1908,
Everyone in the community was very ex-
cited about the opening and large crowds
attended the ground breaking and laying
of the cornerstone. This building was
made of brick with limestone trimmings
on the entrances and windows, had a
slate roof and copper gutters. It was con-

ST. FRANCIS PAROCHIAL SCHOOIL



sidered to be very modern for the time
with eight classrooms, one kindergarten
room, a large gymnasium, locker rooms,
an auditorium, and offices The bell on
this two-story school weighed 520
pounds In 1962 a multi-purpose room
was added and called Burnham Hall, after
Merrill Burnham, who served as principal
of this school and also of Washington Ir-
ving for many years

Ground was broken on February 10,
1915 for a church building and a Paro
chial School on the northwest corner of
Bergen Avenue and Mt Vernon Street
The building was of the Tudor Gothic
style and built at a cost of approximately
$32,000 St Francis School opened in
September, 1915, with a stalt of four
from the Sisters of Charityv. There wers

170 '|'||_J['-:i' The S [ ed in 1
|J|_Hlli:||l_}_ Becauss | the ar it the
student bady, a {

Hudson Avenue (a home current
cupied by the Keane family) and
church building was erected on tf
ner of Mt Veron St y
Avenue. Both ths T id the

are in use today with the

auditorium and classre t f |
ing in 1960. The present gymnasiun
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residence of Dr David Corn Dr Corn's
home was built in 1870 by the Ridgefield
Land and Development Company as
ane of twa madel hames erected to at-
tract residents to the area

In 1917 the high school was erected at
a cost of $275,000 It accommodated
400 pupils. The building was officially
known as Washington High School, but
more affectionately known as R.P H.S
Architect Silbey designed this classic
building with its semi-circular portico,
forming the main entrance on Hobart
Street and Bergen Avenue, The entrance
to this red brick, stone, and terra cotta
building led to an octagonal lobby that
gave access to all parts of the school
Near the entrance, a stairway connected
the basement, first, second, and third
floors, and the attic. Some of the many
features of the high school were on the
first floor: Board of Education rooms, of-

fices, waiting rooms, teachers’ rooms,
Commercial Department, Bookkeeping
and Typing rooms, lockers, and the
auditarium. The second flaor contained
the auditorium balcony with a motion-
picture booth, study halls, classrooms,
locker rooms, and the library The third
floor housed the Chemistry, Physics, and
Biological Laboratories, a darkroom,
science lecture room with tiered seats and
a drawing room with a northen light. The
basement housed the gymnasium with a
spectators’ gallery, lockers and showers,
Domestic Science, Manual Training
Room, lunchroom, and heating and venti-
lating rooms.

In 1927 a new auditorium was added
between the high school and Washington
Irving. The auditorium was a special
place where many programs, shows,
musicals, dance recitals, civic meetings,
heated debates, PTA programs and

graduations took place. Once a week
students ma d into the room with
plano musi tirring being
played on a phonograph, for ai

bly program or pep ra th the balcony
being reserved | nen
The floor of the au

was pitched to assure

pertect sight with
I

seating capacity of 600 The large floor

to- HI|I||3 windows were covered witl
deep red velvet drapes, the same color
bemg used for the stage curtains The
stage was equipped with lighting panels
and dressing rooms on each side. The
room was lighted with six 12-light
chandeliers, hung from the vaulted ceil-
ing. A brass rail went across the front of
the balcony; this rail is now in Hook and
Ladder Co. #1

Also, in 1927 a new gymnasiurn was
added to the north end of the building on
Bergen Avenue. Many athletic events,
proms, band concerts, and meetings were
held in this addition. The gymnasium in
the original became known as the ''Girls'
Gym'"' and the 1927 gymnasium as the
“Boys' Gym."

Years of budget cuts and lack of repairs
took their toll and in 1965 the school was
overcrowded, had electrical problems,
and the coal-fired boilers were beyond
repair The insurance was cancelled and
accreditation was threatened, The high
schoo! was closed during the school year
in 1965 and temporary repairs were
made Classes were held in portable
classrooms located in the Washington
Irving schoolyard, in nearby churches,
and in the public library A new high
school had been proposed by the Board
of Education along with other plans of-
fered by the public The first referendum
for a new building was defeated, but with
some cuts and a smaller design, a
$3,255,000 modern school building pro-
gram was approved The Commissioners
exchanged the property they owned in
Dexheimer Park for the ald high schoal
and l‘\’ashmgh_un |I'\':!'|g School The new
Ridgefield Park High School opened in
1967 In 1971 Washington Irving School
and Washington High School (RPHS)
were demiolished by the Board of Com
missioners and this site 1s now Fellowship
Park

The Ridgefield Park High School is
now located on East Grand Avenue in
what was one time called the Meadow
and later Dexheimer Park This ver
ern building is built of steel and bric
two-story academic wing |
5-sided classrooms, 53 teacl
a 21,000 volume libra 3t
students, plus audi
workroom area [ he
closes a courtvard




building 15 a student com
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Ancther section |

enter of th
mons, and teacher
rOcims

structure which has a large gymnasium
with two auxiliary gymnasiums, and an
auditorium with stage and modern light
ing and projection equipment Sections
of the auditorium can be used for lecture
halls. In this area of the building are also
the art rooms, music rooms, industnal art
room (shop), auto repair room, and jan
itorial rooms There is also an elevatar {or
handicapped students. The high school
has an enrollment of approximately
1,000 students of the total of 1,607
students in Ridgefield Park Public

o fe-shory

Schools. Ridgefield Park High School
began accepting Little F(’IT',I' ngh School
students in 1953 and It Is still In effect
today

To help serve the expanding growth of
the north section of the town, Roosevelt
School was constructed on Teaneck
Road between Highland Place and Ha
zelton Street in 1921 This was the most
modern looking of all the schools at that
time Large columns were impressive at
the front door of this two-story early
Charles Bullfinch design of limestone and
red brick. The second floor housed the
auditorium with a seating of 700 and
classrooms for the older children. All of

the Bth grades were taught in this school.
Along with the 11 lower grades served in
this building, there was a shop, kitchen,
sewing room, gymnasium. A special
feature was an indoor swimming peol,
one of the very few ever built in a gram-
mar school at this time. Many of the Vil-
lage children learned to swim here and
enjoyed the recreation offered in the
summer for a 10 cent admission The
Roosevelt Schoolyard, until 1931,
served as the home field for the high
school football games and practice.
Since, the high school has made Biggs
Stadium in Veterans Park its home foot-
ball field.

THE OLD HIGH SCHOOL BEING DEMOLISHED-1971
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Quiet,

It's very quiet, isn't it, Quincy?

No shouts, No shuffles.

No more students packing the halls.

Look around

You're the last to leave, aren't you, Quincy?
It seems so very lonely, doesn't it?

Don't leave yet; look around.

Look around and remember

Over there, Quincy, look there

The auditorium. The study hall.

Do you remember sitting in the rear

And hearing the band through the vents in the
wall?

You called it “"The Study Hall Concert.”

You do remember, Quincy.

As a senior, you remember the balcony, don't you?

The frantic pep rallies?

Screaming and singing and laughing and clapping.

The balcony,

Do you remember sitting there,

Watching the chandeliers shake and sway,

As students passed from classes?

They shook.

And you remember, Quincy.

Do you remember this school?

The trailers in the courtyard?

The "annex.”

And do you remember playing ball on the gym floor?
And tripping on a warped or loose board?

And sweating in the locker room?

You're smiling, Quincy. It was fun, wasn't it?

Stay, Quincy. Stay a moment longer.
Stay, and remember.

Remember how confused you were

When you climbed the stairs as a Freshman,
Looking for floor three?

And it wasn't there?

Do you remember how you laughed

When first you heard of the “main rotunda?"
Such a majestic name!

And you laughed all the more

When you walked through the door

And saw the “majestic rotunda.”

But you grew to love it, Quincy

You grew to love it

“Students are not permitted to smoke on school grounds.”
But ten feet from the building,

The "smoking fence "

Do you remember?

Do you remember walking the tower stairs

To the senior locker room?

And you couldn’t see the lockers for the seniors
And you do remember taking a wrong turn,

And walking into the boiler room

Where the immense furnaces were fed with coal?
And you do remember that extra half hour
Every Wednesday

Reserved for a club. Activities

You remember, don't you?

One more minute, Quincy, stay

Remember how crowded these halls were?

The pushing, the shoving, the closeness

You're smiling again, Quincy, you do rememb
One last look, Quincy, take one last

And remember.

Is there something in your eye, Quincy?
Mike Gable Class of 6
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SPORTS

Sports have been a major part of our community throughout the years. The progress in sports has
surpassed most towns; we started with back lot ball games and had some semi-pro teams that played
in the village. We go back to football and baseball in Martin's Oval, just north of Ridgefield Park — the
Phil Sheridan Basketball Team — boxing matches held in the K of C hall —tennis at the Pines Tennis
Club in the '20s and '30s that attracted many residents — boating on the Hackensack River — swimming
in the river and later in Roosevelt School Pool.

In the beginning high school sports were just football, basketball and baseball for the boys. In later
years sports programs were expanded to include girls. Wrestling, track, velleyball, softball and fencing
were introduced as part of the school program.

In 1950 we sent a local girl, Amelia (Babe) Wershoven, to the Olympics to compete in Javelin
Throwing. The village had champion fencers (girls), and many girls and boys went on to star in college
athletics as well as professional ball.

Our town was fortunate to have many excellent coaches through the years, and we would be remiss
if we did not mention two of the earliest — Carl Erickson and Carl Biggs. The football stadium is
named after Coach Biggs. When football was a major sport, before TV, there were often over 2,000
spectators in the stands for a game. In 1970 then-Mayor Gilbert Gibbs arranged to purchase stadium
lights for Veterans Park from Palisades Amusement Park, which was closing. Their installation provided
the opportunity for the playing of night games.

In addition to school sports, the townspeople have created and sponsored Little L eague and
expanded to Connie Mack, Farm teams, Babe Ruth, Midget Football and Soccer teams. 1955 saw the
organization of Pony Tail League for the girls, with the help of the Board of Recreation.




Bergen County
Champions, 1925 . 1926
- 1927 Left to right:
Joe Cerina, Coach and
Mgr. Lou Costello, Tony
Calland, Jim Higgins,
Spike McGuillan, Spike
Walters and Nat Hickey.

1922 BERGEN INTERSCHOLASTIC LEAGUE FOOTBALL -SEATED IN CENTER JIM DIGNEY &
MASCOT ERICKSON - L TO R HOWARD SCHLUMS, BARON BRACHT, DONALD SMITH - GORDON
ADAMS - BUD RHODES - SAM ZIMMERMAN - MARTY COTTRELL, KENNY - COACH ERICKSON
GEORGE SUMNER - DICK ROBINSON - OZZIE NELSON - TED STEVENS - BUD PORTER - CLIFF

HASSLINGER - SID STOLDT



1918 AN EARLY TEAM THAT PLAYED IN THE UNION CHURCH
ATHLETIC FIELD ON HUDSON AVE

FOOTBALL BACK IN 19181919
IN RIDGEFIELD PARK — The team
seen left was the last Ridgefleld Park
High team to play without a full time
coach. Shown are Sherman v,
Herb Gneiding, star quarlerback, 0%
Higbee, Mr. Randall, teacher and
coach, Ralph Lowe, Mr. Bell, Ray
Lindley, Everett Beech, Ralph
Terhune, Jim Maher, Dr. Al Nelson,
brother of Ozzie, who was to become
a star player a few years later, Hadley
Case, Capt. Hershfield, Tom Bell,
brother of Frank Bell, retired director
of Athletics at the High School, and
Ernie Beamish.

UNTY SEMIPRO TEAM THAT PLAYED IN RIDGEFIELD PARK



L"; MAJOR LEAGUE BALLPLAYERS FROM

- RIDGEFIELD PARK WERE THE GASTON
' BROTHERS PITCHER MILT GASTON

"’: WON 97 GAMES IN 11 SEASONS WITH

THE YANKEES, BROWNS, SENATORS,
RED 50X AND WHITE SOX, WHILE HIS
BROTHER ALEX CAUGHT FOR THE
GIANTS AND RED SOX FROM 1920 TO
1929

JOE CERINO & LOU
COSTELLO. COSTELLO
LATER BECAME HALF OF
THE FAMOUS ABBOTT AND
COSTELLO COMEDY TEAM.

1925-A GIRLS BASKETBALL TEAM FROM THE HIG!



1927 Basketball Team State
L to R C Thiel - Julee Friedman -
Gallinant - Henry Ollerman - Frank E
. Frank Preston - Ace Isolde Top Row
Rod Summer Mgr, Charles Redding -
O - Bill Moffett - Coach Biggs - Gorden
Bell This team competed in the
National High School Tournament held
in Chicago [ll. that year.

998 One of the most
;Ld ,,h: :mre r R e : our sports history. They scored 341 points to their opponents 0. They
uncrossed. ( S bs e vere one ﬂr the two school football teams in the state to keep the goal line
farnd Muls o Eoge BiExil- F 2 lighest scorer in Bergen County. Among those in the are L Schlems -
Barrett Remo Lusitana - Fr NAROEA00 ~ R Fullagar - Francis Schlag - Frank Manning - William Crowd - John
o okt Coaali trl B Ve v . Bergkamp - Ralph Anderson - Louis Kortum - Raymond Merz, Manager -

4 i -|"



1929 FOOTBALL TEAM — AN OUTSTANDING TEAM FIRST ROW: W. CROWL, CAPTAIN ANDERSON,
BERGCAMP, BARRETT, CASEY, ZANGHI, LOBOVES SECOND ROW: SPERDUTO, MANNING, F. KIELB, J. KIELB,
MERZ, WEBER. ONE OF THE PLAYERS, RUDY LOBOVES, IS THE ONLY LIVING THREE-TIME ALL-COUNTY
FOOTBALL CHAMPION.

By s o quf_a-.!
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1934 BASKETBALL TEAM N N J AND STATE CHAMPIONS GROUP Ill HANK WELKER - Ht
CHARLES ECKLIN - TOMMY DELLA TORRE - ERNIE RIES - BACK ROW - CARL BIGGS, ART DR
ROGGE - SAM MIHANOVICH - LEN COHEN




Realizing the importance of the art of self-
was lssued for local boxers to participate in a
program In order to represent Ridgefield Park _
Bergen County Boxing Tournament. The only req
for fighters in the tourney were that they must be
sixteen years of age and they must be residents of B
County. According to the Ridgefield Park Police, all
fighters were amateurs; professionals were not eligible.
Patrolman Herbert Boecherer headed the program and
supplied entry blanks for those fighters who were willing
to participate. Local boys who signed up for the
tournament went into training at Veterans Park. Among
those were Wesley Schmidt, Al Walsh, Carl Mellilo, w
Greene, and Carl Boecherer.

Boxing was a sport that attracted many participants
circa 1926. Professional boxing matches were held in the
Knights of Columbus Hall in Ridgefield Park. Jimmy
Braddock and Gus Lesnovitch were just two of the many
good boxers on the programs.

In 1936 local boxers fought in a “Smoker™ held in St.
Francis Church Auditorium. Among these boxers was
Stanley Yotka, 160 pound class, who fought Roy Frisco of
New York. Stanley was the 1934 County champion.
Walter Yotka, 135 pound class, fought Johnny Walker.
Walker was the 1936 County champion. Other fighters
who fought at the ""Smoker’” were George Welker and
Johnny Sands.

In the 1940’s Herb Boecherer, supra, a well-known
promoter from Ridgefield Park, was in charge of the
coaching of the win or lose sponsored team that fought in
the Bergen Evening Record’'s A. A. Diamond Gloves.

Herb Boecherer, trainer of the Park amateur boxing team, showing
some of the finer points of boxing to Al Walsh and Carl Boecherer at
the local training camp established in Veterans Park

Training Camp Opens for Local
Boxers at Veterans Park

SIX ROUND BOUTS

JAUK SHORTELIL Vs, YOUNG ODIN
Soeth Bergen K. (), King 1"assaic
JOHNNY MARTIN VS JOHNNY DARCEY
Pis=aie hyonne
GREORGIE DESCHNER VS, JIMMY BRADDIKNK
Uniione Clity Formerly Amantenr Cluanp of N, J,
JOHNNY SHUPPACK VS, BENNY BLOOCK
Iuterson Jewish Flash
\RTIE KEED Vs CHARLES NEIMAN

Englewmnl Union ity

84
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1939 Group lll State Champs Lost 0 Tied 0 Won 11

Front Row - Henry Gramkow - Vincent Korsack - Edwin Cohen - Richard Webster - Roswell Firchette - David Derrow - Jack
Knapp Back Row Carl Biggs, Andrew Caruso - Gerald Hunter - Robert Davis - Donald Watson - Robert Belizonzi

Robert Wright, Manager

Picture taken in back of Roosevelt School this field was used for football games and other sports until Veterans

Park was built in the meadows - and continued in use for practice until the 40’s

th

The old fieldhouse on the east side of Veterans Park Almost every vear
high school seniors painted their names and vear on the roof A new, modes
fieldhouse has been built at the north end of the playing field

In 1940 Coach Biggs passed away after a short illness Almost ever
town attended his funeral and were deeply saddened by his death. A
the Bergen Evening Record at the time of his illness seems to sa
actually loved in the Park, and the folks who aren't close to hu
COACH BIGGS. they can always point out a boy who is a little better off becau
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Veterans Park in the early days, just after the Stadium was installed. More seats were added later, and the stadium was
named Biggs Stadium in honor of Coach Carl 5. Biggs.

Coach Carl S. Biggs coached all sports in Ridgefield Park from 1926 through 1939 He had an outstanding football record

during those years

YEAR
1926
1927
1928
1929
1930
1931
1932
1933
1934
1935
1936
1937
1938
1939

Totals

Outstanding Players

W

x-x-uoowmum-—-b-n%

=

q
11
104

1928 State Champs (see picture # )
1929 Rudy LoBoves, Harry Bergcamp, Pete Anderson, Hen Merz (Rudy LoBoves is the only living three-time all county

ball player )

LOST

W= = =M == OO W e

Lo
= O

TIED

—

oMo ONNEOCONBLHNS

State Champs, unscored upon

NNJIL /Group 1l State Champs

NNJIL/County Champs

NNJIL/Group [l State Champs

1933 Tom DellaTorre, Gus Hanna, Rudy Pheiffer, Ernie Reis, Charles Sievers, Hank Welker
1936 Henry Reis, Jim Walsh, Jerry Perry, Tom McKinney, Ed Strippell, Bill Pheiffer

1937 Henry Reis, Al Vandewege, Jim Ward, Bill Hasslinger, Marvie Wolf, Frank Dupignac, Len Graziano
1939 NNJIL/Group Il State Champs (see picture # )

1940s All County Players Andy Caruso (1940), Joe Monaco (1943), John Swift (1943), Alex Lenowicz (1943), Art

Fitzgerald (1944 also all-state in basketball)

e



Basketball 1943-44-NNJIL State Champs, Group lll. Front Row: Art Meyer, Jim Doran, Bob O'Brien, Ed Fisco, Art
Fitzgerald, Bill Soine, Bill Eucker. Back Row: Milt Cole, Manager, Henry Diks, Asst. Manager, Bill Fass, Bill Rietdorf,
Coach Frank Bell, Al Balchen, Ray Scanall, George Bernhardt, Asst Manager Coach Bell played football, basketball
and baseball for RPHS; before coming to RPHS as a coach, he had an outstanding coaching record at Bergen Junior
College, Teaneck

QOver the years there were many good track teams. Some of the records
lasted a long time James (Red) Walsh was coach for many of those vears
ALL-TIME TRACK RECORDS AT RPHS:

YEAR RECORD NAME (BOYS) EVENT YEAR RECORD NAME (GIRLS)
1957 9.8 T. Bassano 100 METER 1985 133 S Fox

1971 9.8 J. Graves

1972 21.4 J Sp.ma 200 METER 1980 276 S. Anderson

1983 51.3 J. Matuszewski 1/4 MILE 1985 623 S Fox
1983 320 J. Matuszewski, MILE RELAY - - - .

T. Monaco, J. Mule,

Navalance

19582 14.8 R. Ferraro HURDLES 1985 16.0 S. O'Gara
1967 21.5 D. Accavallo BROAD JUMP 1980 15' 11" 5. Anderson
1964 21.5 V. Guisto
1%8 6’5" R‘ Pfancher HIGH JUMP 1977 52" A Gue,rﬁo.
1958 61°10" H Rosdahl SHOT PUT 1980 39'11" J Welte
1958 174 1/4" H. Rosdah! DISCUS 1980 125" 10" J. Welte
1985 216' 2" B. Parnisi JAVELIN 1982 128" 3" p. DiMeglio
1985 912 R. Byrne 3200 CROSS 1982 11.19 K. Greaney
COUNTRY
1982 4.18.6 R. Byrne 1600 CROSS - - . -
COUNTRY
13’ F. Polinich POLE VAULT. . ..
TRIPLE JUMP 1985 31'7" S O'Gara
MILE RUN 1982 5164 K Greaney

COACH JAMES
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1958 football team, pictured in Veterans Park. Hatch Rosdahl! was one of the players on this team; he went on to be All-American
while playing for Penn State, and played professional football for the Kansas City Chiefs, Buffalo Bills and New York Jets. First row: F.
Nejeschelba, B. Huggard, H. Rosdahl, M. Feather, F. Bell, ?, G. Frankovitch, R. Ruland, R. Habib, Second row: R. Hubbard, R. Quinn,
P. Feeney, ?, P. Slakie, R. Wever, A. Firl, R. Wall, W. Anderson, R Leiss, ?. Third row* Asst. Coaches R. Webster and L. Koval, R.
Sumner, B. Whitaker, J McEntee, B. Rock, V. Marino, ?, A. Eilers, M Mullaney, Head Coach B. Peck.

Hatch Rosdahl held the Discus record for many years, thrown at the Randalls [sland meet. He was also All-County Shot Put and Dis-

cus thrower in '57, '58 and '59. Shot Put: 61°'10"; Discus: 174 '4"
George Frankovitch and Hatch Rosdahl played against each other in 1960 on national TV in a college game — Syracuse vs.

Penn State

BT

;]-.‘-!:.'-!['.I _:-*f-ﬂl; {"lh.ﬂrTl'T:,m.'E 'B‘---n__.-ll- dl Front row R Muoio, P. Shipper, B. Feehan, B. Miller, Coach F. Bell, J. Pryor, D.
rieele, / utz Back row: Asst. Coach J. Yenser, R Olasin, J. Knapp, R Koenig, G. Stoft, H. Hill, D. Amico.



Fencing was introduced into high
school sports for girls in 19641965
One of the winning fencing teams
Pictured left to right: D. Gunther, R
Mantineo, N. Celantano, D Cinotti, M
Mullane, J. Toli

Tom Franco on his way to a touch down at the Giant Stadium
Under the direction of Pete Natale, the 1977 team won the NJIAA Group Il Championship ga 1L {
Stadium in Rutherford, N.J. Score 34-0 -




The team in 1978 Under
the able direction of Coach
Don Gsell - Teel - Walters
Perlongo - Criscuolo - Krejsa
Kane - Dyer - Gandolfo -
Kraljic - Sherman-Knapp

From this teamn Steve
Criscuolo and John Gandolfo
were picked to play in the 1st
Annual H S All Stars Game at
Princeton University. They
were also selected for the
1978 All Bergen Baseball
along with Don Gsell as Coach
of the Year.

John Perlongo - Bob Kosa -
Pete Kraljic - Tom Teel -
Ken Duver received Honorable
Mentic :

Criscuolo alse made All
League - All County - All State
and Tri State Champions that
L/ear.

Sitting: R. Rohlfs, D. Di Archangel, T Tecl T bBrennan, N. Cioffi, K Kosman. Standing D.
Erdman, M Brogan, G. Cutrone, J Perlongo, K. Korz B. Kosa, 5. Devine, J Trochanowski, I
Gandolfo. Not shown: J Smukal, K Giambagno, S. Criscuolo, M Osborn, J. Kosa

HOME 0FF CHAMPIONS

RIDGEFIELD PARK ..
HS SCARLETS 1976-T7

L CHAMPIONS.

BASKETBALL norTH JERSEY
BASEBALL NJ STATE

BCSL GIRLS SOFTBALL CHAMPIONS
BCSL GIRLS VOLLEY BALL "

I
n n

Sign In front of Municipal Building during 1976-77 championship year.
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CANOE CLUB

?-.IFN;’ M/dﬂd‘-: {__-‘\"J”t_..’l' (.\JJ{JIE." Was
founded in the a-%-‘rr!_t' 1900's on
the Hudson River in
Edgewater, New Jersey. In
1965, the Wanda Canoe Club
relocated to Ridgefield Park on
the Hackensack River. In
1966, the Club built its
clubhouse adjacent to the
Ridgefield Park Pistol Range
on land provided by the
Village.

The Wanda Canoe Club has
been instrumental in training
athletes for olympic level
competition in canoeing and
kavaking. Several members of
the Club have been members
of junior and senior world
championship teams and have
represented both Ridgefield
Park and the United States all
over the world.

The Club's most recent
achievement has been the fact
that the Club Coach, Clyde
Britt, served as the head coach
for the 1984 United States
Olympic Canoeing and
Kayaking Team. One of its
other members, Peter Tolar,
served as an ICF official and
was the starter at the 1984
Olympics.

Although the Club is small
it currently dominates the sport of canoeing and kayaking in New Jersey and provides a
sport for the people of North Jersey to participate in —one of the truly amatuer olvmpi

sports.




RIDGEFI
VS. B

BOGOTA vs. RIDGEFIELD PARK
YEAR R.P. BOGOTA
20

1926 0 1950 26
1927 88 7 1951 12
1928 39 0 1952 19
1929 7 7 1953 0
1930 0 0 1954 6
1931 6 7 1955 6
1932 14 8 1956 12
1933 33 0 1957 20
1934 15 0 1958 20
1935 d5 7 1959" W12
1936 ¥ 0 1960 12
1937 19 0 1961 25
1938 20 7 1962 0
19359 2 0 1963 18
190 15 14 1964 19
1941 13 0 1965 8
1932 31 0 1966 19
1943 26 6 1967 6
1944 0 24 1968 8
1945 12 0 1969 12
1946 27 0 1970 6
1947 12 6 1971 6
1948 7 14 1972 &3
1949 7 26 1973 34

RECAP - 1926 THRU 1972 (47 YEARS)

RP. WON 28
LOST 16
TIES Il .
POINTS
RP = 748
BOGOTA = 5]10

RIDGEFIELD PARK COACHES

1920-1926 - Carl Erickson
1926.1939 - Carl Bjggs
1940-1941 . Eulo Cecario
1941.1942 - William Dorsey
1942.1947 - Frank Bell
1948.1949 - Harr
1950.1953 -
1954-1961 -
1962-1963 .
1964-1968 -
1969-1977 -
92 1978-

v Hammond
Arthur Jocher
H"i”m.’;.‘ Pg?fk
Louis Koval
Leonard Nelson
Peter Natale

- Bob Morris

Gordie Adams

Francowfﬁh'
reeman
Gaflmam

Milt Adams

Ralph Anderson

Al Balchen John Gandolfo
Bob Ball ‘Gandolfo
Red Barrett Gil Gibbs, Sr
Tom Bassano Gil Gibbs, Jr.
Ron Bassano

Mike Bavaro

Frank Bell, Jr
Frank Bell, Sr.
Harry Bergkamp

Phil Brady

Jim Breshn ssli

John Brogan 1 'fn’ﬂ;.\r;

Mike Brogan Howar: Hill

Tom Burke Stan Hillver X p—
Walter Burke Bab Herzog 0

Andy Caruso Bob Halland

Frank Cavagnaro Bob Huggard

Walter Cederlund Ron Fiur-‘rhp Jahn Smith
Ed Cohen Gerry Hunter Bud Sre.-nerl'
Whit Conley - Mike bca&el

Bill Connolly ~ Steve Kee ¢

Steve Criscuolo g

Robert Crow!

Peelie Crow!

Bernie Crow!

Art Daly

Bob Davis

Tommy Della Torre
Dave DeRyder
Harold Dexheimer
Armand DeVitantonio
Ricky DiManno

E rank Le
Bud Lewis >
Rudy LoBoves

Bill Doran

Jimmy Doran Ray Lowe
Frank Dupignac Matty MeArow
Charlie Ecklin John McCarton
Donald Ecklin Tom McKinney
Skip Emerson Hector MacDonald
Howie Fackenier Joe Magro
Heowie Feather Paul Malone
Mickey Feather Ronnie Marasco
Bill Feehan Hen Me

Ed Fisco Art Mey

Art Fitzgerald Joe Monaca,

Tommy Franco Tom Monaco

Debbje Gunther
Bernadette Gioia
Sue O'Gara
Janice Welte
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RAILROADS

The most dramatic change in the
history of our community began in the
1870's with the arrival of the Railroad
Prior to 1873, residents wanting to travel
to New York City walked to Leonia or
Ridgefield to board trains operated by the
Northern Railroad, which opened in
1859, or they rode the stagecoach,
which they boarded at either the Muskrat
Hotel near the Hackensack River,
operated by Mr. Bogert, or the
Washington House Hotel, operated by
Mr Carling at the foot of Teaneck Road

In 1869 and 1870, the New Jersey
Midland Railroad acquired the right of
way along the east bank of the Hacken
sack River, and the local press reports
that by April 10, 1871, the road bed had
been prepared but the tracks not laid
Th&' builders of the New Jersey Mi {land
filled in the land 1 the
Hackensack River, where the original
Brinkerhoff House | the Mid

April, 1957 the 8:13 am. to Weehawken arriving at the Ridgefield Park Station
Note the 4 track mainline and the railway express siding just north of Mt. Vernon

Street

land Trains passed between the river and
the original homestead in an area to the
west of what s now the Elks Club. In-
terestingly enough, this first railroad —
The New Jersey Midland —now legally
the Delaware / Otsego System, but com-
monly called the Susquehanna, was built
from west to east as the railroads of that
time were all in competition to build into
New York City. Village resident Edward
K. Alburtis served as a Director of the
New Jersey Midland Railroad and helped
spur its construction through Ridgefield
Park Alburtis was active also in promot-
ing the sale of building lots (from $50.00
to $600.00 each) and the construction of
the first homes, at costs of up to
$3,000.00. The first thru passenger train
traveled through the Village on August
18, 1873, from Jersey City to Middle-
town, New York, via Hackensack and
Paterson; however, at that time there was
no station in this area.

Prior to the New Jersey Midland
Railroad, the farmers of Ridgefield Park
were anxious to get their fruit and
vegetable products to markets in
Rockland County and north. In 1867
they had formed the Ridgefield Park
Railroad with a capitalization of
$50,000.00. This road was to join the
New Jersey Midland in an area that today
would be at the foot of Central Avenue
and was to be built north to Fort Mont-
gomery in Rockland County. Construc-
tion of the Ridgefield Park Railroad began
in 1872 and the road opened June 30,
1873. The name Ridgefield Park Rail-
road did not last, however, as one week
prior to the opening of the road, the
Ridgefield Park Railroad combined with
the Rockland County Central to become
the Jersey City and Albany Railroad.
Ridgefield Park was a major connection
of these two railroads and New Jersey
Midland passenger trains would often
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“cut out” two passenger coaches, which
would then be hauled by Jersey City and
Albany engines up the line, while the
New Jersey Midland trains continued
west to Hackensack and Paterson Both
railroads suffered as a result of the Panic
of 1873, with the Jersey City and Albany
being reorganized as the New York West
Shore and Buffalo and the New Jersey
Midland eventually becoming the New
York Susquehanna and Western The
West Shore, as it was commonly known,
became involved in a rate war with the
Vanderbilt-owned New York Central,
which traveled the East Shore of the
Hudson River. The New York Central
won the war, and in 1883 the West
Shore became part of the New York
Central Railroad At the same time, the
New York Central determined that it
would end its connection in Ridgefield
Park with the Susguehanna and build its
own line south to Weehawken, parallel-
ing the Susquehanna much of the way
In building South, the West Shore built
over the ruins of the original Brinkerhoff
House, which had burned down some-
time in the 1870's, some suspect as a
result of sparks from a passing Sus-
quehanna engine. Today, if there are
any remains of this Brinkerhoff Home-
stead, they would be buried underneath
the West Shore (now Conrail) road bed
behind the Elks Club

Eastbound on the Susquehanna

Following a collection of $200 00, in
1883, conducted by Mortimer Smith, the
first railroad station was built at the foot of
Mt. Vernon Street, and shortly after that,
the Susquehanna took over the Muskrat
Hotel, which became known as the Little
Ferry Station in Ridgefield Park. Both of
these stations were owned by the Sus-
quehanna but operated jointly by the two
railroads. The West Shore later erected a
passenger shed in North Ridgefield Park

=
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March 1961 - the Westview Station at Central and Railroad Avenues now the

site of Route 80 bridge.

- around 1900

and this was known as the Westview Sta-
tion, in what today is the area underneath
the Route BO bridge. Thus, for many
years, Ridgefield Park was served by two
railroads and 3 stations Actually, we
were served by three railroads since the
New York Ontario and Western operated
over the West Shore tracks During the
early years of this century, two of our
Village residents, Mr. J.C. Watson, Sr.,
and W.C Deyo, were passenger agents
for the West Shore Also they were in
charge of ferrying immigrants from Ellis
Island to Weehawken and putting the im-
migrants on ftrains to the West. In the
summer these two men ran “Dollar Beer
Rackets" excursions from New York to
Rockland County Lake The fare was
$1.00 round tip A major development
for the railroads was the opening of the
West Shore Railroad Station in 1927
Completed in July, 1927, the structure
cost approximately $100,000.00 with an
additional $50,000.00 being spent for
underground passages for the Sus-
quehanna and east-bound West Shore
tracks. The station was built 4 years after
the earlier frame station had been severe-
ly burned . In its time, the station at the
foot of Mt. Vernon Street was one of the
most modern and well-built on the entire
New York Central Railroad, but the rail
road considered it a wise investment

since over 3,000 commuters a day
traveled the West Shore to New York
City, as well as nearly 300 that u
Susquehanna These commuters went |
the station by foot, by taxi, or by the #4

95
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bus or a commuter bus which picked up
passengers throughout the community
During the First World War an Army
Detachment guarded the brnidges across
the creek and maintained a camp in what
is now Ferris Park. Troop trains ran to
Camp Meritt and in the Second World
War to Camp Shanks. Sunday Schools
ran regular excursions from Ridgefield
Park to Bear Mountain on the railroad
Commuting was considered a pleasant
way to travel. The West Shore
operated ferries from Weehawken to
42nd Street and Cortland Street, while
the Susquehanna utilized the Erie Station
at Jersey City, where the ferries traveled
to Chamber Street and 23rd Street In-
asmuch as West Point was also served

In 1956 there were
the Susquehanna fron

by the West Shore Railroad, we can only
surmise that every major military figure
who graduated from West Point must
have traveled through Ridgefield Park at
one time or another to and from ‘‘the
Point.”

The opening of Route 6 in 1934, along
with the building of the New Jersey Turn-
pike in 1953, and our infatuation with the
automobile, eventually meant the demise
of passenger service an both the West
Shore and Susquehanna Railroads. At
one time one could board a train in Ridge-
field Park and, after making a change at
Paterson on the Susquehanna or at Alba-
ny on the West Shore, one could travel
anywhere in the United States. But all
that has ended. Passenger service on the

West Shore was cut back to limited
muter service from Weehawken to'
Haverstraw, New York. This ended
1959. The Susquehanna continued p
senger service from Butler to Je
until June 30, 1966. Freight trains,
ever, continue to travel through th
lage with regularity, and at least 25
a day can be seen on the West Shol
four or five on the Susquehanna. Th
four-track main line of the West Shore
been replaced with a single track, a
double track of the Susquehanna is

also a single track.

The importance of the railroads in
development of Ridgefield Park asa

urban community
underestimated.

cannot

n the West Shore from Weehawken to 42nd Street or Cortland Street, of

» 23rd Street or Chambers Street.
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Eighty years ago, four boat clubs
were located on the waters which
bound our Village. The Overpeck
Boat Club occupled the site of the
present V.F.W. on the Ov

Creek. On the Hackensack River,
the Ridgefield Park Boat Club was
situated at the foot of Brinkerhoff
Street while the Hackensack Boat
Club was located to the north, at
the foot of Mt. Vernon Street.
Still further north, in the vicinity
of Hackensack Avenue, was the
location of the Westview Boat
Club.

One of the early settlers of this
area was David Winant, who
built this home In the 1830's.
Winant owned a large tract of
property south of the present
Rt. 46 and was listed In the
1850 census as a “Gentlemen-
Farmer." This house still stands
- #12 Orchard Street.

The “West Shore."” Note the
station located between the West
Shore and Susquehanna Tracks.
This scene is at the foot of Mt.
Vernon Street, The railroad
remained the principal means of
transportation for Village
residents until after World War IL




Peter Mehrhof owned the
brickyard in Little Ferry and his
home here in Ridgefield Park is
now the site of the Elks Club.
The original Mehrhof Estate
once encompassed all the land
bound by Cedar, Main and
Hobart Streets, extending north
to Mt. Vernon Street, west of
Spruce Street.

Though the firet two homes
shown here have been razed,
most of the others still stand
on Preston Street, looking east
from Main Street. (formerly
Hackensack Road.)

The ”r,‘r:hru_r' Mansion,
Ridschicld Park, N. |

The Mehrhof Mansion Is seen
again from the Hackensack
River. Boating, fishing and
swimming on the River and
Creek were common leisure
activities for local residents.

N
POST CARDS

At the turn of the Century,

many different Post Cards
showing varlous aspects of
Village life were published by
Mergler and Stephens. The
Library has an extensive
collection of these cards and a
representative group Is shown
here. 59
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Front row: Chief W. Grossmann, Det. S. Tress, Ptl. T. LaTour
Second row: Lt. L. Hatton, Det. W. Forsythe, Ptl. R, Morris, Ptl. L.
Catalano, Ptl. B. Roberts Third row: Ptl. D. Donnelly, Lt. W. Morton,
Ptl. E. Rose, 5gt. D Ahrlich Fourth row: Ptl. A. Brooks, Capt. C.
Greaney, Ptl. J. Maglione, Ptl. P. McEntee Fifth row: Ptl. 5. Ehalt,
Ptl. E. Hammond, Ptl. C. Hamblen Not pictured: Sgt. D. Barry, Sat..
F. Schwartz, 5gt. B. Adams, Ptl. T. Connors, Ptl. J. DiNiro, Ptl. C.
Gneiding, Det. R. Lee.

RIDGEFIELD PARK POLICE DEPARTMENT

Left to Right: Kneeling, front
George Formoe, Sgt. Bob
Horneman Back row: Matt Marczak,
Alice Brown, Capt. Michael Knott,
John Delaney, William Brower (not
present: Joe Mueck)

RIDGEFIELD PARK VOLUNTEER SPECIAL POLICE



VOLUNTEER RESCUE SQUAD

Left to Right: Kneeling, front: Ray Noll, Harold Turner, Robert Erdman, Capt. Donald Preiss Back row: Tom Benaferwald,
Capt. Ed Campbell, Chief Robert Carlson, Rudy LoBoves, Gordon Scott, Howard Hendricks, Ray McCarroll Not pictured: Joe
Kubat, Richard Kraus, Sonny Yotka

' Sabachiey
‘i,

L]

Amby
nee gy, W
s,

1 VOLUNTEER AMBULANCE CORP
Left to Right: Kneeling, front: Michael Grater, Michael Wright, Michael Cummings, Chris Hogan, Dawn Cook, Justine
Lachmann, Barbara O'Brien, Caroline DeCastro Second row: John Sause, Ray Dwyer, Ray Pompieri, Eileen O'Brien, Karen

Harvey, Jane Lowe, Tom Farrell, Lisa Danzo, Jane Lutz, Dolly Samus, Herb Lowe Back row: Joe Scully, Walter Mastison,
Tom Opperman, Joe Samus, Lou Guyre, Kevin Coyle, Rich LaTour Not present: Bob Hofmeister, Dan Manaut, Pat
Opperman, Sam Yellen, Tom Yotka, Jim Zaccherio, Rich Brown, Nancy Effinger, Lisa Noll
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VILLAGE EMPLOYEES

First row (left to right): Phyllis Rosenthal, Martin T. Durkin, Linda Duncan, Mary Puleio, Guy Stark, Herbert Clark, Gerald
McCloskey, Sandra Davis, Diane Lesser Second row (left to right): Gerard Garofalow, William Hillermeier, Elizabeth
Hannigan, Kathleen Martin, Diane Weir, Lois Pesce, Joan Gibbs, Frances O'Brien, Mary Brogan, Harry Hansen, Lynnda
Vercelli Third row (left to right): John Warren, Hyman Cohen, Geraldine Musella, James G. Pappas, Marie Langschultz,
Jean Hofmeister, Nadine Herrunzie, Arlene Garofalow, Jacqueline Dudak, Marguerite Maney, Jane Black, C. Whitney

Conley.

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Left to Right: First row: John Meyers, Joseph Kennet, Richard LaTour, James Schmitt Second row: Harry Welt,
(Superintendent), Harry Freeman Third row: Alan O'Grady (Ass't. Supt.), Steve Rohlfs, George Vladick, James Ross
Schmitt (Sanitation Foreman) Not shown: Ernest Roma, Sam Gadaleta (road foreman), William Houston, Anthony Diver
Rudy Hanak, Richard Burke, Peter D'Ulisse, Thomas Stauffer, Charles Cumello, Herb Davison (Custodian, Civic Cents
Chris Zimmerman (Custodian, Municipal Bldg.), Fran Scerra (Secretary)
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RIDGEFIELD PARK VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT Photo: Diane Romano
1st Assistant Chief Leonard Hatton Chief Edward P Wahl 2nd Assistant Chief James Wilson

Officers and Members of the Department and of the Association of Exempt Firemen



Ridgefield Park Board of Education

Seated (left to right) Walter Grossmann, School Supt. Charles Juris, President Patricia Jacob, Lorraine DiArchangel.
Standing: Ray Dwyer, James Keogh, Joseph Meehan, Anthony Salerno, Fred Monaghan

49,

Construction of Senior Citizens' Building - Main and Summit Streets. 105
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4TH OF JULY
COMMITTEE:

? CARRYING ON A

§ TRADITION BEGUN
IN 1894

FRANK ROMANO,
CHAIRMAN.

TERCENTENNIAL
COMMITTEE

CHAIRMAN
EDCOYLE

| "' Commitic@s _ 4

CUB PACK 4



QUEEN'S
FLOAT
CARRYING VILLAGE
HONOR STUDENTS

NATURE
PRESERVE
COMMITTEE

PARADE WATCHES
IN
TERCENTENNIAL
GARB




ECUMENICAL RELIGIOUS SERVICE on January 13 at

St. Francis Church started the year-long Tercentennial
celebration. Pictured here are Village Clergymen who
participated in the service. Left to right: Rev. Robert A.
Killeffer, Rabbi Steven Lerner, Marie Paterik, Rector David
Brown, Rev. Roy Paterik, Rev. Walter Arkell, Rev

Francis, Rev. Andres Reyes, Rev. Vaccaro, Rev. Robert

Kreisat

Virginia Kappeler, the only direct descendent
still living in the Village, of our first settler,
Joris Brinkerhoff, at the Commissioners'
Meeting when the Tercentennial Banner was
presented to the Village. Pictured seated in row
in front of Mrs. Kappeler, former Mayor Ross
Vogt and long-term residents, Helen and Herb
Watson.

Mr. Edward Michels, History teacher at Ridgefield Park
High School, and some of the students who researched
the information which appears in this book.

All Photos This Page: Lois Montgomery
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Board of Commissioners
1985

Left to Right:

Commissioner Edward A Alberque, Jr.
Commissioner George D. Fosdick
Mayor Fred Criscuolo

Commissioner John B. Davis
Commissioner John H. Anlian

Citizen speaks to
commisioners at
town meeting.

Mayor Criscuolo accepts Local firemen place Tercentennial Banner across Main St
Tercentennial Hat and T-shirt
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VILLAGE STREET SCENES

Euclid Avenue, looking
north from Mt. Vernon
Street.

The Bogert Vorhees House,
156 Teaneck Road at
Winant Avenue (Rt. 46).
Built around 1840: note
gazebo at front,

Euclid Avenue, looking south from Mt. Vernon

Street.
Firemen's Memorial at Cedar Street.



“THE JERSEY CHEVRONS" J&

AMERICAN LEGION POST ».--1,-;&.5..,
40 COLOR GUARD, . it
NATIONAL CHAMPIONS

VIET NAM VETERANS s
GROUNDBREAKING FOR .
VIET NAM MEMORIAL Il -
EUCLID AVENUE AND
PARK STREET

MONUMENT COMPLETED
AND DEDICATED,
NOVEMBER 10, 1985

GRANT SCHOOL 3RD
GRADERS
MEMORIAL DAY, 1985

Back to front, left to right: Joseph
Arrigo, Michael Rossi, Paul Quall,
Maurice Johnson, Brian Kickuth, Ross
Scheffler, Ronald Schaeffer, Christine
Haviaris, Dawn McDermitt, Michelle
Sanjek, Shannon Jaegge, Jennifer
Cooke, Melissa Beeman, Jennifer
Surniak, Karen Scutari, Christina
Simatos, Stacy Makarewicz, Dawn
Dwyer, Marissa Taffaro




Groundbreaking of Hartz Development - 1985
Left to right: Congressman Torricelli, Mayor Criscuolo, Hartz officials Stephen

Cowen and Eugene Heller

Only one track left on the ‘West Shore”. Through
freight trains only. Station now occupied by a school
supply company.

L 2 K tard ) i
Jdfa P\It_".‘_-_-'- . Beadea _[_‘_.._“c,l_l

According to legend this pouch was presented to Sara Kiersted by
the children of Chief Oratam. (See related story, page 69)
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IN MEMORIAM

Joseph Colwell
Philip Ford

Oscar Gaillard

Ernest Gneiding

Carl Brosskurth
Wladek Hajdukiewicz

Emil J. Beauchamp
Frederick W. Benkin
George Brantl
Lamont E. Buranelli
Thomas H. Cameron
Charles B. Chapman
Andrew D'Arienzo
Arthur . Diaz
Carmine DiGiacomo
James W. Duncan
Howard C. Fackiener
Elmer Eugene Feige
Wallace E. Flach
Harvey J. Fitzpatrick
Edward Louis Gehm
Frederick A. Gerstlaver
Paul Martin Glassen
Charles Gneiding
Arthur Greene
Charles E. Gutmann

Spec. 4 George A. Baker

PFC Richard Boltz
PFC Robert Cuccinelli
CWO James Doran

WORLD WAR |

Lewis Herbig
Ernet Nelson
George Semsey
Lillian Ward
Robert Williams

WORLD WAR 1l

John Benson Henwood
R. Hohn

George Alfred Knapp
Foster L. McMullen

Roy Richard Millar
Rudolph R. Pfeiffer
Armen Pohan

John F. Poma

John F. Reiners

Carl Rinker

William James Sands, Jr.
Philip Schaefer

Edgar B. Snell

Herbert Thorgersen
Walter Ward

Jacob H. Welker

Karl Wershoven

Edward Alexander White
Richard J. Young

VIETNAM WAR

PFC Lawrence J. LeDonne
Spec. 4 Michael Romano, Jr
Sgt. Robert J. Hoffman

The Committee wishes to apologize to any person whose loved one may have nadvertantly been left off th
Records of our war dead have not been kept. This listing has been compiled using names appearing an monun
the now defunct “Ridgefield Park Bulletin,” and the "‘Bergen Record.”” We also enlisted the aid of cur Villag
The Veterans of Foreign Wars, the Veterans Administration in Washington, D.C. and Mr. and Mrs [
proprietors of Voorhees Funeral Home.




RELIGIONS
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ST. FRANCIS OF tomy canetc fasies sas

ASSISI
ROMAN
CATHOLIC
CHURCH

Ridgefield Park In 1888, this small group

started their own Sunday School which
was held every Sunday at Sheils Hall on
the corner of Park Street and Lincoln
Avenue. The attendance at the Sunday
School never numbered more than

twenty

With the help of Father Hyacinthe of
Fort Lee, a meeting was held on
February 24, 1889, at the house of Mr
3 W O'Brien where an official commit-
tee, to be known as the St. Francis
Association, was formed for the sole pur-
pose of petitioning the Archdiocese of
Newark for permission to establish a

parish to be known as St. Francis of
Assisi, In Ridgefield Park, N.J. Such
recognition was immediately forthcom-
ing, and St. Francis Parish officially came
into being in April 1889. The first Parish
Sunday Mass was celebrated at Sheils
Hall

Efforts to raise money to build their
own Church were immediately started by
a handful of Catholic families. Messrs.
Sullivan and Gordon donated a piece of
property on the corner of Mt. Vernon
Street and Euclid Avenue. On November
18, 1889, ten months after coming into
being, the cornerstone for the first
Church was laid and a wooden structure
was built. The official dedication of the
Parish and First Mass was celebrated on
July 27, 1890

Visiting priests celebrated mass with
the congregation until the Archdiocese
of Newark assigned Father James M
Flanagan as the parish's first resident
pastor Immediately the parish increased
their efforts to raise funds and built a rec-
tory on Mt. Vernon Street adjacent to the
Church. As the congregation grew addi-
tional property on Mt Vernon Street was
purchased and the groundwork for ex-
pansion begun
On November 13, 1912, a new pastor
Father John M. McDonald, assumed the
charge of the parish At a congregation
meeting on October 20, 1914, it was
agreed to construct a new building on the
corner of Mt Vernon Street and Bergen
Avenue to house a new Church and
grammar school. Ground was broken
and the cornerstone laid on February 20,
1915, only four months after the final
decision to build. The building was com-
pleted and opened its doors to one hun-
dred seventy grammer school students in
September 1915. The ariginal schoal fac-
ulty consisted of four sisters from the Or-
der of the Sisters of Charity who lived on
the third floor of the building. The Church
was located in the new building and
served as such until the new Church was
built in 1932,

By 1919 it was evident that more
classrooms and new housing for the
sisters were needed. The parish pur-
chased property on Bergen Avenue with
the intent of building a convent,
however, on September 20, 1920 this
property was exchanged with Ernest
Alberque for the Alberque residence at
85 Hudson Avenue At that time Mr.
Alberque built a new house, a Spanish
type ranch, on the corner of Mt. Vemon
Street and Hudson Avenue. The good
sisters occupied this dwelling as a convent
until 1954 when a new convent was con-
structed on Park Street adjacent to the
school building.

St. Francis' congregation continued to
grow.On April 15, 1926, it was decided



to build a new Church on the site of the
original wooden church. The new
Church would permit the conversion of
the current church to additional school
facilities.

In 1926, Father John J. Butscher, was
assigned as resident pastor. The cor-
nerstone for the new Church was laid on
September 20, 1931. The official dedica-
tion of the new Church took place on
June 26, 1932 when Mass was celebrat-
ed. Two young priests who had been
raised in Ridgefield Park, Father Justin
McManus and Father John F. O’'Brien,
preached the sermons that day at the first
Mass and dedication respectively,

In 1948 Father Butscher took ill. As a
result, Father William McCann was as-
signed as administrator for one year. He
was replaced by Father Daniel O'Reilly in
1949

In 1950 a new administrator recently
discharged from the U.S. Navy as a full
Commander, Father James M. Coyle,
was assigned. Father James Coyle had
served in the Navy from the day after
Pearl Harbor, December 1941, until April
1950, having seen action in the Mediter-
ranean and Atlantic Ocean campaigns.
Father Coyle immediately began a move-
ment among the congregation to upgrade
the Church facilities. By September 1951
the old school building had been over-
hauled. In 1954 a new rectory and a new
convent were built. School enrollments
continued to grow. As a result, in 1960 an
addition was added to the old school
building. This addition included modern
classrooms, an auditorium and gymnasi-
um. By the late 1960's the school enroll-
ment increased to approximately one
thousand students.

Due to large crowds attending Mass it
was necessary to convert the Church
basement to a Chapel in order to provide
additional Masses. This conversion was
accomplished with volunteer help from
the congregation.

In 1970 Father Francis Ignacuinos was
assigned to St. Francis as Pastor. Today
with two assistants, Father Ignacuinos
takes care of the spintual needs of ap-

proximately 1,900 Catholic families and
supervises the operation of the large facil-
ity that St. Francis has grown to be.

The Church grounds and buildings
have become landmarks of the town
The Church bell tower can be seen from
miles around. Thousands of students
have been educated. Thousands of wed-
dings, baptisms, Holy Communions,
Confirmations, and other sacraments
have been administered since 1888 when
some twenty Catholic families petitioned
for their own parish

CHURCH
RIDGEFIELD
PARK

The Village of Ridgefield Park had
been incorporated only one year when
the First Baptist Church was organized on
December 3, 1893. The congregation
met in a number of places for worship
the Republican Hall on Grove Street, in a
store on Hobart Street, and in Lyman
Hall on Laurel Street. The church was in-
corporated in 1898 with fourteen charter
members. The first pastor was the Rev.
J.G. Shrive.

In January 1894 a lot on Winant
Avenue (now Route 46) was purchased
from Mrs. E. Wisner, a charter member,
who donated the adjoining lot In 1905 a
parsonage was built next to the church In
1910 Rev. E.C. Murphy became pastor
and served until 1916. Rev. Murphy
organized and was the first scoutmaster
for Troop 1, Boy Scouts of America, one
of the oldest troops in the country. This
troop still remains active in the church. In
1922 the Winant Avenue property was
sold and the present property on Euclid
Avenue and Hobart Street was secured
In 1912 the cornerstone of the present
building, along with the cornerstone from
the old building, dated 1894, was laid
The house on the corner property of
Euclid Avenue and Christie Street was
purchased in 1951, and it served as the
parsonage. In 1960 the basement of the
church was completely renovated, and in
1967 the sanctuary was renovated and

modernized A new electronic organ was
installed, replacing a one-hundred-year-

old pipe organ In 1973 the old par-
sonage was sold, and construction of a
new parsonage, which now adjoins the
church, was begun

First Baptist has been blessed with
many fine pastors over the years: Rev
Shrive and Rev. Murphy, previously men-
tioned; Rev. Alexander Frazer, Dr John
Keck; Dr. Carlton T. Mitchell; Dr. Robert
H. Roberts; Rev. F. Eugene Brown; Rev
Robert A. Austin; and the current pastor,
Robert A. Killeffer. In 1985, the 300th
anniversary of Ridgefield Park, First Bap-
tist continues to serve God in this
community

THE
REFORMED
PRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH
OF
RIDGEFIELD
PARK

The Reformed Presbyterian Church
Ridgefield Park has been ministering
the New York and New Jersey
politan area since 1790 The
tion in Ridgefield Park is the descs
of a congregation organized in Manhat
tan, New York on December 26, 1/9/




The o pa
Cibeon and the first elders were Jam
Nels lohn Currie, John Agnew
drew Gifford and David ¢ lark

The congregation has had
places of worship over the last 15U year :
and at one time there were five Reformed
Presbyterian congregations located in
New York City The first meetings of the
church were held at the home of Mr
John Agnew on Peck’s Slip, very near
what is now the South Street Seaport
Museum. Around the year 1818 the
church started the first Sunday school In
New York City. The church at that time
was located on Chambers Street east of
Broadway

The church joined the Ridgefield Park
community in 1979, when it purchased a
building formerly occupied by the First
Church of Christ, Scientist

The Reformed Presbyterian Church is
evangelical and reformed in doctrine,
and presbyterian in its government,

THE EPISCOPAL

CHURCH OF ST.
MARY

THE VIRGIN

The 1890's were busy times for the
citizens of a newly-incorporated
Ridgefield Park, and the Episcopalians.
who had been meeting in homes of wor-
shippers, made a decision to officially
organize the Episcopal Church of St
Mary the Virgin. In 1895, they rented a
hall in which to hold their services, and
James Barber was appointed temporary
lay leader. The Rev. N.T. Capel held a
Holy Communion service once a month

B':.‘ 1897 the conaregation had swelled
to thirty familie and the Rev Charles
Kidder was appointed minister in charge
The first church building wa
the southeast corns
Berage :

with I e ar

vices organizations raised money to fur-

terior of the church. Construc-
began in 1923. In
y wing containing a choir room and
vas pleted, and the main en-

y Euclid Avenue

Mary the Virgin
I and enhancements
1s a result of the sup-

ncreasing congrega-
Mary the Virgin was

nsecra Parish and still another
tion wa wde to the Parish Hall
the present rectory

sicquired and a full dormer added bv

The Episcopal Church of St Mary the
Virgin

the men of the parish. This replaced the
first vicarage that had been purchased n
1913

The congregation of St. Mary the
Virgin has continued to grow the
years, and improvements and :
nizations were made accordindvm::
the past, many memorials conti
enhance the appearance of all buildings
In 1985 St. Mary the Virgin had a cof
gregation of 138 families.
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THE FIRST
PRESBYTERIAN
CHURCH
OF RIDGEFIELD
PARK

The First Presbyterian Church of
Ridgefield Park began with the initiation
of a Sunday School on June 4, 1911, at
the Masonic Temple with one hundred
and twenty present. Shortly thereafter
worship services were started with visiting
pastors. The Presbytery of the Palisades
was petitioned to organize a new Church
and the Presbytery approved the request
On January 22, 1912, the Church was
formally organized with one hundred and
seventy-five charter members. On Oc-
tober 23, 1912 the Rev J.P. Stofflet was
installed as the first Pastor of the Church

The Church continued meeting at the
Masonic Temple but the growth of the
Church necessitated a building program
On March 27, 1912, the property at the
corner of Euclid Avenue and Poplar
Street was purchased, and ground break-
ing ceremonies were held on May 18
The building was open for use December
28,1913, and dedicated to the Service
and Glory of God on January 25, 1914

As the church program expanded, ad-
ditional space was required. It was de-
cided to add an adjoining building. The
new Fellowship Hall was dedicated on
September 23, 1937. The Church was
damaged by fire on January 16, 1967
Once again the congregation pulled to-
gether to cover non-insurable costs, re-
styled the altar area, and created a new
office area.

The Presbyterian Church is a co-
sponsor, with other churches and civic
groups, of the Senior Citizen apartments
being built in town and scheduled for
completion in late 1985 During the
Tercentennial Year of 1985 the Church
has purchased and dedicated a new
Rodgers Organ to enhance the music of
the Church.

During these years the Presbyterian
Church has been serving God through
the congregation and community. The
mission has been to serve people. And
the Church is grateful for the long list of
faithful members who have supported
this ministry through the years. The
Church has had the following pastoral
leadership:

The Rev. James P. Stofflet 1912-1927
The Rev. Robert Megaw . . . 1927-1948

The First Presbyterian Church of Ridgefield Park

The Rev Warren L. Howell 1948-1952
The Rev. Andrew Kasten 1953-1965
The Rev. W George French 1966-1968
The Rev. Walter G Arkell . . 1970-

FIRST UNITED
METHODIST
CHURCH

During the closing years of the 19th
Century, Ridgefield Park was a com-
munity consisting largely of farms with a
scattering of commuters, who traveled
daily to New York City for employment
purposes. Among these early settlers
were a few individuals sharing the beliefs
of the Methedist Episcopal church, who
felt the need for Christian fellowship and
the establishment of a community

church

The first Board of Trustees was elected
in 1891, and was comprised of two
Ridgefield Park members, Mr Charles
Mansfield and Mr D B. Darkman, and a
man drafted from the Hackensack
Church, Mr Amos Abbott. This last was
necessary as it was stated that the Trus-
tees must be members in full connection,
and there were only two Ridgefield Park
members willing to serve on this Board
Soon after the election of Trustees, the
Church was incorporated

Property on the north corner of Cedar
Street and Bergen Avenue was
chased in 1892, and a contract to build a
church building was awarded in 189
Meetings were held in Sheils Hall located
at the corner of Park Street and Li
Avenue, and later at the Town Ha
while the new church building wa
construction In 190:
made for the church to prepare for
church-owned parsonage, and the fw




present congregation has
nurchased. A pa torms of adversity, and
pleted in 1909 and a fifte l mprovements to
ston was added to the buildings. In 1980, they celebrated
with a room on the sids Oth anniversary. The members of
the Primary Departm: this congregation feel that, although they
to become the Fireside Rox was made a church wealthy in material
in 1949 things, they are advancing spiritually, and
Although this church family has sul are a posiive influence in the town
fered through three serious fires to its

RIDGEFIELD
PARK
HEBREW
ASSOCIATION
AND TEMPLE
EMANUEL

Bergen County's third oldest Jewish
religious organization (Hackensack and
Englewood predated this) had its incep-
tion in Ridgefield Park over sixty-fix years
ago. The first official meeting was held on
March 16, 1920, at which time officers
were elected by the twenty-four men
present, and dues were set at $5 a year
Those first officers were Dr. David Corn,
Louis Friedman, Henry Cohen, Henry
Kramer, S Z Brochin, Louis Rappaport,
and Benjamin Heyman Members of the
congregation were prominent merchants
in the Village of 1920

The congregation met first in officers’
homes. They later rented Overpeck Hall
on Main Street, and obtained permission
to use the West View Hose Company

ssaciation And Temple Emanuel




firehouse for services. In January, 1921,
the group purchased the large one-family
frame home on the corner of Park Street
and Bergen Avenue that houses the con-
gregation today.

The house itself has a unique history in
that it was one of the two model homes
built by the Ridgefield Land Building
Company in 1870 to promote the sale of
lots in their planned residential develop-
ment. Edward K. Alburtis and his
brother, Clement, had been buying up
large tracts of farm land in the 1860's and
began advertising Ridgefield Park as a
suburban development only one hour
from City Hall in New York. The Temple
building was extensively renovated in
1953, at which time an addition was
built, and again improved upon in 1970,
on the occasion of the Temple's fiftieth
anniversary

As stated in the minutes of the first of-
ficial meeting, the original purpose of the
organization was “to perpetuate the
teachings of Judaism, and to bring
together in harmonious social intercourse
the Jewish element in our community "
The purposes as expressed in the present
constitution refer to perpetuating Juda-
ism; developing and strengthening the
principles of the Jewish faith; and pro-
viding for and stimulating the spiritual,
cultural, and general welfare of its
members

Ridgefield Park, with its close proximi-
ty to New York, became the training
ground for young rabbis from the Jewish
Theological Seminary who wished to
gain valuable experience in the rabbinate
and continue their studies at the same
time. Many of them have become quite
prominent in the rabbinate and in Jewish
education, and have gone on to larger
congregations and varied achievements
throughout the country. One in par-
ticular, Richard Rubinstein, has become
world renowned as a Jewish theologian;
has written and has published many
books; and lectures throughout the
world.

At the present time, as a result of a
sizable increase in membership over the
past three years, Temple Emanuel has
undertaken a renovation and rehabilita-
tion of its facilities. Under the leadership
of Rabbi Stephen Lerner, Temple Eman-
uel is recognized as a leader in Conser-
vative Judaism, and in the forefront in
Bergen County in giving equal rights of
participation to women. The organization
is proud of its continued service to the
community, and is pleased to be serving
the fourth generation of Jewish families
since its beginnings.

NEIGHBORHOOD
REFORMED
CHURCH

The founding of the Neighborhood
Reformed Church in Ridgefield Park
began as a matter of concern for the
safety of children. In the early 1900's a
number of children in the community
were killed crossing the railroad tracks
enroute to the Community Church in
Bogota (now known as the Bogert Mem-
orial Reformed Church) Mr Robert S.
Sugden, the assistant Sunday School
Superintendent of the Bogert Church,
saw the need to start a new Sunday
School up on the hill, and it was through
his efforts that the Sunday School ob-
tained permission to use the upstairs of
the Central Avenue Firehouse in Bogota
on Sunday afterncons.

The Sunday School continued to grow
as children and adults came from
Ridgefield Park, Bogota, and Teaneck to
attend services The Rev Frank L
Shield, Associate Pastor of Bogert
Church, provided ministerial services as
needed At his urging the Domestic Mis-
sion of the Reformed Church in America
purchased land at the juncture of the
three towns, and shortly thereafter plans
for the initial church building were under-
way. The cornerstone was laid on July
17, 1923

On January 6, 1924, fifty-six men and
women joined the church as charter
members. These first members of the

church wanted its name to reflect their
feeling that they were truly a congrega-

tion ministering to their neighbors in
I f}x--'

I IT
three communities. Thus the name o

Neighhr wrhood Relormed Church was
adopted
In 1925 the Rev Theaodore

Brinkerhoff was installed as the first
pastor. The membership of the church
continued to grow steadily. The par-
sonage at 48 Arthur Street was obtained
from the Westervelt Family in 1946 The
Rev Stanley Slingerland, who was in-
stalled as Pastor in 1946, became the first
occupant of the new parsonage

In the early 1960's construction of
Route 80 dealt a harsh blow to this con-
gregation. It was built immediately to the
north of the church building, and cut
through three long blocks of homes in the
neighboring community, displacing at
least one-fourth of the church families
This caused the church to suffer a
tremendous loss of leadership and
morale. At this time the church was
under the leadership of the Rev. Chester
Wing, who had become the pastor in
1950

The Rev. Roy Paterik was installed on
June 24, 1979 In 1985 the membership
of this church was 120 with a Sunday
Schoal enrollment of thirty. The church
recently celebrated its sixtieth anniver-
sary, commending those members who
worked over the years with extreme
dedication, devotion, and love, for God
and for the people of the neighboring
communities

Neighborhood Reformed Churct
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CHRIST
LUTHERAN
CHURCH

This congregation was organized on
November 8. 1906, as the Fvar gelical
Christ Church of Ridgefield Park, New
dersey, with twenty adult members under
the Ji.’n:lli?!’i"ll[fl of Pastor Max Voelker of
St. Mark's Church in Hackensack. Ser
vices were held in the Town Hall Prior to
formation a few German-speaking peo
ple had held services in the Epis opal
Church of St Mary the Virgin On Jan
uary 6, 1907, the first Church Council

was elected. A building site on Euclid
Avenue, near Route 46, was purchased
The Euclid Avenue property was sold in
1909, and from 1909 through 1913, the
congregation met to worship at several
the Town Hall, the First
Methodist Church, the First Baptist
Church, and the Congregational
Church, which 1s now the R|dgefieid Park
Public Library at Euclid Avenue and
Cedar Street. Pastor Carl Krieger was
called in November, 1917, ties with St
Mark's were severed, and a second con-
shitution was adopted Pastor Krieger in-
froduced services in the English language
which were held on the first and third
Sundays of each month

In July, 1918, the present church site

locations

at Mt Vernon Street and Bergen Avenue
was acquired On March 6, 1921, the
church was incorporated under the laws
of the State of New Jersey The cor-
nerstone of the present church was laid
on September 10, 1922 In 1925, Pastor
John Schmitthenner was installed as the
first resident pastor, and a parsonage was
purchased at 41 Bergen Avenue During
this year the third constitution was
adopted, English services were in-
creased, and the bell tower was installed.

A campaign was launched in Novem-
ber, 1948, to raise money toward the
building of a Parish House. On March 7,
1954, Pastor George Leedom, Jr was
called to begin the longest pastorate in the
history of the church. Weekly celebration
of the Holy Communion was instituted
Negotiations with the Emanuel Lutheran
Church were held that year for a possible
merger, but even in subsequent years
those ideas never came to fruition. The
Parish House building was completed in
1957

The Rev. Robert O Kriesat was called
as pastor in April, 1972 During his
pastorate many changes took place at
Christ Church. The decision was made to
sell the parsonage at 41 Bergen Avenue
and allow Pastor Kriesat to purchase his
own home Major renovations have been
made in the recent past. In February,
1981, the parishioners and friends spent
nine days in the Holy Land reliving the
events of Biblical times under the
guidance of Pastor Kriesat. Christ
Lutheran Church continues as an integral
part of life in Ridgefield Park, serving this
community in many ways.



FIRST CHURCH
OF CHRIST,
SCIENTIST

Christian Science was discovered by a
New England woman, Mary Baker Eddy,
in 1866 In 1889, Blanche Squire moved
to Ridgefield Park, and thus began the
history of the Christian Science Church
here Followers met in Hackensack, but
early in 1911 several families met in
private homes in Ridgefield Park to read
the weekly Lesson-Sermon  After one of
these gatherings they decided 1o start a
church in Ridgefield Park

At first called a Christian Science
Society, the new church held its first ser-
vice on November 24, 1912, in the
Municipal Building In March 1917, the
growing congregation purchased a lot at
Main Street and Hackensackh Avenue
Herman Nichaus, a builder who had expe-
rienced a healing in Christian Science, de-
signed and built the church. The first
service was held in the new building in
September 1920 The church was not
dedicated until 1929, when it was free of
debt

The church's pipe organ, installed by
Skinner Organ Company, is of special
design to permit the use of shorter and
narrower pipes to fit the available space,
and resulted in exceptional tone It is one
of the larger pipe organs in this area

During the late 1970's, due to failing
membership, the church was forced to
close and was purchased by The Re-
formed Presbyterian Church in 1979

THE UNION
CHURCH

Prior to 1890 the anly church in
Ridgefield Park was St Francis Roman
Catholic Church In that same year the
first Protestant church was organized All
those who were not of the Catholic faith
attended the Union Church on the
southeast corner of Euclid Avenue on
Park Street facing Euclid Avenue. The
first pastor was Rev. Alan MacNeil Upon
the death of Rev. MacNeil, the Rev.
Gnagey became the pastor. Later the
building was turned to face Park Street.
The Euclid Avenue lot was held for a
possible community building.

The Union Church

In the 1890's other Protestant church-
es were organized, and the people left the
Union Church to join the denomination
of their choice

In the 1940's the church closed its
doors for the last time and sold its proper-

ty to the Village of Ridgefield Parl

old Union Church is now the C
ter It has been remodeled
serves the community

Center Lunches are sen
addition to the buildin
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EMANUEL LUTHERAN
CHURCH

In a time when life was simpler than itis
today, most communities were made up
of residences, shops and businesses built
around a church. This was the form of
community which developed in West-
view (section of Ridgefield Park) at the
end of the last century On July 4, 1894,
a group of Swedish people from New
York got off a train at the Westview sta-
tion and walked up to the church site and
looked over the area. The plan was to
create a Swedish community in this
place. Homes were being built and fam-
ilies were moving in and before long the
Lutherans who came here wanted to
organize a church. The Scandinavian
Evangelical Luthern Emanuel Church
was organized in the home of Mr and
Mrs. Andrew Jeppson on the 26th day of
JLIFII-'.'. ]8‘1-‘—1 At the annual meeting on

January 1, 1896, also held in the Jepp
son home, a building committee was
elected and instructed to procurs
of worship. Plans submitted b

Johanson were a
meeting on May 31, 1896 and by
Thanksgiving of the same year, ths

bullding was completed and dedicated by
the Rev. Dr Mauritz Stolpe, pastor of
Gustavus Adolphus Lutheran Church in
New York. At first there were no resident
pastors to serve the congregation A
pastor Cunningham from the Union
Church in town preached here and a
German Lutheran, Pastor Erachlagen,
was in charge of the congregation for a
time. This caused a greater concern from
synodical officials, who then sent stu-
dents from Upsala College to conduct
services

The first resident pastor was the Rev
Fritlof Bjork, who began his work here in
1908 There was no residence for the
pastor's use until the ministry of the Rev
Gottfrid Olson. In 1911, the parsonage
was built by Ivar Johnson at a cost of
$2.489 00 In 1914, Pastor Karl A. Mar-
tin began his ministry which was to last
until 1942 He brought about the transi-
tion from Swedish to English, and the
name of the congregation changed to
Emanuel Evangelical Lutheran Church.

During the 1950's a building was pur-
chased at 98 Central Ave , which was
completely renovated and adapted for
use as a parish hall — the Emanuel
Educational and Social Center Pastor
R E Bloomdall began his work at Eman-
uel in the fall of 1960. His ministry lasted
until 1969, when the church closed its
doors forever

REVEREND LESLIE LARSEN AND MEMBERS OF THE CONGREGATION-
1940's-EMANUEL LUTHERAN CHURCH.
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TERCENTENNIAL CALENDAR
OF EVENTS

Inter-faith Service held at St. Francis Church at 4:00 p.m. to apen the Tercentennial Year
Presentation of banner and logo to Board of Commissioners. Awards to logo contestants. Reception in Municipal
Building at 8:30 p.m.

Banner Day. Display Tercentennial banner across Main Street at Mt. Vernon Street at 2:00 p.m
Men's Communion Breakfast, Baptist Church at 8:00 a.m.
“Dancing thru the Ages", dancing exhibition at the Elks Lodge, 4-00 p.m.

Annual Scholarship Dance (Tercentennial theme), St. Francis Gym, 9:00 p.m. to 1:00 am
“R. P. in Pictures" exhibit sponsored by the Public Library, to be held at the Civic Center, 1:00 - 6:00 p.m

Easter Egg Hunt sponsored by Board of Recreation and Ambulance Corps, to be held at Veterans Park at 9:00
a.m.

VFW Ladies Auxiliary Champagne Brunch, 109 Bergen Turnpike, 11:00 am. till 2:00 p.m

“Music in the Park" concert featuring Eugenio Fernandi, in the R. P. High School Auditorium at 3:00 p.m
Arbor Day tree planting sponsored by the Shade Tree Commission, to be held at 1:00 p.m. at Main and
Brinkerhoff Streets

R. P. Woman's Club planting in front of Library.

Rotary Run sponsored by the Ridgefield Park-Bogota Rotary Club, at 1:00 p.m Fellowship Park, followed by
Family Fun Run at 3:00 p.m.

Memorial Day. Vietnam Veterans dedication and services at 11:00 am., Euclid Avenue.

Library Summer Reading Program: Theme “‘Our Town"

VFW "Old Fashioned Dance in the Park', 2:00-6:00 p.m. in the VFW parking lot.
Little League Week

Flag Day. Displaying of Capitol Flag

"Americanism Night'', dinner-dance sponsored by the Elks, held at the L.odge
Masons 75th Anniversary dinner-dance

Annual July 4th Parade
““Fifty-Plus" reception held at the Elks Lodge, 2-4 p.m., honoring all villagers who have resided in town over 50
years.

Family Day Parade from Preston & Hudson Streets down Main Street. Dedication of plague for Christie House as
an historical site Brinkerhoff reunion.

“Fifty-Plus" reception held at the Elks Lodge, 2-4 p.m., honoring villagers who have resided in town over 50
years.

Homecoming Day for all alumni of RP High School Open House at the High School gum at 10:00 a.m. followed
by the first football game of the season (RP vs Tenafly) at 2:00 p.m

St. Francis Feast

Fire Prevention Display at Mt. Vernon and Main Streets.

Fire Prevention Week

75th Anniversary Hook & Ladder Company #2.

Knights of Columbus and Mansons Softball Game, 10:30 a.m., Little League Field

Fellowship Week

Knights of Columbus Walk-a-Thon for the Needy, 12 noon at Park Street and Bergen Avenue

Tercentennial Dinner-Dance at the Tamcrest Country Club, Alpine, NJ
Dedication of the Vietnam Veterans Memorial, 2:00 p.m. at Euclid Avenue and Park Street
Church of St. Mary the Virgin Birthday Celebration Fair

Gala Christmas Concert in the High School Auditorium at 3:00 p.m Guest artists Kathrun Gravse
Fernandi.

Community Carol Sing by the Jr. Women's Club at 4:00 p.m

Tree Lighting Ceremony at 6:00 p.m. at the Municipal Building.




GOVERNMENT

From 1892 to 1912, the Village was governed by a Board of Trustees. Since 1912, Commission
form of government, as provided for by the Walsh Act, has been in effect. From 1912 to 1969 there
were three members of the Village Commission. Since 1969 there have been five. Members of the
Commission select one of their number to be Mayor. Commissioners are elected to four year terms
in May of the Presidential election year. Voters retain the right of Initiative, Referendum, and Recall.
Each Commissioner has responsibility for the activities of the Departments under his jurisdiction.
For many vears, except during July and August when only one public meeting is held, the
Commission has held public meetings the 2nd and 4th Tuesday evenings of each month. Caucus
meetings are held the Thursday evening prior to the public meeting. By law, all meetings except
those dealing with negotiations and personnel matters are open to the public. The Commission form
of government is non-partisan and this tradition has been closely followed in Ridgefield Park. The
Commissioners approve all appointments to Village Boards and Agencies.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Fred J. Criscuoclo, Mayor

Edward A. Alberque, Jr. John B. Davis
John H. Anlian George D. Fosdick
BOARD OF HEALTH LOCAL ASSISTANCE BOARD
Dorothy Crowl, President Elmira Samus Agnes Wagner, Chairman
Saba Bologna Leroy Schrumpf Dorothy Crowl
Joan Hanak Joseph Villanella Mary Puleio, Welfare Director
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT (ZONING) PLANNING BOARD
James Brown, Chairman Florence McGaughran Frederic Rosen, Chairman  Peter Puleio
Thomas Gondolfo Michael Messina Efrem Brauer Stephen Quinn
Wilbert Heinrich John Antola, alternate Whitney Conley Albert Zaccone
Albert Knaub Michael Lauer, alternate Gabriel Cummings Mayor Fred Criscuolo
Charles McCormick Gerard Garofalow Commissioner Edward Alberque

Charles McCormack

LIBRARY BOARD
SHADE TREE COMMISSION

Robin Sweeney, President Steven Frimmer

Rhoda Brauer Casper Lundberg Robert Perna, Chairman Lynn Conley
Doris Conley Mayor Fred Criscuolo Janet Ballard Frank Garofalow
Walter Dorgan Doris Conley Fred Hartman

POOL COMMISSION

Jane Durkin, Chairman John Nevin Mayor Fred Criscuolo

Fred Errion Thomas Reilly Commissioner Edward Alberque
Mary Ann Hansen Donald Vorhees Commissioner John Davis

Jean McCarton Gene Warlikowski

BOARD OF RECREATION

Maureen Gibbs, Presideni Donna LaTour Homer Pollard
Diane Catalano Theresa Lauer Harold Quimby
Thomas DeSocia Kathy Mangano Walter Reverri
Michael Hannigan Joyce McClintock Michael Sinclair

Breda Kirschner Lisa Noll



JUVENILE CONFERENCE COMMITTEE
AND YOUTH GUIDANCE COUNCIL

Stella Cummings, Chairman Rev. Shawn Hogan
Peter Bergman Richard LaTour
Vincent Bernaducci Charles Mazarella
Daniel DiArchangel Judy Morton
Lorraine DiArchangel John Stetson
Detective Robert Lee,
Liaison

SOUTHEAST REGIONAL COMMISSION

Peter Bergman
Hugh McManus

RENT STABILIZATION BOARD

Raymond Eden

Ernest Giordano
Francis Kasse

Harold Lehman

Robert Pedevill

Edwin Coyle, Alternate
Florence Hills, Alternate

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Efrem Brauer

Gilbert Gibbs

Eugene P. Mcintyre

Louis J. Perna

Leroy Schrumpf

Thomas Sweeney

Mayor Fred Criscuolo
Commissioner Edward A Alberque
Commissioner John H. Anlian
Commissioner John B. Davis
Commissioner George D. Fosdick

FOURTH OF JULY COMMITTEE

Frank Romano, Chairman Peter Puleio
Milton Barry Cleo Pollard
Meg Botto James Pollard
Michele DeSantis Elmer Reick
Mary Fagnano Anthony Salerno
Arlene Kubat Jennie Scibetta
Terry Magarelli Loretta Vorhees
Joyce McClintock Harry Welte

William O'Connor

VILLAGE OFFICIALS

Village Clerk and Tax Collector
Principal Deputy Clerk and Registrar

Deputy Registrar

Welfare Director

Health Officer

Sanitarian

Board of Health Physician
Municipal Court Judge
Violations Clerk

Deputy Violations Clerk

- Elizabeth Hannigan
- Dolores Nealon

- Sarah Warlikowski
- Mary Puleio

- Guy Stark

- Diane Weir

- Nelli Lee, M.D

- James Pappas

- Geraldine Musella
- Marie Langschultz

Construction Cade Official & Acting Assessor - Gerard Garofalow

Plumbing Inspector
Housing Inspector

Fire Official & Fire Subcode Official

Library Director
Superintendent - D.P.W.

Assistant Superintendent - D.P.W.

Chief of Police

Fire Chief

1st Assistant Fire Chief
2nd Assistant Fire Chief

Captain - Ambulance Corps

Chief - Rescue Squad
Captain - Special Police
Fire Alarm Superintendent
Electrician

Historian

Village Attorney - Martin Durkin

- Harry Hansen

- Whitney Conley

- William Hillermeir
- Phyllis Rosenthal
- Harry Welte

- Alan O'Grady

- Walter Grossmann
- Edward Wahl

- Leonard Hatton

- James Wilson

- Herbert Lowe

- Robert Carlson

- Michael Knott

- John Holler

- Edward Langschultz
- Frank Romano

Village Engineer - Boswell Engineering Company
Village Auditor - Laufeld & Buono 125
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ELECTION ROUNDUP

Milt Barry has compiled the following summary of Board of Commissioners elections over the last

half-century. Reco
candidates for each year

1932
*Edwin S. Ferris 2,101
*Arthur W. Kneerim 2,060
*Herbert | Lowe 2,021
Hugh McGowan Jr 1,840
Alexander Kueller 1,546
Herbert Williams 1,335
John H. Doscher 1,213
Louis A. Eucker Sr 1,006
Wm. H. Christman 353

Reg. Voters: 6,416;
Votes Cast: 4,653; Pct: 72%

1936
*Herbert |. Lowe 2,275
*H. Henry Ludewig 1,783
*George F. Malley 1,749
Frank L. Chapman 1,425
George F. Wagner 1,419
Alexander Kueller 1,199
Louis J. Latzko 864
Ray M. Newman 800
William Windecker 674
Allan MacNeill 479
Thomas Chatterton 364
Hilding Hammarlund 160

Reg. Voters: 7,138;
Votes Cast. 4,536; Pct: 63.54%

1940
*Ernest G. Alberque Jr. 2,652
*George F. Wagner 2,519
*Herbert 1. Lowe 2,498
Frank L. Chapman 1,373
John Heck 1,023
George L. Barnes 878

Reg. Voters: 7,201;
Votes Cast: 3,882, Pct: 53.9%

1944
*Ernest G. Alberque, Jr 1,195
*George F. Wagner 1,185
*Herbert 1. Lowe 1,168

(Only one ticket in race; no independents.)
Reg. Voters: 5,860
Votes Cast: 1,183: Pct: 20%

*Ross S. Voagt 2 s 1,723
*Herbert |. Lowe 1,666

et ————

rds prior to the 1932 election could not be located. Asterisks indicate the winning

*George F. Wagner 1,661
Edward Eucker 1,303
James G. Sennett 1,212
Raymond Walkemeyer 966
John F. McCann 781
Joseph S. Floyd 664

Reg. Voters: 6,307,
Votes Cast: 3,450; Pct: 54.7%

1952
*Ross S. Voagt 899
*George F. Wagner 897
*Herbert . Lowe 816

(Only one ticket in race; no independents.)
Reg. Voters: 5,869,
Votes Cast: 1,002; Pct: 16%

1956
*Ross S. Vogt 2,191
*Edward Eucker 1,816
*Daniel J. Collins 1,804
Walter R. Hespe 1,792
Joseph S. Floyd 1,652
Gerald E. Monaghan 1,473

Reg. Voters: 5,839;
Votes Cast: 3,645; Pct. 61%

1960
‘Lawrence A. Musella 2,150
*William A. Wagner, Jr. 2,078
‘Gerald E. Monaghan 2,077
Joseph S. Floyd 2,061
Walter R. Hespe 1,974
Ross S. Vogt 1,966
Giles Brent 565

Reg. Voters: 6,284
Votes Cast: 4,326; Pct: 68.8%

1964
‘Efrem Brauer 1,843
‘William A. Wagner, Jr. 1,469
*Louis E. Windecker 1,199
Lawrence A. Musella 993
Daniel J. Collins 841
Robert J. Alberque 811
Giles Brent 686
Patsy Filardi 634
John J. McCloskey 609
Louis D. Magarelli 453
Philip V. Sclafani 348



Harry Young 274
John S. Battaglia 150
Reg. Voters: 6,028;

Votes Cast: 3,621; Pct. 60%

1965
(Special Recall Election)

PART 1 - Shall William A. Wagner Jr. be removed
from the office of Commissioner by recall:
Yes - 1,931 No - 1,797
Shall Louis E. Windecker be removed from the
office of Commissioner by recall:

Yes - 1,659 No - 1,532

PART 2 - Nominees for Successor to William A.

Wagner, Jr.
Frank A. Callahan 1,080
*William A. Wagner Jr. 1,579
Joseph S. Floyd 922

Nominees for Successor
to Louis E. Windecker

Arthur R. Jeanos 1,065
*Louis E. Windecker 1,568
Richard Birdsall 909

Reg. Voters: 6,254,
Votes Cast: 3,810; Pct: 61.8%

1968
*Gilbert A. Gibbs 2.460
*Eugene P. Mclntyre 2,318
*‘Benito A. Deluca 2,282
William A. Wagner Jr. 990
Robert A. Cosmanic 786
Henry S. Paglione 769
Louis E. Windecker 695
Louis D. Magarelli 606
Robert K. Planker 576
Kenneth J. O’Brien 312
John S. Battaglia 284

Reg. Voters: 6,283;
Votes Cast: 4,048; Pct: 65%

1969
(Special Election to Increase the Commission
from 3 to 5 Members)

*John E. Davis 1,601
*Thomas G. Johnson 1,429
Robert A. Cosmanic 624
John S. Battaglia 433
Louis E. Windecker 375
Donald Kahrer 5

Reg. Voters: 6,660,
Votes Cast: 2,307; Pct: 35%

1972
‘Gilbert A. Gibbs 2,040
*Eugene P. Mclintyre 2,038

*Louis J. Perna
‘Benito A. Del.uca
*Thomas G. Johnson
James Liess
Alexander Bulay Jr.
Henry S. Paglione
Robert A. Cosmanic
John S. Battaglia
Richard Connolly
Reg. Voters: 6,940,
Votes Cast: 3,178; Pct: 45%

1976
‘Eugene P. Mcintyre
*Gilbert A. Gibbs
‘Louis J. Perna
*Leroy V. Schrumpf
*Thomas G. Johnson
Robert F. Thompson
Reg. Voters: 6,526,
Votes Cast: 2,439; Pct: 37%

1980
*Edward A. Alberque Jr.
William J. Donohue Jr.
Victor D. Florio Sr.
Richard H. LaTour
Ronald Margiotta
Robert A. Cosmanic
Lorraine DiArchangel
Doris MacDonald
C. Whitney Conley
*Fred Criscuolo
*John B. Davis
*Louis J. Perna
William J. Beatty
Thos. E. Cunningham
Gregory L. Quimby
*John H. Anlian
Joan E. Pellett
Reg. Voters: 6,376
Votes Cast: 3,043; Pct. 48%

1984
*Fred Criscuolo
*Edward A. Alberque Jr.
*John H. Anlian
*John B. Davis
*George Fosdick
David Duncan
Catherine Houston
Reg. Voters: 6,567

Votes Cast: 2,182; Pct: 33.27%

1,901
1,830
1,717
1,673
1,449
1,030

1,056
853
753
959
871
542
371
483
924

1,303

1,226

1,152
985
509
501

1,167
692

1,687
1,632
1,547
1,697
1,473
1,190

640



BOARD OF EDUCATION

Mrs. Patricia Jacob, President

Mrs. Lorraine DiArchangel
Mr. Raymond Dwyer, Jr.
Mr. Walter Grossmann, Jr.
Mr. James Keogh

Mr. Charles Juris, Superintendent of Schools
Mr. Michael Hayser, Board Secretary

FACULTY LIST 1985-86

RIDGEFIELD PARK HIGH SCHOOL

Mrs. Catherine Mangano
Mr. Joseph Meehan

Mr. Fred Monaghan

Mr. Anthony Salerno

Mr. Joseph Celauro, Principal Mr Rebert Mollusky, Director of Adult Education
Mr. Robert Sipos, Assistant Principal
Mr. Joseph Armbruster Soc. St Mr. Ronald Marinco For. Lang.
Mr. Bruce Benny Eng. Mr Manuel Mendez For. Lang.
Mr. Vincent Bernarducci Eng. SPV. Mr. Edward Michels Soc. St.
Ms Sheila Boylan Phys, Ed. Mr Robert Mollusky Sci.
Mrs. Rhoda Brauer Math SPV Mr. Robert Morris Phys. Ed
Mr. Francesca Caldwell Eng Mr. Edward Nemeth Sci. SPV
Mr. Michael Conrad Art. Miss Cleo Notarides Soc. 5t.
Mrs. Joanne Cooney Eng. Mrs. Margaret Nowicki Bus. Ed.
Mrs. Patricia Curtis Math Mr. Blaine Papaccio Math. St.
Mr. Thomas Cusker Eng. Mr. John Parnofiello Soc. St.
Mr. John Damis Soc. St. Mrs. Ida Perez For. Lang.
Mr. William Dryer Soc. St Mrs Crystalline Posze Math.
Mr. William Duffy Sei. Mr. Anthony Russomagno Ind. Art
Mrs. Jane Durkin Math. Mrs. Susan Salzman For. Lang.
Mr. George Eardley For. Lang SPV. Mr. Eugene Sampietro Bus Ed.
Mrs. Rachele Farnum For. Lang. Mrs. Catherine Scalese Home Ec.
Mr. David Francisco Sci. Mr. Roy Schrumpf Bus. Ed. SPV.
Mrs. Gail Frisz Math. Mrs. Virginia Shoda Bus. Ed.
Mr. Hernando Gonzalez Phys. Ed. Mrs. Janet Sisko Art SPV.
Ms. Alyse Gutter Phys. Ed. Mrs. Dolly Speropoulos Math.
Ms. Simone Hilfstein Sei. Mrs. MaryEllen Stiehl Eng.
Miss Kathryn Keene Eng. Mr. James Taylor Eng.
Ms. Elisabeth Kehoe Eng. Mrs. Marney Thorsland Phys. Ed.
Miss Irene Koterba Math Mrs. Elaine Varneckas Bus. Ed.
Mr. Theodore Kyriazes Soc. St. SPV. Mr. Thomas Walsh Ind. Art
Mr. Ralph Lella Phys. Ed. SPV.
Mr. Wayne Ligas Music Mr. Michael Caputo Librarian
Mr. Thomas Maisano Bus. Ed.
GUIDANCE
Mrs. Mary Bonney SPV. Mr. Richard Mola

Ms. Jacqueline Crocitto
Mr. Samuel Maczko

COMPENSATORY EDUCATION
Mr. Joseph Branda

HIGH SCHOOL SECRETARIES

Mrs. Pear| Beza
Mrs. Diane Cummiskey
Mrs. June Gallitano

HIGH SCHOOL CUSTODIAL STAFF

Mr Alfred Rhode, Head Custodian Mr
Mr. Wayne Graff Mr
Mr. Michael Lupo Mr
Mrs. Sylvia Maresca Mr

Mr. William Melntyre

Mrs. Elizabeth Verdoni

Mrs. Dorathea Maciejunes
Mrs. Rita Olson
Mrs. Veronica Vercelli

. Robert Roberts

. Thomas Roberts
. Thomas Stauffer
. Alex Wroblewski



SABBATICAL LEAVE — 1985-86
Mrs. Lucy Sodano

LINCOLN SCHOOL

Mr. John Ranone, Principal
Mrs. Patricia Gallo, Secretary

Mrs. Eileen Barber 2
Mrs. Edna Deutsch 4
Mr. Bryan Egan 6
Mr. Perry Marchesi 7/8
Mrs. Theresa McDonough 1
Miss Linda Messana 3
Mr. Mark Press 7/8
Mrs. Helene Richardson ]
Mr. Peter Salierno 7/8
Mrs. Cathleen Savino K
Miss Michele Tarallo 7/8
Dr. Vincent Trotta 7/8
Mrs. Arlene Ciavarella Media
Mr. Steve Acierno, Head Custodian

Mr. William Willock, Custodian

Mr. Emiel Yodonise, Custodian

ROOSEVELT SCHOOL

Mr. Robert Censullo, Principal =

Mrs. Sophie Garvey, Secretary

Mr. Nils Abate 7/8
Mrs. Debra Battaglia 7/8
Miss Frances Clark 4
Miss Doreen Delanni 2
Miss Eileen Murphy o
Ms. Barbara Orrico-Holzinger 5
Mrs. Lillian Picariello 6
Mr. Elliot Pollack 7/8
Mrs. Barbara Richter 7/8
Mrs. Cathleen Savino K
Mrs. Marilyn Shapiro 1
Dr. Vincent Trotta 7/8
Miss Joyce Ringele Media

Mr. Robert Galbraith, Head Custodian
Mr. Frank Cartland, Custodian
Mr. Robert Thiel, Custodian

SPECIAL SUBJECT TEACHERS

Mr. Dennis Bellars Art

Mr. Ensio Danese Music
Mr. Richard Goodman Music
Mr. Norman Lanchart Phys. Ed
Mrs. Elizabeth Lockwood Phys. Ed

Ms. Deborah Novak Art

Mr. Oscar Olivera Music
Mr. Frank Shoda Ind. Art
Mr Paul Simeone Music
Mr. Louis Simoni Phys. Ed
Mrs. Rosemary Thiel Home Ec.

CHAPTER 1
Mr. Joseph Tondi

ENGLISH AS A SECOND LANGUAGE
Ms. Marion Kamer

MAINTENANCE CREW
Mr Guiseppe D'Ulisse, Utility Man
Mr. Clifton West, Maintenance Mechanic

GRANT SCHOOL

Mr. Kenneth Monaco, Principal
Mrs. Emily Kroncke, Secretary
Mrs. Gail Ahrlich

Mrs Charlotte Byrne

Mrs. Ruth Crewe

Mr. Louis DeCarlo

Mr. Vincent Guglielmotti

Mr. Joseph Ippolito

Mrs. Peggy Knapp

Mrs. Maryanne Olsen

Mrs. Kathleen Passarella

Mrs. Gail O'Connor

Mr. Walter Dompke, Head Custodian
Mr. Anthony Kernelli, Custodian
Mr. Ray Perry, Custodian

MR wWWhsaowu — R

Media

SPECIAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Mr. Daniel Morro, Director

Mrs. Palmeria Crawford, Secretary

Mrs. Carol Caloras, Special Ed., GS

Mr. Anthony Canale, Special Ed., HS
Mrs. Deborah Egizi, Resource Room, RS
Miss Rita Florio, pt. tm. psychologist
Mrs. Laura Freiberger, LDTC, HS

Mrs. Barbara Frimmer, Speech Correction
Miss Maureen Gibbs, Resource Room GS
Mrs. Doris MacDonald, RN, HS

Mr. Robert Maginn, Psychologist

Miss Donna Marino, Special Ed., RS

Mrs. Phyllis Mcintyre, RN, Elementary

Miss Janet Napolitano, Resource Room, HS
Mrs. Fran Robinson, Resource Room, LS
Mrs. Pearl Roth, LDTC, RS

Mrs. Charlotte Sampietro, LDTC, GS/LS
Miss Beverly Serafini, Special Ed., LS

Miss Carole Scardigno, Special Ed , HS
Mrs. Lynda Starker, Supplemental

Mr. Paul Vico, Social Worker

BASIC SKILLS INSTRUCTOR
Miss Zoe Savas

CENTRAL OFFICE PERSONNEL

Mrs. Katherine Allison
Secretary, Superintendent’s Office
Mrs. Rose Gunning,
Accounts Payable Clerk
Mrs. Karin MacNeill,
Superintendent’s Secretary

Mrs. Agnes O'Gara

Secretary to Board Secretary
Mr. Vincent Vena,

Supply Clerk



RIDGEFIELD PARK VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT

Probably no other single organization reaches as deeply into
the life of the community as the volunteer fire department
After a disastrous fire in December 1891, concerned residents
gathered at the general store and the opinion was unanimous
that a volunteer fire company should be formed at once From
this impromptu meeting emerged Hose Co. #1, forerunner of
the Ridgefield Park Volunteer Fire Department

In early 1892 Friendship Hook & Ladder Co. #1 was
formed, followed by Hose Co. #2 in 1905 Hose Co. #3 was
organized in 1906 In 1910 Hazelton Heights Fire Co. #4 was
formed, but with the purchase of a hand-drawn hook and ladder
truck in 1912, the company became Hook & Ladder Co. #2,
which it has remained ever since. In 1911, at a meeting to
discuss fire protection for the section south of the present Route
46, Active Chemical and Hose Company was formed, now
known as Hose Co. #4

The Ridgefield Park Fire Department today is one of the
finest volunteer fire departments in the State of New Jersey
The six companies remain manned by all volunteers. This group
has earned a B rating, once available only to members of full-
time, professional paid fire departments with resulting lowered

insurance costs to Village residents. Over the years the Fire
Department has fought a number of major blazes within the
Town — in February 1953, Park Lumber Company at the foot
of Mt Vernon St., New Year's Eve, 1964, Appalachian and
Hudson Lumber Company on Industrial Avenue (firefighters
were on the scene of this blaze for over three days); and Jll’y,
1965, Euckers Restaurant.

The six companies own and maintain the buildings that the
fire equipment is housed in. Training is on-going, coupled with
company and department drills, to insure the Village will always
be adequately protected. This group of 120 members is on-call
twenty-four hours a day. '1

Three Village fire fighters have died in the line of duty. In |
April, 1914, Conrad Scherrer Jr., a charter member of
Overpeck Hose Co #2 was killed when he was thrown from a
new fire truck being tested in New York City. On February 4,
1969, Walter Dille suffered a fatal heart seizure while at a fire
on Seventh Street Firefighter Gary Molitor suffered fatal injuries
in an accident while responding to a fire at Winant Avenue and
Main Street August 8, 1972,

CEHIEFS

1895  Fred Lyman 1926 L A DeMerritt 1957  Emile Schmidt

1896 C. R. Brewster 1927 George Howe 1958 Walter Humphrey

1897 A E. Innes 1928 Robert Werder 1959  Frank Garofalow

1898 D A. Christie 1929  William Hoppe, Jr. 1960 H. A. Hennessy

1899 S J. Shaw, Sr 1930  Addison S Thompson 1961 George Kirchoff

1900 E. S Carr 1931 Louis E Gehm 1962 John LaTour

1901  Joseph Colwell 1932  Frank Hammell 1963  Stanley Wisneski

1902 S. J. Shaw, Sr 1933 Thomas Chatterton 1964 Edward Booth

1903 D. A. Christie 1934  James Kerr 1965 Thomas Spinelly

1904  Joseph Colwell 1935 Louis Latzko 1966  Joseph Collins

1905 E, S. Carr 1936 George Alberque 1967  William Liess ’

1906 L. A. Eucker 1937 Joseph Barron 1968 Charles F Sievers

1907 L. A. Eucker 1938  Albert Donnelly 1969 Edward Adams

1908 John Van Skiver 1939 J. C. Schmaeling 1970 William Roper

1909  Henry Dauer 1940 Benjamin Fox 1971 Vincent Vena

1910 Henry Dauer 1941  Otto Latzko 1972 Edward Reinhardt

1911 T E. Williams 1942 Howard Alberque 1973  Albert Knaub

1912 T E. Williams 1943 Edward Eucker 1974  Louis Schuler

ig{g j (l:: !_;orslythe 1944 Thomas Patt 1975 Andrew Scheidler, Sr

. aylor 1945 Emile Schmidt Brien

1915 G K Noden 1946  Alfred Olsen ig;g E::j::: 8 aB:'Eﬂ

1916 D A McMullen 1947 Roy B. Wright 1978 Harry G e

1917 N. P Monroe 1948 G Freeman 1979 Loui: KJ:::ES

igig '.Lbo;.;.ns N Schnepp 1949  Jacob Emmets 1980 Charles Vigorito

o Vl iam P Schlag 1950  Peter Carlson 1981 Gordon Touchette

1651 H'CW’ Houst 1951  John Henry 1982  Martin Lennart

Lot erman Schult 1952 Joseph Floyd 1983  George D. Fosdick
T W Cashman 1953  Frank Kenison b W, Al

1923  Charles Thiel 1954 Walter Rohlf Taos Lmeph W S

1924 W. M Hunter 1955  William Stewart e

1925  Henry Hous: ot Do war 1985 Leonard Hatton (1st

id Duncan 1985 James Wilson (2nd A
130




Hose Company Na 1 Engine Co 2
1962 Mack - 1000 GPM 975 Great Eastern - 1000 GPM

Hose Ca 3 Hose Co 4
1972 Great Eastern - 1000 GPM 1984 Grumman - 1500 GPM

Hook & Ladder Co. #1 Hook & Ladder {
1979 Seagrave - 100 Ft Aerial 1967 Peter P




A SHORT HISTORY OF THE RIDGEFIELD PARK
POLICE DEPARTMENT

A police force was officially established on June 26, 1893 by the Village Board of Trustees, and it allowed for no rank
higher than captain. Police officers appointed were done so at the discretion of the Board and could be removed from their

position at any time, “at the pleasure of the Board." It was not until July 1, 1916 that the office of the Chief of Police

was enacted
Not only did our newly formed police force have the responsibility to protect life and property, arrest all those gquilty of

felonies and other crimes or ordinances, but, they alse had to impound all ‘'goats, sheep, horses, swine, and cattle found

running at large within the boundaries of the Village. ™ .
While there was no data to be found regarding salary requirements of the fledgling department it can be surmised that it

was probably in the area of $500.00 per year. In 1911 Captain William Melia was earning 575.00 per month, plus
$125.00 per vear for expenses and he had to furnish his own uniform. A patrolman was earning $50.00 per month, with
Patrolman Fred Larson afso receiving $300.00 per vear as the municipal janitor. By 1923 the salaries and the department
had risen accordingly, with a patrolman earning a maximum of $2500.00 a year. Since 1923 the salaries for members of
the department have slowly risen to a point where an officer no longer has to worry about supplementing his income by
taking the job of municipal janitor. A newly appointed patrolman can expect to start at almost $20,000 a year, a sizable
jump since 1893

Since 1893 the department has taken great strides in the field of law enforcement. The current contingent of officers are
more career oriented and more highly trained. They are also better educated, with many officers holding college degrees.
Many officers of the department continue to attend classes in all phases of police tactics at the Bergen County Police
Academy in Mahwah, NJ

While the department is still engaged in the protection of the citizenry of the Village it is now, in its present statys, a
link in a nationwide network of law enforcement agencies, able to communicate with them almost instantly via a
sophisticated computer system. Over the years the department has enlisted the aid of law enforcement agencies throughout
the country, from Phoenix, Arizona to Maine. It has worked with the FBI and Secret Service in local investigations, in
addition to all County and State enforcement agencies. Persons suspected of drunken driving are now filmed on the latest
in videotaping equipment, which the department recently acquired. In 1977 the department began using a K-9 unit, which
has proven its usefulness over the year time and again, The unit was established by Officer Timothy LaTour and he has
had two dogs, a Doberman named Sam and his current pariner, Champ, a black German Shepard

The department’s mission is still the same as it was in 1893; the protection of life and property, the arrest of those
guilty of criminal offenses, and service above and beyond to the Village residents. While the names of the men and women
engaged in service to the community may change, their performance and concern for the Village and its people will never
change It will be, as it has always been, exemplary

This History was compiled by:
Ptl. EK Hammond
Ptl. Dan Donnelly

AL

Dedication of Folice D

epartment Pistol Range on Industrial : :
Knowles, March 1971 ¢ Avenue in memory of Captain Donald




DR. CHARLES A KNOX MEMORIAL VOLUNTEER
AMBULANCE CORPS

The date is forever lost in history — CHARTER MEMBERS
that on which the Dr. Charles A. Knox
Volunteer Memorial/Ambulance Corps
was born. The founder of the

DOCTOR CHARLES A |
MEMORIAL YOLUNTEER AMBULANCE CORPS

organization, Herbert |. Lowe, did not ANIHONY ACCAYALLO

date the letter he sent to a small HENRY W CARHART ROBE |
group of friends and members of the

Ridgefield Park Rotary Club to form QRESBS IS bt
an ambulance corps to provide regular RAYMOND COLI JAMES R MOFFETT

and complete ambulance service,

AUGUST | DOLI WILLIAM B MORGAN
available to all the people of Ridgefield I
P&rk, to supp)'emen! or rep!ace the ANDREW € ERBECK EDWARD PETERY
limited, emergency service furnished by IOSEPH | FALLER CSCAR C PYEIETER
the Police Department for many years
JOHN FASCIAND ROBERT H. SCHREAM
past.

Ac!ua; opgranons of the Ambulance FREDERICK G ERHARDT EUGENE SEAVEY
Corps began at 7 a.m. September 15, WILLIAM I GETTER DANIEL SHICKE
1952, when the first tour of duty

WILLIAM | HEISTERHAGEN CHARLES I SIEVERS

crew, consisting of three men, reported
for service. Many local organizations TREVOR F JONES, Jr SALVATORE SPINGSA
had helped with fund-raising activities
to provide the necessary funds to
purchase the first ambulance (a HOWARD F KRUG ROBERT M. VENATOR
Cadillac) and the affiliated equipment RICHARD H LTOUR ROBERT E WALKER
needed. On April 20, 1975, the Youth
Squad came into being consisting of
voung men and women, between 15 Captain DANIEL SHICKED
and 18 years of age EHolen
With the Corps at full strength and Presidunt ALBERT SPOONER
I
5

HERBERT D KONCHE ALBERT SPOONER

ROGER W. LOWT EDWARD WEST

ROGER  LOWE

two vehicles to house, the garage
quarters in the Municipal Building : EUGENE SEAVEY
became overcrowded and difficuit for Gl ELMER THOMPSON
operations, Early in 1975 the Board of
Commuissioners laid plans to erect a
new building to house the Corps in a
corner of Brewster Park. It was
opened for use in March 1976

Today the Ambulance Corps consists
of 27 Senior Squad members, 8 Youth
Squad members and two ambulances
All volunteer, they are on duty twenty-
four hours a day to provide emergency
service to Village residents

ce Preindont ROGER LOWE

}
E
’
:
i

First Ambulance
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RESCUE SQUAD

RESCUE SQUAD

The Ridgefield Park Rescue
Squad was organized in 1951 by
Rudy Lo Boves at the request
of then mayor, George Wagner.
With its original purpose as a
Civil Defense Disaster Control
unit, the headquarters were to
be the garages located on the
property donated to the Town
by the Brewster family, now
known as Brewster Park. The
first truck that the unit had was
a 1932 Brockway, which came
from Engine Co. #2. It was
outfitted with surplus equipment
from the Sea Girt Training
Center.

In 1953 the Main Street
bypass claimed the property that
was the location of the original
building and funds were granted
for the members to construct a
new building in Brewster Park.
In 1975 approval was given for
an addition to the building to
add a larger garage and to
make the present garage a
meeting room.

The Rescue Squad is still
active today in aiding Ridgefield
Park residents whenever an
emergency surfaces. The
membership is entirely volunteer
and is constantly upgrading its
equipment and training to
respond to the needs of the
Village.



SENIOR CITIZENS CLUB, INC.
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RIDGEFIELD PARK PUBLIC LIBRARY

In 1894 a Reading Club was formed
in the Village which met twice a month
at members' homes for the discussion
of books, debates, character parties
and musicales. Prominent among those
involved were members of the Barnes,
Mehrhof, Dutt, MacNeil, Abbott,
Mergler and Brewster families. This
group realized that all villagers should
have access to books and a Library of
500 volumes was started with
donations from members of the
Reading Club in a small building at the
corner of Mt Vernon Street and
Lincoln Avenue donated by Mr
Mortimer Smith

In 1895 under the Chairmanship of
Rev. Allan MacNeil, the Ridgefield
Park Library Association was formed
with a budget of $75 a year. Active
membership was 50¢ per year and the
Library was open every Saturday
Evening from 7:00 to 9:00. Mrs
Diekman was the Librarian. In 1914 a
fire destroyed the Library and all its
books and records, but the Association
was not daunted and its members, with
the help of the Women's Club, held a
large Carnival and Rummage Sale to
replace the books and fixtures

Under the Chairmanship of Henry
Dutt, the Library moved to a room in
the Municipal Building and the Village
appropriated $300. to its upkeep in
1916 By this time Mrs. Muriel Kern

Public Library, Ridgeheld Park. N

The first library building

The present library building

was hired as Librarian for $2 per
week which was quickly raised to $3.
Mrs. Kern catalogued the books, issued
Library cards and kept a card catalog.
In 1919, when Morton Brewster was
Chairman of the Library Association,
the Library had 2800 books with a
circulation of 12766 and although the
Village contributed towards its
expenses, the running of the Library
by the Association became increasingly
difficult. Therefore, a referendum for a
municipally owned Library was
submitted to the people and on
November 23, 1920 passed by a vote
of four to one

The final meeting of the Library
Association was held in January, 1921,
and the Library officially turned over
to the new Trustees of the Free Public
Library with Mr C. Mergler as its first
President. Five trustees were appointed
by the Commissioners for a term of
five years as is the case today With
the Library receiving village funds the
operation became more routine. By
1928, the budget was $8,080 the total
circulation was 70,487,

Although the Library had moved in
1926 from the cramped space in the
Municipal Building to a store on the
corner of Main and Cedar Streets with
much better facilities, the Trustees
were not satisfied with this temporary
solution. A committee was formed
under the sponsorship of the Rotary
Club to build an adequate libary.
However, in April 1927, the Trustees
of the People's Congregational Church
situated at the corner of Euclid Avenue
at Cedar Street offered to sell their
property to the Library Board as the
Church was disbanding after the death

of its founder and pastor, Rev. Wilson.
On May 31, 1928, the Board of
Trustees adopted a resolution for the
purchase of the church property for
$22 500. On July 24 of that year, the
Commissioners passed on ordinance for
$25,000 for the church purchase and
appropriated $7500 later that year for
alterations. Louis Latzko was hired as
architect and the Congregational
Church gave $5,000 from the sale to
equip and renovate the Children’s
Department.

The present library building was
officially dedicated on Friday Evening,
June 21, 1929, at 8:00 PM. C. W.
Mergler was President of the Board
and the other members were H. E.
Miller, William Heyliger, Charles E.
Abbott, Treas. and Mrs. Julia Sidman,
Secy. The Library Director was Mrs.
Muriel Kern and Mrs. H. J Kohler and
Miss Mable Rennie were assistants.

On Wednesday Evening, June 27,
1979, President John Johnson of the
Board of Trustees rededicated the
Library Building at a celebration of the
50th Anniversary of its opening, which
involved as many as possible of the
organizations which participated in the
first ceremony. Fifty-five years after
the opening much has changed in the
library. New equipment and additional
personnel have been added. The
number of books in the Library totals
74,800 plus magazines, records,
reference materials and new types of
machines and equipment. Through a
generous bequest in the will of Morton
Brewster many improvements have
been made to the library including air-
conditioning and carpeting.

The Library has been fortunate to
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have dedicated people working for it
throughout its existence. Mrs. Kern
served as Library Director until
January 1, 1949 when she was
succeeded by Mrs. Clarice Schmid, in
September 1967 when Mrs. Schmid
retired, the Trustees promoted Mrs.
Marjorie Simons from Children's
Librarian to Director and she served
until her death in March of 1983. On
May 1, 1983, Mrs, Phyllis Rosenthal
was appointed to the post Over the
years we have had other dedicated
employees including Pat Robinson,
Helen Cederberg and Alice Hespe
We have also had equally dedicated
Trustees. The list is long but mention
must be made of John Johnson,
Frances Fisbeck, Marjorie Relyea and

NOW

Paul Hanway all of whoem served for
long terms during difficult times The
present Board consists of Robin T
Sweeney, President, Wally Dorgan, V
President, Doris Conley, Secy, Casper
Lundberg, Treas. and Stephen
Frimmer. Mayor Fred Criscuolo
represents the Board of Commissioners
and Rhoda Brauer the Superintendent
of Schools

We look forward in the near future
to a new and expanded Library On
June 27, 1984, the Board of Trustees
voted to purchase the adjoining
property at 111 Cedar Street to allow
for expansion of library facilities. The
Library has again become overcrowded
and more space is needed for boaks,
new facilities and study With the

coopération of the Board ol
Commissioners plans are be
formulated to make the utmost use of
the new space. The monies for the
purchase of the property wer:
appropriated from the Mortor
Brewster Fund Mr Brewster was not
only invalved In the inception of the
Library but his thoughtfuls

insure that our Library will continue to
be one of the best in the County. All
of the members of the Library Board
and its Staff will work to insure that

goal

Compiled from notes at the Ridgefield
Park Library by Robin T. Sweeney

This store opened in the old library building

OPEIN

ublic Library Building Sold By
Sullivan Brothers,

Reis’ New Candy, Tobacco & Cigar Store ... woio veee o o
24 Mt. Vernon St., Ridgefield Park

THE BEST OF EVERYTHING
Perika Chocolates

Sunshine Crackers and Biscuits

. Box Goods a Specialty

d library building on Mt Vernon
reet for $£3.500 Alterationg will
a made by the awner. Henry Reis
nd when completed will be opened

¥ a first-class cigar aud

ore.




ROTARY CLUB OF RIDGEFIELD PARK

fidaelield Park in 1920 was a community of 8,575 people. Local businessmen met on Tuesdays for lunch at the Bergen
House Known as the Tuesday Luncheon Club or the Lincoln Club, they were concerned for the people of the Village and for
its families. It was at a special meeting of the group March 23, 1921, that the idea of creating a Rotary Club was put forth
Two months later, May 19, 1921, the Rotary Club was born, officially, at a Charter Night dinner held in the Presbyterian
Church Hall
- Since its inception the Rotary Club has contributed much to the Village of Ridgefield Park. Formed to discuss matters of
interest or benefit to the group and alse of benefit to the village at large, there are many tangible landmarks throughout
Ridgefield Park built by the Club's members. In Brewster Park, the pavilion and ice skating shelter; In Veterans Park, the
! the cook house, in Fellowship Park, the fountain These, among others, were built by labor

press box, the farge pavilion ar
donated by members of the Club

The Rotaryv also contributes to many local and national charities. They were among the prime movers of the senior citizens
housing project. Each year the Club awards three $750.00 scholarships based on need rather than grades

The Rotary Club is decidedly more than a luncheon club. Rotarians make themselves a useful element in the community, a
means of extending their influence for good Their badge is a work wheel, with strong spokes, an open core, and a rim
geared for work

CHARTER NIGHT

Charter Members

ROSTER LIST OF CHARTER MEMBERS
ROTARY CLUB, RIDGEFIELD PARK, NEW JERSEY

Clored March 20k, 1921

JOHN 0. APPLER, JACOB E. MAVUS
Principal, Washingon Irving Schoal Secy., Brewvier and Soa—Lumber
Eveumn Ave Besoew Tymwrine
C B ‘e Pres.  FRANE A. MORRISON, Preridens |
AR, e T MO
g "yers
Bt Flnan -
DR. JOHN D. MORRISON
BERNARD C. DIEKMAN, Treas, Denior, Extractions, and Prophyloss
Secy. and Treas, Ridgeheld Park Trust Co 3 Sussry Srery
204 Marw Stuger
DR. WM. EARL McILLVAINE
EDWIN HALLBERG iy s
::p}_l:lll Punner, The Hallberg Agency— i
| Estate gnd Iniursnce
b Mm“‘ RQ;U‘DUH SCHWEIZER, }.
12 Gauwn Senger
DR. JOSEPH HAMILTON
Surgeen Detpis FRANK E. SMITH, Secrrtary
200 Marw Svuger Adversg
= 11 Paviasew Avewe
£ . GORDON LEES, Serpeant-al-rms s
Mir., Ecovomy Cash Marher—Butther WILLIAM M. STIEH, Jr.
215 Mats Sraxer Prop., Park Auta Sepply Ca—
Automobile Supplies

, MAY S R miowsrs Tan
THURSDAY, MAY 19th, 1921 fam T‘gﬁhﬁ‘ﬁm
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MOSAIC LODGE NO. 194
FREE AND ACCEPTED MASONS

For many years prior to the inception of the movement which finally led ta the constitutio
Masons of Ridgefield Park traveled out of town to attend meetings. On April 26, 1907, a meet
Park's Town Hall for members of the Masonic Fraternity residing in the Village for the purpese of
of establishing a Masonic Lodge. Twenty-nine Masons attended and plans began for the formar of Mosa
and a suitable meeting place for same.

On Saturday, April 23, 1910, a simple ground-breaking ceremony was held at the site of the future home of Mosai
No. 194, at the corner of Main and Hobart Streets. To meet growing demands the Lodge remodeled the original build
The work was started in September, 1925, and in October of that year the cornerstone of the remodeled temple was laid
with appropriate ceremonies

Mosaic Lodge No. 194 still meets at Main and Hobart Streets on the first and third Thursdavs of the month. Masaic L odge
is one of the few in New Jersey that maintains an active Eastern Star arganization, an active DeMolay Group, and an active
Assembly of Rainbow Girls. Naomi Assembly #18, Order of Rainbow Girls was founded in 1928 Serving girls from 12
through 20 years of age, meetings are held the first and third Fridays of the month. Nathan Hale Chapter, Order of DeMolay
was organized April 18, 1927, and was the 38th chapter to be organized in New Jersey. Meetings are held the first and third
Mondays.
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F.G. ALBERQUE, SR;
KNIGHTS OF €OLU
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The Council was organized January 23, 1921, and was n med t )
there were 98 members. The first Grand Knight was Errest G Alberque,
in the Village and whose family was active in many aspects of %9 ¢
K of C organization and on his death in 1943, the Council was renam
the Ladies Auxiliary and were also organized in 1921. Most Village
conducted by the Knights as part of their fund raising program. The
center for many Village dances and activities, as the hall is made
Socials were popular Saturday night activities, sponsored by different
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July 4, 1959 - Long time Pastor of St Francis Church, Father James Coyle, accepts July 4th Parade Trophy

gm: Mayor Ross Vogt, to the rear of Father Covle Is Fire Chief Frank Garofalow and Commissioner Edward
ucKer
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RIDGEFIELD PARK AUXILIARY TO HOLY NAME
HOSPITAL

Ridgefield Park's Holy Name Hospital Guild (as it was called then) was instituted on February 2, 1925 One hundred and
twenty-five women attended the first meeting held in the Ridgefield Park Town Hall. Monthly meetings were conducted for
the folding of gauze and cancer dressings. Plans were made for social events (card parties, luncheons, raffles) to provide
much-needed funds for the Hospital

Under the soon-revised name of Holy Name Hospital Auxiliary, Ridgfield Park selected the upkeep of the nursery division
and the maternity section of the Hospital as its goals. Over the years they have provided equipment and furnishings for these
two branches of the Hospital

Members aid in the staffing of the Hospital's Gift Shop. Contributions have also been made to the Building Fund

A little closer to home, the Holy Name Hospital Auxiliary aids in spreading Christmas cheer by providing home-made
cookies to handicapped and ‘shut-in" senior citizens of Ridgefield Park.

The Ridgefield Park Auxiliary of Holy Name Hospital is still active today. Their meetings are held in the Civic Center on

ART ASSOCIATION

The Ridgefield Park Art Association was formed in March 1940 Anita Friend and Hector Spear, two artists then living
in Ridgefield Park, felt that the Town needed an art association so they put an ad in the local paper. About twelve peaple
attended the meeting, They decided to have a meeting once a month in each other's homes, drew up a constitution and the
Association was on its way,

When membership grew too large one of the charter members, Marianne Kenison, offered the use of the barn in back of
her home for meetings. Again the membership enlarged and moved several times, finally settling on the Civic Center, where
they still meet today (second Monday of each month from September through June)

At many of their meetings there is a demonstration by a well-known artist, either in oils, watercolor, sculpture, etc. The
Association also holds member shows of paintings. Although not a fund-raising group, they do present a bond to an
outstanding art student in the graduating class of Ridgefield Park High School

GARDEN CLUB

Started around 1961 by Mr. and Mrs. Flashman, the club was very active and boasted 100 members, and was affiliated
with the Federation of Garden Clubs of Bergen County.

For many years the club had a greenhouse near the Hackensack River where geraniums were raised for the Village along
Main Street and for sale. There were many flower shows and plant sales: one lovely plant was displayed at Riverside Square,
Hackensack.

Small donations were made by the club to the Fourth of July Parade and to the Bate Student Loan Fund

The oldest member is Mrs. Ursula Bock. There are but ten members left: Ms, Lily Berger (President), Mrs. Mary Corn, Mrs
Emma Decker, Mrs. Anna Kosco, Mrs. Ida Angelucci, Mr. and Mrs. Rinda, Mr. Emile Nuckles and Mrs. Theresa Lansky (who
still plants flowers around the Library and Euclid Avenue).

It would be very nice if the younger people could take over and carry on an old tradition

BLOOD ASSOCIATION

The Ridgefield Park Blood Association was formed in 1961 through the efforts of William McDowell (deceased) of the
Kiwanis Club. At that time all blood transfusions had to be paid for unless hospitalized patients could obtain donors to replace
the needed blood. A Bergen County Blood Bank had been established to provide insurance for patients requiring blood
transfusions and blood associations such as ours were being formed to obtain blood danors

The insurance the Blood Bank provided was that all immediate family members living together as a single household unit
would receive blood replacement if one member donated one pint of blood each year In the event no one in the family was
medically able to donate blood, a donation of the cost of a pint of blood would be required. The first blood-drawing was hel
in the spring of 1962 and has been repeated annually since then.

The Bergen County Blood Bank is now the Bergen Community Regional Blood Center Today through the efforts of the
local blood donor groups, it is able to provide all the blood necessary to regional hospitals. Through the efforts of the
Ridgefield Park Blood Association, Ridgefield Park consistently provides its full share of the life-saving supply of bloo




PLAY BALL!

Although “Little League" basebail
dates back in i_\'|-|g\'f:u'l-_i Park to 1949,
the organization was officially
registered at the Headquarters for
Little League in Williamsport,
Pennsylvania, on May 25, 1951
Meetings were held in the American
Legion Hall and moved several times
to the now present meeting hall of the
Elks Club

During the thirty-four year existence
of the Ridgefield Park Baseball
Orgamzation over 10,000 children of
our community have "‘graduated"
From the original five teams the
Organization has grown to seven Farm
teams, six Saturday Morning League

teams, six Babe Ruth teams, one
Mickey Mantle team and one Connie
Mack team

The purpose of the organization is
to teach all young boys and girls from
the age of 7 ta 18 the basics of
baseball, respect, discipline, and
sportsmanship. The various teams have
had numerous accomplishments and
many championships. The most notable
was the 1981, 1982 and 1983 District
6 Little League Championships. No
other town in our district has
accomplished such a record

The original Little League field was
in Brewster Park. All games are now
plaved on the Little League field in
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Veterans Park with its own field house
At the time of its inception, first
organization officers were:
President - Charles Thomas
Vice President - George Alberque
Secretary - Walter Rohlfs
Treasurer - William Connelly
Some of the original team sponsors:
Overpeck Motors
R.P. Auto Sales, Inc.
Community Chevrolet
Bob Edwards Pontiac
Alfard Cartons.
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B.P.O.E. ELKS #1506

The Elks Lodge was organized June 20, 1925 with 100 members. Dr. William E. Mg
Smith were Influential organizers of the group. When first instituted, the group met
Street. Since 1927, the Lodge has met in its fine building at Spruce Avenue and Ceda
manslon The Elks devote their efforts to a number of charitable activities, including

privileged children Each year the Elks sponsor a Youth Government Day fo
" High Schools. The group alse sponsors a number of activities in support of Ame
!-Wumtennjal the Elks have hosted a number of activities and have loaned the 4
@Vlllage residents. The Annual Carnival is a major fund raiser.

-

EMBLEM CLUB

tir

"Qrmed approximately 40 years ago, the Ridgfield Park Emblem Club
the Upited States. Its purpose is three-fold: to perform charitable a ;
toﬂw Constitution and Flag of the United States; to further good
to assist Lodge #1506 of the Benevolent and Protective Order of Elks
Since its inception the Emblem Club has been a participant i eo
Q}m ﬂf uth actjvities, spacially the baseball and football
; ‘High Schoal graduates. An annual essay contestl
#1101 ﬂ@ keeps iniglose contact with the Welfare Department fi
to I.hﬁ Veterans Hospital to entertain the patients.
 Meets are held in the Elks Club and female relatives of Elks

.




THE WOMAN’S CLUB OF RIDGEFIELD PARK

Founded originally in 1894 as The Woman's Bazaar Association by Mrs. E. M. Barnes, the Club had
changes — in 1895 to The Ladies Village Improvement Association, and, in 1908, accepting an invitat
Jersey State Federation of Women's Clubs, to The Women's Association. In 1912 the group was incorporate
present name, The Women's Club of Ridgefield Park.

As stated in its incorporation papers: '""The purpose for which it is formed is to awaken interest in subjects w]
especially concern women; the active promotion of social and civic betterment and to especially aid in the work of the
Library Association."

The Woman's Club consists of three Departments: The “General” or Day Club; The Junior Woman's Club, and The
Evening Membership Department (originally known as The Contemporary Club),

It would be impossible to list the many accomplishments over the ninety-year period of the existence of the Club and its
Departments. They were instrumental in the establishment of the Library and the George Bate Memorial Fund for student
loans, which they continue to support generously.

A note of interest: The Woman's Club of Ridgefield Park gave one of its favorite sons his first professional boost —
Ozzie Nelson was paid $5.00 to play for a dance given by the Club (his mother was a member)

PRESENTATION OF GIFTS

Equipment of Juvenile Room
Trustees of Congregational Charch

Mis Frances Fiiteek
Elecunic Clock Ladics’ Village Impyt Awn
Pressntation of Building Lous J Lazko, Archilect lohn B Porier
Fircplace cquipment, Flag and Standard
Community League for Women
Acceplance Coorad W Mergler M H Hanks Presiden
Presalent, Lihrary Bowrd Floor Gilobe Waman's Club
s MM Hemichel Pres
. History ol the Jewsh Feople
Presentutivn of Building 1o Village Coarad W Merger s
g
Acctptance Mayor Hugh Mo Gowan Sun Dhal Naomi Assembly
Miss Mary 5 Hasling
Flag Pole Muasanie Clab, E F Wenzel, Pres
Dedicatary Prayer Rev A H Brown g 270, e 160
P Handie, Eu. Leeturing Knight
Gt of $25 Knights of Columbnus
Libeury Sign Capt and Mn T H Bicknell
n me Mir Bighnell's meither

SETTLED IN 1685
POPULATION 12758

DONATED Br EMO WOMENS (Lug

[

DEDICATION OF RIDGEFIELD PARK
HIGH SCHOOL COURTYARD, JUNE
1971.




THE JERSEY CHEVRONS AWARD WINNING COLOR GUARD

Post 40 was organized July
21, 1919 with 40 members.
Over the years the group met at
Sheils’ Hall, old School #2 at
Hackensack Avenue & Eighth

S

__ B e

Street, at 93 Summit Street, and permanent Headquarters at

for many years at a building the
Post owned at 79 Park Street.
Recently this building was sold
and the Post is without a

-

present.

The Jersey Chevrons, Post 40
Color Guard, has won the
“National Champion Color
Guard of the American Legion™
several times, bringing distinction
to the Color Guard, the Post,
and to Ridgefield Park. In
addition to the National titles,
the Color Guard has won
several State and regional
honors. Post 40 Legion
Auxiliary was chartered July 7,
1929, and the Auxiliary and the
Post help plan and participate in
the Annual Memorial Day
Service at Veterans Memorial
Plaza on Euclid Avenue.

The American Legion Building at 79
Park Street.



VETERANS OF FOREIGN WARS POST #277

920, as the Philip J, Fore ' it .
ized November 21, 1920, i s e
'Sullivan Post 277 was organize . TP
Ford-Nelson-O Sulj,:‘"baer:'s t-:he Post grew to a membgrshlp of lfn. :ears ey Wiy
Starting withd50 [?:ies to a.lid Veterans and their families. kag::gr t!e}fw larmer Ovarhech Boat Club o [{r“_,
programs and po ing World War Il, the group too \ fre o b o
s oy e e i ili which conducts a ke
B Tume iy f the Jerry Lewis telethon
i el i d a drive to support of the \ | |
i U g . I sl g [ ial Tree on a Euclid Avenue
el mcllwudl;%rt}:geAgi[:entennial, the VFW planted a Bicentennia
Muscular Dystrophy.
f:l’;za between Hobart and Cedar Streets.
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BOY SCOUTS OF AMERICA

TROOP 1
In 1908 Reverend E. C. Murphy
Pastor ol the First Baptist Church ol
Ridgefield Park, made a visit to his
homeland, England While there he had

the opportunity of observing Sir
Baden-Powell's scout movement in
action. On his return he decided to
adopt these ideas for the boys in his
church and community. The original
membership was about fifteen boys

In 1910 the Boy Scouts of America
organization was incorported in
Washington, D C. In November of that
year Troop 1 received the first charter
from the newly-organized BSA. Pastor
Murphy was its first Scoutmaster,
twenty-five boys were registered as
charter members and the First Baptist

Church of Ridgefield Park was listed as
its sponsor. It Is Interesting to note
that Scout William Orth of Troop #1
received Scout Certificate No. 1 from
Washington, D. C

In 1957 Cub Pack #1 was
organized and chartered. Since then
they have worked in close association
with the Scout Troop and most of the
members of the present troop were
former members of Pack #1

From the inception of the Troop
well over 1,000 young men have been
registered as scouts. In Troop #1, as
in all scouting, their progress and
success is due entirely to the work of
volunteers who receive no
compensation except the satisfaction

they feel at having performed a task in
fitting boys for greater usefullness in
life

Boy Scouting started early in
Ridgefield Park, Aside from Troop 1,
Troop 2 was organized at St Francis
Church, Troop 3 at the Reformed
Church, Troop 4 at St. Mary's
Episcopal Church, Troop 6 at the
Methodist Church, Troop 7 at the
Presbyterian Church and Troop 167 at
the Swedish Lutheran Church and later
Lincoln School. Today, Troops 1, 2
and 7 are active. Cub Packs 1, 4, 167
and 203 offer the scouting program to
young boys ages 8 to 11. Explorer
Post 7 is also active,




GIRL SCOUTS

Ridgefield Park had one of the first Girl Scout troops in New Jersey. In 1915, Mrs. Muriel Kern and Mrs. Mabel Morgan
organized Oak Troop No. 1.

The Ridgefield Park Girl Scout Council was formed in 1942 to co-ordinate Scouting activities in the area Orne of its
accomplishments was the creation of a Girl Scout camp, known as Trefoil, in Dexheimer Park which was located on the hill
adjacent to the present high school. It was used for overnight camping and as a summer day camp The Ridgefield Park
Girl Scout Council was disbanded in 1959 with the formation of the Girl Scout Council of Bergen County.

Today there are four levels of Girl Scouting in Ridgefield Park. Daisy. Brownie, Junior and Cadette troops are available
for girls in Kindergarten through Grade 8.

For many years, the Ridgefield Park Girl Scout Council maintained Camp Trefoil on the hill in
Dexheimer Park at the east of Union Place, now the steps going down to the High School The locs
council has been absorbed by the County Council and Camp Trefoil is a memory. This picture is of (5
leader, Mrs. Davies, with some scouts in 1955, at Camp Trefoil.
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St. Francis Mothers’ Guild

The Mothers' Guild at St. Francis School was organized by the late Reverend Father James M.. Coyle at a
Coyle stated at that meeting the purpose of this organization would

sr 21, 1950, F
meeting held on November g t the Guild would be dedicated to Our

be to promote the welfare of St. Francis School and its students and tha

ady of Fatima
L Myembmship was and still 5 automatically extended to the mothers or female guardians of children enrolled in

§t. Francis School and to women who wish to share in promoting the purpose of the organization. One of the

first projects undertaken by the Mothers' Guild was the selection of “official”" school uniforms. Uniferms to be

worn by the girls were done first. The price in September 1951 was $10.50: $9.00 for the jumper and $1.50
u

iorT:::;uh;o:‘: the years the Mothers' Guild has run various fund-raising activi!_ies. As a result of Fhese efforts,

they have been able to sponsor scholarships, buy books for the school, help financially with repairs and ‘

maintenance of the school and many ather projects. The Mothers' Guild also contributes to many civic projects.

LADY FORESTERS

Star of Unity Circle #41, Lady Foresters of America of Ridgefield Park was founded by Mrs. Helena
Zimmerman and officially instituted April 20, 1924 with 57 members. As it has since its inception, the group
continues to meet at Hose Company 2 Firehouse on Euclid Avenue

P.T.A.

The Parent-Teacher Associations of each Village School were organized in 1921 and 1922. Seeking to
improve education, the groups have been expanded to include students as members at the High School level.
Each year, the combined PTA's of Ridgefield Park and Little Ferry, and the St Francis Mothers' Guild
underwrite several scholarships which are given to graduates of Ridgefield Park High School. Funds for these
scholarships are raised mainly from the Annual Scholarship Dance, a well known social event in the Village.

BATE STUDENT LOAN FUND

Friends and admirers of High School Principal George Bate organized this fund in 1935, following Bate's
death. The fund provides interest free loans to deserving students at Ridgefield Park schools to further their
education in any field. George Bate was Principal of Ridgefield Park High School from 1925 to 1935

Ridgefield Park Jr. Football Association

The Jr. Football in our town started in 1966, named the R.P. Midget Football League. The first president was
Ray Jahnke It consisted of 4 teams, each team had a light squad and a heavy squad which would alternate
quarters in a game

This format remained the same from 1966 to 1982, when the registration of boys within our town dwindled
to a point that made it impossible to continue playing within our town. At this time it was either cease the
football program for the younasters from fifth to eighth grades or find other ways to continue the football
tradition that seems fo be so much a part of Ridgefield Park

It took a bit of research to find a league suited to our population. The Meadowlands Football League seemed
to fit the bill. It has 10 teams, each with towns that don't exceed populations over 20,000. It is strictly
regulated as to weights and ages of boys participating, which helps to match teams evenly. 1983 was our first
year in this league

Now known as the Junior Scarlets, we travel to 4 or 5 games and have 4 or 5 games home each year
There are 3 teams from our town that participate-a Pee-Wee squad, boys from 8 to 9 years old, a Junicu:
squad, boys from 10 to 11 yrs old and a Senior squad, boys from 12 te 13 yrs. old. .

The football tradition is as strong as ever and still growing in our town, thanks to a good present
administration that didn’t quit when the going got tough




SHADE TREE COMMISSION

In the spring of 1978 the Board of
Commissioners responded to various
citizen requests to look into the
possibilities of creating a Municipal
Commission to deal with the declining
state of our Village's streets and park
shade trees. An Advisory Board was
set up and spent a year contacting
other Shade Tree Commissions
throughout the tri-state area compiling
information.

In 1979 an Ordinance was passed
creating a commission of six
volunteers, who were given a small

operating budget. Our initial planting
was ten trees but the year also saw us
picking up the pieces after Hurricane
David claimed 79 trees in less than 24
hours. In 1980 two forestry students
made a survey of the types and
condition of Village trees. With this
information an active program was
developed for removal of dead,
hazardous trees and planting priorities.
The original members were Robert
Perna, Chairperson, - Gary
Vanderbeck, Vice Chairperson, Janet
Ballard Treasurer, - Maryann Hansen

- ‘

Secretary - Doris Conley and Frank
Garofalow

In 1982 the Ridgefield Park Shade
Tree Commission held its first Arbor
Day with the planting of a Honey
Locust tree on Cedar Street, near the
Post Office. This has become an
annual event

1985 In the year of our 300th
Anniversary on Arbor Day we will
plant a very large "Village Tree' to
commemorate the event.

Lynn Conley, Doris Conley, Bob Perna, Frank Garofalow, Comm Anlian at Co

Center 1984,




JACK DOSCHER DEMOCRATIC ASSOCIATION

The Jack Descher Democratic Association was named for Jack Doscher, a Democrat prominent in .Ridgefield Park
politics during the Thirties. Born in Troy, NY, Jack Doscher pla‘wd professional baseball with the Chicago Cubs, the

i d the Brooklyn Dodgers prior to becoming a lawyer
CI?::LZ’:T::;ESLS ::der New Jersey law Jrm hjlmch 9. 1932 the Association had 430 members Iby the Ap‘ril 1932 meeting.
Permanent headquarters for the Club had been leased in November, 1931, in the Corn Building on Main Street. They
currently meet at the Civic Center the fourth Monday of every month between September and J_une .

The Club promotes the principles and activities of the Democratic Party and provides information about the work]ngs of
the political system. It presents a forum for diverse opinions and candidates running for political office are often invited to
the meetings to present their views

WOMEN’S REPUBLICAN CLUB

On February 1, 1924, ten women met at the home of Mrs. G. Donaldson for the purpose of forming a Republican Club.
The Club met in the homes of members until it grew too large (1926), when it moved its meetings to the Municipal
Building. In April 1950 meetings were again moved to the Civic Center. The Ridgefield Park Women's Republican Club
still meets at the Civic Center on the second Friday of each month, September through June

The Club presents programs and speakers of interest on local, county and national levels as well as aiding in many civic
endeavors

The objects of the Club are to educate Republican women politically and strengthen the Republican Party in Bergen
County; to give to women an opportunity to study government; to become acquainted with all political issues so they may
cast an intelligent vote, to work for the Party in general and advocate its principles; to work for the advancement of the
Party in the municipality and the Nation

|

Fundraising Meeting . 1985
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Packages for Viet Nam - Tri Hi Service Club Ridgefield Park High School Nov. 1966 L to R Charlotte Jackish - Lorraine
Kubicek - Shelley Kaulfers - Beatrice Baldwin - Gail Gallitano - Lynn Castonguay - Betty Ann Hamilton and Josephine Mayr
{advisor) i

Originally the home of the Overpeck Boat Club, now the Ridgefield Park Rescue Squad first truck
home of V.F.W. Post 277 Department Engine Co. 2). Picture taki
Rescue Squad founder Rudy LoBoves



ORCHESTRA LEADER JOHNNY MESSNER

Ridgefield Park was well represented
in the era of the Big Bands. There was
the Ozzie Nelson Band featuring
Harriet Hilliard as vocalist, and then
there was our own Johnny Messner
(who still resides in Ridgefield Park in
1985) leading his band playing the
clarinet or saxaphone and also doing
some of the singing. Johnny, the
youngest Messner, started playing with
his brothers, Dick, Bill, Charlie and
Fred, who were billed as the Five
Messner Brothers. They plaved at
Donohue's on the Pompton Turnpike,

Mountain View, N.J . and also had a
radio spot on WABC. Brother Dick
was the band leader in > g |:'||_.'

years. Later Johnny f
band with s
from Ridg Par Cottre
George Ward and Pete Schipper The
Messner band was featured at ths

Hotel McAlpin (row the
New York City from 1937 to

when Johnny was drafted into the

15 OWr

United States Army

Johnny continued playing for the
men in service at Camp Shanks and
other bases around the country. Upon
returning to civilian life in 1946,
Johnny joined the Vincent Lopez Band
who held court at the Taft Grill in the
Hotel Taft in New York City. He
sometimes fronted for Lopez and he
was also the male vocalist with the
band. He also played the clarinet and
the saxaphone. In his later years
Johnny went into the writing of
commercials and also supplied the big
band music as was the custom in those
days. Most notable among the
commercials he wrote was the jingle
that boasted for the Schaefer Brewing
Company "'Schaefer is the one beer to
have when you're having more than
one."" He also penned numerous other
commercials for cigarette companies
(Winston), soap companies (Fab) and
the like

Johnny has been a Ridgefield Park

Johnny Messner and his Orchestra at the McAlpin Hotel in 1940. First level (left to right): First man, Willard Cottrell from
Ridgefield Park. Third man, George Ward from Ridgefield Park. Second level: Last man (trumpet) Peter Schipper from
Ridgefield Park Girl Singer: Jean D'Arcy Band leader: Johnny Messner

. "Can't We Be Friends

at DONOHUE’S
. with DICK MESSNER
and HIS ORCHESTR)"\

. . . Broadcasts over WABC
and nationwide Columbia network

. No increase in prices

No cover or music charge

. . . Dinner and Supper—from $1.00

Enjoy an informal
and gay atmosphere at

DONOHUE’S

On the Newark-Pompton Turnpike
Route 23, Mountain View, N. J.



resident all of his life, and his son,
John, also a resident of the Village, is
a musician, as was his father before
him, and performed in the orchestra of
the Broadway musical production of
“Annie"” for five years. He has
provided musical accompaniment for
Frank Sinatra, Tony Bennet, Barbra
Striesand and Paul Anka.

Planning a Dance? Show?
Party? Wedding?

The right kind of music, mixed
with experience & cooperation,
can help make your next affaair
the best ever.

Let's get together and talk

about your music problems.

Ideas, suggestions and material

help are yours for the asking.

No obligations. No agent ==
WOrries,

Phone Hack.’}*5627 or drop a
- ! '

note to L’é %
0l Los - = e

Ridgefield Park, N. J.

43 Grove St.




VIC FRAYSSE
ORCHESTRA

The Vic Fraysse Orchestra
was ﬁrgqn:m_'n_l in the fall of
1936, and made its debut
December 5, 1936 at the Elks
Club playing for the Eastern
Star Reception for Matron Eva
Feige. The original group was
composed of Parkites Charlie
Cooper, Johnny Ernst, Pete
Schipper, Clint Hough, and
Walter Yoekel, together with
several Bogota and Little Ferry
musicians, and of course Vic
Fraysse.

The band was styled to the
dancing public along the Les
Brown, Goodman, Miller, Dorsey
and Ellington type of music, and
for a short while the Kenton
Progressive Jazz style.

The Rustic Cabin was home
for the group where it worked
as house band, as well as relief
band at Glen Island and
Playland Casinos and the
Meadowbrook. The World's Fair
of 1939 saw the group at the
French Pavillion until the
outbreak of the war.

While many of the members
went off to service and others
took defense jobs, the orchestra

continued to function playing
proms and other dances at
Camp Shanks. In 1945 Vic
Fraysse and Orchestra were
presented with a scroll from the
Stage Door Canteen for its work
with service men at Newark and
New York Stage Door Canteens,
where the band was voted
“Favorite Band."

The group celebrates its 50th
year in 1986 and continues to
provide modern as well as
‘Golden Oldies’ for the dancing
public. Just recently it provided

1938

music and was showcased in a
TV pilot, film and became Art
Imperatore's private yacht band.
Among the better known
musicians who graduated from
the band are Chris Connor, top
jazz vocalist; Charles Albertine,
composer and director of music
for Fantasy Island; Don Nelson,
producer (Ozzie's kid brother);
Johnny Messner Jr., trombonist;
Dick Albers, trumpet; Eddy
Schlosser, pianist. The latter still
performs with the band.




BOGERT W NT HOLIS

This houss
second oldest houss
(Christie Homestead
date is circa 17931801 ¢ Federal
Greek Revival and it is two and one half
high with a gable roof and chimneys at botl
ends. It is an unusual house in southeast
Bergen which probably retains no other pre-
1850 frame house of this size
The first documentary reference to this
house is found in an 1807 road return for
present day Ridgefield Avenue Jacob C
Bogert was listed as the owner (Bergen County
Road Return D-199 April 11, 1807, Bergen
County Court House)
The house, or likely the east wing, was
probably built by Jacob around 1793, since he
was first listed as a property owner in the
] A - ' : ; Hackensack Township tax ratable for that year

B 111 T <y N . Bogert sold the house and eighteen surrounding
il . ":."h X acres to Daniel Winant in 1839, It is likely
LR ed - - Winant built the main block soon after, judging
from its Greek revival style porch and
doorway It was in the Winant family until
1891. The present owner is Ms. Cynthia R
Cooney

Willie Hoppe, National Billiard Champion during the forties,
was a resident of Ridgefield Park. He lived in this house on

the southwest corner of Mt. Vernon Street and Hudson This is the residence of Mr. Georg .
Avenue. Previous to the Hoppe ownership, it was owned by northeast corner of Mt. Vernon and Ma
the Kinkead family. It was probably erected around 1900. many years as our Post Office

The date is uncertain. It is now owned by Ms. Rita Cuozzo.
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IN 1898, $23.10 WAS A
LOT OF MONEY. IN 1933,

$292.16 WAS EVEN MORE

(NOTE POLL TAX
ASSESSMENT ON 1933
BILL). BY 1985, $2,269.20
1S STILL A LOT OF
MONEY.
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The “Tin Triangle.” The Stephens Store is on the left and the Collins Hotel on the right. This was another of the many
hotels along the Bergen Turnpike. It later became known as Bausbacks. It was located on the corner of Ridgefield Avenue at
the old railroad tracks. The hotel served meals at all hours and offered stable accommodations, which was an important
service in those days.
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EDWIN R. STEPHENS

Ridgefield Park has had many
success stories throughout the years,
but there is one that stands out among
the rest. It is the story of an
enterprising young man who came to
America to fulfill a dream and his
great desire to succeed. Edwin R
Stephens was born in Collington,
Cornwall, England, on August 10,
1365, and immigrated to the United
States in 1888. He first settled in New
York State, but later came to New
Jersey where he was able to secure a
job as a flagman at the lower crossing
of the West Shore Railroad in Little
Ferry, N.J. at a salary of $35. per
month.

While working at this job, he heasd
many complaints from commuters
about their inability to abtain

newspapers, so he went to the

American News Company and ordered
twenty newspapers to sell at the
station. Thus began a career which
made Edwin Stephens a notable figure
in the Village.

This enterprising young man set up
his business in a building owned by
Thomas Brewster, which was situated
in what came to be called the "Tin
Triangle” on Ridgetield Avenue where
the Bergen Turnpike and the old
railroad tracks intersect. He circulated
about 2,000 newspapers daily, and he
steadily increased his volume He later

expanded his store to include an ice
cream parlo nad 1 T4 Many of
the picture t been
reprinted in 4 > are credited to

Mergler and Stephens. Mr. Stephens
went on to become a member of the

Executive Board of the National

Association of Newsdealers,
Booksellers and Stationers of America.
The business, however, was short-

lived. Twenty-one years after its
establishment, the building was
destroyed by fire in 1913. His wife
and children, Richard, 12, Beatrice, 7,
and Willie, 5, were rescued with the
efforts of the villagers. Mrs. Stephens
was able to throw her three-month old
daughter out a window into the arms
of a waiting fireman. Edwin Stephens
lost his life in the fire when he
returned to the burning store to rescue
two boys who had escaped out a
window Edwin Stephens was much
loved in the Village, and his loss was
greatly felt.



FRIENDS
THROUGHOUT
THE YEARS

Ozzie Nelson was known nationwide
because of his television program, The
Adventures of Ozzie and Harriet, Outside
of Ridgefield Park Ozzie's good friend,
Joe Cerina, was not well known. Howev-
er, within the town, Joe Cerina was well
known in his own right. Among Joe's
many credits is the traditional Knights of
Columbus and Masonic ball game played
every October in the Village. He and Har-
ry Morrison began the first game over
sixty years ago.

Below is a letter written to Joe from
Ozzie, dated 1970.

December 8, 1970
Dear Joe:

Many thanks for your thoughtful-
ness 0 sending me the picture of old
RPHS Please also extend my
thanks to Marden . It makes me feel old
to realize that | played football during
lunch hour in the schoolyard there
before the high school was built At
that time, | was attending School #1
and the High School was in old School
#2 across from School #4 in the West
View section | was talking to Al an the
phone the other night and it is his
recollection that the high school was
completed in 1917 or 1918

| am delighted that you are par-
ticipating in writing a history of the old
town. It is, or at least was, a
remarkable community I'd suggest
you contact Al He has a great
memory and I'm sure among you, Hip
and Al, you'll be able to come up with
some really interesting data

I'm sure you recall some of the
fabulous characters such as Jack the
blind man, Willie Platt the town midget
& Ed Ewing, the Dean Martin of the
old days, whose dog “"Bum' used to
climb the fire ladder as part of the
Fourth of July celebrationn Every time
Dr Weigel (I believe it was) or one of
the other touring evangelists would ap-
pear for a week at the “tabernacle” that
would be erected on Mt Vernon and
Main Sts. — on those occasions., old Ed
would "hit the trail" and declare
himself for Jesus and would sober up
for at least two weeks

Herb Gneiding's father had a horse
and carriage that serviced the West
Shore and Susquehanna (the Suzie-
anna) Railroads In fact when we
moved out to the park in 1911, he
hauled us up from the station We
played football on the U A Field
which was bordered by Euclid and
Hudson and Park and Poplar The
high school games were often played
there and there was a legend (probably
apocryphal) that Reggie Manaco had
once hit a home run and had rung the

JOE CERINA

bell in the Union Church Sunday
baseball was not allowed in R P so the
Young Men's Club used to play at Mar-
tin's Oval as I'm sure you remember

The famous high school battery of Milt
and Alec Gaston went up to the big
leagues

The literary field was well repre-
sented by William Heyleger (I'm not
sure of the spelling) the famous author
of boys' books His book “High Ben-
ton" i1s now considered a classic and
the locale for the book (and some of
the characters, especially Dr  Elsing)
were basically Ridgefield Park

I'm sure you know that Willie
Hoppe, the pool wizard was reputed to
be fram the park At least | know his
sister was in Al's class and it was
rumored that Willie used to shoot pool
on Main St at the old bowling casino
where my father once rolled a 289,
missing 300 by one pin

The entertainment industry was
especially well represented by Joe
Cook, Frank Bacon and Benjamin
Chapin (who went around dressed as
Abraham Lincoln while he was making
movies at his studio at Znd St. and
Central Avenue)

Scouting was very big in the old days
in Ridgefield Park There was a troop
affiliated with every church in town
The town was well represented at the
First International Boy Scout Jam
boree in Londan in 1920 by George
“Ernie’’ Albergue, Milt Emerson,
Harry Fisher, Lawrence MacDon-
ough, my brother Al and myself

When | was a small boy, we all used
to swim in the Hacksensack River Al
and | learned to swim at Merhoff's
dock and “the Mulberries" which was a
cove just south of the Boat Club Later
our father joined the Boat Club and we
swam from there Occasionally we'd
hike south to the end of Teaneck Road
where there was a picnic ground
“Wharman's Overpeck Park” where
there were facilities for swimming and
boating and a saloon where a ragtime
piano player called “"Ragner” Johnson
occasionally held forth.

There seems to have been an un-
usual amount of musical talent around

OZZIE NELSON

the park in the early days As I'm sure
you recall, my father used to write,
direct and act in most of the minstral
shows which were held in the Schaol
#4 auditorium Al and | appeared in
blackface so many times (starting at
age 5 or 6) that | can hardly remembes
them all "Prof" Dick Ridgewav fur-
nished the music Most of the kids in
our neighborbiood tack piano lessons
from Prof Hubenreizer or Mrs Petrie
and | took violin lessons from Gaston
"Pat”" Turian who, at the time, lived in
the old Merhoff mansion

At the end of World War |, Dick
Brush. Pat, 51 Wygas and Artie Lewis
had a really great hittle jazz band and
played most of the dances until 1920
or 1921 when Frank Leithner and |
started a group in high school along
with Ed Thorgeson wha later became a
well known NBC radio announcer A
couple of years later, the Messner
Brothers started therr orchestra with
Williard Cottrell and became nationally
known through their radio broadcasts
from the Hotel McAlpin

| remember my dad wrote and di-
rected a show tor the girls sodality at
your church about 1917 or 1918 (it
was during World War [) that was realy
close to professional in cablibre The
Mitchell sisters, Louise Yongerman
Hip's sister, Helen Ten Evke and one
of the Hoey girls were all in it and Al
and | did an act in the “Olio " We also
went up to Camp Merrit in Dumant
and put the show on there

| could probably go on for hours but
I'll spare you However, if there is any
information that | can fill in for you or
Herbland Helen just drop me a line
I'm sure Al would be most happy tc
help in any way also

Meanwhile, the best of happy
Holidays to you and yours
joins me in love to all the Cerinas

As ever, Ozzie

P S | have purposely on
erence to the later RPHS
teamns under Pop Ericksor

Biggs as well as the famous K :
basketball teams because | surmise that
you are even more familiar with those

exploits than | am
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OELLERMANN $

BELICATE LLEN-LIQUOES

First National Bank, organized 1910, later became the Ridgefield Park Trust Company. Bank later moved to the corner of
Main and Mt Vernon Streets, and the original bank is part of Oellerman's Delicatessen. Bank safe is still in the basement of
that building




Central Bergen building, northeast corner of Main and Mt. Vernon Streets; now the Schiff Philatelic Company. At one time,
the basement of this building was headquarters for the local Civil Defense. Central Bergen, which was the successor to the old
Overpeck Savings and Loan, has moved north on Main Street and is now Palisades Savings and Loan Association.
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Old hotel, located on the triangular corner formed by Paulison and Railroad Avenues It came to be known as S
Its last occupant was Gus Duane. It was totally destroyed by fire. It was not the original Ridgefie rk Hof
institution stood between Mt. Vernon Street and Grove Street, approximately 200 feet west of Main Street
Hackensack Road). Just north of Steffen's Hotel stood the old spring house, from which water was pum;
Ridgefield Park Hotel.




PAGEANT OF RIDGEFIELD PARK
By Louise Seward Hanway

Where the mighty oak and maple

Marked the centurles In passing,

Marked the seasons with their Haunting
Red in autumn, greens and yellow

Bud and bare bough, tossed in winter each in turn;
Where the deer once drank at sundown,
Standing n the dusky wafers,

With their great eyes soft with dreaming, unafraid,
Where the rivers washed the lowlands
Flowing southward to the sea,

swepl by tides from time uncharted,

fed by springs long days away,

spreading softly through the marshes —

ebb and flood, since time began

mirrored moon, and sun, and stormcloud,
took the rain,

Where the marsh grass bent and whispered
running down the wind,

Where the wild geese and the mallards,
wedged against the Autumn sky

wheeled and settled — tatked awhile

in thewr kind's strange, ordered converse,
rose — and falling into pattern, flew away;
Where the gulls before the east wind
presaged storm, their soft, high wailing
drifting with the flood tide, inland,

rested on the quiet waters,

floated, down-like, on the waters,

hidden by the bending grasses,

rested, pondered, rode the ebb-tide to the sea
There the Redman pitched his wigwam

Wearied by his loang migrations,

safe upon the wooded hilitop

where the land stretched plain before him,

guarded by the rivers flowing

south To west and eastward apen,

Here his signal smoke rose plainly,

So the Red Man chose —and wisely,

Found the ridge good ground —

and named it, called it "Haking Sak" — "the good ground"

To the juncture of the rivers

All the ancrent trails led — land

and water — Kinderkamack and

Awapaugh — all the meetings of The Nations

Sa the Red Man pitched his wigwam,
It his campfires, staked his horses,

set his signals on the hilltop.
Hollowed logs, cut from the forest.
set his craft upon the waters

Blazed his trails — and on the lowlands,
sowed his maize, his corn for winter,
made his weapons

Uncounted years the Overpeck

mirrored the dawning day

and the blood red track of the harvest maon

across Its walters, lay

In and out, on its changeless tide,

the stim, hollowed-log canoe of the brave red sons of Oratam
went gliding silently through

There the braves, on scouting duty,
spied the white bird on the water —
great white wings aspread and floating —
flashed the signal Called the council.
Met the white Man, face to face

Dutch he was, the strange white creature —

bearded full and short of stature:

kind and quiel, speaking fairly.

and the Red Man found him .rm'nd.f\,'.

spoke in kindly greeting also, .
bade him stay ‘




There a young and soft-eyed malden,
wise beyond her years and times,
speaking soft her elders' words,

spoke them in the Red Man's language
learned from playing with thelr children,
learned from sitting with the young squaws,
heard their converse — learned their ways.
She it was who, all, translated

from the white tongue to the red,

bore the answers ta her peaple,

was Interpreter and friend,

taught the Indian strange while magic,
traded skills and stuffs and learning,
bound the peoples firm together.

And to her, the fair young maiden,
deeded they the land for homeing

She received, for all her people,

grant of land from Oratam

So the Dutchmen, strong and hard,
scarlet coated, buckle-kneed,

heavy shod —and all his fellows,
wives and children, grave and gay —
settled on the ridge commanding
meadows, washed by hdes

There arose red sandstone dwellings,
there their smoking chimneys stood,
There their axes in the forest

Cut all day the winter's wood

There they tilled and sowed and planted
There red axes tuled the loam,

barns and churches, store and common
rose beside the Dutchman's home

Stand they still, those great stone chimneys
Bogert, Brinkerhoff and Christie,

by the river to the westward

Christie chimneys smoke today

Grew the village on the ridgetop,
straddled down the lertile slopings,

grew, and spread — the small, new village —
YHackensack"' —

Grew and spread — and crossed the river,
and the ridgetown, proud of being,
called itself “Old Hackensack'

Sat, content to see the spreading

Sat, aloof upon its hilltop,

built more homes alang the rivers,
changed its name to

Ridgetield Park

The rustling marshgrass whispers still,

flowing softly on the wind,

and the wild fow! fill the valley

with the whirring of their wings

Cattails shake their withered stalks

when the cold north wind comes down

And lovely are the marshes when the mallows are in bloom!
A Disney blue the Overpeck

beneath October’s sky And moonlight

shines on the untracked snow

that's split by silver tides

as if the pears had not passed by

or, passing, left no trace or any imprint there!'

Uncounted pears the Overpeck

has mirrored the dawning day

and the bloodred track of the harvest moen
across Its waters lay,

rain and snow and time and tide

and wars — and peace, God will —

and the Red Man's ridge, in the white man's care
is part of history still!

{Written in 1941 for my four children ) In '61==The meadows are changing now' Cattais give way to foxgrass and motels, there are

mallows, so pink!
And only rarely one sees the swarms of red-winged blackbirds my children loved so dearly  But there are sbll wild fow! —and gulls — wir

pr i 4

(All based on Koehler's Three Hundred Years, our family legend, and Smith's History of New Jersey, and a 1927 Commemorative Book
Park.)
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MILT BARRY: MAN ABOUT TOWN

In the future when people of the
Village read about its history or about
events that have taken place here,
they will view them mostly through the
eyes of Milt Barry. Milt has been
reporting news of this community for
almost sixty years. He and his wife
became residents of Ridgefield Park in
1943 while Milt was still serving in the
United States Army. Upon his
discharge in 1945, Milt went to work

in the Palisade Park Post Office. He
was employed there until his
retirement in 1972,

Milt has always had a love for news
reporting. He was the Assistant Sports
Editor for the Bergen Record from
1930 until 1935, and then transferred
to the now defunct New York Journal
American as a sports writer.

Milt is always available to assist any
local organization that needs publicity
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Milt, meeting one of many deadlines

for an activity, or to promote a worthy
cause. He has been on many civic
committees in the Village, and has
been a member of the Fourth of July
Committee for thirty-four years.

Milt still attends all the meetings of
the Board of Commissioners, civic
meetings and Village functions listening
and, above all, reporting, these events.
Milt Barry and reporting are
synonymous in Ridgefield Park.



Last steam train through Ridgefield Park. The Freedom Train
crosses the Overpeck Creek Bridge on the West Shore

Railroad, April 5, 1975.

Topping of the Empire State Building
1931
The men in this picture are placing a weather vane atop the
Empire State Building. The man on the left is Louis Schuler,
a Ridgefield Park resident and father of present residents
Louis Schuler and Catherine Sievers. The folks of the Village
were very diversified in their chosen fields of endeavor.
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Lou Rosdahl, Sandy De Leone, and
Hatch Rosdahl are pictured here with
some of the inlaid plaques made by
Nils Peter Rosdahl (father of Louis)
Many of these plaques were made and
donated for use by the Old Swedish
Lutheran Church and Vasa Order of
America, reflecting the Scandinavian
influence in the Westview section of
Ridgefield Park. Other items were
made and donated to the Hackensack
Hospital, Bergen Pines Building Fund
and other worthy organizations.

Sandy Del eone has been owner and
operator of Sandy's Hat Store since
1912. Hatch Rosdahl played football
with the Kansas City Chiefs and the
New York Jets. Louis Rosdahl came te
Ridgefield Park with his parents in
1911. He attended the old wooden
schoolhouse on Hackensack Avenue,
which was later to become the first
High School. He worked at many jobs
in the Village, from delivery boy to his
opening of the Rosdahl Agency.
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Martha Balala, of Little Ferry.

The Swedish Lutheran Church
(remained standing until the 1970s)
Location: West side of Fifth Street,
about 250 feet south of Central
Avenue,

The line of low trees just beyond
the church marks the course of a
brook which arose in Teaneck, near
Fort Lee Road and Queen Anne Road,
flowed southwesterly and emptied into
the Hackensack River near the foot of
Summit Street. The brook passed
through Martin's Woods, which lay
north of North Avenue and extended
almost to Fort Lee Road. The brook,
after passing the Church, wound its
way through Duane's Woods, which
can be seen as full of trees in the
distant background.

The Church was built by our most
substantial citizens of Scandinavian
descent, who came here in large
numbers in the late BOs and early 90s.
Like all of our pioneer people, like our
pioneers throughout our land, when
two or three were gathered together,
they recognized that God was in their
midst, and with completion of their
own homes, a house built to honor
God was the very next structure to be
raised.

/4
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HAT FACTORY, Bergen Turnpike and Union Street, 1928. This is now the home of Star Products. Photo courtesy of Mrs,
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50+ YEAR RESIDENTS

Every effort has been made to make this list of “Half-Century "'
V;.-"!age'f?es:den{s as complete as possible. The list was compiled by
Helen and Herb Watson, with assistance from Marge Floyd, Len
Hatton, Helen LaTour, Marty Lennart, Rudy LoBoves, Catherine
Sievers and Vincent Vena,

May Abel

Anthony Accavallo
Anne Dobler Adams
Edward Adams

Helen Engelhardt Agar
James Agar

Michaz! Agar

Herbert Ahrendt
Edward Alberque
Rabert Alberque

Jean Aldighien

Clara Corti Amonocchio
Jean Thwaites Armstrong
Theodore Armstrong
Mildred Ettell Atkinson
Maude Baer

Willlam Baier

Lydia Baker

Romonas Bakes

William Bartel

Tecla Jensen Bayer
Margaret Bella

Mary Ripple Belthoff
Frank Berardi

Pearl Beza

Gladys Bieber

Lowse Biegel
Henretta Bisland
Ursula Bock

Judy Bona

Edna Borea

Flarence Borea

Anna Boswell
Madeline Boyer

Rose Spinelly Brereton
A, Brizzolaro

Ahice Fan Brown
Claire Fechtman Brown
George Guermeyer
Gladys Bugeler

Helen Caldwell

Wesley Caldwell

Frank Callahan

Cannie Camphell

Ann Landusky Carlson
Antoinette LoBoves Carlson
Rebert Carmen

Arthur Carroll

June Leppla Carroll
Horace Case

Jeanette Cavagniaro
Mae Cavagnaro

Helen Cederberg
Walter Cederlund
Margaret Cerng
Peggy Cerina

Eva Wrede Chakuehian
Herbert Clark

Mary Clark

Vincent Collesano
Charlotte Collins
dJoseph Colling

Muriel Dralfin Callins
Danigl Calombo
Margaret King Camiso
C Whitney Conley
Doris Harking Conley
Harry Conn

Marie McCann Cranin
Maude Crowl

Wesley Crowl

Frank Cunningham
Robert J Daly

Rose Daly

George Damiano
DParothy Dassler

Adele Davis

Harry Dawvis

Lean Denis

Marcel Denis

Pors Brown DeSanto
Austin Devine

Sandy Dileone

Julia Dabias

Harry Dobler

Anna Fass Daonly
Francis J Dooley

Amita Baylan Dargan
Ray Dauglas

Cass Dudiecs

Edna Heck Duemig
Cecilia Mahon Duncan
Dawvid Duncan

Haiguie Tezian Eckert
Dorothy Boecherer Ecklin
Victoria Cowie Entell
William Etell

Edward Eucker

Edward Eucker, Jr
Ingrid Merk Fellgrafl
Lous Fernandez, Sr
Mary Reiners Fernandez
Alfred Ferrara

Frank Ferrara

Yvonne Misera Ferrara
Herbert Fleschmann
Marguerite Westerleld Floyd
Margaret Huber Fogarty
Hazel Wetzelberg Farsythe
William Forsythe
Carolyn Knapp Franco
Edna Leithner Frathim
Juseph A Frattin,
Harry Freeman

Mildred Eversman Freeman
William Freeman
Eleanor Kramer Friedman
Joseph Fucanno

Martha Johnson Fucarino
Meita Scherer Gabaut
Frank Gadelsky

Raobert Galbraith

Eileen Maher Garner
Frank J Garolalow

- July 18, 1985

Rose Garofalow

Teresa Pagliaro Garalalow
Myrtle Lorenz Garrison
William Garrison

Glona Geiger

Eugenia Gerhold
Gilbert Alberque Gibbs
Ardeth Henry Gilehrist
James Gnecco

Joseph Gnecco

Renee Gaillard Gnecco
Chatlotte Grewding
Janice Gneiding
Richard Gneiding

Frank Geaing

Doris Gerhardl Gral
Edna Randall Grant
Elleen Gray Graves
Andrew Gray

Charles Gray

Rose Savinsky Gray
Joan Draffin Grimes
Thomas Grimes
Florence Montgomery Guild
Mary Gurski

John Hacken

Joan Heath Hahn
William A Hahn
George Hamilton
Mamie Hamilton
Edward Hanak

Joan Smith Hanak
Rudalph Hanak

Harry Hansen

Lowse Kuhlmann Hansen
Edward Hant

Thamas Hart

Charlotte Augspurger Harvey
Leonard Hatton
Marilyn Cameran Hatton
Mari¢ Gneiding Haynes
John L Heinemann
Brita Helander

Agnes Henderson
Mabel Kamp Henderson
Al Hennich

Alice Lelfler Hespe
Walter R Hespe
Beatrice Garden Hesse
Harry Hicks

Helmut Hock

Joseph Hock

Paula Hock

Betty Boulanger Houghton
Elsie LaTour Howard
John Howard

Anna Howerton

Robent T Howerton
Henrietta Donly Huber
John G Huber

Allred Hummers
Millicent Hummers




Alfred Humphrey
Raymond Humphrey
Walter Humphrey
George Ingram
Charles Jacob)

Eleanor Weber Jacahi
Yvonne Jane

Jean Pilat Janiszewski
Sigmund Janiszewski

G dalyn Phillips Joh
John Johnson

Ethel Pente Jones
George R Josely
Virginia Keller Kappeler
Edward Kazyra

Gloria Colaner Kazyra
Walter Kazyra
Elizabeth Rohr Kelty
Harry Kelty

Benjarmin Kiasevicz
Evelyn Burtis King
Harriet LaTour Kistner
Edward Knapp
Josephine Jensen Koch
Anna Kosco

Mabel Eckert Kralt
Freda Kramer

Herman Kramer
Clarence Kratz

Rose Krausz

Margaret Bride Krebs
Carl Kruger

Belle Lande

Joseph Lande

Helen Emmets LaTour
Richard LaTour
Margaret Lenhardt
Marie Torella Lennart
Martin Lennart

Robert Lenox
Katherine Lesnewich
Margaret Lindley
Margarer Campbel! LoBoves
Rudolph LoBoves
Catherine Long
Mildred Lenox Lowe
Roger Lowe

Ruth Greweldinger Lowe
Casper Lundberg
Gullie H. Lundberg
Richard A, Lutz
Thelma MacAlilay
Donald MacNeill

Ruth Mahan

Dorothy Mahon
Dorothy Mallery
Evelyn Fraser Mallery
Virgima Mallery

Anne Malley
Jacqueline Mandragona
Paclo Mandragona
Pete Manaut

Mary Salva Mangana
Mary Manning
Yolanda Manolio

Lois Marshall

Thomas Marshall
Wanda Abel Mason
Grace McCann
Kathleen McCann
Clarence McKay
Rasemary Hitchman McKay
Ginny Tozian McNulty
Anna McManus

Jane McManus
Jeanette Pente Meehan
Jacqueline Megone
Myrile Mehrhol

Art Melia

Bridget Melia

Julia Melia

Carl Melilla, Sr

John Messner

John Messner, Jr
Margaret Davis Messner
Mabel Metz

Ruth Meyer

Helen Bensel Miller
Georgie Molineaux

Frank Monaco

Helen Lennart Monaco
James Monaco

Joseph Maonaco

Grace Campbell Montgomery
James Montgomery

Lois Montgomery

Albert Moran

John Morrnis

Joseph Mueck

Josephine Myslinecek
Ann Gray Nagy

Wayne Nagy

Howard Newton

Louwse Nollet

Nellie O'Brien

Virgimia O'Brien

Frances Maser Oellermann
John H Oellermann
Jeanette Zoda O'Grady
Sarah Bernelker Olsen
George Ourfalian

Agnes Pabian

Emma Paulson

Oscar Paulson

Helen Perrine

Hilda Reis Persich

Helen Rediean Pleiffer
Walter R Pfister

Agnes Phillips

Cynil Phillips

Anna Piccolo

Edith Piccolo

Rose Piccola

Cleo Sullivan Pollard
Patty Powers

Joan Prolita

Claire O'Brien Purdy
Mary Dempsey Quinn
Raymond M Quinn
Edward Reinhardt

Minnie Metzler Renner
George Reverr

Mary Burns Reverri
Agnes Reynolds
Madeline Westfall Reynalds
Mae Reynolds

Alice Smith Rheder
Catherine Swartz Simon Rhodes
Emma Rhodie

Helen Wahrmann Robinson
Elvira Fagan Rohlfs
Richard Rahlis

Walter Rohlfs, Jr

Ernest Roma

N. Louis Rosdahl

Marie Rosiello

Edith Della Torre Rushby
Frances Kirby Salva

Earl Sandberg

Emily Thwaites Sandberg
Muriel Miller Sandifer
Andrew Scheideler, Sr
Norma Elliot Ferrie Schenk
Ruth Arvidson Schilg
Connie Henrich Schrmidt
Dorothy Schmidt

Erna Schmidt

Geneva Arvidson Schmidt

Errile Schatt

Joseph Schreck

Leroy V. Schrump
Louws H Schuler

Flarrie Fox Schultheis
Lynn Schwenh

Jennle M Scibielta

Marie Thampson Sheridar
Esther Canavan Shields
Catherine Schuler Sievirs

Charles Sievers

Clair Dutt Smith
Herbert Smith

Mary Hunt Sohn
Thamas Sohn

Jeane Donley Salch
Harnet Southand
Josephine Dorling Spellman
Lucile Hilpert Watt Spinelly
Thomas Spinelly

Eleanor Kaulhold Sperdute
Victar Sperduto

Edith Smith Spinosa
Salvatore Spinosa
Jeanne Willlams Spleidt
Mary E Stegmair
Mildred Stubbe Stephens
Phyllis Cowie Stephens
Beverly Simons Stipo
Helen Stork

Jack Stork

Helen Strub

Robin Thwaites Sweeney
Gertrude Sweeney Sylvester
Hank Teel

Charles Thuel

George Thompson

Marie Thompsen

F Beverly Thorgesen
Mary McChesney Salheim Tracey
Carrie Trado

John Tymen

Alice Sarder Ulbrich
Theresa Kelty Van Wettering
Garrett Van Zandt
Darothy Stork Vegar
Martha Vella

Glona Vena

Vincent F Vena

Beverly Hatton Vigonte
Charles Vigorite

Bonita Wiley Vogt

Ross S Voqgt

Lillian Pabian Waggoner
William Waggoner
Willlam A Wagner
Saphie Johnson Wahl
Ella Watson Wallace
Albert R. Ward

Helen Schult Watson
Herbert Watson

Joseph Watson

Oswald Weber

Marie Wenzel

Edna Davis White

Helen H Wintringham
Edward Yotka

Frances Vena Yotka
Frank Yotka

Walter Yotka

Harry Young

Howard G. Zimmermann
Mary Pasquale Zottarell
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MAYORS

1912-1916 Ernest Webbon
1916-1920 Adalph Dexheimer
1920-1924 William Hunter
1924-1932 Hugh McGowan
1932-1936 Arthur Kneerim
1936-1948 Herbert Lowe
1948-1952 Ross Vogt
1952-1953 George Wagner
1953-1960 Ross Vogt
1960-1962 Gerald Monaghan
1962-1964 Lawrence Musella
1964-1968 William Wagner
1968-1980 Gilbert Gibbs
1980- Fred Criscuolo

.\.

GILBERT GIBBS

Three men who served as mayors of Ridgefield Park lead the Fire Department in the 1952 NJ and
NY Volunteer Firemen's Association Parade in Maywood Left to right: Mayor Ross Vogt (1948.1952
1953.1960), Mayor George F. Wagner (1952-1953), Mayor Herbert Lowe (1936-1948). Leading the
Fire Department is Chief Joseph Floyd and between Mayor Wagner and Mayor Lowe is Assistant
Chief Frank Kenison

FRED CRISCUOLO



GETTING
TO

Knapp's truck Iin 1924
with his sons George
and Edward and
neighborhood friends.

Knapp's Trucking located on
Emerson Street started business
in Ridgefield Park in 1924. Mr.
Edward Knapp left New York
and started business in town
with one truck. His business has
expanded to over 15 trucks
making rug deliveries through
out the east coast.

In 1942 and 1943 Mr. Knapp
Sr. escorted some young ladies
from the Village to Veterans
hospitals in the area to visit the
wounded service men. His oldest
son George was killed in World
War [I. His sons Edward and
Jack and daughter Carolyn still
reside in town. Many of the
Knapp children and
grandchildren have been active
in sports in the village.

Kern’s Store as it looked
in the 1920’'s.

Kern's store located on
Paulison Avenue, served the
neighborhood for many years as
a grocery store, meat market
and general merchandise. Today
the building is an apartment
house. Mrs. Boyer, daughter of
Mr. & Mrs. Charles Kern still
resides in Ridgefield Park,

‘ 'ﬁ(

v “M-I-LKlIDCRE“M- & One of the milk wagons that

SSILED delivered milk in Ridgefield
C.PSEELEY. » /| Park. C. P. Seeley's Milk Wagon
— | : | as it looked in 1912. This

picture was through the kindness
of Mrs. W. Garrison,
granddaughter of Mr. C. P.
Seeley. Mrs. Garrison still
resides in our town.
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| BUSINESS

Gneiding's Hack Service -
one of the early businessmen in
the Village ran a hack service
from the train station. The
Gneiding Family also had a
moving business, that is still in
existence today with members of
the family running it. The
Gneidings had a large family and
were early settlers in the village.
The first service man in World
War | to be killed was a
Gneiding and the same thing
happened again in World War II-
with the first casuality again, a
Gneiding from Ridgefield Park,

Thomas Taranto Specialty
Box Manufacturing Co.
opened for business in 1914
after moving here from New
York where the business started
in 1908. Four generations have
worked in this business over the
years, and are still active. The
picture was taken in 1935 and
supplied by Mrs. Balala of Little
Ferry who worked in the factory
until she retired. She is one of
the ladies in the picture.

Wrede & Koop’'s Soda
Parlor as it looked on Main
Street. This was the meeting
place for business men of Main
Street and a place to meet after
football games, At one time
Ozzie Nelson worked in this
store as a ‘‘Soda Jerk'' After
many years it became a
luncheonette and went out of
business in the late 70's. Today
it is a store that sells baby
supplies.




LOCAL HISTORIANS

FRANK AMBROSE MORRISON

Frank Morrison was born in Ridgefield Park January 30th, 1889.
He attended Ridgefield Park public schools, and was graduated from
Rutgers in 1909 with a Bachelor of Science degree. He then went to
New York Law School where he received a Bachelor of Laws Degree
and was admitted to the Bar as an Attorney and Counsellor at Law
in New York in 1911. In 1915 he was to practice law in New Jersey.
Frank Morrison married Althea Edna Koeller at Bound Brook, New
Jersey, in 1915, they had one son Frank Alfred Morrison born
September 28, 1924.

Mr. Morrison was active in the Boy Scouts, the Rotary Club, and
he was a member of Fire Company #1. He was a member of the
Bergen County and the New Jersey Historical Societies. A member of
the Bergen County and the New Jersey Law Associations. Real Estate
was his specialty, and it was the searching of early deeds that led to
his interest in local history. The study of Indian lore and artifacts
were his abiding hobby. We are greatly indebted to Frank Morrison
for much of the material in this book. His love for Ridgefield Park
transends time, and we are glad he passed this way. Mr. Morrison
died April 17, 1947, It is fitting we close with one of his quotes.
“Don’t forget all these organizations keep minutes to waste hours’,

FRANK A. MORRISON

“HIP" MURPHY

Harry P. Murphy is recognized as having been the foremost
authority on the history of the Village of Ridgefield Park. Born on
Lincoln Avenue, September 10, 1900, “Hip", as he was known,
attended Village schools, including the High School when it was
located on 8th Street and Hackensack Avenue, where he was a
member of one of the early football teams. After graduating, he
entered the insurance business with his father and brother, later
establishing his own office on Main Street.

Hip’s life was marked by boundless enthusiasm for Ridgefield Park
and everything associated with Ridgefield Park. An active Rotarian,
Hip exemplified the Rotary motto of “‘Service Above Self.” Through
the Rotary Club and with the cooperation of the old Ridgefield Park
Trust Company, Hip put together a slide program on the Village's
history and this program is still shown today. Many of the photos in
this book are part of the slide program.

In addition to serving for many years as Chairman of the Barbier
Scholarship Fund, Hip was also Chairman of the Central Bergen
Savings & Loan Association, (now Palisades Savings and Loan). In the

‘HIP' MURPHY halls and offices of that bank at 245 Main Street are many photos of
early Ridgefield Park which Hip over the years collected and
painstakingly had restored. These early pictures will serve forever as
a tribute and memorial to Harry P. Murphy, a man who loved
Ridgefield Park.

_ When he died, May 25, 1982, hundreds of present and former
178 Village residents gathered to pay respects to ‘‘Mr. Ridgefield Park.”
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One of the many farms in the Village at the turn of the
century was the Lindley Farm. It was bounded on the south
by Winant Avenue, now Route #46, Ridgefield Avenue
Overpeck Creek and the Hackensack River. After Thomas
Lindley sold his farm he dug foundations to support his very
large family. He bought a home on Hudson Avenue. He was
a member of Hook and Ladder #1 for thirty years. He and
his wife Mary Ann are pictured here with fourteen of their
sixteen children.

Standing from left to right . . . . .

Peter, Emma, Frances, John, Adelaide, Russell, Jane, Harry,
Florence, Jacob, Annie, Elizabeth, Abraham and Edna.
Sitting left to right . . . .

Thomas Richard Jr. Mary Ann Lindley, Thomas Richard
Lindley Sr. Mary Jane.

Not pictured are George and Clara Lindley



DR. WILLIAM F. FITZHUGH

Dr. William Fitzhugh came to Ridgefield Park in the
late 1920s, opening a general practice that spanned
over forty years. During that time he served the Village
as the school doctor and football team physician for
many years, as well as medical advisor for the board of
health and surgeon for the police and fire departments.

Many residents remember him well for his efforts in
obtaining admittance of Village students to his Alma
Mater, William and Mary College in Williamsburg, VA,
and for assisting in job placements in Lever Brothers
Company, where he served as plant physician for over
thirty years.

His “Hi'ya all?”, cigar, crunched hat and casual
manner are remembered by many villagers with
affection.

Wading Pool, Veterans Park



Din or Lose Committee

Gestimonial Dinner
Go the

‘Ridg\‘ﬁc[d wark 1L R J. L L. Co-Champions
Basketball - - 1949-.30

Saturday, April 1, 1950

‘Ridgcﬁcld ‘Park Civic Center

Program from Win or Lose Committee Testimonial Dinner honoring the 1949-50 NN JIL Co-
Champions.
Pictured on the cover are: Front Row: Jimmy Elvin, Coach Frank Bell, Arthur Lesemann Back Rou
Rich Thompson, Wilfred Arndt, Jimmy Gleckner, Carl Frei

The Win or Lose Committee was formed by citizens interested in athletic teams at Ridgelield Fark
High School. Teams were honored each year at a Testimonial Dinner at which time awards were
presented to the athletes for their participation in a chosen sport, whether it was a winning or losing
season.

A long-time member of the committee was Joseph S. Floyd, who was also a former Fire
Department Fire Chief.
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DEDICATION OF THE
CHRISTIE HOMESTEAD

L/R CHERYL HERMAN (owner), REGINALD
MCMAHON (BERGEN COUNTY HISTORICAL
SOCIETY) FRANK ROMANO (HISTORY
CHAIRMAN) FRED CRISCUOLO (MAYOR),
VIRGINIA KAPPELER, (CHAIRMAN OF
BRINKERHOFF REUNION).

BRINKERHOFF PARADE

AUGUST 24, 1985

o W " o g3

MEMBERS OF THE BRINKERHOFF
FAMILY



Linda Hull was the winner of the Village Tercentennial Logo Contest. She received a Fifty
dollar savings bond, and her logo was used for bumper stickers, mugs, T-shirts, and the
Tercentennial Banner which hung across Main Street at Mr. Vernon for the year 1985.
Congratulations Linda.

(1685 RIDCEFIELD PARK. X jags

LINDA HULL
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Seating L/R. Nadine Herrunzie, Dolores Per .
Theresa Cahill, Ed Campbell, Standing L/R. Peter Monchina, Sue Adams, Terri Boos, Teresa McDonough, Connie

azzo Frank Romano, Virginia Kappeler, Beverly Vigorito, Ed Coyle,

Vecchione, Joan Grimes, Helen Holly, Harry Welte, Bob Lenox, Ross Vogt, Lou Fernandez, Tom Grater

Ed Covle - Chairman
Ross Vogt - Co Chairman
Dorijs Conley - Treasurer
Nadine Herrunzie - Secretary
Historic /Parade

Frank Romano - Chairman

George Fosdick-Editor, Diane Romano, Helen
Watson, N. Louis Rosdahl, Ed Palange, Doris
Conley, Peter Puleio, Tony Salerno, Harry
Welte, Susan Vena, Peter Monchino, Frank
Terranella Joan Grimes, Virginia Kappeler, C

Whitney Conley
Fund Raising
Ed Champbell - Chairman
Journal
Terry Cahill - Chairman
Terri Boos, Mary Beth Clark,
Connie Vecchione, Sue Adams
Publicity
Peter Monchino - Chairman
Terry McDonough, Kathy Seyvmour,
lka Van Staverne, Patricia Monchino
Alison Dauvis

n‘r:].'.ﬂ!h_-‘! Dance D lores P razzo-Chairman

Fraternal Organizations - [ ou Fernar

dez

Civic Organizations - Beverly Vigorito-Chairma

Village-Harry Welte-Chairman

Some committee members for fourth of July parade. Mary Beth
Clark, Peter Monchino, Brian Monchine, Dolores Perazzo, Renska
Van Staverne, lka Van Staverne, Terri Boos, Connie Vecchione.



Seated left to right: Susan Vena, Peter Monchino, Frank Terranella, Helen Watson, Herb Watson, Joan Grimes,

Virginia Kappeler, Standing L/R: Doris Conley, C. Whitney Conley, Frank Romano (chairman) George Fosdick
(Editor), Peter Puleio, Diane Romano, Tom Grimes.
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Ed Palange

4

Deadline to meet
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WHERE DO WE GO FROM HERE?

Whether you call it a
Democracy or a Republic,
whether you judge its benefits
by the car in your garage or by
freedom to worship at the
church of your choice, by the
food on your table or by your
freedom to speak out in public
without fear, you are living
under a system of government
based on the dignity and
freedom of the individual that
derives its power from the
bottorn up rather than from the
top down.

This system of living together
has been achieved after
generations of struggle against
the doctrine that some men
have the inherent right to rule
others. It is based on the oldest
written constitution in the world
still in force. It has been
preserved through great human
sacrifice.

Like the sun in the sky and
the cream in your coffee, the
continuation of this system is
too often taken for granted. Let
us be warned! Today, in other

parts of the world, its flaws are
being exagerated and its benefits
minimized. At home its blood
stream is weakened by
indifference, neglect and
cynicism.

The time for rededication has
arrived. Personal, active
participation in the affairs of the
nation, the state, the city and
the community by all citizens of
good will and public spirit is our
only safeguard for the freedoms
we have won so dearly.

Clearly, we must work at
democracy to make democracy
work. We must work for
freedom that works for us.

During the year of 1985 it
has been our great pleasure to
share a year-long celebration of
the 300th anniversary of the

first white settlers to our Village.

It has been a year when our
elected officials, Village
volunteers, the school and
church officials and citizens of
this Village have exhibited
magnificent cooperation and
dedication in a splendid cause.

The results of these efforts have
borne success, so we'd like to
thank all the people who have
made this possible.

As 1986 approaches, a new
challenge is posed. Will you rest
on your laurels, or will you
continue to strive to improve
our way of life? Democracy
needs everyone's effort.
Freedom, with peace and
justice, is our obligation. Good
will, understanding and love can
be accomplished by practice.

People of Ridgefield Park,
you have the opportunity to
become the greatest and the
finest community in the United
States of America if you wiil
accept that challenge. It requires
only dedication, desire and a
great effort to accomplish.

Well, where do we go from
here?

ROSS S. VOGT
Honorary Chairman,
Tercentennial
Committee

Mayor: 1948-52;
1953-60



THE WHITE HOUSE

WASHINGTON

Santa Barbara

August 23, 1985

To the Citizens of
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey:

I am pleased to send warm greetings to
all those gathered to celebrate the 300th
anniversary of Ridgefield Park.

The spirit which has built and sustained
your community reflects the energy which
has forged America into a land of wonder.
As a community held by fellowship and
goodwill, Ridgefield Park has become
"home" to many who love it dearly.
Further, it stands as an example of the
blessings of liberty and freedom to those
around the world.

My hearty congratulations on this proud,

historic occasion and my best wishes in
the years to come.

le%‘\




ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

With the blessing and support of the Tercentennial Committee, preparation for this book began in Spring 1984 Initially the
Committee thought it could prepare a complete history of the Village It was soon discovered that to prepare such a
comprehensive document would require more time and research than was available to us. After several exploratory sessions, a
format consisting of a narrative history of the Village's development was adopted. The narratives are accompanied by

photographs, when available

One of the earliest problems was to secure a printer willing to undertake such a project. Fortunately Mr. Edward Michels,
whose high school history students prepared much of the research in the book, recommended Jostens Publishing Company.
Jostens is responsible for printing the Ridgefield Park High School yearbook, The [dler. Mr. Joseph Verniero, Jostens

representative, provided invaluable counsel throughout this project.

There have been some disappointments To the best of our ability we tried to contact every organization in town for its
history. Two letters were sent out, personal contact was made, stories were published in the local papers, but still some
organizations did not respond. Another disappointment was being unable to include all of the material given to us. Complete
books could be written on some areas that we mention in passing but, again, we have tried to cover as much as possible so
readers could get a flavor of what our Village is all about.

Special recognition must be given to the First Baptist Church, where all our meetings have been held The church not only
allowed us full use of the hall, but we used tables, closets and storage areas to keep all the documents that went into

preparing this book

Many people have come forward with documents, photographs, anecdotes and details, which have found their way into
these pages. At the risk of offending some whose names may have been overlooked, we would like to thank the following
people who have contributed to this history book:

Marion Arabito
Mrs. Balala

Dee Morrison Booth
Marilyn Boulanger
Madeline Boyer
Ray Brower
Gladys Bugler
Carol Campbell
June Carroll
Marge Cerina
Ruth Cleveland
Doris Conley
Whitney Conley
Fred Criscuolo
Tom Criscuolo
John DeCarlo
Harold Dexheimer
Dorothy Ecklin
First Baptist Church
Carolyn Franco
Michael Gabel
Frank Garofalow
Myrtle Garrison

Gil Gibbs
Gneiding Family
Tom Grimes
Florence Guild
Harry Hansen
Leonard Hatton
Edward Hill

Ray Humphrey
Walter Humphrey
Virginia Kappeler
Ed Knapp

Jerry Komarek
Martin Lennart
Rudy LoBoves
Mildred Lowe
Reginald McMahon
Myrtle Mehrhof
Marge Messner
Bianca Miller
Frances Oellermann
Al Paglione

Cyril Phillips
Cleo Pollard

Hilda Persich
Dean Ramon
Edward Reinhardt
Ridgefield Park High School
Ridgefield Park Library
Diane Romano
Louis Rosdahl
Howard Raose
Catherine Sievers
Dolly Stork
George Stork
Jack Stork
Thomas Taranto
Carl Tenny

Dot Tenny
Charles Thiel
Vincent Vena
Bonnie Vogt
Ross Vogt

Helen Watson
Herb Watson
Esther Weil



The following students from the Ridgefield Park High School have participated in the Tercentennial research under the
direction of Mr. Edward Michels:

Arlene Altounian Ann Hayden Tim Rahmes
Patricia Brown Steven Hicks Andrew Roberts
MaryBeth Ehalt Kenneth Jeanos Mona Schultz
Solaiman Faizi Judy Noll Steven Sussenbach
Susan Fox

The History Book Committee has worked long and hard to prepare this book. During the year 1985 we met once or twice
a week, including weekends, to prepare and edit copy, select photographs, and plan layout. Our special thanks to Mr Frank
Terranella, who had experience as a journalist, and prepared the layouts. He was ably assisted by Mr. Peter Monchino and
Ms. Susan Vena.

HISTORY BOOK COMMITTEE

Frank Romano, Chairman

George Fosdick, Editor

LAYOUTS

Frank Terranella
Susan Vena
Peter Monchino

RESEARCH

Doris Conley

C Whitney Conley
Thomas Grimes
Edward Palange
Cleo Pollard
Peter Puleio
Helen Watson
Herb Watson

Photographers

Diane Romano
Lois Montgomery
Ed Hill

TYPISTS

Mary Brandt
Susan Fosdick
Joan Grimes
Diane Romano
Frances Romano

Finally, to all the residents of Ridgefield Park, present and former, who have made this book a “sell out™ before it went to
press, we hope you are pleased with the product. We live in a great community, one which senses its roots but never lets the
past obstruct a vision of a still brighter future, Thank you all for making Ridgefield Park what it was, what it is, and what it

will become.

“God Bless America and God Bless Ridgefield Park’".

The History Book Committee






